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AND THE DISTRICT COURTS

FIRST CIRCUIT

OLIVER WENDELL HOLMES, Circuit Justice.......... ............Washington D C.
FREDERIC DODGE, Circuit Judge Creerenasarnsessesernurinans Boston, Mass.
GEO. H. BINGHAM, Circuit Judge.. ..Concord, N, H,
CHAS. F. JOHNSON, Circuit Judge ......Portland, Me.
CLARENCE HALE, District Judge, Maine................ ...Portland, Me.
JAS. M. MORTON, Jr., District Judge, Massachusetts.. ..Boston, Maas,

EDGAR ALDRICH, District Judge, New Hampshire..... .ves...Littleton, N. H.
ARTHUR L. BROWN, District Judge, Rhode Island........ visesae..Providence, R. I.
SECOND CIRCUIT
LOUIS D, BRANDEIS, Circuit Justice....eeessenncerevernsaeeass.s.. Washington, D. C.
HENRY G. WARD, Circuit Judge ...New York, N. Y.
HENRY WADE ROGERS, Circuit Judge.......... ceenen New Haven, Conn.
CHARLES M. HOUGH, Circuit Judge ......... ......a0e ..New York, N. Y.
EDWIN S. THOMAS, District Judge, Connecticut New Haven, Conn,
THOMAS I. CHATFIELD, District Judge, E. D. New York.......... Brooklyn, N. Y.
VAN VECHTEN VEEDER, District Judge, E. D. New York! .......Brooklyn, N. Y,
GEORGE W. RAY, District Judge, N. D. New York............. «+s...Norwich, N. Y.
LEARNED HAND, District Judge, S. D. New York.... «....New York, N. Y.
JULIUS M. MAYER, District Judge, S. D. New York ... ...New York, N. Y.
AUGUSTUS N. HAND, District Judge, S. D. New York............ New York, N, Y.
MARTIN T, MANTON, District Judge, 8. D. New York .... ...New York, N. Y.

JOHN R. HAZEL, District Judge, W. D. New York....... ...Buffalo, N. Y,
HARLAND B. HOWE, District Judge, Vermont...................St. Johnsbury, Vt,

THIRD CIRCUIT

MAHLON PITNEY, Circuit Justice.......coiisnresccccsrcsccisesse... Washington, D. C.

JOSEPH BUFFINGTON, Circuit Judge...... ... Pittsburgh, Pa.
JOHN B. McPHERSON, Circuit Judge . ..Philadelphid, TPa.
VICTOR B. WOOLLEY, Circuit Judge........oovueunn .Wilmington, Del,
EDWARD G. BRADFORD, District Judge, Delaware. . ..Wilmington, Del.
JOHN RELLSTAB, District Judge, New Jersey...... ....Trenton, N. J.
THOS. G. HAIGHT, District Judge, New Jersey.....cciceineicesnann. Jersey City, N. J.
J. WARREN DAVIS, District Judge, New Jersey .........c..cocvuvenens Trenton, N, J.

J. WHITAKER THOMPSON, District Judge, E. D. Pennsylvania...Phfladelphia, Pa.

OLIVER B. DICKINSON, District Judge, E. D. Pennsylvania...... Philadelphia, Pa.
CHAS. B. WITMER, District Judge, M. D. Pennsylvania..... ..Sunbury, Pa.
CHARLES P. ORR, District Judge, W. D. Pennsylvania....... . Pittsburgh, Pa.

W. H. SEWARD THOMSON, District Judge, W. D. Pennsylvania...... Pittsburgh, Pa.

1 Resigned December 31, 1917,
)
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FOURTH CIRCUIT

EDWARD D. WHITE, Circuit Justice.......cccveeeeiiirnneeses... Washington, D. C.
JETER C. PRITCHARD, Circuit Judge.....coevverruieinerrnnennnenns Asheville, N. C.

MARTIN A. KNAPP, Circuit Judge......... ..Washington, D. C.
CHAS. A. WOODS, Circuit JUudge......cveieiererereotrocaracossscsasansss Marion, S. C.
JOHN C. ROSE, District Judge, Maryland ................ ...Baltimore, Md.
HENRY G. CONNOR, District Judge, E. D. North Carolina.......c...... Wilson, N. C.
JAMES E. BOYD, District Judge, W. D. North Carolina....... .Greensboro, N. C.
HENRY A. MIDDLETON SMITH, District Judge, E. D. 8. C.....Charleston, S. C.
JOSEPH T. JOHNSON, District Judge, W. D. 8. C. .......... Greenville, S. C.
EDMUND WADDILL, Jr., District Judge, E. D. Virginia...... ..Richmond, Va.
HENRY CLAY Mc¢DOWELL, District Judge, W. D. Virginia........Lynchburg, Va.
ALSTON G. DAYTON, District Judge, N. D. West Virginia........ Philippi, W. Va.
BENJAMIN F. KELLER, District Judge, 8. D. West Virginia..,,Charleston, W. Va.

FIFTH CIRCUIT

JAMES CLARK McREYNOLDS, Circuit Justice ...c.seveevsna....Washington, D. C.

DON A. PARDEE, Circuit Judge........ocoiiviiiriescsnnssncnssoniansianns Atlanta, Ga.
RICHARD W. WALKER, Circuit Judge.. Huntsville, Ala.
ROBERT LYNN BATTS, Circuit Judge .....cco iievniiiiiiiiiiiiinennaiins Austin, Tex.
HENRY D. CLAYTON, District Judge, N. and M. D. Alabama....Montgomery, Ala.

WM. I. GRUBB, District Judge, N. D. Alabama.... .Birmingham, Ala.

ROBERT T. ERVIN, District Judge, S. D. Alabama .....ocievvveneenennnn. Mobile, Ala.
WM. B. SHEPPARD, District Judge, N. D. Florida.... ..Pensacola, Fla,
RHYDON M. CALL, District Judge, S. D. Florida........ Jacksonville, Fla.
WILLIAM T. NEWMAN, District Judge, N. D. Georgia. Atlanta, Ga.
EMORY SPEER, District Judge, S. D. Georgia......coivvrarasnnsesanan b Macon, Ga.
BEVERLY D. EVANS, District Judge, S. D. Georgia .....cveevvunennn Savannah, Ga.
RUFUS E. FOSTER, District Judge, E. D. Louisiana. ....New Orleans, La.
GEORGE W. JACK, District Judge, W. D. Louisiana ......... ..Shreveport, La.
HENRY C. NILES, District Judge, N. and S. D. Mississippl... .Kosciusko, Miss,

GORDON RUSSELL, District Judge, E. D. Texas........... «..Sherman, Tex.
EDWARD R. MEEK, District Judge, N. D. Texas..... vesess..Dallas, Tex.
WALLER T. BURNS, District Judge, S. D. Texas?, ....Houston, Tex.

DUVAL WEST, District Judge, W..D. Texas ........

) ..San Antonio, Tex.
W. R. SMITH, District Judge, W. D. Texas.... c.cececase

vesessssesss. Bl Paso, Tex.

SIXTH CIRCUIT

WILLIAM R. DAY, Circuit Justice...... tesessessessssssnsssssesss. Washington, D. C.
JOHN W. WARRINGTON, Circuit JUdge..cccoeresescrscrarassscnsanns Cincinnati, Ohio.
LOYAL E. KNAPPEN, Circuit Judge..... .Grand Rapids, Mich.
ARTHUR C. DENISON, Circuit Judge......covvnveiiennnrnannnnnne Grand Rapids, Mich.
ANDREW M. J. COCHRAN, District Judge, E. D. Kentucky..........Maysville, Ky.
WALTER EVANS, District Judge, W. D. Kentucky......... veeesos.Louisville, Ky.
ARTHUR J. TUTTLE, District Judge, E. D. Michigan....ccceuuueene. Detroit, Mich.
CLARENCE W. SESSIONS, District Judge, W. D. Michigan. .Grand Rapids, Mich.
JOHN M. KILLITS, District Judge, N. D. Ohio....c.ivvuiiinnnnninnnnss ..Toledo, Ohio.
D. C. WESTENHAVER, District Judge, N. D. Ohio ..... ..Cleveland, Ohio.,
JOHN E., SATER, District Judge, S. D. Ohio.......... ..Columbus, Ohio.
HOWARD C. HOLLISTER, District Judge, S. D. Ohio. ...Cincinnati, Ohio.

EDWARD T. SANFORD, District Judge, E. and M. D, Tennessee..Knoxville, Tenn.
JOHN E., McCALL, District Judge,” W. D. Tennesse€................Memphis, Tenn.

SEVENTH CIRCUIT

JOHN H. CLARKE, Circuit Justice ........ 4e sersessssceseassesss. Washington, D. C.
FRANCIS E. BAKER, Circuit Judge.... ....Goshen, Ind.
CHRISTIAN C. KOHLSAAT, Circuit Judge. ...Chicago, IlL
JULIAN W. MACK, Circuit Judge....... ceresens tessesarsnssnsenssesnsass.Chicago, IlL

3 Died November 17, 1817.
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JUDGES OF THE COURTS v

SAMUEL ALSCHULER, Circuit Judge ................ cesnen vessessesss. Chicago, IIL
EVAN A. EVANS, Circuit Judge .........cocoiivnineniinns ...Baraboo, Wis.
KENESAW M. LANDIS, District Judge, N. D. Illinois....cceceveennn.e.. Chicago, Il
GEORGE A. CARPENTER, District Judge, N. D. Illinois.....ceovuueunne Chicago, 11l
J. OTIS HUMPHREY, District Judge, S. D. Illinois. Springfield, Il
ALBERT B. ANDERSON, District Judge, Indiana............. .....Indianapolis, Ind.
FERDINAND A. GEIGER, District Judge, E. D. Wisconsin........Milwaukee, Wis.

ARTHUR L. SANBORN, District Judge, W. D. Wisconsin............Madison, Wis.

EIGHTH CIRCUIT

WILLIS VAN DEVANTER, Circuit Justlce......... veverresssessass. Washington, D. C.
WALTER H. SANBORN, Circuit Judge... ....St. Paul, Minn.
WILLIAM C. HOOK, Circuit Judge... .....Leavenworth, Kan.
WALTER 1. SMITH, Circuit Judge. ..Council Bluffs, Iowa.

JOHN E. CARLAND, Circuit Judge...........cuenn. . ....Washington, D. Ci
KIMBROUGH STONE, Circuit Judge ...... eateneaenans .. ....Kansas City, Mo.
JACOB TRIEBER, District Judge, E. D. Arkansas......... Littl¢ Rock, Ark,
F. A. YOUMANS, District Judge, W. D. Arkansas....c.ceeeseeecssese Ft. Smith, Ark.
ROBERT E. LEWIS, District Judge, Colorado.........cccoeeeeseannccess Denver, Colo.
HENRY THOMAS REED, District Judge, N. D. Iowa PO Cresco, Jowa.
MARTIN J. WADE, District Judge, 8. D. Iowa..... veasess.Jowa City, Iowa,
JOHN C. POLLOCK, District Judge, Kansas...... ..Kansas City, Kan.
PAGE MORRIS, District Judge, Minnesota.....cocevevnnreccsnsacecoans Duluth, Minn.
WILBUR F. BOOTH, District Judge, Minnesota...... ..Minneapolis, Minn
DAVID P. DYER, District Judge, E. D. Missouri..... tei eseranseresenns St. Louis, Mo.
ARBA S. VAN VALKENBURGH, District Judge, W. D. Missouri...Kansas City, Mo.
THOMAS C. MUNGER, District Judge, Nebraska.........c.e.ue vev....Lincoln, Neb.
JOSEPH W. WOODROQUGH, District Judge, Nebraska ...cceecveeessnsesens Omaha, Neb.
COLIN NEBLETT, District Judge, New Mexico ........ . veese...Santa Fé, N. M.
CHARLES F. AMIDON, District Judge, North Dakota........... ....Fargo, N. D.
RALPH E. CAMPBELL, District Judge, E. D. Oklahoma..............Muskogee, Okl
JOHN H. COTTERAL, District Judge, W. D. Oklahoma...cceeeeecsvnnns Guthrie, Okl.
JAMES D. ELLIOTT, District Judge, South Dakota...... esess.Sioux Falls, 8. D.
TILLMAN D. JOHNSON, District Judge, Utah ...... . cevessrrnveed Ogden, Utah.
JOHN A. RINER, District Judge, Wyoming....... teesesesssssesssssss.Cheyenne, Wyo.
NINTH CIRCUIT
JOSEPH McKENNA, Circuit Justice....cccceveevsriancsrssacesesss.. Washington, D. C.
WILLIAM B. GILBERT, Circuit JUdge....cucvesevererrcacosonsssceccecnns Portiand, Or.
ERSKINE M. ROSS, Circuit Judge..... ...Los Angeles, Cal. -
WM. W. MORROW, Circuit Judge. .San Francisco, Cal.
WM. H. HUNT, Circuit Judge.....oocveeareracssens ..Washington, D. C.
WM. H. SAWTELLE, District Judge, Arizona.........ceeeveeinsces ....Tucson, Ariz.
BENJ. ¥. BLEDSOE, District Judge, S. D. Callfornia . .Los Angeles, Cal.
OSCAR A. TRIPPET, District Judge, S. D. California... ...Los Angeles, Cal.
WM. C. VAN FLEET, District Judge, N. D. California... ..San Francisco, Cal.
MAURICE T. DOOLING, District Judge, N. D. California. ...San Francisco, Cal.
FRANK 8. DIETRICH, District Judge, Idaho............. ceraeriseinas Boise, Idaho.
GEO. M. BOURQUIN, District Judge, Montana ..... ..............,..Butte, Mont.
EDWARD S. FARRINGTON, District Judge, Nevada. ..Carson City, Nev.
CHARLES E. WOLVERTON, District Judge, Oregon......... cennrees Portland, Or.
ROBERT S. BEAN, District Judge, Oregon.............. ..Portland, Or.
FRANK H. RUDKIN, District Judge, E. D. Washington ceee ..Spokane, Wash.
EDWARD E. CUSHMAN, District Judge, W. D, Washington ...Seattle, Wash.
JEREMIAH NETERER, District Judge, W. D. Washington..........Seattle, Wash.

*
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CASES

ARGUED AND DETERMINED

IN THE

UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURTS OF APPEALS
AND THE DISTRICT COURTS

LEWELLYN, Internal Revenue Collector, v. GULF OIL CORP.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Third Circuit. October 8, 1917.)
No. 2254, ’

1. INTERNAL REVENUE &»9—CORPORATIONS—INCOME TAXES.

Though a corporation and a number of subsidiary corporations all of
whose stock (except directors’ shares) it owned were engaged in a common
enterprise, where the corporation and each of the subsidiaries attended to
its own branch of the enterprise, and each of the subsidiary corporations
owned its own assets, carried on its own business, owed its own debts, paid
its own taxes and enjoyed its own income, there was no such identity be-
tween the main corporation and the subsidiaries as to render a dividend
received by the main corporation from the subsidiaries nontaxable under
Corporation Excise Act Aug. 5, 1909, c. 6, 36 Stat. 112, and Income Tax
Act Oct. 3, 1913, c. 16, 38 Stat. 114.

2. INTERNAL REVENUE &=9—CO0ORPORATIONS—INCOME TAXES,

Where the subsidiary corporations had accumulated earnings, none of
which had become capital, but which had been used in carrying on the
several enterprises in which the companies were engaged, but which had
been sometimes used to aid others of the subsidiary corporations, instead
of being used to promote the particular business that had earned them,
and the subsidiary corporations declared dividends, which were not paid
in cash, but were paid by the main corporation taking over the debtor and
creditor accounts existing among the subsidiary corporations, the proper-
ty received by it was received as a dividend, and was taxable under the
Corporation Iixcise Act of 1909 and the Income Tax Act of October 3, 1913 ;
it being immaterial that one of the stockholders received almost all of the
dividend, or that the stockholder in question was itself a corporation, and
not an individual.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Western
District of Pennsylvania; Charles P. Orr, Judge.

Action by the Gulf Oil Corporation against C. G. Lewellyn, Collector
of Internal Revenue. Judgment for plaintiff (242 Fed. 709), and de-
fendant brings error. Reversed, with instructions.

E. Lowry Humes and B. B. McGinnis, both of Pittsburgh, Pa., for
plaintiff in error.

J. H. Beal and W. A. Seifert, both of Pittsburgh, Pa. (Reed, Smith,
Shaw & Beal, of Pittsburgh; Pa., of counsel), for defendant in error.

" Before BUFFINGTON, McPHERSON, and WOOLLEY, Circuit
Judges.
@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER 1n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
245 F.—1
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McPHERSON, Circuit Judge. In this suit the Gulf Oil Corpora-
tion seeks to recover the taxes for 1913 that were assessed against it
under the act of October 3, 1913. Payment was made under protest,
and repayment was refused by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue.
The Corporation recovered a judgment of $128,524.95. 242 Fed. 709.

The trial was without a jury, and for convenience we repeat here the
findings of fact in the District Court:

“(1) The Gulf Oil Corporation is a corporation duly organized under the
laws of the state of New Jersey. C. G. Lewellyn is the collector of internal
revenue for the Twenty-Third district of Pennsylvania, being duly commis-
sioned as such pursuant to the laws of the United States of America,

“2) The Gulf Oil Corporation, on the 14th day of February, 1914, in com-
pliance with the provisions of the act of Congress of October 3, 1913, made a
return of its annual net income for the 12 months ending December 31, 1913,
as required by said act. In making said return the Gulf Qil Corporation cer-
tified that it had not included in the statement of gross income for the year
1913 certain dividends, amounting to $11,424,440, received by it from subsidiary
companies out of earnings and surplus of said subsidiary companies accrued
prior to January 1, 1913.

“3) In said return the Gulf Oil Corporation showed net income for the 12
months ending December 31, 1913, of $886,250.44, but under date of May 1, 1914,
the said C. G. Lewellyn, collector, mailed to said corporation notice of an as-
sessment of tax thereon amounting to $9,072.56. A claim for abatement of
this overcharge, amounting to $210.06, was filed with the collector June 9,
1914, and on June 30, 1914, the Gulf Oil Corporation paid to the said C. G.
Lewellyn, collector, the sum of $8,862.50, being the amount of said assessment,
less the $210.06 for which abatement was claimed. Said claim for abatement
having been disallowed, said Gulf Oil Corporation, on the 5th day of Novem-
ber, 1914, paid the said collector the additional sum of $210.06, with interest
amounting to $6.30, making a total payment of $216.36.

“(4) On the 30th day of December, 1914, the said C. G. Lewellyn, collector,
acting under instructions from the Commissioner of Internal Revenue at Wash-
ington, D. C., mailed notice and demand for tax assessment against the Gulf
0il Corporation for the year ending December 31, 1913, amounting to $114,034.-
84. In fact, this additional assessment amounted to $114,244.40, being the 1
per cent. upon the entire amount of the dividends received by the Gulf Oil
Corporation from subsidiary companies out of surplus accrued to such sub-
sidiaries prior to January 1, 1913, and payable to the Gulf Oil Corporation
prior to March 1, 1913, and said additional assessment was based solely on
said dividends. In making the assessment, however, the Commissioner of In-
ternal Revenue reconsidered and allowed the previous claim or abatement of
$210.06, erroneously assessed against the corporation in the original assess-
ment, and credited the same as having been paid upon the assessment of De- -
cember 30, 1914, leaving the net balance of such assessment $114,034.34 as
stated.

“(5) The notice and demand of the said C. G. Lewellyn, collector, for the pay-
ment of this additional tax recited that if the tax is not paid on or before
January 8, 1915, it would be the duty of the collector to collect said tax, to-
gether with 5 per cent. additional and interest at the rate of 1 per cent. per
month until paid.

“(6) That subsequently the plaintiff filed with the defendant for presenta-
tion to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue a claim for the abatement of
said income tax amounting to $114,034.34, a copy of which claim is attached
to and made a part of plaintiff’s statement as Exhibit A, That after an ex-
amination of said claim for abatement the Commissioner of Internal Revenue
rejected the same,

“(7) On February 17, 1915, the said Gulf Oil Corporation paid to the said C.
G. Lewellyn, collector, said additional income taxes assessed for the period
ending December 31, 1913, in the sum of $114,034.34, and at the same time filed
with said C. G. Lewellyn a written protest, a copy of which protest is attached
to and made a part of plaintiff’s statement as Exhibit B.
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“(8) That subsequently the plaintiff filed with the sdld C. G. Lewellyn for
presentation to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue a claim for the re-
fund of the net amount of the assessment of sald income tax, to wit, $114,034.-
34, and also the amount of the credit allowed thereon of $210.06, representing
an overassessment agninst the corporation on the basis of its return as origi-
nally filed, the two amounts constituting the entire amount of the additional
assessment in the sum of $114,24440. A copy of the said claim for refund
is attached to and made a part of plaintiff’s statement as Exhibit C. :

“(9) That after consideration of said claim for refund, the Commissioner of
Internal Revenue rejected the same, and the said C. G. Lewellyn was instruct-
ed to notify the Gulf Oil Corporation, and on or about April 13, 1915, did so
notify said corporation, that said claim was rejected, a copy of which notice is
attached to and made a part of plaintiff's statement as Exhibit D.

“(10) That plaintiff is a holding company, and continuously since its organ-
ization in February, 1907, it has been the owner of all of the capital stock of
the J. M. Guffey Petroleum Company, the Gulf Pipe Line Company, the Gulf
Pipe Line Company of Oklahoma, and for many years has been the owner of
all of the capital stock of the Indiana Qil & Gas Company and the Gulf Com-
missary Company, except in the case of each company of directors’ qualifying
shares, and was the owner of said shares during all of the period in which
the earnings have accumulated out of which the dividends in question in this
<case were declared and paid.

“That with the exception of the Indiana Oil & Gas Company and the Gulf
Commissary Company, and a dividend of the J. M. Guffey Petroleum Company
hereafter referred to, no dividends were paid by any of the above-named sub-
sidiary companies prior to December 31, 1912. All of the earnings of said
companies prior to said date were either invested as earned in the extension
and development of the properties and business of the companies mentioned
or allowed to accumulate in the treasuries of such companies respectively, and
all of the said earnings were actually used and required in carrying on the
business of the subsidiary companies.

“In January of 1913 the officers of the Gulf Oil Corporation, plaintiff, de-
cided that the accumulated earnings and surpluses of these subsidiary compa-
nies should be laken over by the plaintiff company in the form of dividends
and accordingly:

“(11) On February 7, 1913, the J. M. Guffey Petroleum Company declared
and authorized out of its accumulated surplus earned prior to January 1, 1913,
the immediate payment of a dividend of which the Gulf Oil Corporation re-
ceived $3.749,750. Payment of said dividend was made April 11, 1913.

“(12) On February 7, 1913, the Gulf Pipe Line Company declared and author-
ized out of its accumulated surplus earned prior to January 1, 1913, the imme-
diate payment of a dividend. of which the Gulf Oil Corporation received $4,-
724,055. Pavment of said dividend was made April 11, 1913.

“(13) On February 7, 1913, the Gulf Pipe Line Company of Qklahoma de-
clared and authorized out of its accumulated surplus earned prior to January
1, 1913, the immediate payment of a dividend of which the Gulf Oil Corpora-
tion received $2,597,660. Payment of said dividend was made April 11, 1913.

“(14) On January 8, 1913, the Indiana Oil & Gas Company declared and au-
thorized out of its accumulated surplus earned prior to January 1, 1913, the
immediate payment of a dividend, of which the Gulf Oil Corporation received
$338,000, and on February 24, 1913, declared and authorized the immediate
payment of a dividend, of which the Gulf Oil Corporation received $10,000.
Payment of the dividend declared January 8, 1913, was made on that day and
payment of the dividend declared February 24, 1913, was made on February
25, 1913.

“(15) On December 17, 1912, the Gulf Commissary Company declared and
authorized out of its accumulated surplus earned prior to December 17, 1912,
the payment of a dividend, of which the Guif Oil Corporation received $4,975.
Payment of said dividend was not made until January 4, 1913.

“(16) Payment of said dividends by the J. M. Guffey Petroleum Company,
the Gulf Pipe Line Company, and the Gulf Pipe Line Company of Oklahoma
was made as follows:
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“The several companies mentioned, together with certain other companies,
constituted a single enterprise carried on by the plaintiff; that enterprise con-
sisting in a general way of the production and purchase of crude oil, the trans-
portation of oil, and the refining and marketing thereof. During the period
in question the business of producing and purchasing oil was carried on prin-
cipally in the state of Oklahoma, where also the oil was gathered and
stored; the transportation of oil by pipe lines from points in the state of Okla-

‘homa and in Texas to the Gulf of Mexico, where the company owned refiner-
ies in which the refined products were manufactured. The marketing of these
products was carried on over a large part of the United States and in foreigr
countries, and for the purpose of shipping such refined products the company
owned and operated its own fleet of carrying vessels.

“At the time of the declaration of the dividends before referred to all of the
earnings of the subsidiary companies had been retained in those companies,
treating the subsidiary company collectively, although for the purposes of the
enterprise as a whole, it was necessary that the funds or credit of one sub-
sidiary be loaned to and used by another. As a result of this at the time of
the declaration of sald dividends there existed among the subsidiary companies
considerable indebtedness, evidenced by book accounts; such indebtedness aris-
ing almost entirely through transactions between such companies in the pur-
chase and sale of oil or property.

“All of these funds were either invested in properties or actually required
in the carrying on of the business of the subsidiary companies, so that the sub-
sidiary companies were without moneys with which to make payment of this
intercompany indebtedness. TFor the purpose of clearing the transaction the
matter was consummated on the same day, to wit, April 11, 1913, and in this
way:

“The Gulf Oil Corporation took over upon its books the amount of the divi-
dends before mentioned (other than the Indiana Oil & Gas Company and the
Gulf Commissary Company, which it had already received) and at the same
time set up upon its books accounts receivable owing to it by various subsid-
iaries aggregating the amount of the dividends so received. Upon the books of
the subsidiary companies entries showing the same facts were made, and all
of these entries were made upon vouchers passed between the parties to the
transactions.

“As a result, the subsidiary companies collectively, arter the payment of
this dividend, owned substantially the same amount as prior thereto had been
owing to some of the subsidiaries by other subsidiaries, but such indebtedness
was shifted so that it was owing entirely to the Gulf Oil Corporation; and the
Gulf Oil Corporation, after the payment of the dividends, had no property
assets which prior thereto was not represented in the shares. of stock of the
subsidiary companies owned by it, but it had upon its books accounts receiv-
able of subsidiary companies, which together with the shares of stock of the
varlous subsidiary companies owned by it represented the same property and
assets as was represented by the shares of stock alone prior to the declara-
tion and payment of said dividends. .

“(17) The only dividend declared by the J, M. Guffey Petroleum Company
prior to January 1, 1913, was a dividend of $2,024,865, declared and paid in
the year 1912, but the moneys out of which that dividend was paid arose out
of the sale by the J. M. Guffey Petroleum Company to the Gulf Refining Com-
pany (another subsidiary of the plaintiff company) of certain ships owned by
it and was merely the carrying out of a change of ownership of the property
from one subsidiary to another.

“(18) That the said J. M. Guffey Petroleum Company, Gulf Pipe Line Com-
pany, Gulf Pipe Line Company of Oklahoma, Indiana 0Qil & Gas Company, and
Gulf Commissary Company were all corporations subject to the payment of
the excise tax imposed by the act of Congress of August 5, 1909 (36 Stat. 11~
112), and that all of said companies had in fact paid all of the taxes imposed
upon them under the provisions of the said act, including such taxes on the
earnings from which said dividends were declared.”

We may summarize the facts as follows: For a number of years
the Corporation has owned all the stock (except ditectors’ shares)
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of the five subsidiaries named; and it owned this stock while the sub-
sidiaries were accumulating the earnings that were afterward trans-
ferred to the Corporation in the form of dividends. With exceptions
not now material, none of the subsidiaries had declared a dividend be-
fore December 31, 1912; the previous earnings had been used from
time to time in carrying on, extending, and developing the several enter-
prises in which they were engaged, and the earnings were properly
employed for these purposes. In January, 1913, the Corporation de-
cided to have these earnings transferred to itself, and thereupon the
subsidiaries took the following steps: On February 7, 1913, the
Guffey Petroleum Company, the Gulf Pipe Line Company, and the
Gulf Pipe Line Company of Oklahoma, each declared a dividend, pay-
able immediately, out of the surplus and earnings that had accumulated
before January 1, 1913; and on April 11, the corporation received on
this account from the Guffey Company $3,749,750, from the Gulf Pipe
Line Company $4,724,055, and from the Gulf Pipe Line Company of
Oklahoma $2,597,660. The Indiana Oil & Gas Company declared two
dividends out of similar surplus and earnings, one on January 8, 1913,
from which the Corporation received on the same day-$338,000, and one
on February 24, 1913, from which on February 25 the Corporation re-
ceived $10,000. Out of similar earnings and surplus, the Gulf Com-
missary Company declared a dividend on December 17, 1912, from
which on January 4, 1913, the Corporation received $4,975. The re-
spective dividends were not declared in cash; the earnings, as and when
produced, had been employed in the several enterprises, and had thus
been invested in different kinds of property. They had not always
been used to promote the particular business that had earned them, but
had been sometimes used to aid another branch; the subsidiaries keep-
ing a debtor and creditor account among themselves. In this situation,
the Corporation made a return to the government of its income for
1913, certifying that the return did not include the dividends referred
to, and giving as a reason that they had been declared and paid out of
earnings and surplus that had accrued before January 1, 1913. The
collector, however, demanded a total tax of $114,244.40 from the
Corporation for the year 1913, basing the assessment solely on the re-
ceipt of these dividends. This was in part a franchise tax, and in part
an income tax. After various proceedings—claim for abatement,
protest, payment, petition for repayment, and the Commissioner’s re-
fusal—the controversy reached the District Court in the suit now be-
fore us. 'The subsidiaries had all been subject to the excise or fran-
chise tax under the act of August 5, 1909, and they had all paid the
amounts imposed thereunder. The sum now in dispute was not charged
against the subsidiaries, but against the Corporation alone, and is made
up of a franchise tax for the first two months of 1913 and of an in-
come tax for the remaining ten months. The opjnion of the District
Judge sets forth the argument that led him to decide that the taxes were
unlawfully imposed—the position being that the dividends had been
declared out of surplus earnings that had accumulated during several
years and had accrued to the Corporation (at least in equitable owner-
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ship) before January 1, 1913. We are unable to assent to this proposi-
tion for the following reasons:

[1] It is first to be observed (and this should be borne distinctly in
mind) that the government’s levy was not upon the subsidiaries, but
upon one of their stockholders, namely, upon the Gulf Oil Corporation.
We do not understand the Corporation to lay stress upon a supposed
identity of the five subsidiaries with itself, but in any event the facts
in proof would furnish.a sufficient answer to such a position. No doubt
all the companies are engaged together in a common enterprise, but the
enterprise has several branches, and each subsidiary attends to its own
branch, while the Corporation does the like. Perhaps the Corporation
may be more accurately described as uniting and regulating its sub-
sidiaries; but each of the companies, whether holding or subsidiary,
is a distinct entity, and is to be so treated. The several companies are
not in such relations to each other that the property and obligations and
liabilities of one can be regarded as the property and obligations. and
liabilities of any other. Each owns its own assets, carries on its own
business, owes its own debts, pays its own taxes, and enjoys its own
income. Under the Excise Act of 1909, each was separately taxed in
respect of its own business, and under that act the Corporation certain-
ly did not include in its own return the proceeds of the business done
by the subsidiaries.

[2] Now, if the Corporation had been an individual, and had re-
ceived the property in question by the method of transfer described in
the findings of fact, the contention would hardly be made that no divi-
dend had in fact been declared or received; for, although no actual
money might have passed, each company would have transferred the
ownership of valuable property to one of its stockholders, who could
thenceforth deal with it as he pleased, and could convert it into cash
whenever he might desire. The fact that the stockholder happens to be
incorporated can make no difference. The central question is, Has
a dividend been declared? If the Corporation has received a “divi-
dend,” this dividend has been declared by the act to be “income”; and,
as income, Congress has directed it to be used in measuring both the
taxes now in dispute. That the money (or property) handed over to
the Corporation was a dividend we entertain no doubt. All the prop-
erty transferred had been derived from earnings; none of it had be-
come capital ; it had been accumulated like cash, having been gained in
the course of each subsidiary’s business, and it awaited the pleasure
of the respective boards of directors. These boards did not carry it
to capital account ; they did not issue stock to represent its value; they
did not retain it for future use in their respective businesses; they de-
cided to distribute it formally to their stockholders as a dividend, just
as if it had been money’; and they did in fact distribute it. No doubt
one of the stockholders received almost all of it; but this did not
change the character of the directors’ act, which continued to be the
declaration of a dividend, judged by the accepted tests. Gibbons
v. Mahon, 136 U. S. 549, 10 Sup. Ct. 1057, 34 L. Ed. 525. It can make
no difference in the character of the directors’ act that the stockholder
in question is a corporation and not an individual. Whether a distribu-
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tion of corporate property is to be regarded as a dividend or not does
not depend on the status of the person that receives a share, but on
what is done by the distributor. In the first instance, the money or
property is owned by the distributor, and as owner he has the power to
decide what is to become of it. After the stockholder receives it, he
may use it as he likes; but it comes into his hands as a dividend, wheth-
er he be an individual or a chartered company. We conclude, there-
fore, that the Gulf Qil Corporation received the property in question
in the character of a separate stockholder in the subsidiaries and re-
ceived it as a dividend.

Being a dividend, the Corporation received it after March 1, 1913,
and the remaining question is whether taxes have been laid upon it,
and, if so, to what extent and in what manner? In thus speaking of a
tax being laid upon property, we use the customary phrase; in strict-
ness, taxes like the sum in question are not upon the property itself,
but are exacted from the taxpayer because of his relation to the prop-
erty. The owner pays, and the property measures the amount of the
exaction. This is emphasized in the case before us, where two taxes
are levied upon the same taxpayer; each tax is levied in respect of a
different subject of taxation, but the amount of each is ascertained by
the same measure, namely, by the taxpayer’s income. For the year
1913, the Corporation was called upon to pay two taxes—one, an ex-
cise or a franchise tax for January and February; and the other, an
income tax for the remaining 10 months. But the amount of the
excise tax was measured by the Corporation’s income, and the amount
of the tax in respect of the income itself was determined by the same
measure, Before Febrnary 25, 1913, Congress could not tax the Cor-
poration’s income directly, but it could value its franchise according
to its income, and could impose the tax on that basis. Maine v. Rail-
way Co., 142 U. S. 217, 12 Sup. Ct. 121, 163, 35 L. Ed. 994. After the
adoption of the Income Tax Amendment, Congress could tax the in-
come directly, and for the remainder of the year it did tax the income
in this manner. FEach tax being computed by the same method, both
were collected in one sum for convenience, but each depends for its
validity on separate provisions. And we may add that Congress was
not bound to go into a minute inquiry concerning the source of earn-
ings that might be divided, or concerning the method by which they
had been accumulated. For we have to do with a situation where the
property divided is concededly earnings, and our decision is confined to
the facts before us.

The foregoing is the course of reasoning that commends itself to
our minds. and we may briefly restate the conclusions. As levied by
the act of 1913, both taxes are constitutional, and each was distinctly
laid on a separate subject of taxation. The excise or franchise tax
was limited to the first two months of the year, and the value of the
franchise was lawfully ascertained by using the Corporation’s income as
a measure; the income tax was for the remainder of the year, and was
lawfully ascertained by using the same measure. In computing the
Corporation’s income, the government lawfully took into account the
valuable property oveg which the Corporation had acquired the com-
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plete ownership by virtue of its stock in the several subsidiaries; this
ownership having been transferred to it by the formal declaration of
a dividend. In exact terms the facts present the conditions laid down
by the act of Congress, and therefore (as no question is made con-
cerning the regularity of the government’s procedure) the amount of
the two taxes was lawfully levied and collected.

The case of Lynch, Collector, v. Turrish (C. C. A. 8) 236 Fed. 653,
149 C. C. A. 649, on which the Corporation relies with much confidence,
does not seem to be in point. The facts were these: Turrish was a
stockholder in the Payette Lumber Company, whose capital stock,
$1,500,000, was invested in timber lands. The company did no busi-
ness and earned no money, but the value of its lands increased gradu-
ally until, on March 1, 1913, it had grown to be $3,000,000. In 1914
the company sold the lands—that is, all its capital—for $3,000,000
and divided this sum among its stockholders. The share of Turrish
was taxed as income received during 1914, and the Court of Appeals
decided that he was not liable:

“Because no income, gains, or profits accrued to the plaintiff during the year
1914, or after March 1, 1913, but during that time his property remained of the
same value, and because the sale of the property of the Payette Company in
1914 and the distribution of its proceeds by a dividend to its stockholders was

but a change of the form, without any increase of the value, of the property
he owned before the Income Tax Law of 1913 took effect.”

The case did not involve the question of an ordinary dividend from
accumulated earnings, but decided that a sale of capital property and
a distribution of the proceeds did not constitute the division of “in-
come, gains, or profits” within the meaning of the act of 1913. No such
facts are before us now. We may add that the decision is to be re-
viewed by the Supreme Court. :

A situation more like the case in hand is found in Southern Pacific
Co. v. Lowe (D. C.) 238 Fed. 847, where Judge Manton delivered an
opinion that discusses the general subject satisfactorily. We shall not
take up other citations in the briefs of counsel; most of them may be
distinguished on their facts, and in any event the question here, if we
have outlined it correctly, seems to suggest an answer that is reasonably
plain. Moreover, the two cases just referred to cite and consider near-
ly all the cases to which our attention has been called.

One or two minor questions have been raised, but they do not re-
quire attention. The important points have been stated, briefly, but
we hope adequately, and, if they have been correctly decided, we see
no need for a more elaborate discussion.

The judgment is reversed, with instructions to the District Court to
enter a judgment in favor of the collector.
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VINEYARD LAND & STOCK CO. v. TWIN FALLS SALMON RIVER LAND
& WATER CO. et al.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. August 6, 1917.)
No. 2885.

1. WATERS AND WATER COURBSES &=247(1)—PRIOR APPROPRIATIONS—EVI-

DENCE—WEIGHT.

That surveys and estimates of plaintiffs claiming under the Carey Act
(Act Aug. 18, 1894, c. 301, § 4, 28 Stat. 422 [Comp. St. 1916, § 4685]) were
made three years earlier than those of defendant renders plaintiffs’ tes-
timony as to the amount of water appropriated the more reliable, because
speaking of a time much nearer the time of plaintiffs’ appropriation.

2, WATERS AND WATER COURSES €&=»247(1)—PRIOR APPROPRIATION—EVIDENCE

—SUFFICIENCY.

In a suit between appropriators of water from an interstate stream,
under the Carey Act, evidence held- to support the court’s estimate that
5,500 acres comprised all the lands which defendant had under irrigation
at the time of plaintiffs’ appropriation,

8. WATERS AND WATER COURSES €&240—APPROPRIATION—MODE.

An appropriation of water from a public stream, under the Carey Act,
may be initiated by notice or by actual &fiversion from the stream, either
process being evidentiary of the intent on the part of the person giving
the notice to make an appropriation.

WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=240—APPROPRIATION—EXTENT.

In the appropriation of water from a public stream by notice, the notice
would indicate the amount of the intended appropriation, while in ap-
propriation by diversion the capacity of the ditch used for the purpose
would indicate the appropriator’s thought as to the amount designed for
use.

. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=2240—APPROPRIATION—BENEFICIAL USE—
DILIGENCE.

After initiating an appropriation, an appropriator must use due dili-
gence in applying the water for a beneficial use or he will be deemed to
have abandoned his rights as to appropriations by others in the meantime.

WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=243—APPROPRIATION—BENEFICIAL USE—
“DILIGENCE.”

Whether an appropriator of water from a public stream has used due
diligence to utilize the water for a beneficial use must be determined upon
the facts in the particular case, “diligence,” as employed in such case,
being largecly a relative term.

[Ed. Note.—F¥or other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and
Second Series, Diligence.]

7. WATERS AND WATER COUBSES €&=240-—APPROPRIATION—DILIGENCE—EVI-
DENCE—SUFFICIENCY.

The want of diligence of defendant and his predecessor in constructing
the high-line ditch, and the application of the water through it to a bene-
ficial use, held, under the evidence, to deprive defendant of its initiatory
rights in so far as affecting plaintiffs’ appropriations.

WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=240-—APPROPRIATION—AMOUNT NECES-
BARY.

An appropriator can claim no more water than is necessary for the
purpose of the appropriation, and when he has that he cannot prevent
others from using the surplus.

9. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=2254—APPROPRIATION—AMOUNT NECESSARY

—EVIDENCE—SUFFICIENCY.

In suit between appropriators of a public stream, held, under the evi-
dence, that the court properly councluded that 12,500 acre-feet was sutt-
cient to answer the needs of defendant under its appropriations.

[
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10. WATERS AND WATER COURSES €=254—APPROPRIATION—BESNEFICIAL USE—
AMOUNT.

In a suit to determine conflicting rights to the waters of a pubfic
stream, 3 acre-feet per acre for hay and grain land, and 13 acre-feet for
pasture land, held a reasonable allowance to defendant, whose land was
only slightly above the water in the streams.

11. ‘IYATEBS AND WATER COURSES &=247(1)—RIGHTS AS BETWEEN STATES—

ARTIES.

The rights, as between states, to share in the waters of an interstate
stream, is a matter for adjustment between the states, and individual users
cannot raise a question about the use of such water in another state out
of the territorial jurisdiction of the court.

12, WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=247(1)—PRIOR APPROPRIATIONS—NATURE
OF SUIT.
A suit to determine rights to the waters of a public stream between
parties claiming by prior appropriation is essentially one to quiet title to
real property and is local and not transitory.

13. CoUurTs €>29—P0OWERS—PROPERTY OUTSIDE OF JURISDICTION.

The rem may not be affected by the direct operation of the decree where
it is beyond the territorial jurisdiction of the court, but the court may,
acting in personam, coerce @ction respecting such property.

14. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=2240—USE—RESTRICTIONS.

Ordinarily one having obtained the right to use a given quantity of
water from a public stream may change the place or character of its use
and the point of diversion.

15. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=247(1)—REGULATION OF USE—TERRITORY
BEYOND JURISDICTION OF COURT.

The United States District Court of Idaho had the power, in a proceed-
ing in personam, to restrict defendant’s use of the water to a circum-
scribed locality in Nevada, where a change in territory would result in -
less water flowing back into the stream, resulting in loss to plaintifis.

16. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=247(1)—REGULATION OF USE—TERRITORY
BEYOND JURISDICTION OF COURT.
It was also proper to impose upon defendant the obligation of installing
measuring devices and keep a record of the amount of water diverted,
ete.,, and provide that plaintiffs should have the right of inspection.

17, WATERS AND WATER COURSES €=240—CAREY ACT—PERFECTING APPROPRI-
ATION—TIME.

In a project, under the Carey Act of Congress, to impound all waters
of the Salmon river, in Idabo, plaintiffs had 10 years within which to
make diversion, and proof thereof, for a beneficial use, in view of Laws
Idaho 1915, c. 94.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern Division of the District of Idaho; Frank S. Dietrich, Judge.

Suit by the Twin Falls Salmon River Land & Water Company, a
corporation, and another, against the Vineyard Land & Stock Company,
a corporation. From the decree entered, defendant appeals. Affirmed.

Frank K. Nebeker, of Salt Lake City, Utah, C. A. Boyd, of Ogden,
Utah, Edwin Snow, of Boise, Idaho, and C. B. Henderson, of Elko,
Nev. (Howat, Marshall, Macmillan & Nebeker, of Salt Lake City,
Utah, of counsel), for appellant.

Richards & Haga and J. L. Eberle, all of Boise, Idaho, for appellees.

Before GILBERT and HUNT, Circuit Judges, and WOLVER-
TON, District Judge.

@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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WOLVERTON, District Judge. This suit was instituted to deter-
mine the conflicting water rights alleged by the parties, respective-
ly, to have been acquired by prior appropriation. The defendant,
appellant here, is engaged in raising and husbanding stock upon the
ranges, consisting in most part, but not entirely, of lands it has ac-
quired and now owns. It is alleged that these appropriations of water
are from Salmon river and its tributaries. The river extends for
many miles in the state of Nevada, running in a general northerly
direction, crosses the northern boundary line into the state of Idaho,
and continues in that state down to where its waters are captured by
plaintiffs, who are the appellees here. The plaintiffs are the owners of
a project devised and constructed under the provisions of the Carey
Act of Congress (Act Aug. 18, 1894, c. 301, § 4, 28 Stat. 422 [Comp.
St. 1916, § 4685]), whereby is impounded all the water coming down
Salmon river, by means of a dam of unusual dimensions, forming a
reservoir in the stream. The dam being completed, water was first
turned into it about May 1, 1911, and its use for irrigation began in
June of that year. The appropriation was acquired under three per-
mits issued by the state engineer of the state of Idaho. These permits
are: (1) No. 2,659, for 1,500 cubic feet per second, with a priority
as of December 29, 1906; (2) No. 3,267, for 500 cubic feet, with a
priority as of August 22, 1907 ; and (3) No. 5,519, for 1,000 cubic feet,
as of September 7, 1909. It was intended by the project to reclaim
150,000 acres of land, but, because of the limited water supply, the
system was reduced to reclaim approximately 100,000 acres only. Wa-
ter rights have been actually sold aggregating about 73,000 acres. The
entire water flow, however, never reached the dimensions of the first
permit, and, generally, but a small proportion thereof. That these
appropriations were regularly made and acquired there is no dispute;
the sole controversy being as to what appropriations the defendant has
that are prior in time and superior in right to the plaintiffs’ appropria-
tions. The principal ranches for which appropriations are claimed by
the defendant are the Hubbard ranch, lying mainly in township 43,
range 63 east, a small portion only extending into township 44; the
Vineyard ranch, in township 44, range 63; the San Jacinto ranch, ex-
tending from the center line of section 21, township 45, range 64, to
about the south line of section 23, in township 47, range 64, being com-
prised by townships 45, 46, and 47, range 64 east; and the Bridge
ranch, on the Shoshone creek, a tributary to Salmon river, in township
47, ranges 64 and 65. Other small appropriations are claimed from
other tributaries to Salmon river, which will be mentioned specifically.

The trial court decreed that defendant is entitled to 12,500 acre-feet
of water to satisfy the rights which may be said to be prior to those
of the plaintiffs. This comprises all appropriations upon all the
ranches designated, as well as those to be specifically mentioned. The
decree specifically describes the lands to which the appropriations are
appurtenant, and defendant’s counsel claim that these aggregate ap-
proximately 11,660 acres, which a cursory estimate from the record
confirms, but say there are in fact something over 3,000 acres of un-
irrigated lands described in the decree. The trial court, however, in
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its opinion, indicated that a prior right should be recognized in the
defendant for the irrigation of 3,000 acres of hay land and 2,500 acres
of pasture, aggregating 5,500 acres. Its basis for the duty of water
was approximately 3 acre-feet for hay and grain land and 114 acre-
feet for pasture. :

The testimony on the part of the defendant relating to the diver-
sions of water upon the lands claimed to have been irrigated, the dates
diversions were made, the amount diverted, the specific lands to which
the use was applied, and the seasonal application, is quite voluminous,
and, as it covers many years, depending very largely upon the memory
of witnesses, it is wanting in that specific and exact detail that one
would wish to make it altogether dependable and reliable. Such a
state of the record requires, therefore, the application of the greatest
care and diligence in resolving the ultimate facts upon which to pass
the decree,

The defendant’s stock ranges, located along Salmon river and its
tributaries in both Idaho and Nevada, are at an elevation ranging
from 5,200 feet to 5,700 feet above sea level. The growing season for
crops of grains and grasses is consequently short as compared with
lower levels. That such crops may be satisfactorily and profitably pro-
duced cannot be questioned; but as to grains and alfalfa, it may be
conceded that they cannot be produced in such great abundance as on
the lower levels. For instance, but two crops of alfalfa can be pro-
duced during the season, while the usual croppings in the lower levels
are three. The testimony in the record shows that, during the whole
time these ranges have been occupied down to the time that this con-
troversy arose, there were but about 21 acres of wheat and 27 acres of
oats grown on the entire ranges. This is evidentiary in a way of the
adaptability, or want of adaptability rather, of such lands for profitably
producing such crops. The inference is that such crops were not eco-
nomically profitable for the stock industry, or the lands were not prof-
itably adaptable for growing the same, taking into consideration, along
with the quality of the soil, the short seasons and the convenience or in-
convenience of marketing owing to the distance from marketing centers.
These lands up to this time have not been generally occupied for resi-
dential or home purposes, and but few cabins have been maintained up-
on the ranches, and those only for the habitation of range riders or
caretakers of stock, while the stock was being provided with feed in the
late fall or winter season. .

In a general sense, the manner of irrigating the lands was by the
flooding system; that is, depending in a measure on the flood waters
that came down along about the month of June in such quantities as
to overflow the banks of the streams, but more generally upon the
construction of dams and barriers in the streams, by rude and un-
scientific methods, to throw the water out in such quantity as to cover
the lands, and allow it to remain thereon a considerable length of time.
The waters thus thrown out upon the land are controlled more or less
by the construction of ditches and conduits for carrying them upon
lands that they would not ordinarily reach in the usual course when
thrown out of the natural channel, The ditches, most of them, until
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later years, were of primitive construction, and in many instances
were 5o laid as to make use of the sloughs and swales for conducting
water to places of advantage. Latterly some of the ditches were built
with greater attention to scientific construction, the most conspicuous
of which is the Harrell ditch, which will be especially treated of later.
Generally the water was used for producing the natural grasses in-
digenous to those localities, including the rye grass, a very nutritious
article of food for stock. In considerable measure the native grasses
were produced in such quantities as to be cut for hay, and were so cut
and fed to stock as occasion demanded; but by far the larger propor-
tion of the area thus irrigated was utilized for pasturage only. This
pasture land generally lies contiguous to the streams and the natural
runways for the water. Much of it is grown over with willows in
greater or less density, and other parts are occupied by sloughs and
swales, where to some extent a coarse grass grows upon which the
stock browse. In the more recent years water has been thrown over
considerable areas of land covered with sagebrush, for the purpose,
it is claimed, of promoting the growth of the natural grasses found
there for pasturage purposes. This is upon the higher levels, and at
best the grass found there is insignificant in quantity. By reason of
the water table being near the surface, and the natural percolation that
takes place in the soil, and considering also the overflooding, this meth-
od of irrigation results in the lower levels in returning very large
quantities of water to the natural streams.

Having made these general observations, which apply practically
without question, we will proceed to a consideration of the testimony.

We can best get at the most satisfactory results by a comparison of
maps which bave been intraduced in evidence as exhibits, considering
_along with them the testimony giving statistics as the result of wit-
nesses’ observations.

The witness L. W. Beason made measurements and surveys of de-
fendant’s property in 1914, and was engaged in the work, he and his
subordinates, about eight months. This, it must be observed, was some
seven or eight years after plaintiffs made their first appropriation.
After relating what ditches he found, giving their measurements and
capacities, the witness produced a map, defendant’s Exhibit No. 11,
covering the Hubbard and Vineyard ranches, which shows by the
coloring the hay and pasture lands; the total acreage being, hay land
866.7 acres, and pasturage 1,728.3 acres. He also produced defendant’s
Exhibit 12, a map which covers the Salmon river or San Jacinto
ranch, extending from Bird’s Nest to Boar’s Nest, with different col-
orings indicating the different kinds of lands, such as first-class pas-
ture lands, second-class pasture lands, etc. He gives the area of each
class, all claimed to be under irrigation, as follows:

First-class pasture land...... sestserernsasesnas cersesesesess 20012 acres.
Second-class pasture land....cceceeesececevons PPN ... 1,037 ¢
Hay land.......ccoeeeveuecnes 17662 ¢
Grain land......... ceeeeatasacsrenrerasereas vee. 1,4817 ¢

Seeded to timothy 2406

TOtAl oeveevonscanccnosncossassnsssssasssescnssassscosss .. 7,0664
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This, with the lands of the Hubbard and Vineyard ranches added,
makes a grand total of 9,660.4 acres.

The witness relates that there are none of the lands marked mead-
owlands, or first or second class pasture lands, that have not re-
ceived the benefits of irrigation. Other plowlands were measured,
not shown on the exhibit, of which there are 1,205.4 acres, all under
the Big ditch. This latter must be excluded, as will appear from a
consideration of the Harrell or High Line ditch. Witness also pro-
duced a map, defendant’s Exhibit No. 13, covering the Bridge ranch.
This shows: ‘

Pasture land.......... 1o e e s e et ettt i be e r e enanene 428.0 acres:

1 T R 124.8

Grain 1and.......ooviiiiiii it 2783 ¢
Total v.veiveinnnnnnneninnnnnnnn. PR TR T 580.1 ¢

Making a grand total, comprising all these ranches, of 10,240.5 acres.

On the other hand, the plaintiffs produced one E. B. Darlington, alsc.
a civil engineer, who made observations and estimates in 1911, three
years earlier than those made by Beason, and yet four or five years
later than the date of plaintiffs’ first appropriation. He produced maps.
covering the Vineyard ranch and all above that, including the Bridge
ranch. These are plaintiffs’ Exhibits 11 and 18. The former shows.
by different colorings the different lands under irrigation in that year,
and the latter designates by various colors additional lands that de-
fendant claims are under and subject to irrigation. On the Vineyard:
ranch the maps show: :

Hay land, Irrigated. .. oeen ittt i e i et e, 4296 acres.
Pasture land, irrigated.........oviiviiiiiinneninrnnnnrnnnnnn.. 183 ¢
Pasture land, not irrigated. .........ovviiereenenennnnnenen, 8§38 «
Total, irrigated land........oovuuvinrinininenennrnvnnnnnnn, 4479 ¢
“ T2 ¥ o K- £ 1 838 «

As to the San Jacinto ranch, not including the Bridge ranch, these
maps show : '

Hay land,.drrigated. ......ccovivninneinininnrnnenrennnnnn.s 1,083.4 acres..
Pasture land, irrigated..........ooveiviiiirnnnnnrenennnnn... 788.6 «
Alfalfa land, irrigated.......ocovevininiineeneennnennnns 1402 ¢
Wheat ..o i e e 21.0 “

Total ...etiiirinnentniiniiiinnnnnnn R R T N 1,983.2 ¢

AY

On the Bridge ranch:
Hay land, irrigated..........cooiiiiireniuinrenunnesrvnnvnnnns 150.7 acres..
Pasture, Irrigated. .. ..ovueueini s ienrennsrenne s, 576
Pasture, irrigable. ...ouieiniii it iiiiineerieeeennneannnnn, 1572 ¢

Total ...... e e i it e e N cretcsnane .. 3635 ¢«

Aside from these, there is a tract shown of 414.0 acres, designated
as hay not irrigated, and another tract of 1,117.4 acres, designated as.
pasture not irrigated. :
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To recapitulate, this shows:

Hay and pasture land, irrigated. ...cooieeiecinnoeneranenee 2,639.4 acres.

Hay and pasture land, not irrigated. ....coovieeieiii i 2410 ¢

The two tracts last mentioned........ccviinenrcocerrnnonecee 15314 ¢
Making a grand total of..cccceeeiiieriiirniiiiaireen 44118 ¢

This witness has not included in his maps nor in his testimony the
Hubbard ranch. In making a résumé of the irrigated lands, he says:

“The total area watered from Salmon river was 2,265 acres; from Shoshone
-creek (Bridge ranch), 160 acres; from J ake’s creek, 143 acres.” -

For comparison, we should add to this estimate the Hubbard lands,
comprising, as shown by defendant’s Exhibit 11, by a calculation of
the subdivisions alleged to be irrigated, 920 acres, making a total of
5,331.8 acres. If this amount be deducted from defendant’s estimate
of 10,240.5, it shows a discrepancy between the figures of the parties
of 4,908.7 acres.

E. C. McClellan, testifying in rebuttal for defendant, shows that
the total acreage under irrigation in the year 1839 from Bird’s Nest
to Boar’s Nest was 4,178.4 acres, and on the Vineyard ranch 8144
acres, aggregating 4,992.8 acres, and that the total irrigation in 1904
amounted to 5981.2 acres. These statements are discredited by cer-
tain maps which the witness himself prepared, namely, defendant’s
Exhibit 4, purporting to show the area under irrigation on the Vine-
yard ranch, and plaintiffs’ Exhibit 32, exhibiting the lands under irri-
gation extending from Bird’s Nest to Boar’s Nest. The coloring on
these maps shows an irrigation in solido of all lands within the de-
lineations. The representation as to the latter district is disproved by
Beason’s map, defendant’s Exhibit 12, and as to th2 former is plainly
disputed by other testimony in the case.

Pursuing the inquiry further, relating to lands under irrigation else-
where, according to Beason’s testimony, defendant’s Exhibit 7 covers
lands on Trout creek, which are, as estimated, 50 acres of hay and 170
acres of pasture; defendant’s Exhibit 14, being of the Nall ranch,
shows hay 53.4 acres, and pasture 104.3 acres; defendant’s Exhibit 15,
Shoshone Basin ranch, 127.0 acres of hay, and pasture 914.7 acres—
a total of 1,419.4 acres. This enlarges the discrepancy to 6,328.1
acres, for the plaintiffs’ testimony takes no note of these lands.

Resting the deduction here for the present, particular reference will
be made to the testimony of Darlington given in rebuttal, he having
produced a composite map, plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33, on which irrigated
lands are designated in red and lands not irrigated in green. Speak-
ing from the map, he says: ’

“On that part of plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33 showing the Vineyard ranch, colored
in green, the land was very largely in sagebrush, rye grass and partly in-
crusted with alkali. We could find no evidences of irrigation. We searched
for it. A strip on the east side of Jake's creek and running down the west
boundary of the tract was covered with sagebrush. It is the tract lying
between the field colored red and the Tunnel ditch. It is the land shown on
Jdefendant’s Bxhibit No. 4 as being irrigated. * * * Where it is hatched in
red has since been cleared.”
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Referring to a photograph taken near the crossing of the Tunnel
ditch and Jake’s creek, the witness continues:

“The sagebrush land in the foreground of this picture shows the land
that was excluded. That land didn’t bear any evidences of having been irri-
gated. T didn’t find any ditches on it. I walked over it, just observing gen-
eral conditions. I didn’t make any special search for ditches at that time,
I made observations with the view of finding any sources of irrigation and the
land that was being irrigated. The land at the north and east of the field in
red on plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33 down the river and which is colored in green on
that exhibit, was grown up to willows and is not irrigated so far as I could
find. There are no evidences of any irrigation or ditch lines. The land from
the northerly limit of what_is colored green on plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33, as"
part of the Vineyard ranch, and the little strip of green which appears at
the southern line of section 20, 45 north, is a narrow canyon overgrown with
willows in the bottom. There are no ditches along there. The land in sec-
tions 20 and 21, 45 north, and 17 and 16, 46 north, colored in green on
plaintiffs’ BExhibit 33, is overgrown with willows and cut up with sloughs.
There was no evidence of artificial irrigation. There 13 evidence of overflow
by the river during high water season. The land in township 45 north, at
the east of the strip colored red on plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33, and colored green on
that exhibit, claimed by the defendant to be irrigated, Is overgrown with
willows and cut up with sloughs. I could discover no evidences of any
ditches there. A large part of it would overflow during high water of the
river. There are sloughs through it, which in 1911 were overgrown with wil-
lows and sagebrush. I could see no signs of any systematic use of them for
irrigation. By systematic I mean artificial use, where water had been directed
and controlled. I think those lands have not been cut over; they are covered
with sagebrush and willows. The land in section 34, between the two fields
colored red on plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33, colored in green on that exhibit, is
overgrown with willows and other brush, and cut up by sloughs. The land
in sections 22, 23, and 14, township 46 north, colored in green on plaintiffs”
Exhibit 38, is very largely in willows, rabbit brush, and some sagebrush. I
couldn’t find any that had been irrigated. The island south of the lane is
largely sand bars and gravel bars. The lane is represented by the white
strip not colored, extending through section 14. South of that was sand and
gravel bars and sagebrush. The island north of the lane, colored in red, is
cut up by sloughs and willows; not so much sagebrush north of the lane. On
the entire ranch from Bird’s Nest to Boar's Nest, I would say there are be-
tween 500 and 1,000 acres covered with willows. In some places they widen
out into wide strips and in other places there is just a fringe along the bank.
The river bank throughout this entire ranch from Bird’s Nest to Boar’s Nest
is low relative to the surrounding country. The river overtiows and floods a
large part of it at certain times of the year. It would overflow a consider-
able part of it without dams in the river. The land I have colored green and
hatched in red represents land that has not been either cleared or in cultiva-
tion since the extension of the High Line ditch beyond the lane. The explana-
tion I have made as to the condition of the land that is colored green and
not included as irrigable land, extends to other parts of the map and to which
my attention has not been particularly called.”

C. B. Stocking, another witness adduced for the plaintiffs, testi-
fies referring to plaintiffs’ Exhibit 33:

“Taking the land north of the lane between the border of the red line and
the east line of the river, there is a strip of land north of the lane, and
partly south of the lane, of 1,117.4 acres; it extends north about a mile. I
have included that as pasturage not irrigated. It evidently is inundated in
high water, but the main part of it is covered with sagebrush and willows,
The willows are very thick in places and very wide in places; at the
upper end they cover practically the entire strip from the east channel of
the river over to the boundary of the irrigated land. North of that T have
an area of 414 acres, classified as hay, not irrigated, on the island. There
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were willows lining the banks of the stream and scattering willows across the
island. There were no ditches at that time. I looked the island over quite
carefully and found no indications that there had been any ditches. The
river in high water evidently overfiowed. The land that is east of the east
fork of the river, which would now lie under the Big ditch as constructed,
was at that time entirely covered with sagebrush. It was not under any
ditch that was then carrying water, and the acreage was computed as lands
that could be brought under the ditch. Going south of the San Jacinto lane,
up as far as Middle Stacks, is an area which was included in this 1,117.4
acres as pasturage not irrigated. The land that is south of the San Jacinto
lane, included between the branches of the river, is land that is covered with
sagebrush, gravel bars and willows. Over towards the west fork of the river
there are large gravel bars and in sections down in the bottom the sagebrush
is very thick, making walking difficult. On the land south of the lane and
east of the west branch of the river, marked or corrugated on plaintiffs’
Exhibit 33, is sagebrush and rabbit brush. There was no grass that I could
find in the sagebrush, with the exception of right along the river bank.
There was a strip probably 300 feet wide of rye grass that was quite tall In
places; it grew in bunches. From the looks of it, it had not been cut that
year, because it interfered with the sights of our transits. Between the
Upper Middle Stack and what is known as the Big ditch, I have marked a
strip designated as brush, containing 57 acres. I could find nothing in it but
brush; no grass whatever; practically bare. In the strip that is green
going from the Lower Middle Stack to the Upper Middle Stack, and the strip
in green composed of the river and willows, I could see nothing that had been
irrigated; nothing but brush, no rye grass to speak of. That is the condi-
tion all the way up through the Upper Middle Stack. I traversed the west
side of the river, and the southern part is included in pasture designated as
being irrigated, but which is more than 50 per cent. covered with sagebrush.
It is very rough and some rye grass grows down towards the river banks. On
the east side of the river there was nothing that I could find but sagebrush,
and no more grass than would ordinarily grow in the sagebrush. From the
head of the Bird’s Nest ditch, going over to the east branch of the river, there
is a mass of willows that is almost impenetrable. We had to keep watch of
the boys going through to see that they did not get lost. That is the condition
to Contact and above. At the place marked green here the river is in a narrow,
rocky bottom, with willows on the bottom and I think a little grass between
the clumps, such as you would ordinarily see down on the river bottom. At
the upper end of the Vineyard ranch, going up towards the mouth of what
we call the old Vineyard ditch, is a strip of green of 42.3 acres, marked as
pasture not irrigated. That lies down below the bluffs right next to the
river and is fringed with willow clumps scattered through it, used as pasture,
and in my judgment would be overflowed when the river got to a little lower
than its highest mark., There are no ditches there. The section lying north
of the Vineyard and between the boundaries of the Tunnel ditch, was grown
up to sagebrush and rye grass. On the east side of this border of grass is
sagebrush and rabbit brush and rye grass scattered through. From the ap-
pearance of it it had not been cut. It was in bunches and where you find
bunches you will find rye grass up probably two or three feet high. The
north end of the Vineyard is what is known as Starvation field. There was
no grass to be found. It was willows, sagebrush and bare ground. It is
alkalied. Down below Starvation field, as far as it is colored, is simply wil-
lows. Sagebrush comes down to the willows. The willows bordered the
river for a distance on’each side, and there was no grass.”

[1] Now, it must be admitted that there is a wide difference be-
tween these estimates on the part of plaintiffs and defendant; but if
the real facts were known as of the time of plaintiffs’ appropriation, it
is believed that the difference would be, in great measure, reconciled.
Plaintiffs’ surveys and estimates were made three years earlier than
those of the defendant, and the space of time intervening would, if

245 F.—2
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the facts were absolutely known, in all probability account for much
of it. It at least renders plaintiffs’ testimony the more reliable, be-
cause the plaintiffs are speaking of a time much nearer the time of
plaintiffs’ appropriations. Furthermore, the testimony above spe-
cially alluded to goes very strongly to the discredit of defendant’s esti-
mates, so that one cannot say that they are in a reasonable measure
reliable.  'We are impelled, therefore, considering also the entire testi-
mony, to give the greater credit to the plaintiffs’ estimates. In final
conclusion on this phase of the case, taking the plaintiffs’ estimates,
there are included the two tracts of 414 and 1,117.4 acres respectively.
Stocking says the former tract consists of wild hay irrigated; that
“this is low-lying land along the river. The river flows on both sides
of it, and it is covered with willows and wild grass. I never found any
irrigating ditches on it.” The latter tract, which he mentions as con-
taining 1,117.4 acres, he says is wild land; that “this is grown up with
sagebrush and wild rye grass and willows and has never been irrigat-
ed.” If the aggregate of these tracts be deducted from the total of
5,361.8 acres, there would remain 3,830.4 acres. Or if the latter tract
only be deducted, there would remain 4,244.4 acres. In one aspect or
the other, these figures represent lands irrigated from the Bridge ranch
to the Hubbard ranch, inclusive. This gives credit for the entire
amount that defendant’s maps show was irrigated on the Hubbard
ranch, namely, 920 acres. Deducting these figures from the trial
court’s estimate of 5,500 acres, there is left in the one case 1,669.6
acres, and in the other 1,255.6 acres. This latter figure is in all proba-
bility quite sufficient to cover all irrigated lands comprised by the out-
side ranches.

[2] We concur with the trial court’s estimate of 5,500 acres, as com-
prising all the lands which were under irrigation at the time of plain-
tiffs’ appropriations.

The foregoing conclusion, it will readily be seen, is in anticipation
of the inquiry as to the extent to which the appropriation of water
by means of the Harrell or Big ditch is prior to the plaintiffs’ appro-
priation. In reality, the two subjects are distinct one from the other,
and require separate discussion and treatment.

The first construction of the Harrell ditch was to take the water out
of Salmon river in the northeast quarter of section 9, township 45
north, range 64 east, and run it into Roland East Side slough, which
was but a short distance. The next was to capture the water from
Roland slough, in the southeast quarter of the northwest quarter of
section 34, in township 64. “It extended along the east side of the
bottom,” says McClellan, “and up to 1904 had been carried about three
miles in length, to a point opposite the San Jacinto lane, and for an-
other quarter of a mile was partly constructed.” The present location
of the ditch was made in 1892, after which McClellan relates he ran
a line for the Harrell ditch throughout its entire length. This was
done in September, 1897, and construction commenced immediately
afterwards. That, he relates further, is the ditch which was construct-
ed entirely down to the San Jacinto lane, and perhaps a little below, in
1904. On cross-examination of McClellan, it appears that the Harrell
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ditch was constructed from the river to the Roland East Side slough in
the fall of 1893. The next spring the slough was enlarged for a dis-
tance of perhaps a mile. Moore did some work on the ditch in 1894,
" In 1897 the ditch was started from the Roland slough. It was laid
out 77 chains in length, and nearly, if not all, constructed that fall.
That work carried it to a point “a good three miles and a half above
the San Jacinto lane.” The next September (1898) the extension of the
ditch was laid out to a point opposite the San Jacinto lane, 330 chains
in all. The terminus of the Harrell ditch in 1909 was the same as in
1904. The witness laid out some work in 1909. He surveyed from a
point a quarter of a mile north of the San Jacinto lane to the point of
crossing Trout creek, since which time he has had nothing to do with
the ditch.

Darlington first saw-the Harrell ditch in 1910. It then had been
built to a point about 300 yards below the road in section 13. There
was a strip of sagebrush land all along the canal until it got up near the
head, and then wild hay meadows along the river. In 1911 most of
the land on the San Jacinto ranch between the river and the Harrell
ditch was still in sagebrush. At that time some land had been irrigat-
ed from the Roland slough, and a little strip from the Harrell ditch.
During the year 1911 the Harrell ditch was built to a point probably a
mile and a half further north, and somewhat east into section 7, and
since that time has been extended almost to Shoshone creek. About
5,000 acres were brought in under the new construction. '

Hugh McGuire relates that he did some work on the Harrell ditch
in 1901, namely, extending the ditch from the lane to the old work,
and that the first extension after that was in 1904, when it was con-
structed across the land about a quarter of a mile. That part was
not used for irrigation while he was there, and it was in that condition
to the end of 1906, when he left.

Adam Patterson testifies that he took charge of the defendant’s
properties November 1, 1908, and that they built the Harrell ditch
from San Jacirto lane to a point north of where the ditch makes a big
bend. This extension was made in the latter part of May or the first of
June, 1909. McClellan had laid out the line. The big bend that the
witness alludes to, probably, is in section 1, township 47, range 63.

Thomas R. Beason testifies that he went upon the defendant’s prop-
erty in 1910. At that time the Big or Harrell ditch was not completed ;
the upper end of it was used for irrigating land above the lane. There
was work done on the Big ditch in 1910, 1911, and 1912, and it was
completed to the present terminus in 1912. In 1911 they cleared 500
or 600 acres, and put a couple of hundred acres in grain in 1912. In
1913 the total cleared and broken was 1,700 acres, and in 1914 about
that area was sowed to oats, and they broke up 1,200 acres additional.
On November 28, 1892, the Sparks-Harrell Company filed notice of
location and claim of water to be diverted from Salmon river suffi-
cient to irrigate some 4,000 acres, which relates to the intended appro-
priation by the Harrell ditch, and on June 12, 1899, filed an amended
notice claiming an appropriation of 200 cubic feet of water, and speci-
fying more particularly the lands to be irrigated. The construction
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and diversion subsequently made are claimed to have been in pursu-
ance of those notices.

To recapitulate: The notices for the appropriation of water from
Salmon river by construction of the Harrell ditch were filed, the first -
in 1892, and the second in 1899. In 1897 McClellan ran the survey for
the ditch throughout its entire length. The first construction was to
build a ditch frém the river to the Roland slough. The next construc-
tion was to capture the water from the slough some distance below by
means of the ditch, which was extended 77 chains in the fall of 1897.
The next extension was to the San Jacinto lane. This was in the main
completed in 1904. It was related that the terminus of the ditch was
the same in 1909 as in 1904, and further that there was a strip of sage-
brush land all along the canal, extending up to near its head. This was
the case still in 1911. There was an extension in 1909 to the big bend,
and in 1910, 1911, and 1912 the ditch was extended to its present ter-
minus. In 1911, 1912, 1913, and 1914, large areas under the ditch were
reduced to cultivation, and presumably water was applied thereto from
the ditch. )

The inquiry is, to what extent was there an appropriation of water
prior to the plaintiffs’ appropriations, the first of which was made in
1906°?

There can be no doubt that, if all this extension of the High Line
canal had been made and the water applied to the lands under the
canal prior to plaintiffs’ appropriations, defendant would have had the
better right. The defendant and its predecessor, however, have been
dilatory in maturing their appropriation, and, if they have not acquired
a superior right, it is because of their lack of diligence in applying the
water to the soil. Five years elapsed before the construction of the
ditch for any considerable distance, after the project was entered upon
by filing the notice of location and making survey of the line, and 7
years additional elapsed before its extension to the San Jacinto lane.
No further extension was made until five years later, when the ditch
was partially constructed to the big bend, and it was not finally com-
pleted until two years beyond that time. No considerable effort was
made to apply the water to irrigation purposes on the sagebrush land
lying under the ditch until 1911, which was about 19 years after the
project was entered upon.

[3,4] An appropriation of water from a public stream may be
initiated by notice, now required to be given by law in some, if not
all, of the arid states, or by actual diversion from the stream., Either
process is evidentiary of the intent on the part of the person giving
the notice to make an appropriation. In the former case, the notice
would indicate the amount of the intended appropriation; in the lat-
ter, the capacity of the ditch or conduit by which the diversion is ac-
tually made would be indicative of the appropriator’s thought as to
the amount of water designed for use. These methods are only initia-
tory of the appropriation. Other steps must be taken before the ap-
propriator’s purpose can ripen into a completed appropriation. These
first steps, however, will enable the appropriator to claim his right as
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against subsequent appropriations until his scheme has been completed.
It has been said that:

“The diversion of the water ripens into a valid appropriation only where it
is utilized by the appropriator for a beneficial use.” Hewitt v. Story, 64
Fed. 510, 12 C. C. A. 250, 30 L. R. A. 263; Walsh v. Wallace, 26 Nev. 299, 67
Pac. 914, 99 Am. St. Rep. 692; Nevada Ditch Co. v. Bennett, 30 Or. 59, 45
Pac. 472, 60 Am. St. Rep. 777.

See, also, Wiel on Water Rights in the Western States (3d Ed)
§ 478.

[5] It is a principle of law, recognized by authorities, that an ap-
propriator must exercise reasonable diligence, after he has initiated
an appropriation, in applying the water to a beneficial use. If he
fails in this, he will be held to have abandoned or forfeited his right,
as it may affect appropriations acquired in the meantime. He cannot
play the dog-in-the-manger act, and expect for all time to deprive other
intended users of the benefits to be derived from appropriations regu-
larly and legally instituted or made. The Ophir Silver Mining Co. v.
Carpenter, 4 Nev. 534, 97 Am. Dec. 550.

[6] “Diligence,” as here employed, is largely a relative term, and
its proper application is to be determined by the facts in each particular
case as they are made to appear. What would be accounted diligence
under a particular state of facts might not be so accounted under dif-
ferent circumstances. Thus a person making an appropriation for the
irrigation of a small tract of open land ready for the plow would be
expected to apply the water to the beneficial use intended in a much
shorter time than one making a diversion for application upon a large
tract, where it was necessary to clear the land of brush and shrubbery
found thereon before it conld be made adaptable to cultivation. And,
again, the means that the intending appropriator has at hand, whether
meager or ready, has an important bearing upon the situation, and will
be taken into account as to whether proper diligence has been employed.

[7] In the light of these observations, we may determine whether
the defendant company and its predecessor, the Sparks-Harrell Com-
pany, had employed proper diligence in reducing their intended ap-
propriation to a beneficial use prior to the time when the plaintiffs
made their appropriations. From the time notice had been given by
Sparks-Harrell Company of its intention of making its appropriation,
namely, November 28, 1892, to the time of plaintiffs’ appropriation,
more than 14 years had elapsed, and yet the Big ditch had not been
constructed from a point a quarter of a mile north of the San Jacinto
lane. Some progress had been made before that time from the head
of the ditch at its junction with the Roland East Side slough, but the
ditch had been constructed only to the San Jacinto lane in 1904, which
was 12 years after the notice was given, and 7 years after McClellan
made his survey of the proposed High Line ditch. In the meantime,
from 1904 up fo the date of plaintiffs’ appropriation, no attempt had
been made to reduce the sagebrush land under the ditch to cultivation,
although the water had been thrown out upon it for the purpose of
producing in greater abundance the native grasses found among the
sagebrush. The grasses there found were scanty and sparse; nor did
irrfgation serve largely to promote their growth. The employment
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of water for this purpose can scarcely, in this day of agricultural
progress in the arid states, be classed as a beneficial use. Further, it
does not appear but that the defendant’s predecessors had means at
their command for constructing this ditch and applying the water to
the lands under the ditch in a very much shorter time. Indeed, when
the present company once entered upon the work in earnest, it appears
that it not only constructed the High Line ditch to its terminus, but
reduced the greater part of the lands under it to cultivation in the
space of 4 years, from 1911 to 1914.

We conclude, therefore, that because of the want of diligence on the
part of the defendant and its predecessor in constructing the High
Line ditch and the application of the water through it to a beneficial
use, defendant has lost whatever initiatory rights it may have acquired
to an appropriation, in so far-as it affects the plaintiffs’ appropriations,
and must be relegated to their superior and paramount rights.

[8] We come now to the subject of the duty of water. The law
in Nevada respecting the same seems to be fairly well settled:

“No person can, by virtue of a prior appropriation, claim or hold any more
water than is necessary for the purpose of the appropriation. * * * It
must be exercised with reference to the general condition of the country
and the necessities of the people, and not so as to deprive a whole neighbor-
hood or community of its use, and vest an absolute monopoly in a single
individual.” Barnes v. Sabron, 10 Nev. 217, 243, 244.

An appropriation does not extend in a legal sense to any water ex-
cept such as is used beneficially. Dick v. Caldwell, 14 Nev. 167.

An appropriator is entitled only to the amount of water he needs,
economically and reasonably used, and when he has that he cannot pre-
vent others from using the surplus. Roeder v. Stein, 23 Nev. 92, 42

Pac. 867, 868.

“The law is that an appropriator is only entitled to so much water, economi-
cally used, within his appropriation, as is necessary to irrigate his land.
The necessary amount of water varies with the seasons.” Gotelli et al. v.
Cardelli et al., 26 Nev. 382, 69 Pac. 8.

“Cutting wild grass produced by the overflow of the river, or, as expressed
by the witnesses, by the water of Reese river coming down and spreading
over the land, was not an appropriation of that water, within the meaning of
that term. Neither was the grazing of the land an appropriation of the
water, under the facts.” Walsh v. Wallace, supra. ’

See, also, Union Mill & Mining Co. v. Dangberg (C. C.) 81 Fed. 73.

The statutes of the state on water rights and irrigation promulgate
a like policy, and are in harmony with these views. .

Other states have adopted the same principle. The Supreme Court
of Idaho has this to say on the subject:

“In determining the duty of water, reference should always be had to
lands that have been prepared and reduced to a reasonably good condition
for irrigation. Economy must be required and demanded in the use and ap-
plication of water. Water users should not be allowed an excessive quantity
of water to compensate for and counterbalance their neglect or indolence in
the preparation of their lands for the successful and economical application
of the water. One farmer, although he has a superior water right, should
not be allowed to waste enough water in the irrigation of his land to supply
both him and his neighbor, simply because his land is not adequately prepared
for the economical application of the water.” Farmers’ Co-cperative Dijtch
Co. v. Riverside Irrigation Dist., 16 Idaho, 525, 102 Pac. 481.
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10? like effect is Hough v. Porter, 51 Or. 318, 95 Pac. 732, 98 Pac.
3.

[8] The trial court, by a careful analysis, having in mind, no doubt,
the Herrington report, which was not introduced in evidence but re-
ferred to by counsel and stipulated that it might be considered, has
concluded that 12,500 acre-feet was sufficient to answer the needs of
the defendant under its appropriations, which seems to us to be a fair
and equitable estimate. It is unnecessary to follow the reasoning here.
Some observations pertinent to the inquiry may be indulged in, how-
ever.

[10] The court has allowed practically 3 acre-feet for 3,000 acres,
and 114 acre-feet for 2,500 acres. Practically all the land to which
the appropriations were applicable is low and nearly level, and lies at
only a slight altitude above the water as it flows in the streams, and
by reason of percolation from the streams and the sloughs which
traverse the territory in some sections, and the nearness of the water
table to the surface of the soil, must receive considerable subirrigation,
the amount of which, of course, is not readily ascertainable. Such
land, as reason suggests, does not require the same amount of sur-
face irrigation as land lying at a higher level, or table-land, where its
only source of irrigation is from the surface. It is argued that the
measurements of water taken in 1914, which form the basis of the Her-
rington report, do not include the Hubbard, Nall creek, Upper Trout
creek, Big creek, and the Shoshone Basin territory. True, that is the
case. But in that year defendant was absolutely free to use all the wa-
ter it cared to, and probably used it upon all the lands that it now claims
were subject to irrigation in that year, on the Vineyard, San Jacinto,
and Bridge ranches, which comprised a larger area than that which we
now find, from a consideration of all the diversions upon all the ranch-
es, the defendant is entitled to irrigate with prior right to that of plain-
tiffs. Further than this, the hay land claimed to be irrigated in 1914
on these ranches is small in area in proportion to the pasture land.

It is urged also that the irrigation season commences April 1st, and
not May lst as found by the court, and that the estimate of water suited
to the needs of defendant should be increased proportionately by rea-
son thereof. The witnesses who have spoken on the subject agree that
irrigation in previous years began on defendant’s ranches about April
1st, and to this there seems to be no contradiction. ‘The system in that
time of the year was evidently by simply flooding these hay and grass
lands. The witnesses also seemed to think that kind of use was bene-
ficial in producing an increased amount of hay and grass, but it is
certainly not the highest use to which it may be devoted, at any rate
as it respects the irrigation of pasture.

Mr. Bark, who has made a study of irrigation, says:

“Up to a certain point the more water the more pasture, and it will re-
quire fully twice as much as for grains. I don’t think I ever found the point
in the pasture lands after which the application of more water would re-
sult in no increase, or an actual decrease, of the crop, because we never put
water enough on. We have put about 4% acre-feet on upland pastures and we
still got more pasture.”’
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The witness does not claim to have any scientific information as to
the amount of water it would require for producing wild hay and pas-
ture under conditions existing with respect to defendant’s lands, where
irrigation has been previously applied. He says, however:

“Under those conditions I think there is no method by which the amount
of water so diverted upon the land could be measured, because it gets a
lot of it by capillary attraction, subirrigation laterally.”

A table was produced showing the duty of water for alfalfa. It was
put in evidence, and shows a constantly increasing yield, as the water
was applied in six divisions, beginning with 1.18 acre-feet and ending
with 3.78 acre-feet to the acre. It will be observed in the fourth divi-
sion, with the application of 2.61 acre-feet, there was produced 5.6
tons to the acre, with 2.14 tons to the acre-foot. The fifth division
shows the application of 2.99 practically 3 acre-feet, with a production
of 6.59 tons to the acre, or 2.20 tons per acre-foot. The sixth applica-
tion was of 3.78 acre-feet, with a product of 6.8 tons per acre, and 1.8
tons per acre-foot. There was a constantly increasing soil moisture
left at the close of the season, running from 10.08 to 19.44 per cent.,
except that in the fourth division there was 17.12 per cent. against
16.92 per cent. in division 5. Thus it is shown that there is a point
where the economic application reaches its maximum utility. It ap-
pears by the fifth division that, by the application of approximately
3 acre-feet, 6.59 tons were produced to the acre, being 2.20 tons to the
acre-foot; while the sixth division shows an increase in tonnage per
acre, there is a substantial decrease per acre-foot. We may test the
economic utility by supposing the grower was buying the water with
which to irrigate his land. Would he pay for the increased supply and
take the larger yield, and the less percentage of yield per acre-foot, or
would he be contented with the smaller yield, as indicated by division
5, and pay more than proportionately less for the water? He would
probably do the latter, since the larger yield is only about 2/10 of a
ton per acre above the smaller, while the increase of his water pur-
chase would be about ?8/100 of an acre-foot to the acre. This demon-
strates that the allowance of 3 acre-feet to the acre for alfalfa is as
much, probably, as could be economically applied.

The witness Bark says that the water required for the irrigation of
hay is about the same as for alfalfa. “The experiment whereby the
table was produced was evidently on upland. He says further, in
effect, that if you keep putting more water into the soil and leaving
more thereon at the end of the season, unless you have excellent
drainage, you will water-log your land in a short time, and render it
valueless.

Following the witness further, he is of the opinion that pasture
needs about 10 light irrigations per year, extending from about April
Ist to September 30th, or possibly into October. He explains that
pasture is of shallow-rooted grass, and theré is no need to soak it deep, -
but that a light irrigation should be oftener applied. A light irriga-
tion, he further explains, is about 3 acre-inches, which, if reduced to
acre-feet, there being 10 irrigations per season, would amount to 214
acre-feet for that time,
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“That method is adopted,” says the witness, “on pastures that are grazed
continuously during the summertime s¢ as to keep up the growth of grass. I
don’t think it would require as much water, although I don’t pose as an ex-
pert in that particular line, tor produce a growth that was to be grazed off
after the summer range has been exhausted, as it would if you had stock on it
all the time. * * * It usually takes a little less water where the altitude
is higher; there isn’t so much evaporation, cooler nights, and the season is
shorter.”

Considering further, then, what is to be found in the discussion by
this witness, as has been previously remarked, from the fact that de-
fendant’s hay and pasture lands lie low and approximately level, with
the water table near the surface and the percolation from the streams
and sloughs considerable, we are persuaded that 134 acre-feet to the
acre for the pasture lands, as allowed by the court, is quite sufficient
for the economic irrigation of such lands.

There is another condition to be considered; that is, as the evidence
seems to indicate, there'is a time in June or early in July of each year
when the water rises to such an extent that much of the land is flooded,
notwithstanding the streams may be kept free from obstructions.
These flood waters go to the benefit of defendant. The decree further-
more fixes no limitations upon the time of rise. So that defendant
may use the water early or late, as it is disposed, so that it does not
use more than the quantity prescribed during the season.

The findings of the court, as to the quantity of water to which the
defendant is entitled prior in right to the plaintiffs, are therefore
approved.

The defendant challenges the jurisdiction of the court to make pro-
vision in its decree as follows:

() That defendant must usc the waters constituting its prior right
only upon certain lands irrigated prior to 1907; (b) that it must in-
stall in its canals and ditches automatic measuring devices and refrain
from the use of any water for the irrigation of its lands without the
use of such devices; (c) that such measuring devices shall at all times
be subject to the inspection of the plaintiffs, who shall have the right
perpetually to go upon and over defendant’s lands in Nevada for the
purpose of such inspection; and (d) that the court retain jurisdiction
to make rules touching the manner of diverting, measuring, and dis-
tributing the waters belonging to defendant in Nevada, and for direct-
ing that defendant “keep accurate and detailed records of the amounts
of water diverted and to require reports to be filed from time to time
of the amounts so diverted, and generally to make such orders as may
be found reasonably necessary to give effect to the decree, and to ap-
point commissioners or watermasters to make distribution in accord-
ance with its terms.”

[11] The question is presented as to the extent to which the judg-
ment and decree of a court exercising jurisdiction in one state may
become operative in another. And, incidentally, it is urged that, as to
the waters of streams which are interstate in character, their benefits
should be equitably distributed between the states through which they
flow. The thought comes from the suggestion of tlte court, in Kansas
v. Colorado, 206 U. S. 46, 117, 27 Sup. Ct. 655, 51 L. Ed. 956, that
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there might come a time when such a distribution would have to be
made of the waters of the Arkansas river. A sufficient answer to the
contention is that the pleadings and evidence in this case disclose no
such condition as to require an equitable distribution of benefits of
the waters of Salmon river and its tributaries between the states of
Idaho and Nevada; and besides, the matter is one for adjustment be-
tween the states; it is not for individual users to raise a controversy
about the use of such water in another ‘state, out of the territorial
jurisdiction of the court.

[12] As to the main question, this court has determined, by the
case of Rickey Land & Cattle Co. v. Miller & Lux, 152 Fed. 11, 81
C. C. A. 207, that a suit of the nature here maintained is essentially
one to quiet title to real property, and that it is local and not transitory.
The Rickey Land & Cattle Company, in that case, set up certain rights
in California that it claimed to the waters of the stream, and we held
that its cross-complaint setting, up such rights could not operate to
defeat complainant’s cause, but only defensively, “and not to give the
defendant a right to have its title also quieted in the state of Cali-
fornia.” Hawley, District Judge, in the same case, on the trial in the
District Court, had this to say:

“It [the court] cannot, by any decree which it may make in this suit, direct-
ly reach the dams, reservoirs, or ditches belonging to the defendant located
entirely within the state of California.” Miller & Lux v. Rickey [C. C.] 127
Fed. 573, 575.

In this expression of the law we concur. But has the plaintiff no
remedy where a defendant has been personally served and appears in
the court, and is enjoined forever from doing certain things in another
state to the detriment of plaintiff’s rights? The authorities are clear
that he has. Such a remedy was sustained in the Rickey Land & Cat-
tle Co. Case, supra. e

But it is insisted here that the decree goes beyond the jurisdiction
of the court to adjudge and provide. A court of chancery is without
jurisdiction to give compensation for a nuisance or tort to real prop-
erty lying in another jurisdiction or state, nor can it enjoin or restrain
the continuance of such a nuisance. Northern Indiana R. Co. v. Mich-
igan Cent. R. Co., 15 How. 233, 14 I,. Ed. 674 ; Mississippi & Missouri
R. Co. v. Ward, 2 Black, 485, 17 I,. Ed. 311. Nor is it within the
power of such a court to declare a deed to lands in another state null
and void. Carpenter v. Strange, 141 U. S. 87, 11 Sup. Ct. 960, 35
L. Ed. 640.

[13] The reason assigned for the latter holding is that, while a
court of equity may in a proper case compel a party to act in relation
to property not within its jurisdiction, its decree does not operate di-
rectly upon the property, nor affect the title, but is made effectual
through the coercion of the defendant. That is to say, the rem may
not be affected by the direct operation of the decree where it is beyond
the territorial jurisdiction of the court, but the court may, acting in
personam, coerce action respecting it.

Massie v. Watts, 6 Cranch, 148, 3 I,. Ed. 181, is illustrative as well
as declarative of a like principle. The case was instituted in a Ken-
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tucky court for the purpose of obtaining a conveyance of land in Ohio.
Objéction was made to the jurisdiction of the court to give the relief
desired. Chief Justice Marshall, after premising that there was much
reason for considering the action local in character and for confining
it to the court sitting in the state where the lands lay, says:

“Was this cause, therefore, to be considered as involving a naked guestion
of title, was it, for example, a contest between Watts and Powell, the juris-
diction of the circuit court of Kentucky would not be sustained. But where
the question changes its character, where the defendant in the original action
is liable to the plaintiff, either in consequence of contract, or as trustee, or
as the holder of a legal title acquired by any species of mala fides practiced
on the plaintiff, the principleés of equity give a court jurisdiction wherever)(
the person may be found, and the circumstance, that a question of title may
be involved in the inquiry, and may even constitute the essential point on
which the case depends, does not seem sufficient to arrest that jurisdiction.”

After citing cases, among which was Penn v. Lord Baltimore, 1
Vez. 444, where the Chancellor of England decreed the specific per-
formance of a contract respecting lands lying in North America, the
distinguished jurist deduces the principle that:

“In a case of fraud, of trust, or of contract, the jurisdiction of a court of

chancery is sustainable wherever the person be found, although lands not
within the jurisdiction of that court may be affected by the decree.”

e
-\

The principle is rather more broadly stated in Phelps v. McDonald,
99 U. S. 298, 308 (25 L. Ed. 473), as follows:

“Where the necessary parties are before a court of equity, it is imma- ~
terial that the res of the controversy, whether it be real or personal property,
is beyond the territorial jurisdiction of the tribumal. It has the power to
compel the defendant to do all things necessary, according to the lex loci rei
sitze, which he could do voluntarily, to give full effect to the decree against
him.”

The principle, in its more comprehensive statement, was applied in
Cole v. Cunningham, 133 U. S. 107, 10 Sup. Ct. 269, 33 L. Ed. 538,
which was a suit by a citizen of Massachusetts to enjoin a defendant,
a resident of the same state, from prosecuting an attachment and
garnishment in the state of New York involving the property of com-
plainant.

The principle was also applied by this court in Rickey Land & Cat-
tle Co. v. Miller & Lux, supra, and was later applied in the Salton
Sea Cases, 172 Fed. 792, 820, 97 C. C. A. 214, The latter cases were
nstituted in the superior court of California, and removed into the
Circuit Court of the United States for the Southern Division of the
Southern District of California, to restrain in one phase of the con-
troversy the diversion of water in Mexico, which was beyond the ter-
ritorial jurisdiction of the court. Among others, the decree contained
the following provisions:

«“That defendant be perpetually enjoined and restrained from diverting
from the Colorado river any of the waters thereof, in excess of the sub-
stantial needs of the people dependent upon the canal, described in complain-
ant’s bill of complaint, for water supply for domestic and irrigation uses and

purposes, and such other lawful purposes as the same may be applied
to. * &
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“That the said water so diverted, whatever may be the amount, shall be
so controlled and used that the same shall not flow upon the lands of the
complainant described in the bill of complaint, * * #

“That the defendant be required to regulate the flow of any water that
may be diverted by it so that there shall be no waste water flowing therefrom
as the result of such diversion upon or over the lands of complainant, above-
described.

“That said defendant be restrained from turning out of its canals any
waste water at any point whence the same will naturally flow upon or
over the lands of complainant, or flow into the lake now covering the Salton
Sink, and thereby substantially increase the amount of water therein, or
maintain the amount of water therein, or prevent the decrease thereof by
natural causes.”

By the second and last of the Salton Sea Cases, which was in the
nature of a proceeding for contempt for violating these provisions of
the decree, the provisions were themselves in effect approved, although
they were designed to be effective in Mexico outside of the territorial
jurisdiction of the court. The object of the cases was to prevent the
continuation of a nuisance being perpetrated in Mexico as well as in
California, causing damage to the complainant’s properties in Cali-
fornia.

[14] Now, turning to the case in hand, the decree complained of
goes but little further, if any, than that part of the decree above set
out in the Salton Sea Cases. It is true that the trial court has con-
fined the use of the water to be diverted by defendant, to which it has
a right superior to that of the plaintiffs, to such lands as were irri-
gated prior to 1907. This is setting bounds to the territorial use of
the water. Ordinarily, one having obtained the right to prior use of a,
given quantity of water is not restricted as it respects the place of its
use, and may change it to a different locality from that where first
applied. He may also change the point of diversion and the character
of its use if the rights of others be not affected thereby. Union Mill

. & Mining Co. v. Dangberg (C. C.) 81 Fed. 73, 115.

[15] In the case at bar there is a special reason for confining the
use of defendant’s prior right to the lands irrigated prior to 1907. By
the estimate of the trial court, in which we concur, if the 12,500 acre-
feet of water is used upon such lands, by reason of percolation 8,500
acre-feet would find its way back into the stream, and the loss to the
plaintiffs would amount to about 4,000 acre-feet only. If, however,
the whole of the 12,500 acre-feet was carried away to another locality,
where it would all be absorbed and none of it would reach the channel
of the river again, the loss to the plaintiffs would be that much greater.
The real condition is, when the plaintiffs’ rights are consulted, that the
defendant’s absolute appropriation prior in time to that of plaintiffs
is the 4,000 acre-feet only, because the remainder of the 12,500 feet
is returned to the stream after use. So that, if the defendant is to
have the use of 12,500 acre-feet of water superior in right to that of
plaintiffs, in justice and equity its use should be confined to that par-
ticular locality where it was being used when plaintiffs acquired their
appropriation.

Now, if the court has not the power, proceeding in personam, to
restrict the defendant’s use of the water to a circumscribed locality,
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it would be practically powerless to do justice between the parties liti-
gant. We are convinced, however, from the authorities above con-
sidered, that it has such power in ample scope to protect the plain-
tiffs from the diversion of the water to any locality where it would
conduce to their injury. It will be noted that the decree does not at-
tempt to describe the exact metes and bounds of the lands to which
defendant’s appropriation was first applied, or was being applied at
the time of plaintiffs’ appropriation, but declares only that the same is
included within certain legal subdivisions which embrace a very much
enlarged territory as compared with that upon which appropriations
were actually made, the purpose being to confine the use of the water
to certain definite delimitations, with a view to preventing its being
carried away to localities where the result would be to lessen the flow
in the stream, to the detriment of plaintiffs. There is no attempt by
the decree to quiet the defendant’s title to its appropriations, but only
to determine what they were and to what lands applicable, with a view
to doing justice between the parties.

[16] It is furthermore necessary, to protect the plaintiffs against
the encroachments of defendant, that the water be measured. The
proper measurement is a duty personal to the defendant. It was al-
together appropriate, therefore, that the court impose upon the defend-
ant the obligation of installing automatic measuring devices, and, for
the protection of the plaintiffs, these should be subject to their inspec-
tion. So it is respecting rules regulating the manner of diverting,
measuring, and distributing the water and the keeping of records of
the amount of water diverted, etc. These were all directions of the
court operating in personam, and not directly upon the res, and were
and are within the court’s equitable jurisdiction to determine and de-
clare.

[17] It is also assigned as error that the court quieted title in plain-
tiffs to more than 45,000 acre-feet of the waters of Salmon river. This
feature of the controversy is regulated by the laws of Idaho. Sess.
Laws 1915, p. 216. Under a project like this, 10 years is allowed with-
in which to make the diversion and proof thereof for a beneficial use.
The appropriation is contingent upon the use, of course, but in the
larger projects the appropriation speaks as of the date of the license,
though if not applied to a beneficial use within 10 years, it lapses.
In the meantime no one will be deprived of the use of the water not re-
duced to a beneficial use under the project.

Another assignment of error relates to the refusal of the court to
admit certain testimony. We have carefully examined the matter, and
find no merit in the assignment.

The decree will be affirmed.
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VINEYARD LAND & STOCK CO. et al. v. TWIN FALLS OAKLEY LAND
& WATER CO. et al.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. August 6, 1917.)
No. 2886.

1. WATERS AND WATER COURSES €=247(1)—PRIOR APPROPRIATION—EVIDENCE
—SUFFICIENCY.

In a suit to determine the rights to the waters of an interstate stream
claimed under the Carey Act (Act Aug. 18, 1894, c. 301, § 4, 28 Stat. 422
[Comp. St. 1916, § 4685]), evidence held sufficient to establish the older
rights in plaintiffs.

X. STIPULATIONS ¢&=>14(1)—CONSTRUCTION—W ATER RIGHTS.

A stipulation by defendant that “we are the owners of whatever rights
we have on our side, and that you are the owners of whatever rights
those people [referring to the early-day settlers] may have had on your
side,” was not a waiver of primary proofs showing acquirements of the
rights of plaintiffs’ predecessors to use the waters of the stream. '

3. WATERS AND WATER COURSES €©=>240—APPROPRIATION—RIGHTS OF SUCCES-
SORS. -

Defendants would be precluded by prior appropriations of water from
the stream by plaintiffs’ predecessors adequately established by the evi-
dence.

4. APPEAL AND ERROR €=1008(1)—FINDINGS OF TRIAL COURT—REVIEW.

An appellate court will not disturb the findings of the trial court on
questlons of fact unless it be made to appear that the latter court is
clearly in error in its conclusions,

5. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=254—DUTY OF WATER—DETERMINATION.

Defendants could not complain that the duty of water was not measur-
ed by the old flooding system, they not being entitled to more water than
they were able to apply to a reasonable and economical use.

6. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=240—FPRIOR APPROPRIATION—AMOQUNT.

Whoever is first in time is entitled to sufficient water from a public
stream for his reasonable needs.

7. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=254—APPROPRIATION—ALLOWANCE—SUF-
FICIENCY.

In a suit to determine conflicting rights to the waters of a public
stream, an allowance to defendant of three acre-feet per acre for hay and
grain lands, and two acre-feet for grazing lands, held amply suflicient for
defendants’ needs, considering the acreage subject to irrigation and the
dates of the appropriations,

8. WATERs AND WATER CoOURSES €&=247(1)—APPROPRIATION—ALLOW ANCE—
SUFFICIENCY.

In a suit between defendant stock company and plaintiff, who had
entered upon a project under the Carey Act of Congress (Act Aug. 18,
1894, c. 301, § 4, 28 Stat. 422 [Comp. St. 1916, § 4685]), for impounding
waters from a public stream for distribution to users, an award to
plaintiff of 234 acre-feet per acre of the land under the project held
reasonable.

9. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=247(1)—UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT—
WATER RIGHTS—JURISDICTION.

The suit being for the purpose of quieting plaintiffs’ water rights in
Idaho, the court was without jurisdiction to settle water rights in
Nevada,

10. WATERS AND WATER COURSES &=247(1)—DEFECTS OF PARTIES DEFENDANT

Where no complaint is made that others than defendants are attempt-
ing to interfere with plaintiffs’ water rights within the court’s jurisdic-
tion, there was nu defect of parties defendant.

*

.

@&=>For other cases see sane topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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11. CORPORATIONS C=>506—PARTIES—DEFENDANTS.
The owner of a large proportion of the stock of defendant land com-
pany, in a position to control its action, was a proper party defendant
to a suit against the land company.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern Division of the District of Idaho; Frank S. Dietrich, Judge.

Suit by the Twin Falls Oakley Land & Water Company, a corpora-
tion, and another, against the Vineyard Land & Stock Company, a
corporation, and another. From the decree, defendants appeal. Af-
firmed.

Frank K. Nebeker, of Salt Lake City, Utah, C. A. Boyd, of Ogden,
Utah, Edwin Snow, of Boise, Idaho, and C. B. Henderson, of Elko,
Nev. (Howat, Marshall, McMillan & Nebeker, of Salt Lake City,
Utah, of counsel), for appellants.

Samuel H. Hays and P. B. Carter, both of Boise, Idaho, for appel-
lees.

Before GILBERT and HUNT, Circuit Judges, and WOLVER-
TON, District Judge.

WOLVERTON, District Judge. The defendants below are ap-
pealing. The Land & Water Company heretofore entered upon a
project, under the Carey Act of Congress (Act Aug. 18, 1894, c. 301,
§ 4, 28 Stat. 422 [Comp. St. 1916, § 4635]), for acquiring and impound-
ing water from Goose creek and its tributaries, and distributing it to
users. Goose creek takes its rise in the state of Nevada, and crosses
the state line into Idaho, and by the project the water is impounded
in the latter state. In support of their water rights, the plaintiffs claim
that they purchased certain rights from various users of the waters of
Goose creek, which they assert are prior and superior to the rights of
all other persons taking water from the stream; also that they ac-
quired the right to the use of 500 second-feet under permit from the
state, of date March 27, 1908, and an additional amount of 1,000 sec-
ond-feet under permit of date March 10, 1909, which rights are prior
and superior to all rights acquired subsequently to the respective dates
of their appropriations.

The defendant Vineyard Land & Stock Company, by its answer,
claims, on the other hand, that, long prior to any such appropriations
of water from Goose creek or its tributaries, its predecessors in inter-
est appropriated water therefrom for the irrigation of approximately
2,000 acres, with a diversion of about 40 second-feet, and that at the
present time it has under irrigation about 4,000 acres, with a diversion
of approximately 80 second-feet.

This presents the issues of fact. The questions of law are much the
same as were in controversy in the case of Vineyard Land & Stock
Co., Appellant, v. Twin Falls Salmon River Land & Water Co. and
Salmon River Canal Co., Limited, Appellees, 245 Fed. 9, — C. C. A.
—, No. 2885 on this docket, decided contemporaneously with this case.
One additional question is presented here by an amendment to thg an-
swer, namely, that there is a defect of parties, in that there are numer-

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER In all Kay-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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ous persons in Nevada, Utah, and Idaho who have, or claim to have,
rights and interests in and to the waters of Goose creek and its tribu-
taries, who are not made parties defendant to this suit,

[1,2] The first question for discussion is brought into the record by
the contention of counsel for defendants that plaintiffs have not es-
tablished the older rights to the waters of Goose creek, being such
rights as are claimed by them as of prior origin to those claimed under
permits from the state of Idaho. It is asserted, in effect, that plain-
tiffs’ case as to these rights is wanting in primary proofs of the ac-
quirement thereof by the early settlers to whom the plaintiffs claim
to be the successors. Counsel for appellees seem to think that the ne-
cessity of such proofs was waived by stipulation of opposing counsel,
and cite the statement of Mr. Boyd, as follows:

“In other words, that we are the owners of whatever rights we have on

our side, and that you are the owners of whatever rights those people [re-
ferring to the early-day settlers] may have had on your side.”

We do not understand that this stipulation is a waiver of such pri-
mary proofs. But, considering the nature of the rights to be estab-
lished and the great lapse of time that has intervened, we are satis-
fied that the proofs made are quite sufficient upon which to deduce
their acquirement by the early-day settlers. Certain decrees of the
District Court of the Third Judicial District of the Territory of Idaho,
two in number, were offered and received in evidence. The first of
these bears date September 10, 1886, and the second March 19, 1892,
These decrees purport to settle certain water rights between the parties
litigant, there being a large number of them. These water rights are
the same as the early-day settlers are supposed to have acquired by
diversion from Goose creek. The defendants in this case were not
parties to either of such causes.

Benjamin Howells, who was produced as a witness for plaintiffs,
relates that he first went to the vicinity of Oakley in 1878, and was
there in 1880, 1881, and 1888, and distributed the waters of Goose
creek as watermaster. Referring to a map (Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 12), he
was able to recognize the several canals and ditches taken out of Goose
creek, and to locate the lands upon which the water was used. He
says:

“In 1888 I distributed the waters on Goose creek over most all of the
country shown in green on Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 12. I would approximate the

acreage at 6,000 to 6,500 acres; perhaps not all irrigated that year, but as
much as could be with the supply of water we had.”

Then he goes on to state the number of acres irrigated in 1878, 1879,
1880, and so on. He says, further:

“People were coming into the country and developing it, in small tracts at
first, and then increasing, and along as the settlement grew older more people
came in. * * * The waters of Goose creek and its tributaries were used
by these farmers from year to year. In 1888 and subsequent years many of
the ditches were able to carry much more water than we had for them.
* * * There was about 6,500 acres effectively cultivated. * * * Priopr
to the construction of the reservoir system the people began irrigation as
soon as possible in order to get their hay lands, alfalfa lands, and so on irri-
gated up as early as possible in the spring.”
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The testimony of the witness Sol. Worthington has an important
bearing upon the same subject. .

By the decrees one is enabled to ascertain the names of the users,
where diversion was made, and the amount of water claimed, so that
but little remains to conjecture. When we consider that water rights
are acquired by diversion and use, here is ample evidence of diver-
sion and use which continued for a considerable space of time, and,
while there is no one to say that he on such a date opened a ditch,
and took out a certain quantity of water, and applied it to a certain
tract of arid land for producing crops, the fact does appear, to the satis-
faction of any candid mind, that the water was diverted by settlers and
devoted to a useful purpose, and these settlers claimed water rights
by reason thereof, and plaintiffs are their successors in right and in-
terest. The decrees make that specific which otherwise would remain
indefinite and uncertain.

[3] True, defendants were not parties to the suits giving rise to these
decrees, and are not precluded by their findings; yet they are pre-
cluded by the appropriations of these early-day settlers, which we hold
to be adequately established by the evidence alluded to, considered with
such other evidence in the case as bears upon the subject.

It is further insisted that the court erred in its findings touching the
quantities of water granted in pursuance of these early settlers’ rights,
and the dates of the inception of such rights. The evidence respecting
these matters is voluminous, and a discussion of it in detail cannot well
be embodied in an opinion of reasonable length. Suffice it to say, there-
fore, that we have carefully examined the whole of such testimony,
and fully concur in the findings of the trial court. The same conclu-
sion has been reached as to the quantities of water awarded the de-
fendant Vineyard Land & Stock Company, and the dates of the incep-
tion of the rights to which they pertain,

[4] Anappellate court will not disturb the findings of the trial court
on questions of fact unless it be made to appear that the latter court
is clearly in error in its conclusions. Not only is there no such error ap-
parent here, but we quite agree that the trial court’s findings are wholly
sustained by the testimony.

[5-7] Much is said about the duty of water. The lower court has
awarded to the plaintiffs 234 acre-feet per acre of the lands under their
project, and to the defendant Vineyard Land & Stock Company at the
rate of 3 acre-feet per acre for its hay and grain lands, and 2 acre-
feet for its grazing lands. Much testimony has been adduced also,
not a little of it of a scientific nature, on this subject, which it would
require much space in the opinion to analyze. The Land & Stock Com-
pany insists that the duty of water should still be measured by the old
method of irrigation of pasture and the native grasses for the produc-
tion of hay, which was by the flooding system, that allowed the wated
to cover the surface of the soil, and actually to remain thereon for
considerable periods of time. This method is being disapproved of in
more recent years as wasteful and not an economical use. No per-
son is entitled to more water than he is able to apply to a reasonable
and economical use. True, it may be that good results are obtainable

245 F.—3
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from the former method, but that does not augur that just as good
results may not be secured by a much more moderate use, which would
leave a large quantity of water for others, who need it as much as the
Land & Stock Company. Whoever is first in time, however, is en-
titled to sufficient for his reasonable needs. We are impressed that
the award made this defendant is amply sufficient for its needs, con-
sidering the acreage subject to irrigation and the dates of its several
appropriations. In the Twin Falls Salmon River Case, 245 Fed. 9,
— C. C. A. — (No. 2885), which we are deciding with this, we are ap-
proving an award of 3 acre-feet for the irrigation of hay and grain
land, and 134 acre-feet for pasture lands, and, for a further discussion
of the subject, reference is made thereto.

[8] Defendant Land & Stock Company also excepts to the allow-
ance by the court to plaintiffs of any quantity of water in excess of
30,000 acre-feet, upon the basis that there were under irrigation in
1915 but 20,000 acres, and that the duty of water for this acreage is
114 acre-feet per acre as prescribed by the new plan of the Twin Falls
QOakley project. Defendants also complain of the allowance to plain-
tiffs at the rate of 23/ acre-feet per acre in view of the duty of water
assigned under the new plan. Account must be taken of the fact that
the 114 acre-feet under the new plan is to be delivered at a point with-
in one half-mile of the place of intended use, which, of course, leaves
out of view seepage from the reservoir and canals, and evaporation.
Inquiry relative to this latter subject, plaintiffs’ counsel say, was not
gone into because of the “obvious insufficiency of the water supply to
cover the entire tract for which the works were built.” The fact ap-
pears from the record that the total discharge from Goose creek and
its tributaries into the reservoir was: For 1911, 49,170 acre-feet; for
1912, 74,000 acre-feet; for 1913, 50,915 acre-feet; for 1914, 64,740
acre-feet.

All this water was regularly used on the area which was then in
cultivation under the project. So that no water has been allowed to go
to waste, and there has at no time been any surplus water which the
Land & Stock Company would be entitled to for use by reason of its
deferred appropriation.

The plaintiffs’ project contemplates the irrigation of 50,000 acres,
and they-are entitled to theif appropriations sufficient for the purpose.
The court, however, has dealt with a theory, and not a condition, and
this presumably because of the fact that all the waters of Goose creek
and its tributaries were being employed for a useful purpose. Nor
can it be anticipated that the quantity to be had from the source speci-
fied will ever be sufficient to supply the reasonable needs of plaintiffs
under their project, even at the rate of 114 acre-feet to the acre. But,
as we say in case No. 2885:

“Under a project like this, ten years is allowed within which to make the
diversion and proof thereof for a beneficial use. The appropriation is con-
tingent upon the use, of course, but in the larger projects the appropriation-
speaks as of the date of the license, fhough, if not applied to a beneficial use

within ten years, it lapses. In the meantime no one will be deprived of the
use of the water not reduced to a beneficial use under the project.”
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See Idaho Sess. Laws 1915, p. 216.

We find no reason for modifying the decree in pursuance of the ex-
ception.

The next error assigned is in respect to the provisions of the decree
“intended to operate upon property and rights and to regulate the in-
ternal affairs of appellant in a foreign state.” This subject has been
fully treated of in case No. 2885, and what is said there has pertinent
application here.

[9,10] The question pertaining to interstate waters is also disposed
of in case No. 2885. This has direct bearing on the controversy pre-
sented by the amendment to the answer, that there is a defect of par-
ties. The purpose of the suit is to quiet title to plaintiffs’ water rights
in Idaho. The court is without jurisdiction to settle water rights in
Nevada. No complaint is made that parties other than the defendants
are attempting to interfere with plaintiffs’ acquired water rights in
Idaho, and there can be no cause for injunction against others than
the defendants until attempted interference is shown. If there are
any others who have rights superior to plaintiffs’ not parties to the
suit, of course their rights cannot be precluded by the decree herein:
They may yet assert such rights, but they are not necessary parties to
this suit, not having attempted to assert them to the impairment of
plaintiffs’ contention.

[11] Another assignment is that the cause should be dismissed as
to the Utah Construction Company. It appears that such company is
the owner of a large proportion of the stock of the Land & Stock Com-
pany, and is in a position to control its action, and might attempt to
do so. For this reason, it is at least a proper party to the suit.

Decree affirmed.

McPHERSON et al. v. UNITED STATES et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. August 1, 1917.)
No. 2867. ’

1. ArrEAL AND ERROR G=»4—PROPER MODE oF REVIEW.

An order entered in a suit in equity brought by a receliver, vacating a
previous order made on settlement of a compromise decree allowing fees
to counsel for the receiver, held properly reviewable by appeal.

2. RECEIVERS &=96—APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL—RECEIVER FOR COLLLCTION OF
ASSETS.

The general rule that a receiver should not employ counsel of either
party is limited to cases of adverse interest, and has no application to a
case in which a receiver is appointed, in accordance with the prayer of the
bill, to recover property fraudulently conveyed by the defendant.

3. RECEIVERS €=96—UNITED STATES ATTORNEY-—APPOINTMENT AS COUNSEL
FOR RECEIVER.

The United States brought a suit in equity against a corporation, al-
leging that it had defrauded the government of internal revenue taxes,
that it was insolvent, that its assets had been converted by stockholders,
and praying for a receiver to recover such assets, and such receiver was
appointed. Held, that there was no impropriety in the appointment by
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the court of the district attorney and assistant district attorney, who
had brought the suit as counsel for the receiver, to bring suits against the
] stockholders.

4. DIsTRICT AND RROSECUTING ATTORNEYS &=6(1)—UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
—RI1GHT To ACCEPT PRIVATE COMPENSATION—“CIVIL ACTIONS IN WHICH
THE UNITED STATES ARE CONCERNED.”

In a suit by the United States against a corporation, charged with
having defrauded the government of internal revenue taxes, a receiver
was appointed to recover money alleged to have been fraudulently con-
verted by stockholders, and the district attorney and his assistant were
appointed as his counsel. A suit was brought by the receiver against the
stockholders, which was compromised and settled, the costs to be paid
by defendants. On entry of the decree the court allowed a counsel fee to
the receiver’s attorneys, which was paid by the defendants. Criminal
prosecutions for the fraud were also pending against certain of the de-
fendants. Held, that the receiver’'s suit was ancillary to the main suit,
and within Rev. St. § 771 (Comp. St. 1916, § 1296), which magkes it the
duty of the district attorney to prosecute ‘‘all civil actions in which the
United States are concerned,” and that it would have been the official
duty of the district attorney to conduct the suit, if requested by the
Attorney General; that the fact that the appointment was made by the
court without such request was immaterial, as it was known to the At-
torney General, and the district attorney and his assistant were treated
by him and the court throughout as representing the government, as they
in fact did; and that it was contrary to public policy to permit them to
receive private compensation, although paid by defendants for the per-
formance of an official duty, at least without the consent of the Attorney
General, and especiaily in view of the pending criminal prosecutions.

In Error to, and Appeal from, the District Court of the United
States for the Southern District of Ohio; John E. Sater, Judge.

Ancillary suit by Edward L. Taylor, Jr., as receiver, against Dennis
Kelly and others. Sherman T. McPherson and Harley E. Burns ap-
peal from an order entered on motion of the Attorney General of the
United States. Affirmed.

Lawrence Maxwell and Edward P. Moulinier; both of Cincinnati,
Ohio, for plaintiffs in error and appellants.

Stuart R. Bolin, U, 8. Atty., of Columbus, Ohio, for defendants in
error and appellees.

Before WARRINGTON, KNAPPEN, and DENISON, Circuit
Judges. :

KNAPPEN, Circuit Judge. On Aprid 10, 1915, the United States
filed its amended bill in equity in the court below, alleging that the Capi-
tal City Dairy Company, of Columbus, Chio, had defrauded the gov-
ernment out of large sums of money ih connection with the manu-
facture and sale of artificially colored oleomargarine, through the pay-
ment of a tax of only one-quarter of a cent per pound applicable to the
uncolored product, instead of 10 cents per pound to which artificially
colored oleomargarine was subject; further alleging due estimate, as«
sessment, and levy against the Dairy Company of a tax of more than
$2,000,000 on account of those frauds, and the lien of the United
States thereunder on all the Dairy Company’s property, the sale under
the levy of all that company’s tangible property (leaving more than

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes



M’PHERSON V. UNITED STATES 37

$1,800,000 still unpaid), the conversion by stockholders of the com-
pany’s assets through the receipt of dividends not paid out of profits,
the company’s abandonment of its business, its insolvency, and its lack
of assets except the sums misappropriated by stockholders; and praying
for the appointment of a receiver, with authority to collect from stock-
holders the sums so misappropriated, and to apply the same toward
the payment of the remaining lien of the United States. (The origi-
nal bill had been filed February 5, 1915.)

The appellants McPherson and Burns, who were then respectively
United States Attorney and Assistant United States Attorney for the
Southern district of Ohio, signed the bill as solicitors for plaintiff.
Nine days later Edward L. Taylor, Jr., was duly appointed receiv-
er of the Dairy Company’s assets, with authority to recover all prop-
erty interests of the Dairy Company, and Messrs. McPherson and
Burns were, on the court’s own motion, designated as counsel for the
receiver, “on account of the knowledge possessed by [them] of the
matters affecting the defendant, its officers and stockholders.” Two
days later the receiver, under special leave granted, filed through appel-
lants, as his solicitors and counsel, his bill against several stockholders
of the Dairy Company, including Dennis Kelly, as well as representa-
tives of the estates of two deceased stockholders and the wife of Den-
nis Kelly, to recover (and apply to the debt of the United States) cor-
porate moneys fraudulently misappropriated and concealed.

In September, previous to the filing of the original bill for receiver-
ship, several of the defendants had been indicted in the District Court
below on account of the frauds involved in the receivership suit. The
indictments were still pending, and appellants were actively connected
with the prosecutions, under direction of a special assistant to the Attor-
ney General, and expected to take part in the trials which were soon
to occur.

On April 28, 1915, seven days after the receiver’s bill against the
stockholders was filed, an offer of $400,000, made by the defendants
other than the Pirrung estate, in settlement of the civil Lability of all
defendants except that estate, was accepted by the Attorney General,
the defendants in that connection to pay the costs. This offer and this
settlement were made and discussed at a conference in the office of
the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, at which were present the
Commissioner, his solicitor, the collector of internal revenue for the
Southern district of Ohio, the receiver of the Dairy Company, Mr.
Herron of the Attorney General’s staff, the appellant McPherson,
United States Attorney and solicitor for the receiver, and two counsel
for the compromising defendants, as well as another official represent-
ing the government. Nine days after this conference and compromise,
the various defendants involved filed a formal answer to the receiver’s
bill, and on the same day the receiver reported to the court and recom-
mended the acceptance of the offer of “$400,000, and costs herein to
this date, taxable against the last above named defendants, said costs to
include such compensation for the receiver herein and fees for his at-
torneys as this court may order and direct to be paid.” The receiver’s
recommendation was approved by the court, and on the following day
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(May 8th) the court fixed the receiver’s compensation at $20,000, and
that of the appellants, as attorneys for the receiver, at $20,000 in the
aggregate. These two items of compensation were immediately paid
by the defendants, in connection with the payment of the first install-
ment of the compromise payment.

On June 1st the Attorney General moved to vacate the allowance to
both the receiver and his counsel, whereupon each of the three per-
sons concerned placed in the hands of the court the amount of the fee
awarded and paid him, and expressed in writing his willingness that
the court reconsider its allowance of fees and make such order as the
facts might warrant.

The principal grounds of the Attorney General’s motion (so far as
counsel fees are concerned) were that appellants’ service in question
was an official service in an action to enforce a civil liability to the
United States, for which compensation other than the official salary is
forbidden; that the settlement involved the compromise of an alleged
violation of the internal revenue laws, for which United States attor-
neys are forbidden to receive compensation; that appellants’ relations
to the pending criminal cases made such payment of counsel fees im-
proper ; that the order for payment was made without previous notice
to the United States; and that the compensation allowed appellants
was grossly excessive. The Attorney General also asked the annul-
ment of the original designation of appellants as counsel for the re-
ceiver, for the reason that the action in which the receiver was appoint-
ed was begun by appellants as attorneys for the United States as plain-
tiffs, and that accordingly their appointment as attorneys for the
receiver was improper.

[1] Hearing was at once had upon the Attorney General’s motion,
and resulted in an opinion by the District Judge that appellants were,
in the prosecution of the receiver’s suit, acting in their official capacity
as United States Attorney and Assistant United States Attorney re-
spectively, and so were not entitled to receive compensation other than
their official salaries; also that the Attorney General had not consented
to the payment of such compensation. The United States thereupon
disclaiming right to the $20,000 paid appellants, and Daniel Kelly then
applying for the same, the amount was returned to him, on his giving
bond to pay appellants so much of the $20,000 as might thereafter be
allowed to one or both of them. The question of the receiver’s com-
pensation was reserved by the court. Its order denying compensation
to Messrs. McPherson and Burns is before us for review, both on ap-
peal and writ of error. We think appeal the proper remedy, and the
writ of error will be dismissed.

A further statement of facts will assist in an understanding of the
controversy: On April 20, 1915, the day before the receiver’s bill was
actually filed, the Commissioner of Internal Revenue and the Attorney
General were advised by appellant McPherson of the appointment of
himself and appellant Burns as attorneys for the receiver; it appears
that at the compromise conference in the Commissioner’s office, when
appellant McPherson stated that he would leave his fees to the court,
Mr. Herron said that he (McPherson) “could not get anything for what
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he had done prior to his appointment as attorney for the receiver’;
that Mr. McPherson replied, “Of course not,” and that Mr. Herron
then said, “Oh, well then, why talk about that?” and in his affidavit he
states:

“Undoubtedly I gave the impression to the attorneys for the defendants that
in the settlement the matter of attorney’s fees were not an item to be serious-

ly considered, and undoubtedly Mr. Taylor, in his statement as to the court’s
fixing his fee, left the same impression on the minds of those present.”

Mr. Herron, appellant McPherson, and Receiver Taylor, after the
compromise was arrived at, went to the office of Assistant Attorney
General Wallace, to whom the proposition was presented. MTr.
Wallace then went to Attorney General Gregory, and received his ap-
proval of the compromise, which was reported back by Mr. Wallace
to Messrs. Herron, McPherson, and Taylor. Mr. McPherson says
expressly (and Mr. Taylor by apparently permissible implication) that
Assistant Attorney General Wallace was informed of the agreement -
respecting fees of receiver’s counsel. Mr. Wallace expressly denies
this, and Mr. Herron says he has no recollection of anything being
said at either conference with Mr. Wallace about receiver’s fees or
attorney’s fees, and is “confident they were not mentioned.” Without
questioning the good faith of Messrs. Taylor and McPherson, we can-
not doubt that Mr. Wallace did not understand that feature of the
situation, and had no idea that appellants were to receive any compen-
sation for their services, except as included in their official salaries,
and that had he so understood, he would not have assented to it; and
it is clear that Attorney General Gregory was not advised of that fea-
ture. From what was said, however, at the conference first mentioned,
and from the subsequent announcement of the compromise offer, we
are convinced that appellants and the receiver, as well as defendants’
counsel, understood (though, as it turned out, mistakenly) that the
Department of Justice had consented that the costs to be paid should
include the receiver’s compensation as well as that of his counsel for
services rendered after, but not before, the receiver was appointed,
to be fixed by the court; and Mr. Herron’s statement confirms the
naturalness of such understanding.! Acting on this understanding,
the attorneys for defendants, together with the receiver and appellants,
agreed between themselves that none of them should make any sugges-
tion to the court as to the amount of either receiver’s or attorney’s fees;
and in the order which was drafted by the participation of all the
counsel concerned blanks for the items of compensation were left to be

1 Mr. Herron’s affidavit states that it was understood that “the receiver was
to be allowed by the court what his services justified, and that Mr. McPherson
should receive the ordinary pay of an attorney for what he had done since his
appointment as attorney for the receiver, but I did not think the matter was
worth mentioning, and I am sure that no one spoke of it. I had given no
thought to the impropriety of Mr. McPherson getting any compensation at all,
feeling that he had done a great deal of valuable and unique work for the gov-
ernment, was a great factor in making the settlement, and therefore might well
have an extra allowance made to him. I understood, however, that that allovw-
ance must be based on what he had done since he was appointed attorney for
the receiver.”
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filled in by the court. It is conceded on all hands that defendants’ at-
torneys, as well as Messrs. McPherson and Taylor, observed that agree-
ment. It appears, however, that appellant Burns, on being applied to
by a person supposedly in Kelly’s interest for information (in connec-
tion with the raising of the money required to carry out the compro-
mise) as to the amount of the receiver’s-compensation, attorney’s fees,
and costs which Kelly would probably be ‘called upon to pay, stated
that it would be impossible for him to give an idea upon that subject,
but that, if the court asked for suggestions as to the amount of such
fees, he would say that “a fair and reasonable fee would be 5 per
cent. of the amount agreed upon in settlement to the attorneys and 5
per cent, to the receiver.” Appellant Burns disclosed to Judge Sater
the fact of this interview. Judge Sater, in his opinion, states in sub-
stance that in appointing appellants as counsel for the receiver he did
not expect that they would receive compensation, other than their
.regular salaries, unless they should be continued as attorneys after their
terms of office expired, and then only for services thereafter rendered,
and that “trustworthy persons inform me, and the evidence conclusive-
ly shows, that it was announced by me at one of the hearings that he
was not otherwise to be paid”;? that appellant Burns, in relating his
conversation with Kelly’s representative, stated that the latter said that
the amount suggested (5 per cent. to the attorneys and 5 per cent. to the
receiver) “was about right and would be satisfactory”; and that ap-
pellants’ compensation was fixed in the belief that the Attorney General
had assented to the payment of compensation and that the defendants
were satisfied with the amount which the court fixed. The compensa-
tion was fixed by filling in the blanks in the order drafted by counsel.

It is undisputed that appellant McPherson, as well as the receiver
and defendants’ counsel, were ignorant of Burns’ statement to the
court. It should be said that Burns made his disclosure to the District
Judge on being told that the “court could not act intelligently without
information,” and that he denies telling Judge Sater that defendants or
their counsel had expressed themselves as satisfied to pay the attorneys
$20,000. The fact, however, that Kelly’s supposed representative made
no objection to Burns’ statement of his attitude, would naturally tend to
raise at least an inference of his acquiescence. There is no doubt that
the sum allowed was highly extravagant compensation for services .
rendered, at least after the appointment of the receiver.

1. Appellants challenge the right of the United States to intervene
by motion to vacate the award of compensation. We have no doubt,

2 The affidavit of one of defendants’ counsel states that in the conference be-
tween appellants, the receiver and defendants’ counsel, in connection with the
settling of the entry of appointment, Judge Sater said, in substance: *Of course
Mr. McPherson and Mr. Burns will not be entitled to receive any compen-
sation while they occupy their present positions, they shall continue as
counsel for the receiver while they occupy their present official positions,
but my intention is that, if this litigation be pending when they cease to
occupy their present positions, they shall continue as counsel for the receiver,
and, in that event, they would be entitled to reasonable compensation for serv-
jces rendered by them after that time.” This statement was not, upon the hear-
ing below (so far as shown by the record), denied by any one. The brief of
counsel in this court, however, contains such denial,
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however, that the Department of Justice, which represents the govern-
ment of the United States, has a very proper interest in seeing to it
that the rights of litigants in cases to which the government is a party
are in every way respected, and that the officers of the department are
not remiss in their duty, and is especially interested in those regards
when criminal proceedings are pending, as here. We see no element of
estoppel against the United States to complain. But, more than this,
the court which appointed the receiver and his counsel, and awarded
compensation, clearly had the right, upon its own motion or at the
instance of a party to the suit, to reconsider its action in that regard.
However, all question of jurisdiction to so reconsider is foreclosed by
appellants’ consent thereto.

The important and meritorious questions are: First, whether ap-
pellarits were eligible to appointment as counsel for the receiver; and,
second, whether they could lawfully receive any compensation what-
ever as such counsel.s

[2,3] 2. Questions of compensation apart, the mere fact that ap-
pellants were counsel for the United States in the original suit filed
in its name did not make their appointment as counsel for the re-
ceiver necessarily improper. The general rule that a receiver should
not employ counsel of either party 1s limited to cases of adverse inter-
est (In re Smith [C. C. A. 6] 203 Fed. 369, 372, 121 C. C. A. 485;
Alderson on Receivers, § 233), and has no application to proceedings,
such as taken here, to recover property fraudulently conveyed. Appel-
lants’ representation of the receiver in the ancillary suit involved no
necessary conflict of interest between the United States and the re-
«ceiver (High on Receivers [4th Ed.] § 217, pp. 259, 260; Daniel v.
Insurance Co. 149 Mich. 626, 629, 113 N. W. 17). Should counsel’s
duty to the United States and to the receiver be in actual experience
found to conflict, the receiver should, of course, employ other coun-
sel. Nor (still apart from questions of compensation) did the fact that
appellants were respectively United States Attorney and Assistant
United States Attorney disqualify them from acting as counsel for the
receiver in the prosecution of the suit to recover from stockholders.
The receiver’s action in that regard was merely ancillary to, and in
effect a continuation of, the original suit for the appointment of a re-
ceiver. The United States was the party beneficially interested; and
there was, in our opinion, no more impropriety in appellants represent-
ing the receiver, so far as concerns the prosecution of the suit to reach
specific assets for the benefit of the United States, than in filing the
original bill for the receivership had for the purpose of such suit.
Indeed, as we shall see, it was appellants’ duty, as between themselves
and the United States, to represent the interests of the United States
therein, so far as the government should request.

[4] 3. The more important question concerns appellants’ right to
compensation for the services rendered. As we have already said, we
have no doubt that it would have been the duty of appellants to repre-

8Tt is assumed by all parties that, if appellants are entitled to any compen-
sation, the case will be remanded to the District Court for hearing as to
amount. :
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sent the United States in the receiver’s suit, if requested by the govern-
ment, and without compensation other than their official salaries. The
original bill was in effect as well as in name that of the United States,
and showed on its face that it was filed by direction of the Attorney
General, and by authority and sanction of the Commissioner of Internal
Revenue. The United States Attorneys represented the plaintiff there-
in, as was made their duty, not only by section 838 of the Revised
Statutes (Comp. St. 1916, § 1297), which relates to revenue fraud cases,
but by section 771 (section 1296), which makes it the duty of every
district attorney to prosecute in his district “all civil actions in which
the United States are concerned.” The receiver’s bill was, as already
said, purely an ancillary or dependent proceeding,* throughout which
the United States was treated as the sole beneficiary, as in fact it
turned out to be. It is unnecessary to decide whether this ancillary
proceeding should be classified as a revenue fraud case, under section
838, for we think it clear that it was a “civil action in which the United
States are concerned,” within the meaning of section 771, which is not
limited to cases in which the United States is a party of record. In
Smith v. United States, 158 U. S. 346, 353, 15 Sup. Ct. 846, 848, 39
L. Ed. 1011, it is said:

“By section 771 it is not only the duty of the district attorney to prosecute
all delinquents for crimes and offenses against the federal laws, but ‘all civil
actions in which the United States are concerned,’ and there is a finding that
the claimant was not only directed by the Attorney General to appear, but

that the government was interested either in the prosecution or defense of such
suits, although the direct nature of such interests does not fully appear.”

And again (158 U. S. 355, 15 Sup. Ct. 849, 39 L. Ed. 1011):
“It can hardly be supposed that Congress could have intended that the At-

torney General should not be at liberty to call upon the official representative
of the United States in each district to defend, as a part of his official duty,
the interests of the government, in any swit in which it was interested.” (Ital-
ics ours.)

In Hillborn v. United States, 163 U. S. 342, 345, 16 Sup. Ct. 1017,

1018, 41 L. Ed. 183, the doctrine of Smith v. United States was re-
affirmed, to the extent that the words—
“«prosecute all civil actions’ were not to be interpreted in any technical sense,
but should be construed as covering any case in which the district attorneys
are employed to prosecuté the interests of the government, whether such in-
terests be the subject of attack or defense.”

In United States v. Ady (C. C. A. 8) 76 Fed. 359,22 C. C. A. 223, a
district attorney was held not entitled to extra compensation for serv-
ices rendered by direction of the Attorney General for defending offi-
cers of the army in suits against them fof acts done in the line of their
duties.

While appellants were not directed by the Attorney General to ap-
pear in the receiver’s suit as attorneys for that officer, and while it

¢ See White v. Ewing, 159 U. S. 36, 15 Sup. Ct. 1018, 40 L. Ed. 67; Compton
v. Jesup (C. C. A. 6) 68 Fed. 263, 279, 15 C. C. A. 397, and casescited; Robert-
son v. Conway (C. C. A. 6) 188 Fed. 579, 584, 110 C. C. A. 377; Cobb v. Sertic
(C. C. A. 6) 218 Fed. 320, 134 C. C. A. 116, and cases cited.
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would have been entirely competent for the receiver to employ wholly
disinterested counsel, we think appellants were throughout the litiga-
tion recognized by the court, the receiver and the Department of Jus-
tice as representing the United States. The department was, at the
time the bill was filed, notified that the court had appointed appellants
as attorneys for the receiver; it continuously treated appellants, both
by correspondence and by personal interviews with appellant McPher-
son, as representing the interests of the United States in that suit. The
dominating character of appellants’ relations toward the receiver’s
suit and its compromise was that of attorneys for the United States.
As was well said by Judge Sater:

“The receiver was appointed to collect, if possible, the government’s claim.
The circumstances were such that the district attorney could not aid the re-
ceiver without acting for the United States. In the performance of his duty
he could of course avail himself of the services of his assistants, but the pur-
pose in his appointment was, as heretofore stated, to secure as far as possible
his individual attention to the case.”

-Both appellants had, in December preceding the filing of the govern-
ment’s original bill, attended a conference in the office of the Commis-
sioner of Internal Revenue, in which procedure for recovery from
stockholders was considered. Such proceeding was naturally a part
of the government’s plan when its bill was filed, and one or both of
appellants had presumably been actively considering the subject prior
to their appointment as counsel for the receiver. The arrangements
for the compromise conference, including appellant McPherson’s call
to Washington for the purpose, were official in form. The Attorney
General alone, on the part of the plaintiff in that suit, determined
whether the proposition of compromise should be accepted. The order
confirming the compromise directed the payment to the collector of
internal revenue of the entire sum of $400,000 recovered, and the
receiver paid directly to that officer the cash paid down on the com-
promise, as well as the avails of the note maturing June lst there-
after.

Without deciding that the district attorney may not properly receive
compensation for representing a receiver in the prosecution of a credi-
tors’ suit in which there are substantial beneficiaries aside from the
United States, or that an attorney for the United States, as counsel for
a receiver in a suit in which the United States is interested, may in no
case, even by express consent of the government, receive from a de-
fendant, under a compromise of litigation, compensation for special
and unusual services, although rendered to the United States as the
sole party beneficially interested (on which questions we express no
opinion), it is plain to our minds that under the circumstances existing
here such recovery was not permissible, at least in the absence of such
consent. It is immaterial that the fees in question were paid by de-
fendants, rather than out of the fund recovered. Recovery of such
fees from a defendant, if had without the government’s consent, would
'rfaturally belong to the United States. As said by the late Judge

hayer:
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“The law does not allow an attorney to stipulate with an opposing party for
the payment of his fees, in whole or in part, unless he acts with the knowledge
and consent of his client.” Bliss v. United States (C. C.) 37 Fed. 191, 195.

And, as said by Judge (later Mr. Justice) Brewer, in affirming the
judgment in that case:

“Public policy requires the strictest adherence to the rule that when a coun-
sel receives from the defendant in a case in which he is prosecuting money
above the fees which by law he is entitled to, the money which is received be-
longs to his client.” Bliss v. United States (C. C.) 38 Fed. 230.

The principles so stated apply with equal force under the existing
statute, which provides salaries to the United States Attorneys for the
district in question in full for official services. Act May 28, 1396, c.
252, §8 6, 7, 29 Stat. 179, 180 (Comp. St. 1916, §§ 1418, 1419). We
think recovery by appeilants for services in effect rendered the United
States forbidden by sound public policy, under the circumstances pre-
sented here, including the facts that the United Statesswere the only
beneficiaries, the reason for appellants’ appointment as already stated,
the intention of the court (whether communicated or not) that appel-
lants should receive no compensation while holding their official posi-
tions, the actual relations between appellants and the government to-
ward the litigation and in the effecting of the compromise, the fact of
the pendency of the criminal cases and appellants’ relations thereto,
lack of authoritative consent on the part of the United States to such
recovery, and the fact that the United States were not represented in
the making of the actual order allowing compensation.

We think public policy, as declared by the statutes and the decisions
of the courts of the United States, opposed generally to the receipt by
United States Attorneys of private compensation for the performance
of statutory duties. Previous to the act of 1896 (29 Stat. 179, supra),
providing a salary in full for official services, the Supreme Court, in
Gibson v. Peters, 150 U. S. 342, 347, 14 Sup. Ct. 134, 136, 37 L. Ed.
1104, in denying recovery by a United States district attorney for serv-
ices rendered to the receiver of a national bank, said:

“Nor can the expenses of the receivership be held to include compensation
to the district attorney for conducting a suit in which the receiver is a party,
for the obvious reason that the statute does not expressly provide compensa-
tion for such services. Congress evidently intended to require the performance
by a district attorney of all the duties imposed upon him by law, without any
other remuneration than that coming from his salary, from compensation or

fees authorized to be taxed and allowed, and from such other compensation
as is expressly allowed by law specifically on account of the services named.”

This proposition was reaffirmed in United States v. Johnson, 173 U.
S. 363, 372, 19 Sup. Ct. 427, 43 L. Ed. 731 et seq. And see Garter v.
United States, 31 Ct. Cl. 344. 'The force of these decisions is strength-
ened, rather than impaired, by the act of 1896. Except as indicating
the policy of the law, we attach no special importance to section 3170
of the Revised Statutes (Comp. St. 1916, § 5893), which makes it an
offense for a district attorney to receive anything for compromising a
violation of the internal revenue laws (assuming that the compromise
in question was a revenue law violation) or to section 18 of the act of
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1896, just cited (Comp. St. 1916, § 1430), which penalizes the accept-
ance by United States Attorneys of illegal fees. The fees in question
were paid under judicial order allowing compensation, obtained in the
evident belief that the government and all parties concerned had as-
sented thereto. But as indicating the spirit of the laws the sections
referred to are pertinent.

State statutes fixing compensation for the official services of a public
prosecutor have been held to forbid the recovery of additional com-
pensation for services which it was his official duty to perform—not
only from third persons, and in pursuance of express contract therefor
(Coggeshall v. Conner, 31 Okl. 113, 120 Pac. 559, 39 L. R. A. [N. S.]
81, Ann. Cas. 1913D, 577), but from the county, even where the serv-
ices were rendered under express agreement to pay therefor (McHen-
derson v. Anderson County, 105 Tenn. 591, 59 S. W. 1016; Money v.
Beard, 136 Ky. 219, 124 S. W. 282). In the Coggeshall Case it was
said (31 Okl 115, 120 Pac. 560, 39 L. R. A. [N. S.] 81, Ann. Cas.
1913D, 577):

“It is against public policy for a public officer to be allowed private compen-
sation for the performance of any duty as a public officer.”

In the Anderson County Case it was said:

“It cannot alter the rule of law as to either of these officials that the value
of their services was far beyond the compensation provided by statute.
* % * Pyblic office is taken and held with the emoluments and burdens
which the law imposes, and the burdens are or may be far beyond the compen-
sation allowed in many cases. But this gives no valid claim for additional
compensation.”

In Wilson v. Otoe County, 71 Neb. 435, 98 N. W, 1050, the prohibi-
tion against recovery of extra compensation is held to extend even to
extraofficial services. And see Railroad Co. v. Lee, 37 Ohio St. 479.

The pendency of the criminal cases, and appellants’ relations toward
them, to our minds give special emphasis to the rule of public policy
invoked.

In our opinion United States v. Mormon Church, 6 Utah, 9, 44, 21
Pac. 503, 524, et seq., is distinguished from the instant case, not only
because of the later statute of 1896, providing for compensation by
salary alone, but because of the prominent features of this case not
found in the Church Case. .

It follows that, at least in the absence of the consent of the United
States, appellants could not lawfully retain the compensation in ques-
tion; and it was at least incumbent upon them to show that such con-
sent was given. This burden has not been sustained, for not only is
there no direct proof that Mr. Herron was authorized to agree on the
terms of the compromise, but the implications from the testimony are
the other way. The order setting aside the award of compensation for
services rendered in the prosecution of the receiver’s suit was therefore
rightly made.

No question of appellants’ right to compensation for services render-
ed the receiver personally, as distinguished from services rendered for
the benefit of the United States, is presented; for it does not appear
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that appellants rendered any substantial services to the receiver unless
as incidental to, or involved in, the services rendered the United States,

The order vacating the award of compensation is accordingly af-
firmed.

JESSON et al. v. NOYES.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. August 20, 1917. Rehearing Denied
October 8, 1917.)

No. 2528.

1. EQUITY ¢&=148(1)—JOINDER OF CAUSES OF ACTION.

The court, under Alaska statute as to joinder of causes of action, had
discretion to permit the joinder of causes of action for diminishing the
assets of the bank by permitting subseribers to surrender stock -and for
declaring an illegal dividend.

2. BANKS AND BANKING @=77(6)—UNLAWFUL ACTS OF OFFICERS—COMPLAINT.

In a suit by the receiver of an insolvent bank against former directors
and officers to recover assets illegally diverted, a complaint alleging that
the dividend was wrongfully, unlawfully, and fraudulently declared and
paid, setting forth facts to sustain the allegation, and alleging facts to
show that the money paid out for the surrender of stock certiticates was
fraudulently and illegally paid out of the capital of the corporation,
stated a cause of action at common law.

3. EVIDENCE €=35—JUDICIAL NOTICE—STATE STATUTE.

The District Court of Alaska may take judicial notice of the statutes
of a state.

4. BANKS AND BANKING €=91—PURCHASE OF CAPITAL STOCK BY BANK.

Under Corporation Act of Nevada (Laws 1903, c. 88) § 68, Rev. Laws, §
1169, providing that it shall not be lawful for the trustees or directors to
divide or withdraw, or in any way pay to the stockholders, any part of
the capital stock of the company, nor reduce the capital stock, unless in
the manner prescribed, it was illegal for the bank to purchase at par
value its stock from stockholders, and pay therefor out of the capital,
and not the surplus, of the bank.

‘5. BANKS AND BANKING G&»77(6)—ILLEGAL PURCHASE OF STOCK—ASSETS—
SUFFICIENCY.

In a suit to hold the directors of a bank liable for an illegal purchase
for the bank of its stock, evidence held to support a finding that the
directors had knowledge of the purchase.

6. BANKS AND BANRING &>77(4)—ILLEGAL TRANSACTIONS—RECOVERY—SUB-
SEQUENT CREDITORS.

Where, contrary to statute and not in good faith, the directors of a
bank declared dividends out of its capital, and purchased for the bank
its stock, the diverted funds may be recovered for subsequent creditors of
the bank, in a suit against the directors and the sellers of the stock.

7. ACCORD AND SATISFACTION &=26(3)—BEVIDENCE—SUFFICIENCY.

In a suit against former directors and officers of a bank, evidence
held insufficient to show that certain deeds were accepted by the receiver
from an ex-president in accord and satisfaction of the claims against the
president, or any of the defendants.

8. ACCORD AND SATISFACTION &=1-—FELEMENTS.

Accord and satisfaction requires an agreement, and must finally and

definitely close the matter covered by it.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the Fourth
Division of the Territory of Alaska; F. E. Fuller, District Judge.

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexea
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Suit by F. G. Noyes, as receiver of the Waghington-Alaska Bank, a
corporation, against John A. Jesson and others. Decree for complam-
ant, and defendants appeal. No error. Decree affirmed.

The appellee, as receiver of an insoivent bank, brought suit against the ap-
pellants, who had been the directors and officers of the bank, charging them
with wrongful and pegligent acts and conduct whereby the bank had been in-
jured and its assets wasted, so that it became unable to pay its creditors, pray-
ing that an accounting be had and judgments rendered against the appellants
for the amounts found to be due from them respectively. On January 21,
1908, the Fairbanks Banking Company, a corporation organized under the
laws of the state of Nevada, began business at Fairbanks, Alaska. On Sep-
tember 14, 1910, the name of the corporation was changed to Washington-
Alaska Bank., On January 5, 1911, receivers were appointed to take over the
assets of the corporation and wind up its business. The court below found
that certain of the appellants unlawfully diminished the assets and capital
stock of the corporation, by permitting subscribers to surrender stock certifi-
cates which had been issued to them, and paying them the amount of their
subscriptions, and that on April 12, 1910, the appellants Wood, McGinn,
Brumbaugh, and Jesson declared a dividend upon the outstanding capital
stock, at a time when the corporation had no undivided profits or surplus in
excess of its liabilities, but was insolvent.

The findings of the court as to the surrender of the stock are in substance
as follows: That, when stock was taken back by the corporation, the amount
paid therefor was either paid in cash, or the notes held by the bank therefor
were canceled and surrendered to the stockholders; that the bank had no
surplus or undivided profits against which the same could be charged; that
the taking back of said stock and such payment therefor was illegal and
wrongful, and in violation of the laws of the state of Nevada, under which
the corporation was organized; and that said stock surrenders were ac-
quiesced in by said directors and in some instances were made under their
direction and with their express approval. )

As to the unlawful declaring of the dividend, the court found in substance
as follows: That on April 12, 1910, the Fairbanks Banking Company, by its
board of directors, declared a dividend of 20 per cent. on its then outstanding
capital stock of $168,600, which dividend amounted to $33,720, and was paid
to the stockholders of the bank, either in cash or by crediting the amount
thereof upon notes due by the stockholders to the bank; that at that time
the said Fairbanks Banking Company had no surplus or undivided profits
out of which the dividend could be declared and paid, and said dividend was
declared and paid in violation of the laws of the state of Nevada, and also in
violation of the by-laws of the corporation, and was wrongful and illegal;
that at the time when the dividend was declared and paid the appellants
Wood, McGinn, Brumbaugh, and Jesson were members of the board of direc-
tors of said Fairbanks Banking Company, and gave their consent thereto.

By the decree it was adjudged that the appellee recover of and from the
appellants Wood, McGinn, Brumbaugh, and Jesson, jointly and severally, the
sum of $33,720; that he recover from the appellant J, A. Jesson the further
sum of $13,400, by reason of the surrender of shares of capital stock made
between July 13, 1908, and September 12, 1908; that he recover from the
appellants Jesson and Hill, jointly and severally, the further sum of $1,500, by
reason of the surrender of shares of capital stock between September 13, 1908,
and October 13, 1908; that he recover from the appellants Jesson, Hill, and
Peoples, jointly and severally, the further sum of $1,100, by reason of the sur-
render of shares of capital stock made between October 14, 1908, and March 13,
1909 ; that he recover from the appellants Jesson, Hill, and Brumbaugh, joint-
lv and severally. the further sum of $1,000, by reason of the surrender of
shares of capital stock made between March 14, 1909, and September 12,
1009; that he recover from the appellants Jesson, Brumbaugh, and McGinn,
jointly and severally, the further sum of $3,000, by reason of the surrender of
the capital stock made between September 13, 1909, and October 12, 1909:
and that he recover from the appellants Jesson, McGinn, and Brumbaugh,
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jointly and severally, the further sum of $1,000, by reason of the surrender
of shares of the capital stock made between October 13, 1909, and January
18, 1910.

McGowan & Clark, A. R. Heilig, and John I,. McGinn, all of Fair-
banks, Alaska (Metson, Drew & Mackenzie, Curtis Hillyer, and Charles
J. Heggerty, all of San Francisco, Cal., of counsel), for appellants.

O. L. Rider, of St. Louis, Mo., for appellee.

Before GILBERT, ROSS, and HUNT, Circuit Judges.

GILBERT, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). [1] It

is assigned as error that the court below overruled the demurrers which
the appellants interposed to the amended complaint, on the ground
that several causes of action had been improperly united therein. The
statute of Alaska, concerning the joinder of causes of action, is iden-
tical with and is taken from the statute of Oregon, and before it was
adopted for Alaska it had been construed by the Supreme Court of
Oregon in Benson v. Keller, 37 Or. 120, 60 Pac. 918, In that case it
was the opinion of the court that much must be left to the discretion
of the court in determining whether a bill is multifarious. The court
said that the objection of multifariousness—
“does not go to the merits of the cause, but relates more nearly to a ques-
tion of convenience in conducting the suit; and, in large measure, it simply
calls for an exercise of discretion in deciding whether both or all the causes
of suit set forth in the bill shall be tried in a single suit, or be split up, and
the parties be relegated to the bringing of two or more suits for the accom-
plishment of their purposes, or whether the defendant who is a necessary
party in respect of one or more matters suggested by the complaint has a
sufficient interest in or connection with the other matters involved to make
him a proper party in respect to such other matters.”

The court considered that the object of the rule against multifarious-
ness is to protect the defendant from unnecessary expense; that the
demurrer for multifariousness does not go to the merits of the con-
troversy. but calls upon the plaintiff to go out of court and split up his
demands and begin anew; and the court quoted from ILehigh Val. R.
R. Co. v. McFarlan, 31 N. J. Eq. 706, 758:

“The rule with regard to multifariousness, whether arising from the mis-
joinder of causes of action or of defendants therein, is not an inflexible rule
of practice or procedure, but is a rule founded in general convenience, which
rests upon a consideration of what will best promote the administration of
justice, without multiplying unnecessary litigation on the one hand, or draw-
ing suitors into needless and unnecessary expenses on the other.”

The object of the suit in Benson v. Keller was to cancel several due-
bills alleged to have been fraudulently procured from the plaintiff
by one of the defendants, and thereafter transferred by him to others
of the defendants severally. The court sustained the joinder, not-
withstanding that it appeared that some of the defendants were put to
additional expense by reason of the fact that the cause was tried away
from their home counties. The plaintiff, in bringing the present suit,
had in view but the single purpose of recovering the funds of the
bank, which he alleged had been wasted by the directors. All the ap-
pellants had been directors. Jesson was director from March 12, 1908,
to January 4, 1911; Peoples was director from October 14, 1908, to
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April 24, 1909; Wood from November 13, 1909, to May 1, 1910;
Brumbaugh from March 13, 1909, to September 12, 1910; Hill from
September 12, 1908, to October 1, 1909; and McGinn from September
14, 1909, to May 1, 1910.

The appellants rely upon Emerson v. Gaither, 103 Md. 664, 64 Atl.
26, 8 L. R. A. (N. S)) 738, 7 Ann. Cas. 1114, a case in which were
joined 17 directors, who had held their offices each for a short period
in 12 different directorates, some of whom were charged with having
declared illegal dividends, and others were charged with having made
improper loans. It appeared that the defendants who were charged
with making the improper loans were not directors at the time when
the illegal dividends were declared. The court said:

“Are all of the defendants to be thus subjected to inconvenience, loss of
time, fees of counsel, and possibly expert accountants, court costs incurred

concerning matters in which they are not connected, simply because at some
time they happened to be directors of the same bank?"

But the court also said:

“There is no rule on the subject of universal application, and much is
left to the discretion of the court, to be determined by the facts of each par-
ticular case.”

It was in view of the confusion and the difficulty of apportioning
costs that the court, in that case, held that the bill was multifarious.
This it doubtless had the discretion to do. But we think it clear that
in the present case the court below had the discretion to permit, as it
did, the joinder of the causes of action, and that in so ruling there
Was 1o error.

[2,3] It is contended that the complaint fails to state a cause of
action, in that it omits to plead the statute of the state of Nevada.
This objection was not presented to the court below, and it is not sug-
gested in the assignments of error. Nor was any objection made in
the court below to the introduction in evidence of the Nevada stat-
ute. There are two reasons why the contention cannot be sustained.
In the first place, the complaint did not lack necessary averments to
constitute a cause of action, It alleged that the dividend was wrong-
fully and unlawfully and fraudulently declared and paid, with the
knowledge, consent, and approval of the defendants, and set forth
facts to sustain the allegation, and also alleged facts to show that the
money paid out for the surrender of stock certificates was fraudulently
and illegally paid out of the capital of the corporation. Those alle-
gations were sufficient to constitute a cause of action at common law.
7 C. J. 562, § 168; Brinckerhoff v. Bostwick, 88 N. Y. 52. Again, it
is our opinion that the court below was authorized to take judicial
cognizance of the law of Nevada. In Mills v. Green, 159 U. S. 651,
657, 16 Sup. Ct. 132, 134 (40 L. Ed. 293), the rule is thus stated:

“The lower courts of the United States, and this court on appeal from

their decisions, take judicial notice of the Constitution and public laws of
each state of the Union.”

The District Court of the territory of Alaska is, we think, one of
the “lower courts of the United States” to which the rule should apply,
and, while we find no adjudication to that precise effect, it is significant

245 F.—4
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that in Cheever v. Wilson, 9 Wall. 108, 19 L. Ed. 604, the court held
the rule to be applicable to the courts of the District of Columbia.
[4]) It is contended that the purchase of the corporate stock by the
appellants was not in violation of the law of Nevada. Section 68 of
the Corporation Act of Nevada (Rev. Laws 1912, § 1169) provides
that it shall not be lawful for the trustees or directors—
“to divide or withdraw, or in any way pay to the stockholders, or any of them,
any part of the capital stock of the company, nor to reduce the capital stock
unless in the manner prescribed in this act, or in accordance with the provi-
sions of the certificate or articles of incorporation, and in case of any viola-
tion of this section, the directors or trustees under whose administration the
same may have happened * * * shall in their individual and private
capacities, be jointly and severally liable to the corporation, and [to] the
creditors thereof, to the full amount so divided, withdrawn, or reduced, or
paid out.”

To pay to the stockholders the par value of their capital stock, as
the court below found that the appellants did in exchange for the cer-
tificates of stock, is prohibited by the act when the payment is made
out of the capital of the corporation -and not out of its surplus. While
it may not be said that the act prohibits the purchase of the shares of
its stock by a corporation, it does prohibit the payment of any part of
the capital for that purpose. A similar statute of the state of New
York was under consideration in In re Castle Braid Co. (D. C.) 145
Fed. 224." The court held that the law did not broadly forbid the pur-
chase by the corporation of its shares of stock held by its directors,
and that such purchase was permissible if the transaction was fair and
honest, and in the interest of the corporation and not of the selling di-
rectors. The court said of the statute:

“By implication it may forbid the purchase of any property of any descrip-

tion from the stockholders, and the payment therefor from the capital of the
corporation; that is, from any funds except the surplus.”

So in In re Tichenor-Grand Co. (D. C.) 203 Fed. 720, it was held
that the New York statute, which prohibits a corporation from pur-
chasing its own stock except out of the surplus, renders invalid a con-
tract by a corporation with a subscriber to its stock, where the stock
is issued and paid for, to repurchase the same after a stated time on
notice of the subscriber’s election. Other cases in point are Coleman
v. Tepel, 230 Fed. 63, 144 C. C. A. 361; Hamor v. Taylor-Rice En-
gineering Co. (C. C.) 84 Fed. 392; Md. Trust Co. v. Mechanics Bank,
102 Md. 608, 63 Atl. 70; Tait v. Pigott, 32 Wash. 344, 73 Pac. 364;
Tait v. Pigott, 38 Wash. 59, 80 Pac. 172; Martin v. Zellerbach, 38
Cal. 309, 99 Am. Dec. 365.

[5] The contention that the purchase of the stock was without the
knowledge and against the instructions of the directors cannot be sus-
tained. There was conflict in the testimony, and the court below found
the facts against the appellants. The court in so finding was largely
influenced by the fact that at each monthly meeting of the directors a
statement of the financial condition of the corporation was presented
and considered, and the fact that the records show that the directors
expressly authorized in some instances the purchases of the stock, and
that in other instances they approved purchases that had been made.
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The whole tendency of the testimony is to show that the directors had
knowledge of all the stock transactions. R

[8] The appellants contend that the appellee cannot recover in this
suit funds to pay creditors who were not such at the time when the
dividend was declared and the stock was purchased, and cite cases such
as Atlanta & Walworth B. & C. Ass’n v. Smith, 141 Wis. 377, 123 N.
W. 106, 32 L. R. A. (N. S.) 137, 135 Am. St. Rep. 42. In that case it
was held that the trust fund doctrine, that under all circumstances as-
sets of a corporation constitute a trust fund for creditors, does not
prevail in Wisconsin, and that as a general rule, unless plainly pro-
hibited by statute, or its organic act, a corporation may buy its own
stock, using its assets therefor, so long as it acts in good faith, pursuant
to authorization of its governing body, and that this is true both as to
past and future creditors. But in the case at bar the acts of the di-
rectors, as we have seen, were prohibted by statute, and were not per-
formed in good faith. In Cook on Corporations (6th Ed’) § 548, it is
said:

“Hence the rule has been firmly established that, where dividends are paid
in whole or in part out of the capital stock, corporate creditors, being such
when the dividend was declared, or becoming such at any subsequent time,
may, to the extent of their claims, if such claims are not otherwise paid, com-

pel the stockholders to whom the dividend has been paid to refund whatever
portion of the dividend was taken out of the capital stock.”

In Coleman v. Tepel, 230 Fed. 63, 144 C. C. A. 361, it was held that
where a corporation was rendered insolvent by purchasing its own
stock, and giving a mortgage for the indebtedness thereby created, the
transaction was void as to subsequent, as well as to ‘prior, creditors,
although there was no fraudulent intent. The court said:

“It has been urged that, if the transaction is void, it is void only as to exist-
ing creditors, and not as to those with whom the corporation subsequently
incurred obligations, upon the ground that, to avoid a transfer of property
in fraud of future creditors, there must be present actual intent to defraud.
« = % VWe are inclined to hold, upon the reasoning of well-considered au-
thorities, that the void character of such a transaction as to future creditors
does not depend upon fraudulent intent, and that when a stockholder, with
the knowledge he has, or with that with which he is charged, concerning the
financial condition of the corporation, engages in a transaction which results
in a depletion for his advantage of corporate assets below the subscribed
capital, or below existing liabilities, as the law may be, and becomes a party
to the solvent appearance of & business that is intended to be continued, he
is bound by his act, both to existing and future creditors, when its direct
object or immediate consequence is the insolvency of the corporation and
injury to creditors.”

In Coleman v. Booth, 268 Mo. 64, 186 S. W. 1021, the Supreme
Court of Missouri held that the trustee in bankruptcy of a corporation
may recover the amount received by a director through transactions
with the corporation which resulted in wrongful depletion of its capi-
tal stock, even though all claims of creditors occurred subsequent to
such transaction. Said the court:

“It makes no difference, in respect to this matter, whether the debts repre-

sented by the trustee were contracted before or after the illegal acts com-
plained of.”
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To the same effect is North v. Union Savings & Loan Ass™n, 59
Or. 483, 117 Pac. 822; and in Atlanta & Walworth B. & C. Assn v.
Smith, §o cited by appellants, the court said:

“We are not unmindful that the rule, in general, as to avoidance of a
transfer of property in fraud of future creditors, applies only in case of actual
intent to defraud them. * * * It is too restrictive, as generally stated, to
apply to the situation we have here, and should, it is thought, be extended to
include it, upon the theory that the duty of the stockholder not to deplete
for his advantage corporate assets below the subscribed capital, and become a
party to a continuance of solvent appearance, supplies the need for actual
intent to defraud, where the natural and probable effect is to prejudice per-
sons subsequently dealing with the corporation as solvent.”

These decisions suggest the reason why recovery on behalf of sub-
sequent creditors is permissible—the reason which is pointed out by
Lord Watson in Trevor v. Whitworth, 12 App. Cas. 409, that persons
dealing with a corporation— ’

“are entitled to assume that no part of the capital which has been paid into

the coffers of the company has been subsequently paid out, except in the
legitimate course of its business.”

[7] One of the defenses pleaded by the appellants was accord and
satisfaction, arising out of the following facts: On March 13, 1911,
E. T. Barnette, who had been the president of the corporation, pre-
sented to the court below a petition, referring to the condition of the
bank, the receivership, and the petitioner’s desire to pay the money
due and owing to depositors, and offering as security for that purpose
the conveyance of certain real estate to the receivers. On March 20,
1911, the receivers applied to the court for instructions, expressing
their opinion that, if the deeds were accepted, it would be impracticable
to proceed as contemplated to fix liability against Barnette in favor of
the creditors of the bank. On March 29, 1911, the judge of the court
below made an order to the effect that the receivers accept the property
on the conditions expressed in Barnette’s petition. One of those condi-
tions was that, after the payment of the balance of the claims and de-
mands of the depositors and owners of unpaid drafts, the remainder of
the property, if any, be returned to the petitioner. The amount realized
from the rents and sale of said property up to May 1, 1914, was
$30,905.65.

The contention of the appellants is that the acceptance of the prop-
erty by the receivers was satisfaction and extinguishment of all lia-
bility of Barnette, and that thereby all persons jointly liable with him
were released, or at least that the acceptance of the property by the
receivers was a covenant not to sue Barnette, and that it operated to
extinguish the causes of action against the appellants, and constituted
a compromise of a tort. To this it is to be said that there is nothing
in the record to show that Barnette stipulated for release from liability
for his own acts, or for the acts of his associates, in the management
of the bank. He stipulated in one of his deeds that the receivers were
not to take possession of the property conveyed, nor the rents, issues,
and profits thereof, nor have any right to the possession or use thereof,
at any time prior to November 18, 1914. In the other deed it was pro-
vided that the grantees might at any time in their discretion sell the
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property therein described and apply the proceeds to the payment of
depositors and the owners of unpaid drafts, and there was coupled
with it the further provision that the grantees might so sell and dis-
pose of the proceeds if on November 18, 1914, the demands of de-
positors and owners of unpaid drafts had not been fully paid and sat-
isfied. By the terms of both deeds all creditors were excluded from
the benefit thereof save depositors and owners of unpaid drafts. The
receivers considered that their acceptance of the conveyances obligated
them not to sue Barnette before November 18, 1914, and the appellee
so pleaded their effect in the reply.

Again, the property was not all surrendered absolutely for the pay-
ment of the depositors and holders of unpaid drafts, but a portion
thereof was surrendered only for the payment of a deficit to be there-
after ascertained as between the amounts due depositors and owners
of unpaid drafts and the amount realized by the receivers out of the
property and assets of the bank. None of the proceeds of the prop-
erty so surrendered by Barnette in the first deed can be applied to pay-
ment of depositors and holders of unpaid drafts until all the property
and assets of the bank shall have been realized on and devoted to lig-
uidation. There was imposed upon the receivers, by their acceptance
of the conveyances, the obligation to pursue all available remedies to
recover the assets, including, we think, the assets which may be recov-
ered in the present suit. While it is true that the deeds to the receivers
recited that the receivers are about to commence an action on behalf of
creditors against Barnette to recover from him the amount of any de-
ficit that may be ascertained between the claims of creditors and the
amount realized out of the property and assets of the bank, said action
to be based on the liability of Barnette to said creditors “arising out of
his management of the affairs thereof,” there is nothing in the evidence
to show that the deeds were accepted in accord and satisfaction of the
claims of the corporation against Barnette or any of the appellants.
The court below was of this opinion, and said that the transfer—
“did not operate to release any of the defendants, and was not accepted by
the receiver in satisfaction of the claims of the corporation or its creditors
against any of the defendants, but such transaction was in effect an agree-
ment not to sue Barnette prior to the expiration of the trust agreement, and
jnstead of preventing the receiver from proceeding against these defendants,
it rather rendered it necessary for him to take all proper steps to recover
whatever possible upon the liabilities of any other person to the corporation
or its creditors.” :

[8] “Accord and satisfaction requires an agreement, an aggregatio
mentium, and it must finally and definitely close the matter covered by
it. Nothing of or pertaining to that matter must be left unsettled, or
open to further question or arrangement.” 1 C. J. 527, § 12. “To
constitute an accord and satisfaction, it is necessary that the money
should be offered in full satisfaction of the demand, and be accom-
panied by such acts and declarations as amount to a condition that the
money, if accepted, is accepted in satisfaction; and it must be such
that the party to whom it is offered is bound to understand therefrom
that if he takes it he takes it subject to such conditions.” 1 Cyc. 332.

We find no error. The decree is affirmed.
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GLOBE 8. 8. CO. v. MOSS.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. August 1, 1917.)
No. 2966.

1. SEAMEN &>=3—INJURY IN SERVICE—LAW GOVERNING LIABILITY.
A suit in admiralty by a seaman to recover for an injury alleged to
have been caused by defective machinery or appliances on the ship is
governed by the admiralty law.

2. SEAMEN &=29(2)—PFRSONAL INJURY—DEFECTIVE MACHINERY OR APPLI-
ANOCES.

A shipowner owes to his seamen a positive and nondelegable duty to
see that the ship is seaworthy and her equipment in safe condition for
use when she starts on a voyage, and a seaman, injured through failure
to perform this duty, is entitled to compensation. .

3. SEAMEN &=29(2)—PERSONAL INJURIES—DEFECTIVE MACHINERY. )
Libelant was assistant engineer on respondent’s steamer. Soon after
starting on a trip, the feed pump stopped and libelant attempted to
start it, as had been done before, by forcing a piston back into the cylin-
der with a pinchbar; but it immediately flew back, causing the pinchbar
to strike and injure libelant’s head. Shortly after the injury the eylin-
ders were opened, and the piston was found to be broken in two or
three pieces. The pump had not worked well for two years, and it had
frequently been necessary to start it when it stopped by external means;
but during that time the cylinders had not been opened to ascertain the
trouble. Held, that the evidence, while it did not show definitely the de-
fect which caused the piston to fly back, was sufficient to support a
finding by the trial court that the defect existed at the time the ship left
port, rendering her unseaworthy, and that respondent was negligent in
not ascertaining and remedying it, and was liable for libelant’s injury.

4. SEAMEN &=29(5)—SUIT FOR PERSONAL INJURY-—HEVIDENCE.

In determining the negligence of respondent in maintaining the pump
in an unsafe condition, the fact and nature of the accident might proper-
ly be taken into account, in connection with all other circumstances of
the case.

5. SEAMEN €=929(4)—PERSONAL INJURY—ASSUMPTION OF RISK.
The risk of injury from the flying back of the piston, when forced into
the cylinder, was not one assumed by libelant, who had a right to assume
that the owner would keep the pump in a safe condition.

6. SEAMEN &29(4)—PERSONAL INJURY—CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE.

In the absence of knowledge thdt the piston was likely to fly back,

libelant was not chargeable with contributory negligence in taking a
. customary method of forcing it into the cylinder.
7. ADMIRALTY &==118—REVIEW ON APPEAL—FINDINGS OF TRIAL COURT.

A finding on & question of fact by an admiralty court, which hearad
the witnesses, will be accepted by the appellate court, unless the evi-
dence greatly preponderates against it.

8. SEAMEN &=29(1)—PERSONAL INJURY—LIABILITY OF OWNER.

A shipowner, whose negligence contributed to the injury of a seaman,

is liable therefor, notwithstanding the concurring negligence of another.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Michigan; Arthur J. Tuttle, Judge. -

In Admiralty. Suit by Henry Moss against the Globe Steamship
Company, owner of the steamer Frank C. Ball. Decree for libelant,
and respondent appeals. Affirmed.

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Thos. H. Garry, of Cleveland, Ohio, and Sherwin A. Hill, of Detroit,
Mich., for appellant.
Frederick L. Leckie, of Cleveland, Ohio, for appellee.

Before KNAPPEN, MACK, and DENISON, Circuit Judges.

KNAPPEN, Circuit Judge. The appellee, while in the performance
of his duties as assistant engineer of the ship Frank C. Ball, owned by
appellant, and while on a voyage from Lorain, Ohio, to Duluth, Minn,,
was seriously injured in an attempt to start a defective feed pump
used for supplying water to the boilers. To recover the damages suf-
fered appellee filed libel in admiralty against the ship; the appellant
giving bond to answer the decree. Upon hearing in open court, decree
passed for libelant, from which this appeal is taken. ,

The ground on which the right to recovery is rested is that the pump
was so defective as to render the ship unseaworthy as respects appellee,
and to amount to a negligent failure of duty to supply and keep in
order the proper appliances appurtenant to the ship—a duty analogous
to the ordinary duty of a master to furnish his servant a safe place to
work and safe appliances to work with.

[1,2] The case is governed by the admiralty law. Southern Pa-
cific Co. v. Jensen, 244 U. S. 205, 37 Sup. Ct. 524, 61 L. Ed. 1086;
Tropical Fruit S. S. Co. v. Towle (C. C. A. 5) 222 Fed. 867, 868, 138
C. C. A. 293. The rule in admiralty is well settled that a ship owner
owes to his seamen a positive and nondelegable duty to see that the
ship is seaworthy and her equipment in safe condition for use when
she starts on a voyage, and that a seaman injured through failure to
perform this duty is entitled to compensation. The Osceola, 189 U. S.
158, 175, 23 Sup. Ct. 483, 47 1. Ed. 760; Thompson Towing, etc.,
Ass'n v. McGregor (C. C. A. 6) 207 Fed. 209, 211, 124 C. C. A. 479,
and cases cited.

[3] The feed pump, as fastened to the floor of the engine room,
was about 20 feet long; it was duplex in that it had two sides which,
when not in use, were independent of each other; it was compound in
that each side had both a high-pressure and a low-pressure cylinder,
the steam first passing through the high-pressure cylinder and then
into the low-pressure; the pistons of the high and low pressure being
conhected to a common piston rod, which in turn connected with a
crosshead on which was bolted a plunger operating in one end of the
water cylinder; another crosshead (suitably connected with the first)
held another plunger. In operation the plungers alternately extended
forward out of the water chambers. The feed pump was started when
the boat left Lorain, which was about noon; it did not work well, and
finally stopped, leaving one plunger within the chamber, the other
extending out the full length of thg stroke, which was about 12 inches.
To start the pump appellee took an iron pinchbar, 6 or 7 feet long and
weighing about 23 pounds, fulcrumed its lower end against the angle
iron edge of the oil pan, which was fastened to the floor and pushed
against the crosshead; the plunger was thus finally forced into the
cylinder, but immediately flew back, causing the pinchbar to strike
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appellant upon the forehead, knocking him backward and causing his
head to strike a metal pipe.

The refusal of the pump to start when the steam valves were opened,
and the sticking of the plungers, wére not a new experience; it had
frequently occurred for two years before the accident. The chief engi-
neer,who was a witness for appellant, testified that it usually happened
three times out of ten when the ship left port. On such occasions the
pump was started either by using a pinchbar in the way used by ap-
pellee as before described, or by the use of a chain fall—a chain in the
nature of block and tackle—to pull out the plunger which was within
the cylinder, or by a blow from a heavy iron sledge with all the force
a man could muster against the nut on the end of one of the guide
rods, a usage which had considerably battered up the nut. The chief
engineer had taken part in all three of these methods of starting the
pump. Sometimes after being so started it would stop and require
restarting by the same process two or more times. There was testi-
mony of credible witnesses that trouble in starting this kind of a pump
was not unusual; but we agree with Judge Tuttle that:

“A fair interpretation of their testimony is that the troubles to which they
refer are not of the kind shown to have occurred with this pump. Nearly all
of them speak of pumps that require a little force to start them. This pump
frequently stuck in a way that required a great deal of force to start it. It
seems plain from this record that this was a poor pump, did not work well,
and never was in proper working order at any time during the period covered
by the testimony in this case; that is, two years preceding the accident.”
(Italics ours.)

None of the witnesses seem to have ever known a pump which gave
so much trouble as this; to some of the witnesses for appellant the
use of chain fall and sledge seems to have been unheard of, and by one
or more, at least impliedly, condemned. The most prominent of the
suggested causes for such sticking of the plunger were air in the suction
pipe, dryness of the cylinders, too tight packing, and leaking valves.
We think it a fair deduction from the testimony that the experience
had with this pump was such that the difficulty could be satisfactorily
accounted for by neither nor all of these causes.

We are satisfied that there was something vitally and radically wrong
with the pump at the time the ship left Lorain on the voyage in ques-
tion. We think this indicated by the experience up to that time; and
corroborated by what developed later.

Following the accident no attempt was made to operate the feed
pump, nor does it seem to have been examined until the ship arrived
{about midnight) at Detroit, where it picked up the chief engineer, and,
after putting off appellee at the dock and sending him in an ambulance
to the Marine Hospital, the ship was anchored in the river. The chief
engineer then opened up the cylipders and found the piston in the
high-pressure cylinder broken-in two or three pieces. If this piston
was broken$ or even seriously cracked, before the boat left Lorain the
ship was unseaworthy. One of -defendant’s witnesses presents the
theory that the piston was broken after leaving Lorain, but before the
accident; others, that the flying back of the plunger when appellee
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was hit caused the break. It is possible that the break occurred in
either of the two ways suggested, but the question must be considered
in the light of the evident fact that appellant has not given the court
all the aid possible to be furnished. The piston was not presented in
court, and seems not to have been preserved. Its production might well
disclose valuable evidence on the question of its condition prior to the
accident, including the evidence or lack of evidence of old cracks or
breaks. The fact neither of the accident nor of the docking at Detroit
was entered upon the permanent log, although it is said such record is
required, and although the captain is confident he entered the facts
upon the scratch log (which was lost or thrown away), and although
the fact of the accident was so well in mind during the voyage that
the ship was met at Duluth by its representative, who took the written
statements of its seamen regarding the accident. This suppression of
the record was a foolish and vain thing; but we can see no other rea-
son for it than that suggested by the District Judge, viz.:

“So that if the owner or boat got in a lawsuit any kind of a theory could
be advanced, when there was plenty of time for interested parties to think
the matter over.” .

While, as already said, it is possible that the piston was broken by
its flying back as stated, at the time of the accident, it would seem more
probable that it was broken before that time. Indeed, the treatment to
which the pump had been subjected for so long a time in the use not
only of pinchbar and chain fall, but especially of iron sledge, would
tend to injure the internal mechanism of the pump, if not the piston
itself. And it seem3 the more reasonable conclusion, to say the least,
that the application of steam would not have broken the piston, unless
it were previously injured, or unlcss there was alrcady some radical
infirmity in the internal structure of the pump; and that it would not
have failed, after 30 minutes’ effort, to continue to run unless radi-
cally wrong. The suggestion that the oiler broke the piston when he
started the pump on leaving Lorain seems little, if anything, more than
a surmise, and is opposed to the belief of the oiler, and to his testimony
that:

“She was jumping from one end to the other when I turned the steam on
{and he says he “started it slow”]; then it made a sort of jump.”

There is credible testimony that the pump could have run for some
little time, even with the broken piston. But whether or not there was
a broken piston previous to the ship’s leaving Lorain (which we think
the more reasonable conclusion), we are convinced that the condition
of the pump at that time was so radically defective as to make rea-
sonably probable and as to cause the accident which did happen.

Under these circumstances, an affirmative and definite showing of
the precise defect which caused the plunger to fly back is not essential
to liability. It is enough, as against the charge of speculation, that the
conclusion that the action was due to a radical defect in the interior
condition of the pump, previous to leaving Lorain, seems more reason-
ably probable than any other. )

We agree with the conclusion of the District Judge that appellant
did not use due care with respect to ascertaining and remedying the
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actual defects in the pump. The experience had during the two
years preceding the accident called for a thorough examination of its
internal structure. During the year preceding the year of the accident
a piston rod had been broken and repaired; but, aside from this, no
internal examination seems to have been had, although external means
were frequently taken to relieve the difficulty, never with more than
temporary success, and although the machinery would naturally be
overhauled during the winter preceding the accident, and although
some grinding of valves had been done at Buffalo just before the trip
to Lorain, during which trip the pump seems to have worked fairly
well. Whether or not the chief engineer represented the ship owner
in the care of the ship, and the duty, as between the ship owner and ap-
pellee, to keep the engine-room machinery in safe condition, we think,
to say the least, that due care and inquiry on the part of the fleet engi-
neer, who had general oversight of all the boats in appellant’s fleet,
including the overhauling at the end of the season, would have led to
the discovery of the defective condition of the pump, which every one
connected with its operation during the preceding two years well knew ;
and it is reasonable to believe that a thorough -internal examination
-would have disclosed the existence of radical fault and thus have led
to its remedy.

[4] In reaching the conclusion that appellant was negligent in main-
taining the pump in unsafe condition we may properly take into ac-
count the fact and nature of the accident, in connection with all the
other circumstances in the case, notwithstanding negligence is not or-
dinarily assumed from the mere fact of accident. " La Fernier v. Sco
River Co., 129 Mich. 596, 89 N. W. 353; Byers v. Carnegie Steel
Co. (C. C. A. 6) 159 Fed. 347, 351, et seq., 86 C. C. A. 347, 16 L. R. A.
(N. S) 214.

[5] In our opinion, appellant has not sustained the burden of show-
ing that appellee assumed the risk of starting the pump. The risk of
what actually happened was not assumed merely by accepting and con-
tinuing the employment. It is not enough that appellee knew the pump
was defective. The plunger had never before been known to fly back;
and we cannot say that appellee had reason to expect it would do so.
The actual risk was thus not appreciated nor consciously assumed. C.,
N. O. & T. P. Ry. v. Thompson (C. C. A. 6) 236 Fed. 1, 10, et seq.,
149 C. C. A. 211, and cases cited. Appellee had the right to assume,
in the absence of notice to the contrary, that the ship owner would
make due inspection of the pump and keep it in safe condition. C.,
O. & G. Ry. v. McDade, 191 U. S. 64, 67, 24 Sup. Ct. 24, 48 1. Ed.
96; C. & O. Ry. v. Profﬁtt 241 U. S. 462 468, 36 Sup. Ct. 620, 60
L. Ed. 1102. He had no right to undertake this duty himself; to have
done so would probably have cost him his job.

Nor did he assume the risk by starting on the voyage from Lorain.
The chief engineer had, without the knowledge of the ship owner,
left the ship at Lorain, and gone to Detroit by rail, leaving the engine
room in charge of appellee, whose license papers were insufficient for
a ship of the size of the Ball. As a practical proposition, he had to take
charge of the engine and its appurtenant machinery. It is immaterial
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to the question of assumption of risk that this undermanning of the
ship was without the owner’s knowledge.

Nor did the appellee assume the risk by starting the feed pump,
instead of using either the injectors or the service pump. The injectors
were used only in harbors, and not when the ship was at sea; the
service pump was devoted to a variety of uses, including fire service,
and was auxiliary only to the feed pump with respect to supplying the
boilers. Moreover, the feed pump supplied hot water to the boilers,
while the service pump gave only cold water ; the accident occurred in
December. The defect in the feed pump was discovered while at sea.
Under all these circumstances, due observance of duty demanded that
appellee try to start the pump, as had always been done under and by
the direction of the chief engineer. The case does not fall within the
general rule invoked by appellant, that an employé engaged in repair
work assumes the risks necessarily incident thereto. No repair of the
pump was being had or attempted; nothing that appellee did or could
do would repair the defects; he was only trying to start the pump, and
his employment at the time was no more in the nature of repair than
would be the throwing of an engine off the center. It is also urged that
appellee was guilty of contributory negligence, and so could not recover
full compensation.

[8] We assume, for the purposes of this opinion, that there is in
admiralty a defense of contributory negligence analogous in principle
to that prevailing in common law actions. It is surely no more favor-
able to a shipowner than to an ordinary employer.

The burden of proof is upon appellant, and again we are satisfied
that the burden has not been sustained. In the absence of knowledge
that the plunger was likely to fly back, appellee was not negligent in
standing in front of the pump and pushing upon the bar, instead of
pulling from behind. He took the course always followed on the
ship, and which enabled greater purchase than did the other way.

[7,8] But there was testimony of several witnesses that the plunger
could not fly back unless live steam was turned on or unless the bleed-
ers (through which the water of condensation is discharged) were
closed; and it is assumed that appellee either turned on the steam or
closed the bleeders, or both. But this contention is not sustained by
the testimony. Appellee testified that he had already tried unsuccess-
tutly to keep the pump going by turning on the steam after using the
pinchbar, and that the steam was turned off when the bar was used
the previous time. This is undisputed. There is no testimony that he
closed the bleeders, except that of the oiler, and he had previously
given a written statement that the bleeders were not closed. The Dis-
trict Judge, who heard his testimony in connection with the other
testimony in the case, refused to believe it, and refused to believe that
appellee either turned on the steam, or knew it was turned on, or failed
to open the bleeders, or after they had been opened closed them. The
evidence does not preponderate against this conclusion, and we accept
it as correct. City of Cleveland v. Chisholm (C. C. A. 6) 90 Fed. 431,
434, 33 C. C. A. 157; Monongahela, etc., Co. v. Hurst (C. C. A. 6)
200 Fed. 711, 119 C. C. A. 127; Pugh v. Snodgrass (C. C. A. 6) 209
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Fed. 325, 126 C. C. A. 251; Erie, etc.,, Co. v. Dunseith (C. C. A. 6)
239 Fed. 814, 816, — C. ‘CA —. Assuming what the District
Judge says was plain to him, that “the steam must have been on, or
the valves were defective in such a way that the steam rushed in, or
that being shut off it was turned on,” it does not follow that appellee
turned on the steam. When the accident occurred he was at the water
end of the pump, about 14 or 15 feet from the steam valve. If the
steam was turned on, it is fully as likely that the oiler did it, and if the
negligence of the ship owner, in failing to keep the pump safe and sea-
worthy, contributed to the injury, the shipowner is liable, notwithstand-
ing the concurring negligence of the oiler. See by analogy Kreigh v.
Westinghouse Co., 214 U. S. 249, 257, 29 Sup. Ct. 619, 53 L. Ed. 984
and cases cited; American Shlpbmldmg Co. v. Lorenski (C C. A. 6
204 Fed. 39, 44 122 C.C. A. 353; Meers v. Childers (C. C. A. 6) 228
Fed. 640, 643, 143 C. C. A. 162.

Whether or not appellant was-at fault in not taking appellee back
to Lorain for earlier treatment, instead of going through to Detroit
(The Iroquois, 194 U. S. 240, 24 Sup. Ct. 640, 48 L. Ed. 955), we
need not consider, for the reason, if for no other, that the damages
awarded were agreed upon by both sides as full compensatory damages;
and there is nothing to indicate that the element of delay entered into
the ascertainment of the amount of damages.

It results from these views that appellee was entitled to full com-
pensation, and was not limited to relief by way of maintenance and
cure, as for mere negligence in operation of the ship,

The decree of the District Court is affirmed.

MINNEAPOLIS & ST. L. R. CO. v. UNITED STATES.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. July 21, 1917, Dissenting Opinion
August 9, 1917.)

No. 4880.
MASTER AND SERVANT &=13—HOURS OF SERVICE ACT—CONTINUOUS SERVICE.

Hours of Service Act March 4, 1907, c¢. 2939, § 2, 34 Stat. 1416 (Comp.
St. 1916, § 8678), provides that a railroad train employé shall not be
required or permitted to remain on duty for a longer period than 16 con-
secutive hours, that when he has been on duty continuiously for 16 hours
he shall not be permitted to again go on duty until he has had at least
10 consecutive hours off duty, and that when he has been on duty for
16 hours in the aggregate in any 24-hour period he shall not be per-
mitted to again go on duty until he shall have had at least 8 consecutive
hours off duty. Held that, in view of the purpose of the act to keep up
the efficiency of the men charged with the running of trains, where
freight train crews made round trips, covering from start to return
between 17 and 18 hours, the giving to such crews of an absolute release
from duty of from 2 to 234 hours at the other end of the run did not
break the continuity of the service, which exceeded the statutory limit
of 16 hours.

Sanborn, Circuit Judge, dissenting.

@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Southern
District of Iowa; Martin J. Wade, Judge.

Action at law by the United States against the Minneapolis & St.
Louis Railroad Company. Judgment for the United States, and de-
fendant brings error. Affirmed. .

For opinion below, see 236 Fed. 414.

R. B. Alberson, of Des Moines, lowa (F. M. Miner, of Minneapolis,
Minn., Crom. Bowen, of Des Moines, Towa, and W. H. Bremner, of
Minneapolis, Minn., on the brief), for plaintiff in error.

Philip J. Doherty, Sp. Asst. U. S. Atty.,, of Washington, D. C.
(Claude R. Porter, U. S. Atty., of Centerville, Iowa, on the brief), for
the United States.

Before SANBORN, CARLAND, and STONE, Circuit Judges.

CARLAND, Circuit Judge. This was an action by the United
States to recover penalties from the railroad company for having per-
mitted certain of its employés to be or remain on duty for a longer
period than 16 consecutive hours. Section 2, c. 2939, 34 Stat. 1416.
There were 19 counts in the complaint, upon each of which judgment
was rendered in favor of the plaintiff. The action was tried to the
court, and special findings of fact were made. The only question be-
fore us is: Do the facts found support the judgment?

The different employés of the railroad company are divided by the
findings of fact into four groups.

Group 1 includes J. D. Haggin, an engineer, and H. C. Hoyer, a
fireman. These employés were operating an extra helper engine he-
tween Marshalltown and Abbott, Iowa. On December 10, 1914, said
engineer and fireman began service at 9:40 o’clock p. m., and con-
tinued service until 3:30 o’clock p. m. on December 11, 1914, a period
which, if consecutive, is 17 hours and 40 minutes. They returned
from a trip to Abbott at 4:35 a. m. December 11th, at which time they
were absolutely released from service until 6:55 o’clock a. m., a period
of 2 hours and 20 minutes. During said period the engine was left
at the water tank. The engineer went to the roundhouse, about a
block away, and registered. He then went from there to a restaurant
and had breakfast, which occupied about 30 minutes. Then he re-
turned to the roundhouse, spending about 15 minutes upon his way visit-
ing and talking. He remahed at the roundhouse until 6:55 a. m,,
which was the termination of the period of release. He then took
charge of his engine.. The engineer lived in Marshalltown, about six
blocks from where the engine was left; but he did not go to his
home, because he did not want to awaken his wife. There were no
facilities for rest in the roundhouse, except some wooden benches;
but he laid down upon one of those and slept a little for half an hour
or more. He did not remove his clothes or retire for rest, except as
aforesaid. The engineer registered in at Marshalltown at 4:35 a. m.,
after he got off his engine and walked down to the roundhouse, a
block away. He registered out at 6:55 on the same morning. Hoyer,
the fireman, carried a lunch with him on the engine, and generally ate
a little every time the engine stopped. He left the engine at the same
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time as the engineer, did not have to register, but went direct to the
restaurant, which was about two blocks from the engine, and had his
breakfast; had a regular place for sleeping, about eight blocks from
the yards, but did not go there to sleep, and did not sleep at all,
“fooled around” until about starting time, and played some pool at
the restaurant.

Group 2 includes J. P. Boyce and J. W. Gibson, engineers; B.
McDonough and V. Miller, firemen; C. Vandraska, conductor; C. A.
Benson and M. C. Satchell, brakemen. These men constituted a crew
operating a freight train with two engines from Grinnell to Oskaloosa,
Towa, and return. They entered service at 6:30 a. m., December 27,
1914, and terminated service at 11:45 p. m. on December 27, 1914,
a period which, if consecutive, is 17 hours and 15 minutes. They were
absolutely released from service at Oskaloosa from 5 p. m. to 7 o’clock
p- m,, a period of 2 hours. What this ¢rew was doing during the
period of release does not appear.

Group 3 includes J. T. Elder, engineer; E. L, Howell, fireman; S.
S. Walton, conductor; W. G. Risney and T. E. Young, brakemen.
They composed a crew operating freight trains from Oskaloosa to
Marshalltown, JTowa. They entered upon service at 8:45 a. m. Jan-
uary 20, 1914, and continued service until 2 a. m. January 21st, which,
if consecutive, amounted to 17 hours and 15 minutes. There was a
period of absolute release- of 2 hours at Marshalltown, Iowa, from
3:35 p. m. to 5:35 p. m. on January 20th. The crew again entered
service at 8:45 a. m., but waited until 9:40 a. m. before the train was
ready to start. At Marshalltown the engine was left at the round-
house, about a half block from the depot. The engineer went to the
roundhouse and reported, and then went to a restaurant, about two
blocks away, and ate his supper, which took 20 or 30 minutes. There
was no place specially provided for sleeping. There were some pillows
and bedding in the caboose, furnished by the trainmen and conductor
for their own use, and they could sleep upon the cushion seats ex-
tending lengthwise; and this courtesy was extended to the firemen and
engineer, if requested. Howell, the fireman, left the engine at the
same time as the engineer, and went to the restaurant and had supper.
Neither the fireman nor engineer had any home or place to sleep in
Marshalltown, except as aforesaid, and except as to the benches that
were present in the roundhouse. Waltop, the conductor, also went
to the restaurant; had no place for sleeping in Marshalltown, except
as aforesaid; and it does not appear that he slept any at that point.
What the brakeman did does not appear. :

Group 4 includes B. F. Rinehart, engineer; W. F. Lewis, fireman;
E. Hearne, conductor; A. C. Miller and John Donner, brakemen. They
were a crew operating a freight train from Oskaloosa to Marshalltown,
Iowa. They entered service on January 28, 1915, at 6:15 p. m., and
terminated service at 12:10 p. m. January 29th, a period which, if con-
secutive, is 17 hours and 55 minutes. There was a 2-hour period of
absolute release from 4:50 a. m. to 6:50 a. m. on January 29th, at
Marshalltown. Rinehart lived at Oskaloosa; had no special place to
sleep in Marshalltown; ate his breakfast three or four blocks from
where he left his engine. There were places where workmen could
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sleep within a block or half block of the yards at Marshalltown. The
fireman had breakfast about the same time; did not go to sleep; no
‘sleeping place in Marshalltown. There was bedding in the caboose,
and Hearne, the conductor, went to the caboose and went to sleep for
awhile. The accommodations in the caboose were cushion seats length-
wise of the car, about 214 feet wide and about 34 feet long. There
were seats on both sides. Miller and Donner had the privilege of
sleeping there. The periods of release mentioned in the four groups
were absolute, and so understood by the employés.

None of the employés did any work, during the periods of release
mentioned, about engines, cars, or equipments of the railroad com-
pany, or any other work in connection with their employment. Mar-
shalltown, Iowa, is a terminal of defendant company, and a city of
16,000 or 18,000 inhabitants. Oskaloosa is a city of 8,000 or 9,000
inhabitants.

The question presented by these findings of fact is: Were the pe-
riods of release, taking into consideration the purposes of the law,
periods of rest or off duty which the law requires? If they were, then
there was not in any case a longer period of service or on duty than
16 consecutive hours. If, on the contrary, these periods were of such
length, or at such a time and place, or in connection with such service,
that, although absolutely relieved from duty, the employés did not
receive that rest which it was the policy of the law to secure, then
the periods of release did not prevent the hours of service from being
consecutive and the law was violated. In United States v. Atchison,
Topeka & Santa Fé Railroad Co., 220 U. S. 37, 31 Sup. Ct. 362, 55
L. Ed. 361, it was décided that under section 2 a telegraph operator
employed for 6 hours, and then after an interval for 3 hours, is not
employed for a longer period than 9 consecutive hours. By section 2
it is also provided that, where an employé of a common carrier has
been continuously on duty for 16 hours, he shall be relieved and not
required or permitted again to go on duty until he has had at least
10 consecutive hours off duty, and no such employé who has been on
duty 16 hours in the aggregate in any 24-hour period shall be required
or permitted to continue or again go on duty without having had at
least 8 consecutive hours off duty. We are of the opinion that, under
the law and the decision of the Supreme Court in the case cited, the
period of 16 hours may be divided; but the law in regard to employés
other than operators, train dispatchers, or those engaged in similar
service is not the same as the law in regard to operators. The law
does not say that an employé shall’ not be permitted to be or remain
on duty for a longer period than 16 consecutive hours in any 24-hour
period, and the hours of service for operators is much less than those
for employés in general.

In regard to employés in general the law provides that, after an
employé shall have been continuously on duty for 16 hours, he shall
be relieved, and not required or permitted again to go on duty until
he has had at least 10 consecutive hours off duty. -This would make
a total period of 26 hours. It then provides that, if an employé has
been permitted to be or remain on duty 16 hours in the aggregate in
any 24-hour period, said employé shall not be required or permitted
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to continue or again go on duty without having had at least 8 consec-
utive hours off duty; the intention of Congress being apparently that,
if the 16 hours of service is divided, then the. period of release affects”
the time which the employé is entitled to remain off duty at the end
of his service. We make this statement for the purpose of showing
that the time of release must be for all intents and purposes of the
same character, except as to length of time as the period which the
employé is permitted to be and remain off duty after the end of the
period of service. It will be seen, whether we consider the period
of 8 hours applicable to employés who have been permitted to be and
remain on duty in the aggregate for 16 hours or the period of 10 hours
applicable to employés who have been on duty for 16 consecutive hours,
that the period of rest is much less than is given to operators and train
dispatchers or employés engaged in like service, so that it would be
‘impossible to divide up the 16-hour period to the same extent as may
be done with the last-named class of employés. The intent and pur-
poses of the law must not be lost sight of in attempting to divide the
16 hours of service. The object and purpose of the Hours of Service
Act has been often stated by the courts, and has again been recently
stated in the case of Atchison, Topeka & Santa Fé Railway Co. v.
United States, 244 U. S. 336, 37 Sup. Ct. 635, 61 L. Ed. 1175 (June 4,
1917), in the following language:

“Considering these opposing contentions, it must be remembered that the
purpose of the act was to prevent the dangers which must necessarily arise
to the employé and to the public from continuing men in a dangerous and
hazardous business for periods so long as to render them unfit to give that
service which is essential to the protection of themselves and those intrusted
to their care. It is common knowledge that the enactment of this legislation
was indticed by reason of the many casualties in railroad transportation which
resulted from requiring the discharge of arduous duties by tired and exhausted
men, whose power of service and energy had been so weakened by overwork as
to render them inattentive to duty or incapable of discharging the responsible
labors of their positions.”

That an employé is absolutely relieved from service is not of con-
trolling importance, if the time 1s so short or the opportunities for rest
are so meager that for all practical purposes an employé does not have
the opportunity for rest which the law requires. It was decided in
Southern Pacific Co. v. United States (Circuit Court of Appeals, 9th
Cir.) 222 Fed. 46, 137 C. C. A. 584, that whether the break or inter-
mission in the hours of service are such as the law will recognize
depends upon their character as periods of substantial rest, and that
the question as to whether the periods of release gave opportunity
for substantial periods of rest was for the jury, under the evidence in
each case. In United States v. Chicago, M. & P. S. Ry. Co. (D. C)
197 Fed. 624, and United States v. Denver & R. G. R. Co. (D. C))
197 Fed. 629, cited with approval by the Supreme Court in Missouri,
K. & T. Ry. Co. v. United States, 231 U. S. 112, 34 Sup. Ct. 26, 58 L.
Ed. 144, it was decided that not every release from duty was such
as the law contemplated, but that each release must be determined
according to the facts in the particular case. There may be cases, un-
doubtedly, where the release is for such a time and under such cir-
cumstances that the court may say as matter of law that the release
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was or was not such as to be within the requirement of the law; but
in the present case the parties waived a jury, and submitted the facts
and all legitimate inferences to be drawn therefrom to the trial court
for decision. That court found that the periods of release under the
circumstances did not break the consecutive character of the hours
of service, and entered judgment accordingly.

We are of the opinion that the periods of release were periods of
waiting which gave no proper opportunity for rest. The service was
what 1s termed a “turn-around” service. If the train crew can be
given an absolute dismissal for the time which elapses at any par-
ticular terminal before the return trip is made, with only the oppor-
tunity for rest which is shown by the evidence in this case, and such
time is held to break the consecutive hours of service, then the pur-
pose of the law will be largely defeated, and the employés permitted
to remain on duty for a longer period than is lawful.

We are therefore of the opinion that the judgment should be af-
firmed; and it is so ordered.

SANBORN, Circuit Judge (dissenting). The statute forbids any
common carrier to permit an employé to be or remain on duty “for
a longer period than 16 consecutive hours” and provides that when
he has been on duty continuously for 16 hours he shall not be permit-
ted to go on duty again until he has had “at least 10 consecutive hours
off duty,” and when he has been on duty “16 hours in the aggregate”
he shall not be permitted to continue or go on duty without having at
least 8 consecutive hours off duty. The italics are mine, and are used
to challenge attention to the fact that it is a continuous service, without
break or intermission, for a long period of consecutive hours, against
which the portion of the law here invoked is especially leveled, and to
the fact that the term “consecutive hours” is used three times in the
section, once to describe the term of continuous service permitted, 16
consecutive hours, and twice to describe terms off duty, at least “10
consecutive hours” in one case, and “at least 8 consecutive hours” in
the other,

The record in this case discloses the fact that each of the employés
whose service is the occasion of this action was absolutely released
from duty by the employer for a definite period of at least 2 consecu-
tive hours during a term of service which, if this intermission is
counted as a part of it, did not amount to quite 18 hours, and that each
employé was made fully aware of the fact of his freedom from service
before this intermission therein commenced. Moreover, these releases
were at terminals of the trips of the employés, or at terminals of the
runs of their trains where the employés could obtain the accommoda-
tions of railroad stations, restaurants, and houses, and could be and were
relieved of the mental tension as well as the manual labor of their serv-
ice, and could be and were free from all care of their engines, or any-
thing connected with the property of their employer. The law does not
require the employer to compel its employés to sleep, or to rest, or to
play, or to work during the intermission when they are off duty. It
requires simply that they shall be relieved from continuous service

245 F—H



66 245 FEDERAL REPORTER

during consecutive hours. A service of 8 hours, an intermission of 2
hours in which the employé is relieved of all duty and is free from
service, followed immediately by a service of & consecutive hours,
cannot be a service of 16 consecutive hours. If it is, then under
the following provision of the statute an employé who, after serv-
ing for 16 consecutive hours, has 5 hours off duty, then 2 hours on
duty, followed immediately by 5 hours off duty, has at least 10
consecutive hours off duty, and one who, after serving 16 hours in
the aggregate in 24 hours, has 4 hours off duty, then 2 hours on duty,
immediately followed by 4 hours off duty, has at least 8 consecutive
hours off duty. This does not seem to me to be a permissible construc-
tion of the statute. The words “consecutive” and “continuousty” in
this statute seem to me to be not only significant, but controlling. It is
common knowledge that continuous service for 16 consecutive hours ex-
hausts, wearies, and weakens men, and tends to render them inattentive
to duty, or incapable of discharging their duties, far more than an ag-
gregate service of 16 hours in two periods of 5 hours and 11 hours
each, with an intermission between them of 2 hours off duty—2 hours
of absolute relief from the strain, care, tension, and labor of their du-
ties. And it was against this exhaustion of continuous service for
more than 16 consecutive hours that this statute was leveled. This is
made plain by the express provision in the section under consideration
that 10 consecutive hours off duty are required where the employé has
been on duty for 16 consecutive hours, while only 8 consecutive hours
off duty are required when he has been on duty 16 hours in the aggre-
gate, but not 16 consecutive hours, in any 24-hour period. Judge Pol-
lock in United States v. Atchison, Topeka & Santa Fé Ry..Co. (D. C.)
232 Fed. 196, 197, well remarked:

“Having in mind the purpose of Congress in the enactment of the law, that
purpose is better subserved by permitting an operator to work 9 hours out of
10, with one hour absolutely his own, except in cases of emergency, that he

. might take his meals, relax, and have recreation, than would be the case
where he is permitted to work 9 * * * consecutive hours.”

And in United States v. Atchison, Topeka & Santa Fé Ry. Co., 220’
U. S. 37, 44, 31 Sup. Ct. 362, 55 L. Ed. 361, where a telegraph opera-
tor was employed from half past 6 o’clock in the morning until 12,
and again from 3 p. m. to half past 6, or 9 hours in all, with an inter-
mission of 3 hours, the Supreme Court declared that:

“A man employed for 6 hours and then, after an interval, for 3, in the same
24 hours is not employed for a longer period than 9 consecutive hours.”

Because each of the employés whose service was the occasion of this
action was fully released from duty, and from all care, tension, and
labor for his employer, and knew that fact before the commencement
of the intermission, for a definite period of more than 2 consecutive
hours during the time, which was less than 18 hours, that it is claimed
that he was on duty, because the company was not required under the
law to make him sleep or rest or recreate, nor was the company re-
quired to do more than to relieve him from duty, so that he could have
an opportunity to rest his mind and his body, and relax from the strain
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and tension of continuous thought and action for his employer, because
the main purpose of the provision of this law under which this action
is brought was not to forbid, but to permit, service for 16 hours in the
aggregate within 24 hours, where, as in this case, there is an intermis-
sion of a substantial length of time, such as 2 hours between the hours
of actual service constituting that aggregate, because that provision of
the law is leveled at continuous service for more than 16 consecutive
hours, and its object is to relieve the weariness and exhaustion result-
ing from continuous mental strain and physical labor without intermis-
sion for relaxation, because employés on duty 6 hours, then off duty
2 hours, and then on duty 10 hours, are not on duty 16 consecutive
hours, and because while the employés in this case were on duty, if the
intermission be counted, a little more than 16 hours in the aggregate, I
am unable to bring my mind to assent to the view that these men, who
rendered less than 16 hours of actual discharge of duty, broken in each
case by an interval or intermission of more than 2 consecutive hours,
during which they were free from all duty, were on duty more than
16 consecutive hours, I am unable to resist the conclusion that the com-
pany was not liable for a violation of this law,

QUICKSILVER MINING CO. v. ANDERSON,
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. September 4, 1917.)
No. 2941,

1. CORPORATIONS &=432(12)—OFFICERS—SCOPE OF EMPLOYMENT.

In an action against a mining company to recover for services ren-
dered in connection with the organization of a corporation for building
of an electric railroad leading from the mine to a central point, and pro-
curing of rights of way, etc., evidence held to warrant a finding that the
president of the corporation who engaged plaintiff was acting within the
scope of his authority.

2. CORPORATIONS &==388(1)—ACTIONS—LIABILITY—AUTHORITY.

The president of a mining company, having suggested that the acquisi-
tion of transportation facilities would make the operation of the mine
more profitable, was authorized to make a detailed report to the directors.
He engaged plaintiff, who procured rights of way, obtained subscrip-
tions, and organized a corporation for the building of an electric road
from the mine to another point. The road in fact was never built.
Held that, the president being authorized, the mining company could not
defeat plaintiff’'s recovery on the ground that the building of the roaa
was beyond its charter powers.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Second
Division of the Northern District of California; Benj. F. Bledsoe,
Judge. .

Action by C. P. Anderson against the Quicksilver Mining Company,
a corporation. There was a judgment for plaintiff, and defendant
brings error. Affirmed.

@=»For other cases see same toplc & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes



68 245 FEDERAL REPORTER

A. H. Jarman, of San Francisco, Cal., for plaintiff in error.
C. A. Herrington, of San Jose, Cal., for defendant in error.

Before GILBERT, ROSS, and HUNT, Circuit Judges.

ROSS, Circuit Judge. The defendant in error recovered in the
court below judgment for services alleged to have been rendered by
him for the plaintiff in error under employment by its president. No
question is here made regarding the fact of the performance of the
services, nor concerning the value of them. The defense to the action
in the court below was, and the basis of the contentions in this court
is, that the enterprises in and about which the defendant in error was
employed were beyond the scope of the powers conferred on the plain-
tiff in error by its charter, and, further, that they were not within the
usual and ordinary business of the corporation, and therefore that its
president was without authority to employ the defendant in error to
render the services for which he sued and recovered.

The record shows that the plaintiff in error was incorporated by
act of the Legislature of the state of New York April 10, 1866 (Laws
1866, c. 470), “by the name, style, and title of ‘the Quicksilver Min-
ing Company,” and by such name and title,” the act provides, “shall
have perpetual succession, and shall be capable of suing and being
sued, impleading and being impleaded, and of granting and receiving,
in its corporate name, property, real, personal and mixed, and of
holding and improving lands in California or elsewhere, and to obtain
therefrom any and all minerals and other valuable substances, whether
by working or mining, leasing or disposing of privileges to work
or mine such lands, or any part thereof, and to erect houses and such
other buildings and works as may properly appertain to said business,
and to use, let, lease or work the same, and to dispose of the products
of all such lands, mines and works as they may deem proper.” The
act also, among other things, conferred upon the company power to
make such by-laws as it should deem proper to enable it to carry out
the objects of the corporation, and to alter, amend, add to, or re-
peal the same, provided that such by-laws should not be contrary to
the Constitution of the state or of the provisions of the act of incor-
poration. The act also authorized the persons therein named as a
body politic to elect persons to serve as directors of the corporation,
a majority of whom should constitute a quorum for the transaction
of business, and to hold their offices until their successors shall have
been elected in accordance with the by-laws. It also declared it “law-
ful for said company to establish the necessary offices for the business
of the company wherein their business is located, and to have their
principal office in the United States, in such place as they may deem
expedient, at which place it shall be lawful to hold all meetings for
the transaction of the business of the company.”

It appears from the record that the chief property of the company
is that Ifnown as the New Almaden quicksilver mine, situate in Santa
Clara county, Cal., the productive record of which, according to the
brief of the plaintiff in error, is more than $150,000,000. It has been
operated by the plaintiff in error for more than 40 years. The by-
laws of the company provide, among other things, that “the corporate
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powers of the company shall be exercised by a board of directors, and
such officers and agents as they shall appoint,” and that the directors
shall hold “stated, special, or adjourned meetings at such times and
places as they may deem most convenient and consistent with the in-
terests of the company,” and that “the directors shall have power to
delegate, from time to time, such authority as they may deem neces-
sary to the officers of the company or to any one or more members
acting as a committee in order that the business of the company may
at all times be transacted with promptness and dispatch.” The office
of the company was established in New York City, where it has al-
ways remained.

From June, 1909, until some time in June, 1913, C. A. Nones, a
resident of New York, was a member of the board of directors and
president of the company, and Miss M. A. Bowe, also of New York,
was likewise a member of the board, and its secretary. In February,
1910, J. T. Tatham, who was at the time bookkeeper and cashier of
the company at the mine, was by Nones appointed its general manager
at a salary fixed by him. In June, 1911, Tatham was elected a director
and treasurer of the company, and remained such until both he and
Nones were removed from their respective offices by the board of
directors in June, 1913.

The property of the company is situated about 12 miles southwest-
erly of the city of San Jose, upon the eastern foothills of the Coast
Range, being connected with the city by a boulevard known as the
Almaden road. Running through it for about three miles is a creek,
called Almaden creek, fed by the waters from the Los Alamedes wa-
tershed. ‘The property embraced about 8,500 acres, a large part of
which consists of agricultural land. During Nones’ presidency of
the company he was much of the time at the mine, and certainly its
directing head in so far as concerned its usual and ordinary business.
‘While the main business of the company was undoubtedly the mining
of quicksilver, which included the use of power developed from the
waters upon its land, the record leaves no room for doubt that it also
included the management and disposition of the by-products of its ores
and of its extensive land holdings and waters and water rights. One
of the by-products was paint; and it appears from the evidence with-
out dispute that Nones, while in charge of the property as president,
concluded that it was to the interest of the company to build a paint
mill, and that upon his recommendation a resolution was adopted by
its board of directors authorizing the construction of such a mill, not
to exceed a cost of $8,000, and directing such steps to be taken “as
may be necessary under the advice of our counsel for the formation
of a company to conduct such business, with the understanding that
all of the stock is the property of the Quicksilver Mining Company.”
Payment for the services performed in the procuring of the necessary
information upon which that recommendation was made by the pres-
ident of the company was manifestly just as much obligatory upon it,
had the recommendation not been approved, as it was upon its ap-
proval.

In precisely the same way, as shown by the record, Nones, as presi-
dent of the company, concluded, while in charge of the property, that
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the waters of the creek that flowed through the company’s land, and
the value of its water rights, could and would be enhanced by procur-
ing certain options on neighboring lands, and that by an addition to
the then existing dam in the creek, or the building of another dam, the
company would be enabled to develop more power for its own uses,
and would thereby be enabled to use and dispose of the waters to bet-
ter advantage, and further concluded, while so in charge of the prop-
erty of the company, that a large saving in the expense of hauling the
company’s ores to its reduction works by teams (a distance of about
four miles), and in the expense of hauling its supplies from San Jose
to the mine (a distance of about twelve miles), could be effected by
the building of an electric road from the mine to San Jose by way
of the reduction works and through a growing community, which was
anxious for the construction of such a road, and would contribute,
not only rights of way therefor, but give a substantial bonus besides.
These matters, it appears from the minutes of the company intro-
duced in evidence, were reported to its directors by its president in
detail, with the reasons which formed the basis of his recommenda-
tions.

Respecting the water the president in his report stated, among oth-
er things, that “owing to the contract which we have with the county,
it undoubtedly has to lease all pipes for a term of 50 years from the
date we elect to lease same, subject to a donation of 100,000 gallons
of water per day to the county. I recommend that as soon as these
pipes are properly installed that this company notify the county of its
intention to lease said pipes, and this company should then transfer
to the water company which is now in existence all of the water rights,
receiving in payment therefor all the stock of the water company,”
and among the reasons stated by the president for that recommenda-
tion were, in substance, that the company could increase its supply of
water, could earn some revenue from its sale to water users along its
line of pipes after the water should be first passed over the service
- wheels, and thereby transferred into power, and that, if a dam of
sufficient depth was constructed upon the company’s property, “it
would store up sufficient water to supply 10,000,000 gallons of water
per day; that they (the San Jose Water Company) would then rather
buy our rights at more than a fair price, allowing us to retain the
power privileges, than to run the chance of our becoming competitors
against them in the water supply business.” The minutes of the com-
pany show that, acting on that report and recommendation, on motion
of Director Whicher, duly seconded:

“Tt was resolved that the officers of the company be authorized to transfer
to the California Power Company all the water rights owned by the Quicksil-
ver Mining Company, together with the lease of the pipes of the county of

Santa Clara, said lease being for a term of 50 years, and in exchange therefor
to receive all stock and other securities of the California Power Company.”

The minutes further show that at the same meeting, on motion of
Director Whicher, duly seconded, this resolution was adopted:

“The president is therefore authorized to sell and transfer these securities at
a price of not less than $150,000 in cash or its equivalent, reserving, how-



QUICKSILVER MINING CO. V. ANDERSON 71

ever, to the Quicksilver Mining Company the right for all power to carry on
its business now and in the future, and for not less than 200,000 gallons of
water per day.”

The foregoing resolutions were adopted at a meeting held Septem-
ber 20, 1911. At a subsequent meeting of the board of directors, held
March 18, 1912, the resolution of September 20, 1911, regarding the
sale of the company’s water rights, was rescinded, and in lieu thereof
this resolution adopted:

“Resolved, that the officers of the company be authorized to transfer to
the Senonac Power Company all the water rights owned by the Quicksilver
Mining Company, together with the lease of the pipes of the county of Santa
Clara, sald lease being for the term of 50 years, and in exchange therefor to
receive all stock and other securities of the Senonac Power Company, and
the president is therefore authorized to sell and transfer these securities at
a price of not less than $200,000 in cash or its equivalent, reserving, how-
ever, to the Quicksilver Mining Company the right for all power to carry on
its business now and in the future, and for not less than 200,000 gallons of
water per day.”

The report of the president made to the board of directors at its
meeting of September 20, 1911, regarding the proposed electric road,
contained the following:

“Qur maximum transportation tonnage has a daily capacity of not in ex-
cess of 20 tons, which we haul 7% miles at cost of 60.2 cents per ton. For
this service we were paying last year $1.25 per ton, and this saving has been
effected by ownership of our teams. All of which has been paid for. In the
near future we will have to consider the handling of not less than 60 tons daily
and possibly 100 tons. We have reduced the cost of transportation as low as
can be done, so that an increased tonnage will force us to purchase addi-
tional teams and will permit of no saving. Our calculations of hauling is
based on 6 horses for every 8 tons. Only hauling 60 tons daily would cost us
about $37, or about $12,000 per year. In addition to this amount we are
constantly paying for the hauling of our groceries from San Jose to the
mine, and we haul about 25 tons monthly, at a cost of about $4 per ton. Our
entire hauling charges and feed bills amount to over $15,000 per year. I sub-
mit the proposition to the board regarding an electric road to be built from
San Jose to the furnaces. There have been several meetings on this matter
with the residents of the valley, who are unanimously in favor of this under-
taking, and have so far subscribed in cash about $10,000; this being a dona-
tion for which they will receive neither stock nor bonds of the proposed road.
I believe that this donation will amount to $15,000 before the road is built.
Besides there has been granted to me personally, for about three-fourths of
the distance of a private right of way of 20 feet width, and also sufficient
land for turnouts and stations. The balance of the right of way necessary
will bave to be acquired from the county, and will cost a few hundred dollars.
I am of the opinion that, if a company were formed to operate and build
this line, the line could be built by a certain contractor with whom I have
talked in San Jose upon the following terms: Original cost of road would
not exceed $110,000, to which would be added 10 per cent. for profit, and for
this the contractor would receive 6 per cent. bonds of this railroad company,
less amount of cash donated by residents. Said bonds to be guaranteed prin-
cipal and interest by the Quicksilver Mining Company. The cost of hauling
our own freight over this line this way would be very small. A 40-ton car
as a trailer could be attached to any regular passenger car without further
charge, and in addition to our saving for transportation, which will be in the
neighborhood of over $15,000 per year, we would alsé be able to carry passen-
gers and haul freight and express packages for residents along the line. A
close calculation of the population between San Jose and Almaden, gauging
the same for a distance of a mile east and west along the proposed line,
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shows about 5,000 people; also three schools, with a dally attendance of
150 scholars. Also beg to call your attention to the benefits accruing to
us from this electric road. Our acreage along the proposed lines is composed
mostly of hills, which are nothing but grazing lands and worth not over $20
per acre. Should this line be built, these hills would be desirable building
sites; we retaining our mineral rights, as has been the case in similar locali-
ties, to wit, Los Gatos and Saratoga, two places which are situated from
6 to 7 miles of our property. We also own 128 acres of land along the pro-
posed line, which we could not sell for $48 per acre for agricultural purposes
last year. This land is finely situated for a town site, and, although we have
sold 10 acres at $110 per acre, we still have sufficient left to warrant setting
out this land in one-half acre plots which would be sold easily at $150 per
one-half acre plot. This proposition is worthy of the most serious considera-
tion. I have devoted several months to it, and have obtained the approval of
the majority of the property owners whose lands are along the proposed line
of railway.”

Regarding the foregoing report of the president with reference to
the electric road, at the meeting at which it was presented it was, on
motion:

“Resolved, that before taking action on an electric road to be built from
San Jose to the mine, that the president furnish a complete specification,
showing itemized costs, possible earnings, etc, to be submitted at a future
meeting of the board.”

Preceding the meeting at which the foregoing resolutions of the
company were adopted, at a meeting of its board of directors held
June 5, 1911, on motion of Director Swayne, duly seconded:

“The president was authorized to have Mr. Aaron, the company’s counsel,
prepare a resolution re California Power Company, to be submitted to:the
directors at the next meeting.”

And in the deposition of Mr. Swayne, who was himself a lawyer of
New York, appears, among other things, the following:

“Q. Do you know anything about the water rights belonging to the defend-
ant company? A. Only what I have heard discussed from time to time
among the directors. Q. At board meetings? A. Yes; I have never seen
the property. Q. Did you ever hear discussed in a directors’ meeting the
proposition to construct an electric railway to extend from San Jose to New
Almaden, where the works of the defendant company are located? A. Yes.
Q. You also heard discussed in directors’ meetings the development of the
water rights and water powers owned by the company? A. Yes. Q. And
the object and purpose in the development of the company’s water rights and
power was to enable the company both to use its power to greater advantage
and to sell power, wasn't it? A. That was the plan. Q. You knew that the
project of an electric railway line to connect the works with the city of
San Jose was a project initiated for the benefit of the defendant company,
didn’t you? A. I knew that that plan was discussed; it was never authorized.
Q. Was it ever objected to? A. Yes; seriously. Q. By whom? A. By Mr.
O’'Brien, Mr. Stern, and myself.”

The record shows that the Senonac Power Company was incorporat-
ed, with a capital stock of 5,000 shares, 4,995 of which were issued
to the Quicksilver Mining Company March 22, 1912, and 1 each to
its president, Nones, its general manager and director, Tatham, and
its attorney, Burnett, and Anderson and Brassy. Respecting the
Senonac Power Company Mr. Swayne in his deposition says:

“That company was merely a subsidiary of the Quicksilver Mining Com-

pany. I believe it was organized and the transfer made, and subsequently
it was dissolved.”
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Preceding which dissolution it appears the Senonac Power Com-
pany reconveyed the water and water rights to the Quicksilver Mining
Company. It was, according to the record, in connection with the
waters and water rights, so dealt with by the plaintiff in error, that a
part of the services rendered by the defendant in error were per-
formed under the employment of the president of the plaintiff in error.
The other portions so performed were rendered in connection with
the proposed building of the electric road. It appears from the record
that along the Almaden road, between San Jose and the mine, is a
thickly settled fruit-producing community, and that the defendant in
error was employed by the president of the company to secure the
necessary rights of way and franchises for the road; that at the sug-
gestion of Nones the defendant in error arranged for a public meet-
ing which Nones, as well as Tatham, the general manager of the com-
pany, attended, and at which meeting Nones explained, among other
things, that the Quicksilver Mining Company needed better transpor-
tation, and that he supposed they did; that the mining company would
pay for the building of the road and would take all of the stock,
but that if any of the residents living along the line warnted any of
the stock they could have it; that a committee was thereupon appoint-
ed to work with the defendant in error regarding a right of way for
the road—Nones asking for a free right of way from San Jose to
New Almaden. Nones subsequently appointed a civil engineer named
Herrmann to make a survey in connection with the defendant in er-
ror of the right of way for the proposed road, and on the 6th day of
September, 1911, he wrote a letter to the chairman of the committee,
in which he said, among other things:

“I take pleasure in submitting to you my proposition for the consideration
of the committee, namely: That your committee obtain and collect the
contemplated subscriptions, and accept all rights of way subject to the pro-
visions hereinafter set forth; that the commencement of the building of the
railroad will not be later than December 6, 1911, and the completion of the
building of the railroad will be within fifteen months thereafter; that the
committee make such arrangements with me that upon the final completion
of the building of the railroad they will deliver to me the cash collected upon
subscriptions in a sum not less than $4,500 and convey to me or my assigns the
right of way that may have been gratuitously offered or donated; the sald
cash and the conveyances for the rights of way last mentioned shall be de-
livered to two trustees consisting of Mr. J. F. Tatham and another person to
be selected by the committee before the 6th day of December, 1911, to be held
by such trustees, and to be delivered by them to me or my assigns on the com-
pletion of the building of the railroad; that I or my assigns will furnish the
money requisite to pay for the rights of way where present options call for
money payment after the receipt by me or my representative of all public

franchises for running on such parts of the public highway as may be ap-
plied for.”

The proposition so submitted having been accepted, the defendant
in error proceeded to collect numerous subscriptions from the resi-
dents along the proposed line, and to secure rights of way therefor
from such residents, as also franchises from the county of Santa
Clara over roads of the county, following which the road was in-
corporated, to wit, October 19, 1911, under the laws of California
under the name “San Jose & Almaden Railroad Company,” with a
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capital stock of $120,000, divided into 1,200 shares, of the par value
of $100 each—the original subscribers being the defendant in error
1 share; Tatham, general manager of the mining company, 1 share;
Burnett, attorney for the mining company, 1 share; Nones, president
of the mining company, 117 shares; those issued to the defendant in
error, Tatham. and Burnett being indorsed in blank by them respec-
tively. Tatham testified, among other things, as follows:

“Y was vice president and treasurer of the San Jose & Almaden Railroad
Company. The stock of this railroad company belonged to the Quicksilver
Mining Company. About $5,000 was expended for the promotion of the pre-
liminary work of this railroad company. The money paid out belonged to
the Quicksilver Mining Company. I paid it out. A portion of it came from
the office at New Almaden, and a portion came from the New York office;
$3,000, I think, came from New York, and $2,000 from the office at the
mine. A little work was done, cutting down a bluff to the entrance of the
hacienda. It was done by the Quicksilver Mining Company and paid for by
it. Surveys were made and paid for by the mining company. Abstracts were
also secured, amounting to $225. The survey cost in the neighborhood of $500.
These bills were paid for by the mining company.”

Tatham also testified that, when the stock in the electric road com-
pany was issued to Nones, the latter said it was so issued in trust for
the Quicksilver Mining Company—a fact which the whole record
plainly shows. Indeed, in view of the facts disclosed by the record,
we think it idle to contend that the court below was in error in con-
cluding that the president of the plaintiff in error had at least implied
authority to employ the defendant in error to perform the services
for the value of which he sued and recovered. It is true that it ap-
pears that, about the time the defendant in error concluded his employ-
ment, he received in the office of the local attorney of the company

the following instrument:
“New Almaden, Cal., March 5, 1912.
“Q. P. Anderson, Esq., San Jose, Cal—Dear Sir: For services rendered and
to be rendered on the line of San Jose & Almaden R. R., I hereby agree to
pay you the sum of forty-five hundred ($4,500) dollars, payable on completion
of the road.
“Yours truly, Charles A. Nones.”

And it is also true that in at least one place in the testimony of
Nones he states that the defendant in error was employed, not for the
Quicksilver Mining Company, but by himself individually. That
statement of the witness is not only in conflict with other portions of
his testimony, but in positive conflict with his report to the directors
of the mining company respecting the building of the road, and in
obvious conflict with this sworn statement made by him respecting the
obligation so given to the defendant in error, made in his schedules
filed in his bankruptcy proceedings, which subsequently occurred :

“Names of creditors: C. P. Anderson.

fResidences: San Jose, California.

“YWhen and where contracted: San Jose, California, January, 1911.

«Nature and counsideration of debt and whether any judgment, bond, bill
of exchange, promissory note, etc.,, and whether contract as partner or joint
‘contractor with any other person; and, if so, with whom ; guarantee of pay-
ment for work done for Quicksilver Mining Company.

“Amount: $4,500.”
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[1,2] It is nowhere pretended that Nones had any personal busi-
ness anywhere in Santa Clara county. His sole business there, so far
as appears, was as the representative and head of the mining company ;
his employment of the defendant in error in connection with the in-
crease of the waters appertaining to the company’s lands and the in-
crease of power therefrom was plainly for and in the interest of the
company which placed him in charge of the property; and so in re-
spect to the employment of the defendant in error for the procuring
of rights of way, franchises, and subscriptions for the proposed elec-
tric road, designed, as the president of the company expressly inform-
ed its board of directors, to reduce the expenses of the company in
the matter of hauling its ores and supplies, and at the same time to
earn for it money out of passenger traffic. *Whether or not the con-
struction of the road for such purposes was beyond the powers con-
ferred upon the mining company is a question that does not arise in
this case. * As a matter of fact, as shown by the record, the road was

"not built, and the plaintiff in error proceeded no further than the or-
ganization of a corporation looking to its comstruction, and the pay-
ment of all the costs and expenses of the undertaking, so far as appears,
except the fair worth of the services rendered in that behalf by the
defendant in error under the employment of its president, in the cir-
cumstances that have been stated.

We see no merit whatever in any of the contentions of the plaintiff
in error, and accordingly the judgment is affirmed,

GILL v. WATERHOUSE,
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. August 20, 1917.)
No. 2903.

1. GUARANTY &91—PAYMENT OF GUARANTEED ACCOUNT—EVIDENCE.

Evidence held to show that plaintiff did not buy a guaranteed account
but, at the request of one of the guarantors, paid it. i

2. GUARANTY &=04, 60—PAYMENT OF GUARANTEED ACCOUNT—EFFECT.

A guaranteed account being not bought but paid by plaintiff at request

of one of the guarantors, it and the guaranty are thereby satisfied.
3. GUARANTY &=64, 65—PAYMENT OF ACCOUNT—REVIVAL,

A guaranteed account, with the guaranty satisfied by payment thereof
by plaintiff at request of one of the guarantors, is not revived by subse-
quent assignment thereof to him.

4. TRiAL &=139(1)—TaKiNG CASE FROM JURY-—INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE.

A case is properly taken from the jury and dismissed where the evi-
dence. conceding all the inferences which the jury can Justitiably draw
from it, is insuflicient to warrant a verdict.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Northern
Division of the Western District of Washington; Jeremiah Neterer,
Judge. ‘

- Action by John Gill, for whom has been substituted Maurice Mc-
Micken, his administrator with the will annexed, against Frank Water-

@=For other cates see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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house. There was a judgment of dismissal, and plaintiff brings error.
Affirmed.

It appears by the complaint herein that the Commercial Bank of Scotland,
Limited, with its principal place of business at Edinburgh, Scotland, agreed
to make to Frank Waterhouse, Limited, a corporation doing business in Lon-
don, certain further advances upon being guaranteed by the defendant Frank
Waterhouse the payment of such advances as had theretofore been made, as
well as such as should thereafter be made, not to exceed £21,000, and that
thereupon the defendant executed the following guaranty:

“To The Commercial Bank of Scotland, Limited. I, Frank Waterhouse,
Tacoma, Washington, United States, America, bereby guarantee you pay-
ment of all sums for which Frank Waterhouse, Limited, of one hundred and
forty-seven Cannon street, London, whether on an accéunt or accounts kept in
their name in your books and operated on for them by checks or drafts
signed by two of their directors and their secretary, all for the time, or on
bills, promissory notes or other obligations, are or may be liable to you, but
the amount for which I shall be liable under this guaranty shall not ex-
ceed twenty-one thousand pounds sterling with interest from the date or
dates at which the said Frank Waterhouse, Limited, have become or shall
become indebted to you; and I declare (1) that you shall be entitled to re--
quire from me whenever you think fit, a payment or payments to account of
my liability; (2) that you may grant to the said Frank Waterhouse, Limited,
or to the obligants in any bills of exchange or promissory notes, or other
writings received by you from them, or in which they may be liable to you,
time or other indulgence, and compound with them or such obligants, and
may give up any securities which you now have or may hereafter have
belonging to the said Frank Waterhouse, Limited, or to others, all without
consulting me, and without affecting my obligation to you; (3) that I shall
not be entitled to rank on the estate of the said Frank Waterhouse, Limited,
in respect to any payment or payments to account as aforesaid, nor to have
the benefit of any securities such as aforesaid until your whole t¢laims
against them are satisfied; and (4) that this guaranty is a continuing obliga-
tion and can be recalled by me only by writing and shall remain in force
notwithstanding my death until recalled in writing, and shall apply to aH
sums for which the said Frank Waterhouse, Limited, shall become indebted
to you prior to such recall.”

It then further appears that the bank advanced large sums to Frank Water-
house, Limited, and, that concern having failed to repay the same, that de-
mand was made upon the defendant, on October 31, 1906, for payment under
his guaranty, which was refused, and that the bank, prior to the commence-
ment of this action, assigned the demand to plaintiff’s testator.

The defendant pleads payment of the demand prior to any assignment of
the letter of guaranty, and avers that, at the time of the execution and de-
livery thereof, other letters of guaranty of like import were executed, for the
same purpose and to secure the same indebtedness, and delivered to the
bank, all of which letters, including that of the defendant, were accepted
by the bank; and that the bank, subsequent thereto, released all the other
guarantors from liability.

At the close of plaintiff’s testimony the defendant moved for a dismissal of
the cause on the ground that the testimony adduced was insufficient to war-
rant a verdict in favor of plaintifi,. The motion was allowed, and judgment
rendered accordingly.

Otto B. Rupp and Hughes, McMicken, Dovell & Ramsey, all of
Seattle, Wash., for plaintiff in error.

Harold Preston, Bogle, Graves, Merritt & Bogle, and O. B. Thor-
grimson, all of Seattle, Wash., for defendant in error.

Before GILBERT and HUNT, Circuit Judges, and WOLVER-
TON, District Judge.
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WOLVERTON, District Judge. This brings into the record the
sole question of the sufficiency of the testimony to justify the sending
of the case to the jury.

The first question presented is whether it was essential that notice
should have been given to the defendant by the Commercial Bank of
Scotland of the bank’s acceptance of the guaranty; no such notice hav-
ing been proven. This we will waive, as we deem the testimony in-
sufficient to show that the plaintiff is the owner of the demand of the
bank against Frank Waterhouse, Limited, or any part of it, together
with the guaranty of the defendant, or is in a position to enforce the
guaranty. The testimony having any relation whatever to the subject
is brief, and may be noted shortly.

“John Gill, the plaintiff’s testator, at the request of Alexander Mc-
Nab, one of the persons who executed and delivered to the bank guar-
anties like that of the defendant, and at the same time paid to the bank,
on February 15, 1907, the amount guaranteed. At that time no assign-
ment was made by the bank to Gill, either of its demand against Frank
Waterhouse, Limited, or of the guaranty, nor does it appear what
agreement was made between the bank and Gill respecting the transac-
tion of payment of the bank’s demand by Gill. James Gill, a grand-
nephew of John Gill, produced what he termed an assignment of the
letter of guaranty by the bank to John Gill, which bears date October
8, 1907, and includes as well the claim of the bank against Frank
Waterhouse under the guaranty. On cross-examination the witness
says:

“I have no direct personal knowledge of the initiation of the transaction
between the late John Gill and the Commercial Bank of Scotland, Limited,
but my understanding is that the bank were desirous that the debt due by
Frank Waterhouse, Limited, should be repaid, and that Mr. Alexander McNab,
who was one of the guarantors and who was not, I understand, in a position
to meet the guaranty if it were enforced against him, approached the late
John Gill as a' friend, and asked him to take over the debt; that the late
John Gill agreed to do so, and paid off the debt, which amounted to £22,897.
16. 5, and obtained the assignation before mentioned by the Commercial Bank
of Scotland, Limited, in favor of himself as an individual. in consideration
of said payment by him to the bank, and that the payment was made by
check or checks by the late John Gill. I have not been able to find the
check or checks among the late John Gill's papers.”

Later the witness says:

«I have found among the trust papers certain documents relating to the
assignation by the bank and to the present suit, but these did not contain
any record of any transaction with Mr. McNab in relation thereto. * * *
I have no knowledge of any agreement, written or verbal, between the late
John Gill and Alexander McNab or any other person of the nature referred to
in this interrogatory,” namely (quoting from the interrogatory), “whereby
said McNab was entitled to or obligated to repay to John Gill any moneys
advanced or paid by John Gill to the Commercial Bank of Scotland, Limited,
on this transaction, or under which Alexander McNab was or is entitled to
share in the proceeds of this suit, or of any collection made from said
letter of guaranty of said Frank Waterhouse, defendant, or to repay to or
indemnify John Gill against any losses he might sustain by reason of any
moneys he paid or advanced to the Commercial Bank of Scotland, Limited, on
said letter of guaranty, or in the purchase thereof?”
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']a’mes Lawson Anderson, secretary of the Commercial Bank of
Scotland, Limited, testifies:

“The amount due to the bank by Frank Waterhouse, Limited, on the said
accounts was paid to the bank by John Gill, solicitor Supreme Courts, Edin-
burgh, and the bank granted an assignation in his favor of the amount so
paid and of the guaranty by Frank Waterhouse in favor of the bank. The
assignation was granted on 8th October, 1907. * * * The bank also held
letters of guaranty by Alexander McNab, John McNab, R. B. Archibaldg,
Marshall McEwen & Co.,, and the partners thereof, and John M. Mitchell,
These guaranties have not been assigned or transferred by this bank, but
on payment being made by John Gill they were sent to him. John McNap
isdead. * * * The payment of £22,897. 16. 5 was made to the bank by the
said John Gill in exchange for the assignation in his favor. The payment
was made by a check of his own, I understand. I have not the particulars
of the check. * * * T did not participate in the negotiations leading up
to the execution of the assignation to the said John Gill, and have no
knowledge of any understanding, agreement, or contract, written or verbal,
between the defendant, John Gill, and Alexander McNab, or between John
Gill and Alexander McNab. There was no understanding, agreement, ar
contract, written or verbal, In regard to this matter between the bank and
Alexander McNab. * * * I do not know what interest John Gill had in
paying up the advance and taking an assignation of the said guaranty. He
did not ask for an assignation of the other guaranties, so far as I am aware.”

William McEwen testifies:

“Subsequently I wrote to the Commercial Bank of Scotland, Limited, intimat-
ing my appointment and asking them to send me a certified statement of "
their claims in the liquidation. They informed me that the company’s in-
debtedness to them has been settled by Mr. John Gill, 8. 8. C., Edinburgh, and
that they had assigned their claim to him. Mr. Gill subsequently rendered
his claim to me as liquidator of the company (Frank Waterhouse, Limited),
and I admitted the claim. I have paid to the said John Gill, and after his
death to his executors, dividends in respect of Mr. Gill’'s claim in the liqui-
dation. The sums which I have paid to him and them to date amount to
£2924. 17, 4.”

William Bamford Lang, an assistant agent in the Commercial Bank
of Scotland, Limited, testifies:

“I had no negotiation with any party regarding the assigndtion of the claim
by the bank. This was all arranged by the head office in Edinburgh, and at

the time I was in the London office. The advances were repaid by the late
Mr. John Gill, S. S. C., Edinburgh.”

The foregoing excerpts from the testimony contain all there is in
the record which has any material bearing upon the transaction between
Gill and the bank in making payment of the Frank Waterhouse, Lim-
ited, indebtedness. It may be stated further, however, that the record
does show that Alexander McNab, Frank Waterhouse, and John M.
Mitchell were original shareholders in Frank Waterhouse, Limited, and
that John Marshall, John McNab, and Bruce Archibald became share-
holders on March 31, 1898. It further appears that on October 6, 1900,
Frank Waterhouse and Frank Waterhouse, Limited, entered into an
agreement whereby Waterhouse agreed to form an American company,
and that said company should purchase the assets of Frank Waterhouse,
Limited, subject to charges affecting the same, and should pay therefor
$230,000, and, in addition to the price to be paid, that the American
company should assume and pay all the indebtedness of Frank Water-
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house, Limited, in the state of Washington, the said Frank Water-
house, Limited, agreeing to discharge all of its London indebtedness
with the purchase money, except to Trinder, Anderson & Co., Lon-
don. The articles of incorporation of Frank Waterhouse & Co. are
also in evidence, showing a compliance, to that extent at least, by Wa-
terhouse with his agreement.

The primary debt was the obligation of Frank Waterhouse, Limited,
to the bank. Woaterhouse’s guaranty stood as a surety for that debt in
the amount named in the guaranty. When John Gill paid the money
at the bank, he paid the indebtedness of Frank Waterhouse, Limited.
This, the evidence indicates, he did at the request of Alexander McNab.
McNab was held to the bank under a like guaranty as Frank Water-
house. 'This implies an agreement on the part of McNab to repay
Gill. But what of any agreement between Gill and the bank? The
assignation, it is true, shows a very specific agreement; but that paper
was executed nearly eight months after the transaction of payment
took place. James Gill relates that Alexander McNab approached Gill
and asked him “to take over the debt,” and that Gill “agreed to do so.”
The witness, however, frankly stated in the beginning that he had no
personal knowledge of the initiation of the transaction between Gill
and the bank. Further than this, he does not give the source of his
understanding, who told him, nor how he came by it. So that his tes-
timony on the subject stands as the sheerest kind of hearsay. Ander-
son, the secretary of the bank, says: “The payment of £22,897. 16. 5
was made to the bank by the said John Gill in exchange for the as-
signation in his favor.” He says further, however, that he did not par-
ticipate in the negotiations leading up to the execution of the assigna-
tion to Gill. It is quite apparent that what he said about the “exchange
for the assignation” was from the paper itself, ardd not from any per-
sonal knowledge of the initial or subsequent transaction in paying the
money or taking the assignation. So his testimony is worthy of no
greater weight than that of James Gill. What the witnesses say, there-
fore, proves nothing as to any agreement entered into by Gill with
the bank at the time of payment.

We might assume that an inference is deducible that the assigna-
tion correctly recites the agreement as actually entered into at the
time of payment from the fact that it was subsequently executed and
delivered, but the counter inferences are so strong as to repel that as-
sumption. Gill was himself a solicitor of long standing, and must
have understood well the legal effect of what he did. The bank was
undoubtedly well versed respecting banking methods and the legal
formalities necessary for transferring title to a claim or demand. Fur-
thermore, the request of McNab shows that what Gill did was for his
accommodation. The bank made no assignment to Gill of McNab’s
guaranty; nor did it of the guaranty of any of the other persons who
stood in the same relation to the bank, as it respects the Waterhouse,
Limited, account, as did Frank Waterhouse. It is scarcely probable
that a person of Gill's learning, sagacity, and experience in legal af-
fairs would have purchased a demand of the kind of the bank, with-
out taking with it all the securities for its payment that the bank held.
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This he would have done at once when the money was paid. Further-
more, no agent or employé of the bank has been called to testify con-
cerning the initial agreement; nor have the persons who executed the
assignation for the bank, nor the witnesses thereto. Beyond even this,
the agreement between Frank Waterhouse and Frank Waterhouse,
Limited, in which company McNab was interested as a stockholder,
has some bearing. By that agreement, the London indebtednéss was
to be taken care of, to the relief of the defendant. McNab was un-
doubtedly cognizant of this, and hence the direct inducement on his
part to request Gill to pay the Frank Waterhouse, Limited, demand
at the bank.

[1-3] In the light of all the circumstances and conditions attending
the transactions, there can scarcely remain two opinions relative to
whether Gill purchased the account of Frank Waterhouse, Limited,
or so much of it as the Frank Waterhouse guaranty would pay, from
the bank, or simply made payment to that amount upon the account.
The most natural thing for men of business affairs to have done, if
it were a purchase of the account, was to take an assignment of it
at once, together with all the guaranties, and if it were not a purchase,
simply to do as they did, pay the money, and let.it be applied on the ac-
count, as was done. When, therefore, the money was paid, the account
was satisfied to the extent of the payment, and a subsequent assign-
ment by the bank could not revive it; and, of course, the account being
satisfied, the guaranty was satisfied also, and Gill has his recourse only
against McNab, at whose request he made the payment. The conclu-
ston thus reached is borne aut by the following analogous cases: Lee
v. Field, 9 N. M. 435, 54 Pac. 873 ; Penwell v. Flickinger, 46 Mont. 526,
129 Pac. 323; Moran v. Abbey, 63 Cal. 56; Day v. Humphrey et al.,
79 111. 452.

[4] But it is urged that the court should have submitted the case to
the jury. If the court is satisfied, conceding all the inferences which
the jury can justifiably draw from the testimony, that the evidence is
insufficient to warrant a verdict, it is the duty of the court to withhold
the case from them. Sloss Iron & Steel Co. v. South Carolina & G. R.
Co., 85 Fed. 133, 29 C. C. A. 50.

The proposition has been stated in another way: That where the
evidence as to material facts is contradictory, or where the facts are
admitted or undisputed and are such that reasonable men can fairly
draw opposite conclusions from them, the question is for the jury;
but where there is no dispute about the facts, and they are such that
but one conclusion can be fairly drawn from them by reasonable men,
then the question is not for the jury. Northwestern Fuel Co. v. Daniel-
son, 57 Fed. 915, 6 C. C. A. 636.

But the most common way of stating the proposition is that adopted
by the Court of Appeals in this circuit, namely, that “the trial court
may.direct a verdict in any case where the evidence is of such conclu-
sive character that the court, in the exercise of a sound judicial discre-
tion, would be compelled to set aside a verdict returned in opposition
to it.” Shoup v. Marks, 128 Fed: 32, 62 C. C. A. 540. See, also, Pat-
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ton v. Texas & Pacific Railway Co., 179 U. S. 658, 21 Sup. Ct. 275, 45
L. Ed. 361.

We think that, applying the rule under either statement, the trial
court properly refused to submit the cause to the jury, and was right
in directing a dismissal.

Exception was taken to the allowance of objections to the introduc-
tion of certain testimony on the ground that it was hearsay. This
testimony is in line with certain of that upon which we have com-
mented. In the view we have taken, it can have no practical effect
whether the testimony objected to is in or out. The result must be
the same in either event. It only emphasizes the state of mind of the
trial court upon the subject, in which we concur. If it be conceded
that there was error in rejecting the testimony, it was, in the light of
the record, harmless.

Another assignment of error relates to the introduction of the
agreement between Frank Waterhouse and Frank Waterhouse, Lim-
ited, touching the formation of the American company. This docu-
ment was attached to cross-interrogatory No. 5 propounded to the
witness McEwen, and was marked as an exhibit thereto, and went in
as such. Although objection was made to the introduction of the
paper, there was no ruling by the court, and no exceptions were
saved.

The next assignments of error insisted upon relate to the rejection
of a copy of the accounts between Frank Waterhouse, Limited, and
the bank. Again, under the view which we have taken of the case,
these accounts are rendered wholly immaterial; and, if error was com-
mitted in rejecting them, it was harmless,

Judgment affirmed.

KNUDSEN et al. v. FIRST TRUST & SAVINGS BANK et al
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit., August 20, 1917.)
No. 2878.

1., CoURrTS €&=493(1)—JURISDICTION—CONCURRENT JURISDICTION.

Where the controversy is the same in actions pending in courts of con-
current jurisdiction and the parties are the same, ordinarily that court
first acquiring jurisdiction will retain it to the exclusion of the other,
though possession of the res is not taken through a receiver or otherwise.

2. CoURTs €&==493(3)—JURISDICTION—FEDERAL COURTS.

Pendency of an action in a state court is no bar to proceedings con

cerning the same matter in a federal court having jurisdiction.
8. Courts &=493(3)—JURISDICTION—FEDERAL COURT.

Appellants, who purchased land from an irrigation company, filed in
the state court an action wherein it was alleged that the irrigation com-
pany was the owner of large quantities of land; that as an inducement
to purchasers it represented to appellants and others that an irrigation
system was to be formed; that water would be supplied and the rights
maintained in perpetuity for an annual payment; that it collected the
payment, but had not been paying the water charge for a large acreage;
that it dissipated the funds arising from such payment, so that there
was an immediate demand for the expenditure of a large sum of money

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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for the restoration of the system; and that therefore appellants and oth-
er purchasers hadé a first and prior lien on all of the assets of the com-
pany. Subsequently the company filed a voluntary petition in bankrupt-
¢y, and a trustee was appointed. Thereafter respondents filed a bill in
the federal court to foreclose a trust deed given by the irrigation company,
and a receiver was appointed. Held, that as the federal court first acquir-
ed possession of the irrigation company’s property, it would, even though
the state court had co-ordinate jurisdiction and appellants’ suit therein
was the first filed, retain jurisdiction.
4. CourTs &=493(3)—J URISDICTION—FEDERAL COURT.

As the issues in the two suits were different, that one in the federal
court being the foreclosure of a trust deed, while the one in the state
court was evidently designed for the maintenance of the irrigation com-
pany as a going concern and to require some sort of a readjustment so
that purchasers of land might reap the benefits of their purchase, the fed-
eral court will retain jurisdiction, despite the prior institution of pro-
ceedings in the state court.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the Dis-
trict of Montana; Geo. M. Bourquin, Judge.

Suit by the First Trust & Savings Bank and another, trustees,
against the Bitter Root Valley Irrigation Company and Hans B. Knud-
sen and another. From an order sustaining plaintiffs’ motion to strike
a defense (237 Fed. 733), the last-named defendants appeal. Af-
firmed.

The appellees, who were the complainants below, on April 8, 1916, instituted
a suit to foreclose a trust deed given by the Bitter Root Valley Irrigation
Company upon its property, both then held and subsequently to be acquired,
to secure the payment of a large amount of bonds.
The defendants and appellants here, Hans B. Knudsen and Caroline Knud-
- sen, appearing made answer to the bill, in effect, that on June 24, 1915, they
commenced an action in the District Court for the Fourth Judicial District
of the state of Montana, county of Ravalli, against the Bitter Root Valley
Irrigation Company, the First Trust and Savings Bank, and other pérsons
and corporations interested in the affairs and property of the irrigation com-
pany, wherein it was alleged in effect that the irrigation company was the
owner of large quantities of real property; that it had assumed the construec-
tion and operation of an irrigation distriet, comprising such real property;
that as an inducement to purchase such lands from the company it had repre-
sented to plaintiffs therein and others that an irrigation system of 40,000
acres was to be formed, and that water therefor would be supplied and the
rights therein maintained in perpetuity for the sum of $1.25 per acre, payable
annually ; and that, to the accomplishment of that end, it proposed to assess
the irrigable lands the sum of $1.25 per acre, the money to be so realized to be
used only for the upkeep of the system; and wherein it was further alleged
that the irrigdtion company hiad contracted for the sale of 22,000 acres of said
lands to a large number of persons and had been collecting from such purchas-
ers for a number of years $1.25 per acre, but had not been paying the water
charge for a large acreage that the company itself had been using and culti-
vating, nor had it been paying the water charge as it pertained to the unsold
lands; that the said irrigation company had squandered and dissipated the
funds arising from the $1.25 assessment, had failed to acquire water rights
sufficient for the performance of its covenants to the purchasers, and had fail-
ed to maintain the system in proper condition for the service contemplated,
and that, by reason thereof, there was an immediate demand for the expendi-
ture of large sums of money for the restoration of the system, and for com-
pleting the same as originally contemplated by the scheme; that it was further
alleged in said action that the irrigation company was insolvent, and unable to
pay its obligations or to make needed repairs, or to complete the system, or to
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replenish the wasted and squandered funds, “which constituted a trust fund
for the maintenance and upkeep of said system’; that it did not intend to car-
ry out or perform further any of its covenants and obligations; that the plain-
tiff in said action, and others similarly situated, “had by virtue of the premises
and by operation of law and equity a first and prior lien and claim upon all of
the assets of every kind, character, and description of the Bitter Root Valley
Irrigation Company,” and that the lien created by the deed of trust of the
bank and Boisot, trustee, is inferior in point of time and right to the lien
claimed by the plaintiffs in said action; that it was alleged that it was neces-
sary that said irrigation system be completed as contemplated, and that, to
that end and to secure the enforcement of the lien claimed by the plaintiffs
thereon, it was requisite that a receiver of the properties and assets of the
company be appointed, and that receiver’s certificates be issued, and that the
assets of the company be marshaled and placed in the custody of the court for
the purpose of completing the irrigation system. And it was further alleged
by the answer that it appears from the complaint filed in that action that “it
is probable or possible that at some stage of the litigation therein the appoint-
ment of a receiver will be necessary to accomplish the execution of the judg-
ment and decree of said state court, and that the receiver so to be appointed
must be one of the selection of said state court and subject alone to its juris-
diction:” that on January 8, 1916, the irrigation company filed its voluntary
petltlon in bankruptcy, and on February 23 F. C. Webster was appointed
trustee.

This same trustee in bankruptcy was appointed receiver hy the District
Court of the United States on the filing of the bill to foreclose complainants’
deed of trust. The possession of the property went into the hands of the
trustee, and is now held by the receiver.

The prayer of the answer was that the federal court proceed no further, but
permit the suit pending therein to remain in statu quo, or that it proceed so
far only as to determine the rights of the complainants against the irrigation
company, but not with reference to any of the claimed rights of the answering
defendants, and that the trustee in bankruptcy be required to enter an ap-
pearance in the suit in the state court.

A motion was interposed to strike the affirmative answer. This was allow-
ed, and the defendants appeal.

R. F. Gaines, of Butte, Mont., D. S. Wegg, of Chicago, Ill., and
Geo. T. Baggs, of Stevensville, Mont., for appellants.
" Winston, Payne, Strawn & Shaw, of Chicago, Ill., and Henry C.
Stiff, of Missoula, Mont. (Silas H. Strawn, Garrard B. Winston, and
R. S. Tuthill, Jr., all of Chicago, Ill., of counsel), for appellees.

Before GILBERT and HUNT, Circuit Judges, and WOLVER-
TON, District Judge.

WOLVERTON, District Judge (after stating the facts as above).
The central question presented by this appeal is whether, by the rules
of law relating to conflicting jurisdiction of courts or by reason of the
comity existing between the federal and state courts, the District
Court of the United States ought to entertain and maintain jurisdic-
tion through its receiver of the res, which is the property subject to the
trust deed of complainants.

[1] Where the controversy is the same in actions pending in courts
of concurrent jurisdiction, andsthe parties are the same, the general
rule, supported by the weight of authority, seems to be that the court
first acquiring jurisdiction of the controversy will retain it to the
exclusion of the other, though possession of the res be not taken,.
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through a receiver or otherwise. In re Lasserot, 240 Fed. 325, — C.
C. A. —; Gluck & Becker on Receivers, 67, 68 (2d Ed. 89, 91),
cited in Empire Trust Co. v. Brooks, 232 Fed. 641, 646, 146 C. C.
A. 567.

[2] Nevertheless it is true that the pendency of an action in a state
court is no bar to proceedings concerning the same matter in a federal
court having jurisdiction. McClellan v. Carland, 217 U. S. 268, 30
Sup. Ct. 501, 54 L. Ed. 762.

[3] The possession of the res vests the court which has first ac-
quired jurisdiction with the power to hear and determine all contro-
versies relating thereto, and this to the exclusion of other courts of
co-ordinate jurisdiction assuming to exercise like power. Farmers’
Loan, etc., Co. v. Lake St. Rd. Co., 177 U. S. 51, 20 Sup. Ct. 564, 44
L. Ed. 667; Palmer v. Texas, 212 U. S. 118, 29 Sup. Ct. 230, 53 L.
Ed. 435.

“Nor,” says the court in the Farmers’ Loan Company Case, supra, “is this
rule restricted in its application to cases where property has been actually
seized under judicial process before a second suit is instituted in another
court, but it often applies as well where suits are brought to enforce liens
against specific property, to marshal assets, administer trusts, or liquidate
insolvent estates, and in suits of a similar nature where, in the progress of
the litigation, the court may be compelled to assume the possession and con-
trol of the property to be affected. The rule has been declared to be of es-
pecial importance in its application to federal and state courts.”

In this case the Farmers’ Loan & Trust Company commenced its
suit to foreclose in the federal court, on January 30, 1896, at 10:35
a. m. On the same day, but shortly after the bill had been filed, the
Lake Street Elevated Railroad Company filed its bill to restrain and
enjoin the loan company from prosecuting any suit to foreclose, and a
writ of injunction was forthwith issued and served. It was held that
the federal court first obtained jurisdiction of the res by reason of the
filing of its bill, notwithstanding the injunction in the state court was
first issued and served, the court saying: '

“The bill filed in the federal court looked to the enforcement of the trusts
declared in the mortgage, the control of the railroad through a receiver, the
sale of the railroad, and the final distribution of the assets of the company.”

The Palmer Case was a proceeding in the state court of Texas to
forfeit a permit of the oil company to do business in that state. The
receiver had been appointed and qualified, and process served, al-
though he had not taken actual possession of the property, and it was
held that the state court had acquired constructive possession of the
res as against the propriety of the federal court assuming possession
through a receiver appointed by it.

These cases are illustrative of the application of the doctrine stated
in the above-quoted paragraph.

A case also quite apposite for illustration of the principle is Mc-
Kinney v. Landon, 209 Fed. 300, 126 C. C. A. 226. The state of Kan-
sas, through its Attorney General, ifistituted quo warranto proceed-
ings against a group of gas companies, with prayer for ouster and the
appointment of receivers to take charge of the property and business.
The cause was tried in the state court, and taken under advisement.
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While it was in this condition suits were instituted in the federal court,
one alleging insolvency and praying appointment of a receiver, and the
other to foreclose, and a receiver was accordingly appointed before
any was appointed by the state court. The j urisdiction of the federal
court of the res was denied, the court saying:

“That actual seizure or possession is not essential, but that jurisdiction
may be acquired by acts which according to established procedure, stand for
dominion and in effect subject the property to judicial control.”

[4] There is another principle enunciated by the courts and text-
writers, namely, that where the controversy is not the same, that is,
where the issues in one suit are different from those involved in an-
other, and the subject-matter is not identical, there can be no infringe-
ment of jurisdiction as between the courts maintaining cognizance of
the cases. This, it is maintained, rests on the ground that in such a
case there is no conflict of jurisdiction as to the question or cause. In
such cases, the first acquisition of the possession of the res dominates
the authority to retain the same. Empire Trust Co. v. Brooks, 232
Fed. 641, 146 C. C. A. 567 ; Compton v. Jesup, 68 Fed. 263, 283,15 C.
C. A. 397; De La Vergne Refrig. Mach. Co. v. Palmetto Brewing Co.
(C. C.) 72 Fed. 579; Gluck & Becker on Receivers, supra. The appli-
cation of the principle is very well enunciated by Simonton, Circuit
Judge, in Machinery Co. v. Brewing Co., supra, as follows:

“In view, therefore, of the fact that the controversy in the suit in this court
is entirely distinet from that in the state court, and that the scope and pur-
pose of the proceedings in the state court are not those of the proceedings in

" this court, connected with the fact that the receiver heretofore appointed in
the main cause is in actual, peaceable possession of the property, and that the
complainant holds a legal lien on the property, entitling it to its possession
through a receiver, the mortgagor being insolvent, and that this court has
been asked by it not to exercise an act of discretion, but to give effect to a

right secured to it by the Constitution and laws of the United States, the
prayer of the petition cannot be granted; and it is so ordered.”

These principles, in either aspect, we think determine the case
against appellants. That the controversies involved by the two suits
are not the same is perfectly manifest. It is a little difficult to say just
what the purpose of the suit in the state court was. It is manifestly
not a suit to wind out the business of the concern, dispose of its as-
sets, and distribute its proceeds among those entitled thereto. On
the other hand, it was evidently designed that the irrigation company
should be maintained as a going concern, and that the system which
it had promoted should be repaired and completed. It is shown that
the company had squandered its funds, which are denominated trust
funds, to which the purchasers were entitled for the repair, mainte-
nance, and upkeep of the system, and in this connection it is alleged
that the plaintiffs in said action and others similarly situated “‘had by
virtue of the premises and by operation of law and equity a first and
prior lien and claim upon all of the assets of every kind, character,
and description” of the irrigation company, and that the lien of the
trust deed of the complainants in the foreclosure suit was inferior
in rank to theirs. But there is not a semblance of a purpose shown
to enforce such purchasers’ liens as such. At most, the suit could be
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construed only as one for the rehabilitation and reorganization of the
irrigation company, and the readjustment of its affairs in that way
so that the purchasers might reap the benefits of their purchases in pur-
suance of the original scheme for promoting and maintaining the irri-
gation system.

Now, it cannot be said that the suit in the state court is either an
action in rem, suited to a disposal of the irrigation company’s prop-
erty, or one to enforce a lien, with the subjection of its property to
the satisfaction thereof. Nor is it a suit to marshal assets for distri-
bution among those entitled thereto, for such a thing was not contem-
plated. The only apparent object was that the affairs of the com-
pany might be administered for the time being under the supervision
of the court for accomplishing the purposes of rehabilitation and re-
organization. It is not such a suit that the full accomplishment of
its purposes requires dominion and control over the res; so that, wheth-
er we apply the one principle or the other above ascertained, the trial
court was right in maintaining possession of the res under its receiver-
ship.

We have not made mention of the bankruptcy matter, because it does
not affect the result. The fact that a trustee in bankruptcy had been
appointed and had taken possession of the res does not aid the com-
plainants’ possession in the foreclosure suit. It is only because the
receiver in the federal court first obtained possession of the res that
the court is entitled to maintain its jurisdiction respecting the same.

Affirmed.

GREAT NORTHERN RY. CO. v. REID.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. August 20, 1917. Rehearing Denied
October 8, 1917.)

No. 2896.

-1. RELEASE €&34—SCoPE—CONSTRUCTION.

A release for personal injuries resulting from an accident will not
cover personal Injuries not in contemplation of the parties and then un-
known to each, despite the greatest generality in language.

2, RELEASE &=57(2)—IMPEACHMENT—EVIDENCE.

Where claim for personal injuries is released on settlement, the release
cannot be impeached or set aside for fraud or mistake, except upon clear
and convincing proofs. :

3. RELEASE &=57(2)—EVIDENCE—SUFFICIENCY,

In a suit to set aside a release given for personal injuries, evidence held
to establish that, while there was no fraud in procuring the release, com-
plainant had incurred injuries which were unknown to either of the par-
ties, when the settlement was made, and hence to that extent to require
setting aside of the release.

4. RELEASE €=16—VACATION—PARTIAL IMPEACHMENT.

A release of personal injuries may be partially impeached, as where
the injured party suffered injuries which, at the time the release was
executed, were unknown to both,

5. RELEASE €=16—ANNULMENT—GROUNDS.

Where complainant, who was injured, did not know that he had incur-

red inguinal hernia, but thought that the only serious injury was to his

@==For other zases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes-
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foot, his refusal, when examined by a physician, to remove his coat and
exhibit a bruise on his arm and shoulder, does not estop him from im-
peaching. his release on the ground that it did not include a release of
claims for the hernia.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the North-
ern Division of the Eastern District of Washington; Frank H. Rud-
kin, Judge.

Suit by W. H. Reid against the Great Northern Railway Company.
From a decree for complainant, defendant appeals. Affirmed.

The appellee herein, who was complainant below, was, on and prior to May
10, 1915, in the employ of the appellant, the Great Northern Railway Company,
as a cook on one of its work trains. While the company was moving the car
on which appellee was working about the switch, it was derailed, and he was
thrown against the sink in the car. The top cover of the stove fell upon his
right foot, and, withal, he received certain physical injuries. To recover
damages for such injuries as he received, he instituted an action against the
company. The company by its answer pleaded a release of liability executed
by appellee. The release is in language following:

“Know all men by these presents, that in consideration of the sum of ten
and no/100 dollars to me in hand paid by the Great Northern Railway Com-
pany, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, have released, acquitted,

-and discharged, and do by these presents release, acquit, and discharge, said
railway company, its successors and assigns, of and from any and all liability,
causes of action, costs, charges, claims, or demands, of every name and
nature, in any manner arising or growing out of, or to arise or grow out of,
personal injuries received by me (W. J. Reld) at or near Geyser, in the state
of Montana, on or about the 10th day of May, 1915, while acting as a cook, 1
met with an accident whereby I sustained personal injuries, or arising, or
to arise, out of any and all personal injuries sustained by me at any time
or place while in the employ of said railway company prior to the date of
these presents. No promise of future employment has been made to me by
said railway company as part consideration of this settlement and release, or
otherwise.”

The back of the release contains an indorsement in appellee’s handwriting,
namely:

“] have red within Releas before signing and fully understand that the
sum of ten dollars is in full settlement of all claim of every kind.

“W, J. Reid.”

In addition, appellee signed a voucher which contained substantially this
provision:

“For and in consideration of any and all claims, past, present, and pro-
spective, against the Great Northern Railway Company, arising or to grow
out of personal injuries received by me at or near Geyser, Montana, on or
about May 10, 1915, $10.00.”

For the purpose of having the release canceled, this suit was instituted
against the company. Among other things, it is alleged, in effect, that ap-
pellee suffered the following injuries: A double inguinal hernia, a broken
arch of the right foot, a severe wrench of the back, a severe shock to the
nervous system, and, as resulting from such injuries, a semi-paralyzed con-
dition of both legs; that on the same day the claim agent of the company
took appellee to the office of its physician and surgeon, who, upon a cursory
examination of appellee, informed him that his injuries were slight, and
amounted to nothing more than a nervous shock and a slightly sprained ankle
and instep, that he would be entirely recovered in a day or two, and that the
claim agent would give him $10, representing two or three days’ work, and
would hold open his position for him; that appellee accepted the $10 from the
claim agent, for no other purpose than as pay for his time, and signed the
papers in question. It is further alleged that, at the time of signing the
papers, appellee was not aware that he had broken the arch of his right
foot, or had suffered double inguinal hernia, or any other injury which might
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cause any disability to his earning power, and that such or any injuries
were never taken into consideration by him at the time of signing the docu-
ments in question, nor by the claim agent of the company.

The appellee’s testimony is quite brief. He says:

“The trucks ran off the rails, and practically mashed the biggest part
of the dishes. The top of the stove fell across my foot, and it threw me up
bodily against the sink, which was near the side of the car, and it hurt me.
I got hurt on my foot, and I was shaken up completely, my nerves, nervous
shock, and I have been sick practically ever since. Worked a little off and
on. * * * They took me to the doctor’s office in an automobile; examined
my foot, bound it up, and told me I was badly shaken up, and said, ‘You wilt
be all right to work to-morrow, if necessary.’ Just examined my foot, that
was all. * * * And after the doctor examined me the claim agent took me
right up to his office. He asked me to sign some papers. I don’t know
what they was. I was too confused. I can’t remember one thing I signed,
or anything. Q. State what he said to you. A. Why, he said it was necessary
to send these back to St. Paul. That is what he said to me. Q. Did he
offer you any money? A. No; he said, ‘You better take $10 for to get some
liniment,’ and something like that—$10 to get some liniment to rub on my
feet. Q. Did he say anything to you about your working or anything? A.
Yes; he did; said I could just stay around town two days and go back to
work whenever I wanted to. I have stated everything that the doctor told
me about my condition then. * * * T believed the statements made to me
in regard to my condition by the doctor. * * * Q. When did you first
know, Mr. Reid, that you had a double hernia? A. I don’t know now. The
next day; I didn’t know what it was. I discovered something down there
where it hurt. I had a very small rupture before on the right side, about
the size of a marble. I had worn an elastic truss. Q. Had you ever been
bothered with it? A. Never; part of the time I would leave it in bed—
wouldn’t use it. When I went from Geyser to Great Falls, my foot was
swollen up, so it hurt me, and I cut my shoe right up there. It swelled up a
bit; bandaged it up. I went back to work that same day, because the doc-
tor told me there was nothing the matter with me.”

As to the writing, he says he just looked it over; that he could not read
very well, and just signed it as it was written, and that it was not read to
him. On cross-examination, he testified that he had had a hernia on the
right side for three years before the accident, and told how he came by it.
As to the hernia on the left side, he said it did not bother him much—it was
only, a small one.

Dr. Downs, who examined appellee on February 26, 1916, states that Reid
was suffering from a right and left inguinal hernia; was in a very nervous
condition, and very poorly nourished; had a slight swelling in the right
foot, which he found to be a flatfoot. The hernia on the right side was the
larger one; the one on the left not so large—about the size of a walnut.
The arch on his foot was flattened out and broken down. This condition
generally prevailed as to his left foot.

Dr. Longeway, the company’s physician, testified that he examined appellee
on the day of the accident; that appellee told him he had a bruise about the
shoulder and arm; that he examined his foot, and found that it was injured
and bruised, and the ankle slightly sprained—and continued as follows: “He
was walking on it; walked on it to the office. I asked him about his arm,
and he said that didn’t amount to anything. I asked him to take off his
coat, and he said that didn’t amount to anything; his injuries were not bad
and he wouldn’t take off his coat and let me examine it. He said that he
would be all right; he was just bruised about the right arm and shoulder.
Consequently he didn’t take off his coat, and I didn’t examine his arm. He
said it didn’t amount to anything and would be all right. I bandaged his
foot and told him to stay around two or three days and let me watch him.
‘No,” he said, ‘it is all right.' He wanted to get right back to work, and he
left my office, and that was the last I ever saw of him. His right foot then
was practically the same as it is now, except it was more swollen around
the ankle at that time than it is now. He had a pretty flat foot. * * =
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He didn’t at that time complain to me dbout any hernia, or any other
injury than these that I bave testified to. * * * 1 didn’t make any state-
ment to him that he could go right back to work; that his injuries were
slight. * * * I believed he would be all right in a few days.”

P. B. Foley, the claim agent, testified that, after appellee had been to the
doctor’s office, Burton brought him into his office, and then as follows: *I
asked him, ‘Did the doctor look you over? He said, ‘Yes. sir.’ I said, “‘What
did he tell you?” ‘He said my ankle was sprained a little; said he thought
it- would be all right in a little while, and advised me to stay around a few
days.” ‘Well,” I said, ‘I think you better do that.’ I said, ‘I think you better
stay around here a few days and have the doctor attend you.” He says: ‘No;
I am anxious to get back to the job. I will be all right; it is a little sprain;
I will be all right; I want to get back on the job. I says, ‘All right; suit
yourself.’ Then I said, ‘Well, what do you want us to do for you?” He hesi-
tated a little while, and he says: ‘I don’t know. I will only lose this day.’
Then I says, ‘Well, I would like to know what you want us to do for you in
settlement, that 18 in the line of settlement. He says. ‘Well, how will $10
do? ‘Well, I says, ‘if that is what you want,’ I says, ‘it is all right.’” The
release and other papers were then made out and signed. Burton corrobo-
rates this statement. "

Dr. H, P. Marshall, who made a recent examination, found appellee suffer-
ing from arteriosclerosis, double inguinal hernia, and double flatfoot.

Charles S. Albert and Thomas Balmer, both of Spokane, Wash,,
for appellant.

N. E. Nuzum and R. W. Nuzum, both of Spokane, Wash., Harold
N. Nuzum, of Los Angeles, Cal., and Arthur H. Steake, of Spokane,
Wash., for appellee.

Before GILBERT and HUNT, Circuit Judges, and WOLVER-
TON, District Judge.

WOLVERTON, District Judge. [1] The question presented for
decision is whether the release should be canceled for fraud or mis-
take. The release itself is as broad as it could be made, acquitting the
company of all liability arising on account of the injuries received
by appellee, whether then appearing or growing out of the same by
development in the future, or arising or to arise out of any and all per-
sonal injuries sustained at any time or place while in the employ of
the railway company prior to the date of the release. In such a release,
however, the general language will be held not to include a particular
injury, then unknown to both parties, of a character so serious as clear-
ly to indicate that, if it had been known, the release would not have
been signed. This was the conclusion reached in Lumley v. Wabash
R. Co. (C. C. A. 6th Circuit) 76 Fed. 66, 22 C. C. A. 60. See, also,
Tatman v. Philadclphia, B. & W. R. Co. (Del. Ch.) 85 Atl. 716.

.[2,3] From the testimony, it is perfectly apparent that there was
no fraud whatever attending the transaction of giving the release.
Considerable concern was manifested by the claim agent that .the af-
fair should be speedily closed, but the appellee suffered no disadvan-
tage by reason thereof. The appellee had come to Great Falls, a dis-
tance of 40 miles, of his own accord, with a view to getting relief of
some sort from the company for his injuries. Having met Burton,
he was taken to the office of the company’s physician, and, after ex-
amination, repaired to the claim agent’s office, where the release was
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soon signed. That he understood what he was signing, and the nature
and purpose thereof, can scarcely be gainsaid. It is evident that he
believed he was but slightly hurt, and was seemingly anxious to get
back to his work, and, so believing, he was willing to accept $10 and
acquit the company of further liability. :

Whether he knew and understood the full nature and extent of the
real injuries sustained is the vital question for consideration. The
proofs fall far short of substantiating the complaint as to the na-
ture and extent of his injuries, and at present, according to the med-
ical experts, his physical afflictions consist of arteriosclerosis, double
inguinal hernia, and double flatfoot. It is not at all probable that the
first of these conditions was superinduced by the accident. The evi-
dence does not, in any substantial way, indicate that such was the case.
The third, namely, double flatfoot, existed prior to the accident, and
was not caused thereby, while as to the right foot the condition may
have been, and probably was, somewhat aggravated. As to the her-
nia, he had been so afflicted upon the right side for the space of three
years, and thus far the accident has not contributed consequentially to
his ailment. The hernia upon his left side had not developed prior to
the accident. The first indication that he had of its existence was the
next day, when he says he “discovered something down there where
it hurt,” " Later, however, the trouble became well defined, and on Feb-
ruary 26, 1916, when he was examined by Dr. Downs, it was about
the size of a walnut. It further appears, however, that at the time of
the trial appellee’s body was poorly nourished, and that his general
health and physical condition were far from good. Such was not the
case to the same degree at the time of the accident, for he was doing his
work, with some inconvenience only in getting about on account of his
feet.

The rule unquestionably applies to settlements of the kind here in-
volved that they neither can nor ought to be impeached and set aside
for fraud or mistake, except upon clear and convincing proofs. Chi-
cago & N. W. Ry. Co. v. Wilcox, 116 Fed. 913, 54 C. C. A. 147. Has
the appellee met the exigency? For upon him was devolved the bur-
den of so impeaching the release.

As we have seen, no conceivable fraud has been established. That
appellee did receive a shock from being thrown against the sink, result-
ing in some distress to himself, can scarcely be questioned. At that
time he was not afflicted with an inguinal hernia on his left side. The
following day he experienced pain in that region of his person, and later
the hernia developed, so that it became well defined. That he was so
afflicted on February 26, 1916, is shown by Dr. Downs, who is corrob-
orated in this by Dr. Longeway and Dr. Marshall. So it appears rea-
sonably clear and certain that the development of this particular trouble
began at least about the time of the accident, and that he was then af-
flicted in a way that was not known to him, and which for that reason
was not disclosed to the physician, and consequently not taken into con-
sideration when he settled with the claim agent and gave the release.
We think that, under the authorities, there is here sufficient to impeach
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the settlement in so far as it relates to this phase of the controversy,
and to that extent the release should be set aside.

[4] We agree with the court below that it should not be disturbed
as it respects the injury to his foot. Lumley v. Wabash R. Co., supra,
is authority for the partial impeachment of the release. Upon the gen-
eral question of annulling such a release, see, further, Great Northern
Ry. Co. v. Fowler, 136 Fed. 118, 69 C. C. A. 106, where the author-
ities are aptly and clearly discussed and distinguished; also Tatman
v. Phil,, B. & W. R. Co,, supra.

[5] Another contention of appellant is that appellee is estopped from
urging the annulment of the release on the ground that he refused to
remove his clothing, so that the physican might examine his arm and
shoulder, which appellee seemed to think were injured somewhat. That
particular supposed injury, however, was not taken into account at the
time of the settlement, and no question is made of it in this proceed-
ing, and the incident is not of sufficient consequential importance to
base an estoppel upon it against inquiry as to the real injuries sus-
tained.

Decree affirmed.

AMERICAN PRESS ASS'N et al. v. UNfTED STATES et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit. August 25, 1917.)
Nos. 2509, 2510.

MONOPOLIES &12(1)—SELLING Lo0SING BUSINESS—SHERMAN LAWw.

A concern which is going out of business, because it cannot conduct it
without loss, may without violation of the Sherman Anti-Trust Law (Act
July 2, 1890, c. 647, 26 Stat. 209) sell its plant as a going councern to its
only competitor, there being no other prospective purchaser, instead of
disposing of it as junk; this not injuring the public, but being to its
advantage, as well as that of the seller; the buyer being required to con-
tinue fair dealing with the public

Appeals from the District Court of the United States for the North-
ern District of Illinois.

Suit by the United States against the American Press Association
and others. From decrees dismissing the petition and auxiliary bill
of the American Press Association, certain parties appeal. Reversed
in part, with direction, and in part dismissed. .

Charles E. Hughes, of New York City, for appellants.

Henry S. Mitchell, of Washington, D. C., for appellees.

Before BAKER and ALSCHULER, Circuit Judges, and HUMPH-
REY, District Judge.

BAKER, Circuit Judge. On August 3, 1912, the United States
began a suit against the American Press Association, a corporation,
the Western Newspaper Union, a corporation, and others, engaged in
furnishing country newspapers with stereotype plates and ready-
print service, to enjoin the continuance of acts alleged to be in viola-

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexea
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tion of the Sherman Anti-Trust Law. A consent decree was entered
the same day. Among other prohibitions, the Western Newspaper
Union was permanently enjoined:

“(a) From combining or attempting to combine with the American Press
Association, either by purchase, stock ownership, or in any other manner;
* t * (¢) from selling any of its product or services at less than a fair
and reasonable profit, or at cost, or less than cost, with the pupose or intent
of injuring or destroying the interstate trade and commerce of the American
Press Association or of any other competitors.”

On May 9, 1917, the American Press Association filed a petition in
the original suit, setting forth changes in condition, on account of
which it prayed for a modification of provision (a). To this petition
all the parties appeared, evidence was heard, and the court found:

“That the facts set forth in the petition and the evidence introduced to
support the same are Immaterial; that it is contrary to the whole spirit and
purpose of the Sherman Law to authorize one competitor to absorb another
competitor, regardless of whether such competitor is able to continue in busi-
ness or not; and that the sale of such assets and business by the American

Press Association to the Western Newspaper Union would be in violation of
the Sherman Law.”

And thereupon the court decreed that the petition be denied. Cause -
No. 2509 is an appeal from that decree.

Shortly after presenting the above-mentioned petition, the Ameri-
can Press Association filed an “auxiliary bill,” setting forth the same
facts and asking the same relief. Parties other than the United States
appeared and answered; and the United States filed a motion to dis-
miss, on the ground that it could not be sued by a private party without
its consent. Without passing on the motion, the court dismissed the bill,
for the same reasons on which the petition was denied. Cause No.
2510 is an appeal from the decree dismissing the auxiliary-bill.

Whether under. the stated circumstances the United States may be
sued, and whether the auxiliary bill was a proper method of invoking
relief, are questions that are now moot, we believe, because the identi-
cal controversy respecting facts and law, between the identical parties,
was fully heard and determined on the petition in the original suit.

Facts pleaded and proved, so far as necessary for a decision, are
briefly these: In 1912 the American Press Association had about 5
per cent. of the ready-print business. But it did not furnish adver-
tisements to-the country newspapers with its ready-print service,
whereas the Western Newspaper Union did. The result, down to Jan-
uary, 1917, was that the Western Newspaper Union could and did sup-
ply ready-print at lower rates than the American Press Association
could stand without loss; and the ready-print business of the latter
has fallen to less than 1 per cent. In 1912 the American Press Asso-
ciation had a large part of the stereotype plate business. But its
plate business had to bear substantially all the overhead expenses,
while the Western Newspaper Union’s ready-print service could carry
‘the overhead and leave its plate business as a profitable by-product.
In January, 1917, the Western Newspaper Union reduced its price on
miscellaneous plate matter by one-fourth and on serials by one-third.
On the American Press Association’s complaint that provision (c) of
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the injunction was being violated, the Department of Justice investigat-
ed and correctly found that there was no violation.

Since the outbreak of the world war there has been an increasing
scarcity of print paper, and mounting prices. Few new country news-
papers are being started; many have reduced their sizes; quite a num-
ber have quit. This condition brought the American Press Associa-
tion’s plate business to a loss of over $3,000 a month, which is pro-
gressively increasing, and has also made it impossible for that com-
pany to build a ready-print business to help bear the overhead. The
directors have decided to wind up the plate business as speedily as pos-
sible, whatever may be the outcome of this proceeding. They are
continuing it at a loss while the question is being determined whether
they must dispose of their plate plant as junk, or whether they may sell
it as a going concern to the Western Newspaper Union, for the latter is
the only probable bidder. No one now outside the business would be
likely to buy a demonstrated loss.” But to the Western Newspaper
Union the plant may have more than junk value. If the plant is
broken up, the newspapers now being served thereby may have to go
to the Western Newspaper Union as the only concern left in the
business; and it might be more economical for that company to buy
an existing plant than to enlarge its own or build a new one. At
the same time it is evident that, if the plant is disintegrated, the news-
papers now looking to it would suffer inconvenience and loss while
arranging to obtain other service.

What is the application of the Sherman Law to these facts? Not
every joinder of competing businesses or acquisition of instrumentali-
ties that have been used in competition is an undue restraint of trade
or.a creation of a monopoly. Each situation must be measured by
the rule of reason. And a fundamental test is injury to the public.
If it were not for provision (a) of the decree, and the law back of it,
these two companies might get together and fix a price that would
provide a reasonable profit to the American company and an unrea-
sonable one to the Western. For the newspapers, and through them
the public, to pay for the profitable operation of an inefficient concern
is an injury. And a combination to that end would be an unreasonable
restraint of trade. That course cannot be pursued. And, because it
cannot, the American company is forced to go out of the plate busi-
ness. No decree can stop that. And after the American company
quits, if the Western is left alone in the field, the ultimate situation of
the country newspapers would be the same whether the plant be scrap-
ped or sold as an integer. Neither the decree nor, in our judgment,
the Sherman Law, prevents the Western from buying the scraps piece-
meal. If it did buy, it could organize them anew. If it be permitted
to buy the integer, it would save the expense of reorganization. If
the plant be scrapped, two injuries result: One to the public from the
destruction of a usable and useful plant; the other to the stockhold-
ers of the American company.

As to the first, a law designed to shield the public from injury should
not be construed to compel the public to suffer an injury. As to the
second, the Sherman Law, in our opinion, does not require the stock-
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holders of a company, even a company that was a self-confessed
wrongdoer in 1912, to sustain a Joss in 1917 arising without wrongdo-
ing, if that loss can be prevented without injury to the public. In-
jury can be prevented, we believe, by attaching to the permission to
buy the plant as a going concern a condition which should be read in
the light of provision (c) of the injunction. Within common knowl-
edge one of the evils at which the Sherman Law was aimed was the
acts of monopolizers in killing competitors, by selling at less than cost
of production and then mulcting the public for the expense of the
campaign with undue profits added. For practices of that kind during
and prior to 1912 the Western Newspaper Union was put under the con-
tinuing prohibition of provision (¢). Since 1912 it has not charged
less than cost plus a fair and reasonable profit. On the other hand,
the record, at least inferentially, demonstrates that it has not exacted
more than cost plus a fair and reasonable profit. If it continues in the
same even tenor of fairness, if it refrains from putting up prices that
would incite outside capital to unneeded offers of like service and then
killing competition by underselling at a loss, to be recouped by fixing
unwarranted prices again, we perceive no reason why it should not
be permitted to buy the plant as a going concern.

In No. 2509 the decree -denying the petition is reversed, with di-
rection to enter a decree, supplemental to the original decree, author-
izing the Western Newspaper Union to be a bidder and purchaser at a
sale by the American Press Association of its plate plant and business as
a going concern, on the condition and under the prohibition that the
Western Newspaper Union shall not employ the plant and business so
purchased, or use the situation created by such purchase, to charge more
for its plate service to newspaper publishers than cost of production
plus a fair and reasonable profit, such fair and reasonable profit to be
measured relatively by the range of annual profit obtained by the
Western Newspaper Union from its plate business since the entry of
the original decree of August 3, 1912, without, however, depriving the
purchaser of such profits as result from its purchase by reason of the
increase of business and the economies in the cost of production fol-
lowing the same; provided that present prices for plate service to
newspaper publishers shall not be increased, unless, but not longer
than, an increase is warranted by increase in cost factors.

In No. 2510, the appeal is dismissed, without taxation of costs, in
favor of appellees.

CITY OF PORT WASHINGTON v. THACHER.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit. July 27, 1917.)
No. 2438.

1. CONTRACTS ©&322(2) —FERFORMANCE—IIVIDENCE.

In an action for damages for breach of contract providing for the laying
of an intake pipe extending into Lake Michigan 2,800 feet, plaintiff con-
tractor might, where the city claimed that by reason of defects in the pipe
water close to the shore entered the pipe, show that the number of bac-
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teria in a given quantity of water from the pipe corresponded with the
number of bacteria found in that amount of water at a distance of
2,800 feet from the shore, having shown that a greater number of bacteria
were found in water close to the shore.

2. EVIDENCE €=553(2)—OPINION EVIDENCE—HYPOTHETICAL QUESTIONS.

In framing bypothetical questions to expert witnesses, a party may dis-
regard his adversary’s theory and apply only his own.

3. CONTRACTS &=323(1)—PERFORMANGE—TEST.

Where a municipality engaged a contractor to construct an intake at a
considerable distance in a lake for the purpose of obtaining water of un-
questioned purity, the fact that some three years after construction, dur-
ing which time the intake and pipes had been used continuously, leaks ap-
pecred in the pipe, does not warrant direction of verdict for defendant,
on the ground that the contractor did not comply with the terms of the
contract, even though the test prescribed was not followed, there being
no agreement by the contractor to make the test, and so the question
should be left to the jury.

4. CoNTRACTS &=323(2)—CONSTRUCTION FOR COURT—QUESTION.

The construction of the contract, where facts were not in dispute, was
for the court.

5. CONTRACTS &=280(1)—COMPLIANCE—WHAT CONSTITUTES.

Where a contract for the construction of an intake and laying of pipe
in a lake, from which the municipality expected to derive a supply of
pure water, provided that the pipe should for 800 feet from the shore
be buried in the bed of the lake to a depth of 1 foot, the dredging of a
trench 12 inches deep, in which the pipe was laid, so that it was even
with the bed of the lake, does not show compliance with the contract, war-
ranting recovery for that item.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Wisconsin.

Action by Addison Q. Thacher against the City of Port Washington.
There was a judgment for plaintiff, and defendant brings error. Af-
firmed, on condition that plaintiff enter remittitur; otherwise, reversed
and remanded.

Action at law to recover damages arising out of express contract. Verdict
and judgment for the plaintiff.

Plaintiff in error, herein called the defendant, entered into a contract with
defendant in error, herein called the plaintiff, for the laying of an intake ex-
tending into Lake Michigan 2,800 feet, for which the defendant was to pay
$10,900, and an additional sum for digging an 800-foot trench as designated,
at the rate of $1.37% per foot. The city engaged a consulting engineer, and
employed one Doyle, since deceased, as inspector. Work was begun in Aprit
and continued until the fore part of September, 1907. Upon complaint being
made, plaintiff returned in October and repaired some defective pipes; the
defects consisting of cracks or breaks in certain parts of the pipe. After
October, 1907, defendant used the intake continuously, but complained of
leaks, and that much sand appeared. :

The city made numerous demands upon the plaintiff in 1908 and 1909 to
complete the contract according to its terms. In 1900 the city engineer
notified plaintiff that the work must be done before August, 1909, or the
city would make the repairs itself. Plaintiff insisted that the work was a sub-
stantial compliance with the contract. On September 11, 1911, a formal
resolution was passed by the defendant, declaring the plaintiff to have aban-
doned the contract and providing for completion of the work by the city.
Shortly thereafter plaintiff appeared with divers to repair any defects, but
the city ordered him away. Thereafter the city proceeded to repair the pipe,
and found joints disconnected and numerous cracks in the pipe. Its bill for
material and services rendered, etc., aggregated $3,873.59.

@&=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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The specifications contained the following provision: *“When the intake
has been completely laid, but before the trench has been filled, the pipe shall
be tested with compressed air at a pressure of 100 pounds per square inch;
during the test all joints shall be examined by a diver, and all found to be
leaking shall be repaired, and broken pipes shall be removed and replaced by
perfect lengths.” No air pressure fest was made by the city in 1907, but a
water pressure test was attempted, and breaks and cracks were discovered,
which plaintiff claims were shortly thereafter remedied.- An air pressure
test was made by the plaintiff in October, 1907, but there is conflict of testi-
mony as to the results.

The contract provided for extra pay for digging a trench as follows: “And
in addition thereto, the sum of $1.37% per foot for each foot of pipe buried to
a depth of one foot beyond the 400 feet specified in said plans and.specifica-
tions.” And again it reads at another place: “* * * And In addition
thereto to bury said intake to the depth of one foot for a distance of eight
hundred feet.” The specifications covering the same subject-matter pro-
vided: “Before any pipe is laid, a trench shall be dredged so as to give the
pipe a cover of one foot where the water is ten feet deep,” etc. A trench in
which 800 feet of pipe was laid was dug; the top of the pipe being left level
with the lake bottom.

Upon the trial, the court submitted to the jury the issues of substantial
compliance and damages. Other statement of facts will appear in the
opinion, Plaintiff in error contends the court erred in (a) admitting evidence;
(b) in refusing to direct a verdict; and (c¢) in refusing to grant defendant’s
motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict or for a new trial.

Joseph B. Doe, of Milwaukee, Wis., for plaintiff in error.
Albert K. Stebbins, of Milwaukee, Wis., for defendant in error..

Before KOHLSAAT, ALSCHULER, and EVANS, Circuit Judges.”

EVANS, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). [1] Error
is assigned because the court received evidence over defendant’s ob-
jection showing the number of bacteria found in the water at various
places. In order to show the cracks in the pipe, if any, were insignifi-
cant or trivial, plaintiff made certain tests. He ascertained the number
of bacteria in a given quantity of water 700 feet, 1,400 feet, 2,100
feet, and 2,800 feet from shore. Tests were also made to determine the
number of bacteria in the same amount of water at certain places in the
city. It appeared that the number of bacteria decreased, the further
one went out into the lake. It also appeared that the number of bac-
teria found in the water in the city corresponded to the number of bac-
teria found in the same quantity of water 2,800 feet from shore. In
support of this testimony it was claimed that, if the pipe was leaking
badly, that fact would be disclosed by these experiments; for, if the
water entered the pipe 700 feet from shore, it would have a great many
more bacteria than if it entered the pipe through the intake 2,800 feet
from shore. While not at all conclusive, we think the evidence was
relevant and instructive, and bore upon the issue of substantial com-
pliance.

[2] Error is also assigned because of the admission of evidence
over defendant’s objection, and given in response to hypothetical ques-
tions dealing with the length of time ordinarily or reasonably required
to do certain work. 'This evidence bore upon the reasonableness of the
amounts claimed by the city to have been necessarily expended in re-
pairing the intake. No error was committed by the learned trial court
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in permitting the plaintiff to submit hypothetical questions to his ex-
pert witnesses on his own theory. A party is not required, in framing
hypothetical questions to adopt his adversary’s version of the case.
Jones on Evidence, 903. 4

[3] Error is assigned because the court erred in refusing to direct
a verdict for defendant. In support of this motion defendant contended
that plaintiff’s completed work failed to meet the tests provided in
the contract and was not a substantial compliance therewith. Plaintiff
in error was seeking to secure a water supply of unquestionable purity,
and it was entitled to an intake well-nigh perfect, and one which wouild
meet any test that the parties saw fit to make. Appreciating this pur-
pose, and the necessity of strict compliance with the terms of the con-
tract, the court was justified in examining alleged imperfections with
the closest scrutiny.

On the other hand, it must be borne in mind that the pipes were laid
in water of considerable depth, and no test in the method designated
was made by the city until some three years had elapsed from the date
when the city took over the work. It should also be borne in mind that
the city had an engineer to supervise the work and a man constantly
on the job to see that it was properly done and in accordance with the
specifications. While the contract called for the air test, it did not
provide that the test should be made by the plaintiff. Defendant was
never precluded from making the test called for by the contract. It
used the intake continuously from October, 1907, and was at all times
in position to determine whether the completed work answered the calls
of the contract. A test or examination made some two or three years
after the intake was completed, and when imperfections might be traced
to causes other than those attributable to the plaintiff, was not conclu-
sive. Upon all the evidence, we are of the opinion that the motion to
direct a verdict in defendant’s favor was properly denied.

[4, 5] Error is also assigned because the court refused to set aside
the verdict and to grant a new trial, because the verdict was excessive.
Many of the figures are not in dispute, and, accepting plaintiff’s state-
ment of the account, it is impossible to sustain the finding of the jury,
except by allowing $1,100 for burying the 800 feet of pipe. In fact,
plaintiff in his brief says:

“The jury unquestionably have allowed plaintiff $1,100 for burying the

pipe. * * * It is evident, also, that the trial judge considered that it
was an item concerning which the jury should find for the plaintiff.”

The figures amply support this statement. The amount paid plain-
tiff while the work was in progress was $5.717.69. The city paid for
repairs, etc., $3,873.59. The verdict of the jury was $3,482.31. These
three items make a total of $13,073.59. Exclusive of the item of $1,-
100 for the 800 feet of trench, the amount due plaintiff was $10,900.
This would indicate an overpayment on this basis of $2,173.59.

However, plaintiff contends that the item of $3,873.59 should be
reduced, because the evidence warranted the jury in finding that a con-
siderable portion of this item was unreasonable. But if we take from
this aggregate of sums actually paid out by defendant such sums as the
plaintiff contends should be deducted. we are still unable to account

245 F.—T7
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for the difference of $2,173.59. Viewing the figyres from every view-
point, it is impossible to reach any other conclusion than that stated by
counsel for plaintiff in his brief and set forth above. The jury allowed
plaintiff $1.100 for burying the pipe. This item should never have
been left to the jury to determine. The facts are not in dispute, and it
was for the court to construe the contract. The trench in which the
pipes were laid was 12 inches deep. The contract and specifications
called for the pipe being covered one foot. It follows that the allow-
ance of this item of $1,100 was error.

But plaintiff was entitled to recover, and was erroneously denied,
interest on $2,382.31 from November 10, 1910, the date fixed in his bill,
to the rendition of the judgment. The legal rate being 6 per cent. in
Wisconsin, this interest was $771.38. The difference between the $1,-
100 erroneously allowed by the jury and the interest item is $328.62.

It is therefore ordered that, if the defendant in error, within 20 days
after this opinion is announced, file a remittitur for $328.62 in the
office of the clerk of the District Court of the United States for the
Eastern District of Wisconsin, and a certified copy thereof in the office
of the clerk of this court, the judgment, less the amount so remitted,
will be affirmed, with costs of this court to the plaintiff in error; but,
if this is not done, judgment will be reversed. with costs to the plain-
tiff in error. and with directions to grant a new trial,

BANDY v. UNITED STATES.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. September 38, 1917.)
No. 4897.

1. CRIMINAL LAw &=1129(2)—APPEAL—ASSIGNMENTS—COMPLIANCE WITH
RULE.

Assignments of error, framed in disregard of the rules of the Circuit
Court of Appeals, may be disregarded.

2. CRIMINAL LAw &=1129(3)—APPEAL—ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

An assignment of error, complaining of the admission of evidence,
which did not set forth the evidence admitted, presents nothing for re-
view.

3. CRIMINAL LAw &=1178—APPEAL—ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR—WAIVER.

Assignments of error, not argued, are waived.

4, CRIMINAL LAW €=°1129(3)—APPEAL—ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR-——SUFFICIENCY.

Assignments of error, complaining of instructions, which did not set
forth the instructions complained of, present nothing for review.

5. CRIMINAL LAwW &=51129(1)—APPEAL—ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR-—EXCEPTIONS.
An exception to a charge, though not properly assigned as error, may
be considered in a case involving personal liberty.

6. CRIMINAL LLAW &=823(9)—INSTRUCTIONS—BURDEN OF PROOF.

‘Where the court correctly charged the jury on the question of reasonable
doubt, a charge, in a prosecution for introducing into the state of Okla-
homa intoxicating liquor, that if it was a witness who introduced the
liquor, and defendant bad no interest in or connection therewith, he
should be acquitted, is not improper, as placing the burden of proof on
defendant.

@=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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7. CotrTs &C=337T—FEDERAL COURTS—PROCEDURE.

Except where Congress has made specific provision, the common law
governs the procedure in criminal trials in federal courts; and, no such
provision being made, a local state statute as to accomplice testimony is
inapplicable to a prosecution in the federal court.

8. CRIMINAL Law €&=780(3)—TRIAL—INSTRUCTION—ACCOMPLICE TESTIMONY.
In a prosecution for introducing intoxicating liquors into the state of
Oklahoma, the court charged that if, from the testimony of a witness and
other testimony, the jury should find that the witness had some interest
in introducing the liquor into the state, or in its transportation, and
that he was knowingly assisting in violation of the law, so as to be-
come an accomplice, then his testimony should be carefully scrutinized,
and should be corroborated, sufficiently protected the rights of accused;
Rev. Laws OKkl. 1910, § 5884, declaring that a conviction cannot be had
on the testimony of an accomplice, unless he be corroborated by other
evidence tending to connect defendant with the commission of the offense,
and that the corroboration is not sufficient if it merely shows the com-
mission of the offense or the circumstances, not applying, the prosecution
being governed by the rules of the common law.
9. CRIMINAL Law &=1159(3)—APPEAL—VERDICT.
A conviction on conflicting evidence Will not be disturbed on writ of
error.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Oklahoma; Ralph E. Campbell, Judge.

O. E. Bandy was convicted of introducing and carrying into the state
of Oklahoma intoxicating liquor from without the state, and he brings
error. Affirmed.

F. E. Kennamer and Charles A. Coakley, both of Madill, Okl,, for
plaintiff in error.

Archibald Bonds, Sp. Asst. U. S. Atty., of Muskogee, Okl. (W. P.
McGinnis, U. S. Atty., of Muskogee, Okl., on the brief), for the Unit-
ed States.

Before SANBORN and CARLAND, Circuit Judges, and BOOTH,
District Judge.

CARLAND, Circuit Judge. [1] This is an indictment for introduc-
ing and carrying into the state of Oklahoma intoxicating liquor from
without said state. The defendant was convicted, and now brings
the case here on writ of error. The assignments of error were framed
with entire disregard of our rule 24, and for this reason might be
disregarded.

[2,3] Taking up the assignments of error in their order, it may be
said that assignment No. 1 presents nothing for review, as the evidence
admitted is not set out, and the question attempted to be raised is not
argued. Assignments Nos. 2 and 3 present nothing for discussion, as
the defendant introduced testimony after the ruling complained of was
made, and thereby waived his motion.

[4] The instructions complained of in No. 4 are not set out, and the
assignment presents nothing for review. The exceptions that were
taken to the charge as given will be hereafter referred to. Assign-'
ment No. 5 does not set out the charge requested and refused, and no
exceptions were taken to the refusal to give any requested instruction.

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Assignments Nos. 6 and 7 alone present questions for consideration. =

The following are the only exceptions to the charge of the court as
given:

“Mr. Coakley: The defendant excepts to that part of the charge following
the charge on reasonable doubt, for the reason that the statement as given In
the charge throws the burden upon the defendant, instead of placing it upon
the government, to prove the case. And further excepts to that part of the
charge, which predicates the case upon the whisky having been caused to be
carried into the Eastern district of Oklahoma.

“The Court: Exceptions noted.”

[5,6] By referring to the charge we can spell out what is meant by
the first clause of the above exceptions. The last clause is unintelli-
gible. The exception contained in the first clause is not properly as-
signed as error, but in a case involving personal liberty we will
consider it. The portion of the charge to which exception was taken
reads as follows:

“Now, with regard to the evidence of one of the witnesses for the govern-
ment, the witness Beck: You have heard this witness’ testimony. Of course,
if you believe, from his testimony and from all the evidence In this case, that
it was he who introduced this liquor, and that the defendant Bandy had no
interest in or connection with it at al] then, of course, you must find the de-
fendant Bandy not guilty.”

It was the theory of the defendant that the witness Beck introduced
the liquor. It is therefore claimed that the above excerpt from the
charge placed the burden of proof upon the defendant. Taking the
whole charge of the court together, however, there is no merit in this
contention. ‘The jury was properly instructed upon the question of rea-
sonable doubt.

[7,8] Counsel for defendant requested the court to charge as fol-
lows:

“{5) You are instructed that under the testimony of the witness C. T. Beck
he is an accomplice in the crime of introducing liquor charged herein, if such
crime was committed, and you cannot convict the defendant upon the testi-
mony of said Beck alone, unless you find his testimony corroborated by other
evidence in the case, tending to connect the defendant with the commission of
the crime.

“(6) If you find from the evidence that the witnes C. T. Beck was interested
in the liquor for which introduction is charged in this case, or was interested
in its introduction, then the said C. T. Beck would be an accomplice, and you
cannot convict the defendant, O. BE. Bandy, upon the testimony of said C. T.
Beck, unless you find the testimony of said Beck corroborated by other tes-
timony in the case tending to connect the defendant with the commission of
the crime,

“(7) If you find from the evidence that the witness C. T. Beck was aiding
and abetting the defendant or any other person in introducing the liquor in
question into the Eastern district of Oklahoma, then the said C. T. Beck
would be an accomplice, and you cannot convict the defendant upon the
testimony of said C. T. Beck, unless you find such testimony corroborated by
other testimony in the case tending to connect the defendant with the com-
mission of the crime.”

The record shows that these requests were not given as requested,
but does not show that they were refused, except by inference, or that
any exception was taken to the refusal to give the same, nor is the re-
fusal to give them properly assigned as error; but for reasons stated we
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will consider the requests to charge, above mentioned. The court, upon
the question of accomplice, charged the jury as follows:

“If from the testimony of the witness Beck, and other testimony im the
case, you arrive at a conclusion that Beck had some interest in introducing
this liquor, or carrying it from Denison up to Madill, and that he had some
knowing guilty connection with it, or some interest in it, was assisting in it
in any way, assisting knowingly in this violation of the law, then he would be
what is known as an accomplice in this affair; and if the evidence shows him
to be such accomplice, then his testimony in regard to the connection of the
defendant, Bandy, with the transaction, should be carefully scrutinized by
you. And it should also be corroborated in some material point or points con-
necting Bandy with this offense by other credible evidence in the case, aside
from the evidence of the witness Beck himself.”

Counsel for defendant complains that the trial court did not charge
the law as found in section 5884, Rev. Laws Okl. 1910, which reads as
follows:

“A conviction cannot be had upon the testimony of an accomplice, unless he
be corroborated by such other evidence as tends to connect the defendant

with the commission of the offense, and the corroboration is not sufficient if
it merely shows the commission of the offense or the circumstances thereof.”

.The law of the state of Oklahoma, however, was not applicable to a
criminal case being tried in a federal court. Except so far as Congress
has made specific provisions upon the subject, the common law governs
the procedure in criminal trials in the courts of the United States.
United States v. Reid, 12 How. 361, 13 L. Ed. 1023; United States
v. Central Vt. Ry. (C. C.) 157 Fed. 291; Bucher v. Cheshire R. Co.,
125 U. S. 555, 8 Sup. Ct. 974, 31 L. Ed. 795; Logan v. United States,
144 U. S. 263, 12 Sup. Ct. 617, 36 L. Ed. 429; Hanley et al. v. United
States, 123 Fed. 849, 59 C. C. A. 153; Diggs et al. v. United States,
220 Fed. 545, 136 C. C. A. 147; Mark Yick Hee v. United States, 223
Fed. 732, 139 C. C. A. 262,

In the case of Hanley et al. v. United States, supra, it was decided
that a state statute requiring corroboration of the testimony of an
accomplice in a criminal case is not applicable to a prosecution in a
federal court, and that a defendant in a criminal case in a federal court
cannot complain because the testimony of an accomplice was submitted
to the jury, under instructions that it should be received with caution,
and carefully scrutinized, and which in effect authorized the jury to
give it full credit only in case they fqund it corroborated as to material
facts. The charge as given was as favorable to the accused as he was
entitled to under the rule of the common law. As we have said before,
there was no exception to the refusal of the court to instruct the jury
to find the defendant not guilty; but we have read the evidence in the
record, and are satisfied there was no error in refusing to so instruct.

[9] It is claimed that there was no evidence to show that Denison,
from which town the intoxicating liquor was alleged to have been
carried to Madill, in the state of Oklahoma, was in the state of Texas.
Aside from the facts of which the court was entitled to take judicial
notice, there was the testimony of Stuart, the train conductor, who tes-
tified that on February 11, 1916, he was a conductor, on a Frisco train
running from Denison, Tex., to Madill, Okl. It is next claimed that
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there was no evidence that the liquor was on this train. But, conceding
this fact, it does not destroy the statement of the conductor that the
town of Denison was in the state of Texas. It is further claimed that
the evidence showed that the witness Beck, rather than Bandy, was the
guilty man; but that was, under the evidence, a question for the jury,
and they have found that the defendant, Bandy, was the guilty man.

There was evidence to sustain the -verdict, and the judgment below
is therefore affirmed.

MASSES PUB. CO. v. PATTEN.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. August Q, 1917.)

1. CourTs &=405(15)—CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS—STAY OF INJUNCTION—
AUTHORITY OF COURT.

Under Judicial Code (Act March 3, 1911, c. 231) § 129, 36 Stat. 1134
(Comp. St. 1916, § 1121), declaring that where, upon a hearing in
equity in a District Court, an injunction shall be continued, refused, or
dissolved, an appeal may be taken from such order to the Circuit Court
of Appeals, but that the proceedings in other respects in the court below
shall not be stayed, unless otherwise ordered by that court or by the
appellate court, a judge of the Circuit Court of Appeals may, on appeal
from an order granting an injunction pendente lite, stay the operation
of the same.

2. INJUNCTION &=T5—SUBJECT OF RELIEF.
Bquity has jurisdiction to grant an injunction against an order of the
Postmaster General excluding a publication from the malils, solely to
prevent irreparable pecuniary damage.
8. INJUNCTION &=T75—ACTIONS—NATURE OF ACTION.

An action against a postmaster to enjoin him from excluding a publica-
tion from the mails, pursuant to the direction of the Postmaster General,
is not technically one against the sovereign.

4. CoURTS @&=405(15)—CIrcUIT COURT OF APPEALS—STAY OF INJUNCTION—
PROPRIETY.

Plaintiff sued to prevent defendant postmaster from excluding his pub-
lication from the mails, pursuant to the order of the Postmaster General.
Before decision was rendered in the District Court, plaintiff requested de-
fendant to return the withheld magazines; other arrangements for dis-
tribution having been made. Plaintiff’s bill, however, was not with-
drawn. Held that, on appeal from an order granting an injunction
pendente lite restraining defendant from excluding plaintiff’s publication
from the mails, the operation of the injunction should be stayed on ap-
plication to a judge of the Circuit Court of Appeals, for plaintiff’s bill
still sought substantial relief, and, if effect should be given to the injunc-
tion, the question would become moot, for.the controversy continued
only so long as plaintiff’s publications were excluded from the mails.

5, INJUNCTION €&=75—IssUANCE—RIGHT To ISSUE.

The courts will not by injunction interfere, except in the clearest
cases, with the action of the great executive departments of the govern-
ment in interpreting laws affecting the government,

6. PosT OFFICE &=22—MAILS—CARRIERS.

In respect to the mails, the United States is not a common carrier,
but is pursuing a high governmental duty, and it is at least questionable
whether the government can be judicidlly compelled to assist in the dis-
semination and distribution of a publication which proclaims itself revo-
lutionary.

€=>For otber cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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7. APPEAL AND ERROR €=2458(3)—STAY OF INJUNCTION—EXCLUSION oF MAIL
MATTER.

Plaintiff’s publication asserted that laws passed by the United States
for the creation of military forces, and the prosecution of war violated
the fundamental rights of any free people, that conscription is the de-
struction of youth, democracy, and labor, and the desolation of the family,
and that the United States has attempted to ensnare Russia into a con-
tinuance of war for purposes prejudicial to true democracy, and that per-
sons who have denied and resisted the laws, having military success as
their object, are worthy of admiration and possible emulation. The publi-
cation, however, did not urge resistance to the laws. Act June 15, 1917,
forbids any one from willfully causing insubordination, disloyalty, mutiny,
or refusal of duty in the military and naval forces of the United States.
Held that, though plaintiff’s publication did not expressly urge resistance
to conscription,: nevertheless, as it tended in that direction, and articles’
tending to arouse insubordination and disloyalty in the military and
naval forces are unmailable, an order enjoining a postmaster from giving
effect to the order of the Postmaster General excluding plaintiff’s pub-
lication from the mails should be stayed, an appeal having been taken
to the Circuit Court of Appeals, for plaintiff, having secured other means
of distribution, could be compensated by pecuniary damages, and public
interest demands protection against seditious articles.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of New York.

Suit by the Masses Publishing Company against Thomas G. Patten.
From an order granting an injunction pendente lite, defendant appeals.
On motion to stay injunction. Stay continued.

See, also, 244 Fed. 535.

E. B. Barnes, Asst. U. S. Atty., of New York City, for the motion.
G. E. Roe, of New York City, opposed.

Before HOUGH, Circuit Judge.

HOUGH, Circuit Judge. This motion will be considered under the
following heads: I. The practice under the statute. II. The present
condition of this litigation as to its object and subject-matter. III. The
fact findings of the District Court, and the conclusions there drawn
therefrom. IV. The law as suggested to me by those facts. V. The
propriety of this motion under the circumstances thus developed, in
respect of (1) the rights of parties; (2) the public interests.

[1] I. After considerable experience in appellate practice, and such .
recent inquiry as I have been able to make, no other instance (under
section 129, Judicial Code) of application to a judge of the appellate
court to stay an appealed order of this nature is known to me. Such
stays, granted by the trial judge, are not uncommon; I have, myself,
awarded not a few. They rest on the belief that doubtful questions of
law, or difficult contests of fact (or both) are presented by the record,
and that the relations of the parties, or exigencies of business are such
that (perhaps by the giving of security) no injury will result from let-
ting matters remain in statu quo (except for opinion filed) until decisive
action can be had in the Court of Appeals. ,

There can be no difference in principle, between such an application
to the trial judge, and a similar one addressed to a member of the
appellate court. Indeed, I think a somewhat stricter rule should justly
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apply. The trial judge may and often does feel that his findings of
fact reached with travail of conscience, may not be unassailable in
the view of others equally capable; yet, having done his best, he ex-
presses no misgivings, though they exist and strongly move him to
grant the stay.

But one who did not hear the case fully tried and argued, has, I
think, small right to base action on facts. Except in the extremest
cases, the facts must be assumed as reported from the lower court,
whether through judge or jury. Any other attitude on the part of-
the judge ad quem, would convert the motion into a species of irreg-
ular, and often indecent, new trial. For these reasons, it is held that
for present purposes, the propriety of granting the stay asked, rests
on a case whose facts are literally as found by the District Court.
And by facts, I mean, not only facts physical, phenomena seen or
heard, but mental conditions or intents, so far as definitely stated.

[2-4] II. This action relates only to an alleged property right; i.
e., the claim of a New York corporation to. have certain second-class
matter forwarded to destination through the United States mail. Equi-
ty is resorted to solely to prevent irreparable pecuniary damage. De-
fendant justifies under an order of the Postmaster General, and the
Department of Justice defends; but all this does not prevent the suit
from being one between private parties, in the same sense as that
phrase is true of actions against collectors of internal revenue for
illegal exaction of taxes. The action is not against the sovereign, tech-
nically.

Wgat the bill demanded, therefore, was that the mail aforesaid, viz.,
sundry copies of the “Masses,” should be sent forward; and the Dis-
trict Court so ordered on July 26th. It now appears that on the day
before (decision being known) plaintiff requested defendant to give
back the withheld magazines, and not forward them; other arrange-
ments for distribution having been made.

This means that plaintiff no longer desires the only avowed object
of action; the business foundation of the suit has dropped out. But
it remains true that the obligation to distribute this particular issue
of the “Masses” has a most important bearing on any postmaster’s
duty to forward future or similar publications. Therefore, as long
as the prayer of the bill is unfulfilled, plaintiff has a legally real sub-
ject of litigation, although it further appears that plaintiff is not now
exposed to any loss not coverable by damages already liquidated or
ascertainable. )

Defendant’s situation, however, is quite different. The order ap-
pealed from, if complied with, fulfills the whole object of suit. If
_ reversed, no restitution or restoration of status quo is possible; and
in my judgment the appeal becomes a futility, presenting to the appel-
late court nothing but an interesting moot point. A court may hold
a case sub judice, until it becomes moot. The Supreme Court did so
lately, in the well-known habeas corpus taken out by Hon. H. Snowden
Marshall. 243 U. S. 521, 37 Sup. Ct. 448, 61 1. Ed. 881. But
could it be pretended that the Supreme Court should or could have
taken cognizance of that appeal, if brought on for argument after the
expiration of the Congress which proceeded against Mr. Marshallr 1
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think not, and therefore strongly incline to the view that this is the
rare instance in which an appeal without a stay is not only futile, but
legally impossible; yet the statute gives the absolute right of appeal.

[5-7] LII. The facts found may be imperfectly, but sufficiently, sum-
marized thus: Taking certain pictures and arficles in this magazine,
especially objected to by defendant, and drawing no inferences from
the general tone and previous issues of the periodical, the books now
lying undelivered in the post office, and the sole subject of this suit,
assert that the laws of the United States passed for the creation of
military forces and the prosecution of war, violate “the fundamental
rights of any free people”; that conscription especially “is the destruc-
tion of youth, democracy, and labor, and the desolation of the family”;
that the United States has attempted to “ensnare” Russia into “a con-
tinuance of war for purposes prejudicial to true democracy”; that
persons (naming them) who have defied and resisted the laws having
military success as their object, and been duly convicted or otherwise
punished for such offenses, are worthy of “admiration” and “possible
emulation.”

It is further found that these specified writings and pictures “may
interfere with the success of the military forces of the United States,”
because this publication and its kind “enervate public feeling at home
(which is their chief purpose), and encourage the success of the enemies
of the United States abroad (to which they are usually indifferent).”
But all these statements of plaintiff are not “of fact”; they are “within
the range of opinion and of criticism; they are all certainly believed
to be true by the utterer.”

Upon these findings, and the assumption that what is unlawful un-
der the act of June 15, 1917, is unmailable, is based the conclusion of
law that the act “forbids any one from willfully causing insubordi-
nation, disloyalty, mutiny, or refusal of duty in the military and naval
forces of the United States” and that “to arouse discontént and dis-
affection among the people with the prosecution of the war, and with
the draft tends to promote a mutinous and insubordinate temper among
the troops.” But, “if one stops short of urging upon others that it
is their duty or their interest to resist the law, one should not be held
to have attempted to cause its violation.”

Therefore, because no writing or picture, of those specifically ob-
jected to by the defendant on the hearing (without any reference to
the rest of the magazine or its history or environment), “directly ad-
vocated resistance” to (especially) the Conscription Act, the order ap-
pealed from was granted. The foregoing only follows through the
findings and conclusion on one subdivision of the act, but that is enough
for present purposes.

IV. The Postmaster General had found as a fact (inter alia) that
the “Masses” sought to promote a mutinous, disloyal, and insubordinate
spirit among troops; I think the District Court did not disagree as
to that. But it was held that, because the plaintiff stopped short of
urging resistance, the law was not violated. The questions presented,
or some of them, are: (1) Is such view of the law correct? (2) Is
it so clearly correct that the courts should interfere? For it is ad-
mitted that the Postmaster General held that such indirect incitement
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to disloyalty, etc., as the court found in the magazine, did amount to
resisting and therefore violating the law.

This second query must be first answered, for courts do not in-
terfere, except in the clearest cases, with the action of one of the great
executive departments in interpreting law affecting that department.
Smith v. Hitchcock, 226 U. S. 58, 33 Sup. Ct. 6, 57 L. Ed. 119. In
my opinion it is very difficult to answer this question in the affirmative.

As to the first query, it is at least arguable whether there can be
any more direct incitement to action than to hold up to admiration
those who do act. Oratio obliqua has always been preferred by
rhetoricians to oratio recta; the Beatitudes have for some centuries
been considered highly hortatory, though they do not contain the in-
junction “Go thou and do likewise.” At all events, it is a point plainly
suitable for the attention of an appellate court.

Behind and beyond these questions of statutory construction, and
of how far discretionary action (and all injunctions pendente lite are
discretionary) by the judicial department may interfere with execu-
tive discretion, lies a fundamental inquiry as to the nature of the
postal service. In respect of the mails the United States is certainly
not a common carrier; it is pursuing a high governmental duty (Sea-
right v. Stokes, 3 How. 169, 11 L. Ed. 537; cf. Re Debs, 158 U. S.
583, 15 Sup. Ct. 900, 39 L. Ed. 1092), and it is at least arguable whether
any constitutional government can be judicially compelled to assist in
the dissemination and distribution of something which proclaims it-
self “revolutionary,” which exists, not to reform, but to destroy, the
rule of any party, clique, or faction that could give even lip service
to the Constitution of the United States.

V. (1) So far as the parties are concerned, the present and actual
situation is such that any wrong suffered by plaintiff can be wholly
redressed by damages, apparently (only) measured by the expense of
the different transportation arrangements now confessedly perfected.

(2) So far as the public interest is concerned, enough has already
been said, except to point out that the Circuit Court of Appeals for
this circuit has not closed its term; it can be convened at any time on
the summons of the senior judge.

The existing stay will be continued, on terms specifically set forth
in the order filed herewith.

GUFFEY et al. v. SMITH et al
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit. August 10, 1917.)
Nos. 2405, 2406.

1. COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT @&=12—CONSTRUCTION—PRESUMPTION.
Complainants, who acquired an oil lease, did no development work
thereafter. The lessor granted another lease, and appellees, the lessees,
having struck oil, complainants asserted rights prior to their lease. Com-
plainants and appellees thereafter entered into an agreement that they
should share equally in the seven-twelfths interest in the lease claimed by
appellees, that the money held by an oil company should be divided, but
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that appellees should not be liable for seven-twelfths of the amount there-
tofore paid them and others claiming interest under the second lease, It
was discovered that appellees’ interest previously had been larger, and
they had received payments amounting to more than seven-twelfths of the
total sum paid last lessees by the oil company. Held that, as the purpose
of the agreement was to avold a lawsuit, it must be presumed that the
contract forgave appellees for all payments received; it being their con-
tention that the amounts they had received were devoted to the develop-
ment work,
2. COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT €=12—CONSTRUCTION.

In a suit involving the construction of a compromise entered into be-
tween junior and senior lessees of oil lands, held, jn view of all of the cir-
cumstances and a subsequent agreement between the parties making the
compromise, that the junior lessees were excused from liability for all
payments made them prior to the agreement.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the'Eastern
District of Illinois.

Suit by Joseph F. Guffey and others against James A. Smith and
others. From the decree, denying complainants relief sought, they ap-
peal. Affirmed.

Isaac H. Mayer, of Chicago, Ill., for appellants.
Walter T. Gunn and George F. Rearick, both of Danville, 111, for
appellees.

Before BAKER, KOHLSAAT, and MACK, Circuit Judges.

BAKER, Circuit Judge. Smith, owner of lands in Illinois, made an
oil lease to Guffey and associates. Thereunder no development work
was done. Subsequently Smith made a similar lease to Solley and as-
sociates. After the junior lessees had struck oil, the seniors began suit
for possession and accounting. At this time the junior interests were
owned, by Solley and Johnson, seven-twelfths, and by Hennig and El-
lis, five-twelfths. Pending a decision in the Supreme’ Court (237 U. 8.
101, 35 Sup. Ct. 526, 59 L. Ed. 856), Guffey and associates effected a
compromise with Solley and Johnson. During the subsequent account-
ing hearing against Hennig and Ellis in the District Court, Guffey
and associates raised a contention that Solley and Johnson should be
made to account for an alleged overpayment by the Ohio Oil Company,
which had been purchasing the output of the junior lessees. From a
denial of this claim Guffey and associates are appealing.

In the written contract of settlement it was provided :

“Appellants [the Guffeys] and appellees [Solley and Johnson] shall share
equally in seven-twelfths of the properties and proceeds thereof; that is to
say, appellants shall be entitled to seven twenty-fourths and appellees to seven
twenty-fourths in the following moneys and properties:

“(a) The money now held by the Ohio Oil Company, amounting to $42,674.83.
“(b) The net proceeds now or hereafter in the hands of Haskell, receiver.”

After paragraphs relating to reciprocal assignments of seven twenty-
fourths interests in the leases, filing of stipulations, etc., the contract
concluded :

“It is further agreed that the appellees shall not be held liable for seven-
twelfths of the $52,330.74 heretofore paid them, Walter Hennig and M. Ellis
by the Ohio Oil Company.”
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Guffeys sent a copy to the attorney of the Ohio Oil Company ; he re-
plied that the books of the company showed that Solley and Johnson
were entitled to $31,588.92, not $24,893.60, which would be seven-
twelfths of the $42,674.83 on hand; and the Guffeys thereupon ar-
ranged for a meeting of the widely scattered parties in interest at the
office of the Oil Company in Findlay, Ohio.

This controversy respecting the facts of the case is concerned prin-
cipally with what occurred at Findlay; and the success of the Guffeys’
appeal depends upon their ability to establish from the record that they
had no knowledge, prior to or at the Findlay meeting, that the Ohio
Oil Company had paid to Solley and Johnson before the Guffeys’ suit
was begun $39,173.85 and not merely the $30,526.23, which was seven-
twelfths of the total payments of $52,330.74. From a full examination
of the entire evidence, we give a brief summary of the reasons why we
find that the master, who heard the witnesses orally, and the District
Judge, who overruled the exceptions to the master’s report, made no
mistake in holding the Guffeys to their stipulation for a dismissal as to
Solley and Johnson.

[1] 1. At the time of the compromise Solley and Johnson owned
only seven-twelfths of the junior lease. While the record is unsatis-
factory as to names, dates, and shares, it is clearly deducible from the
record, particularly from exhibits of books of the QOil Company, that
various assignments of interests in the junior lease had been made
from time to time, and that Solley and Johnson prior to the bringing of
the Guffeys’ suit and for some time afterwards had owned a larger
share than seven-twelfths. To end the lawsuit is the most reasonable
motive to ascribe to both parties in making the compromise. As to
title, Solley and Johnson then owned seven-twelfths of the junior lease.
Against this the Guffeys put seven-twelfths of the senior lease. By di-
vision of the two interests the Guffeys obtained half of what Solley and
Johnson owned in the junior lease. Viewing clauses (a) and (b) in the
light of the above ascribed motive it seems clear to us that the Guffeys
intended to take and Solley and Johnson to give one-half of whatever
sums were coming from the Qil Company and receiver. It was as-
sumed that, because Solléy and Johnson then owned only seven-
twelfths of the junior lease, they were entitled to only seven-twelfths
of the moneys held up by the Oil Company pending the outcome of the
suit. ‘The term “seven-twelfths” was therefore intended to be descrip-
tive of the Solley and Johnson interest in the funds on hand. As to
the money that was spent and gone, Solley and Johnson could not di-
vide ; but they could go into their pockets to account for half they had
received. Against the Guffeys’ claim that they should do so, they in-
sisted that nearly all that money had gone into creating the value of the
oil leases which were being divided, and that they therefore should not
be held to account for the past. Viewing the concluding paragraph in
the light in which clauses (a) and (b) have been read, it would seem that
Solley and Johnson intended to demand and Guffeys to grant forgive-
ness of Solley and Johnson’s share in the moneys paid by the oil com-
pany before suit was instituted. Thus a settlement of the suit, sp far
as Solley and Johnson were concerned,.would be provided for. Other-
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wise there would remain to be litigated, not merely whether Solley and
Johnson had received more than they were entitled to when the pay-
ments were made, but whether they had actually received more than
seven-twelfths of the total.

[2] 2. When the attorney of the Qil Company wrote the Guffeys
that the books showed $6,695.32 to the credit of Sclley and Johnson in
excess of seven-twelfths of the total credits, they asked for a meeting
at which Solley and Johnson should agree to an interpretation or a
correction of the contract so that “seven-twelfths” in clauses (a) and
(b) should be taken as descriptive of the actual interest of Solley and
Johnson in the funds; and they stated in that letter that the under-
standing of all parties was that the money paid out by the Oil Compa-
ny should not be taken into account and that the leases and moneys on
hand were to be equally divided. One might reasonably suppose that,
in a meeting where the Guffeys were demanding and getting an inter-
pretation or a correction whereby “seven-twelfths” in clauses (a) and
(b) meant actual interest, Solley and Johnson would demand and get an
interpretation or a correction whereby “seven-twelfths” in the conclud-
ing paragraph would mean actual payments. And one might reasona-
bly suppose that, when the Guffeys were acting on notice that Solley
and Johnson, though now owning only seven-twelfths, were credited
with an excess in the fund accumulated since the lawsuit, they would
‘have inferred that Solley and Johnson might have drawn more than
seven-twelfths of the funds distributed before the suit was started.

3. Solley, Johnson, and Hurley (attorney for the Oil Company) are
very positive that at the Findlay meeting the correction of “seven-
twelfths” in both places in the contract was orally agreed to by all the
parties. The Guffeys claim that the correction was made only in their
own interest and that the concluding paragraph was not discussed or
mentioned. We regard the positive testimony as the more reasonable
and more credible. Furthermore, Hurley identified as an exhibit a
tabulated statement from the books of the Oil Company, which show-
ed, not only the several credits for the retained moneys, but also the
several distributions made before the suit was begun; and he testified
that this statement was on the ‘table before the parties and was exam-
ined by all. And a copy of this tabulated statement was furnished to
Troup, one of the Guffeys’ attorneys, more than three months before
the compromise agreement was executed.

4. Against the Solley and Johnson version of the Findlay meeting
the strongest item is the voucher prepared by Hurley to cover the pay-
ment of $15,794.46 then made to the Guffeys. It states that the Guf-
feys are receiving “the proceeds of one-half of the seven-twelfths
working interest oil run from the Smith farms,” and are releasing lia-
bility for “moneys heretofore paid Solley and Johnson for the seven-
twelfths working interest oil run from these farms.” But it also states
that payment is made in pursuance of the compromise contract and a
subsequent understanding thereof, “wherein all matters in difference
and litigation between these parties are compromised and settled.”
And inasmuch as the stated sum, $15,794.46, is greater by $3,347.66
than one-half of seven-twelfths of the money in the hands of the Qil
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Company, again it is evident that the parties were using the phrase
“seven-twelfths” as descriptive of Solley and Johnson’s actual interest,
and not as an arithmetical formula for the division of the fund.

The decree is affirmed.

In No. 2406, a companion case, the decree is affirmed.,

INTERNATIONAL TRUST CO. v. MYERS et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, First Circuit. August 25, 1917.)
No. 1289.

BANKRUPTCY &=467—COMPOSITION—REVIEW—FINDING.

An order of the trial court, confirming the referee’s report overruling
objections to composition, based on the ground that bankrupt had ob-
tained credit by means of a materially false written statement, will not
be disturbed on appeal, where the evidence did not clearly show that the
trial court was wrong.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the District
of Massachusetts; James M. Morton, Jr., Judge.

In the matter of the bankruptcy of Samuel A. Myers and others.
Composition was offered, and the International Trust Company, a cred-
itor, objected. The report of the referee, overruling the objections,
was sustained by the District Court, and the International Trust Com-
pany appeals. Affirmed. ‘ '

The following is the opinion of Morton, District Judge, on con-
firmation of composition: '

The objections chiefly relied upon in argument are based upon the statement
of financial condition made by the alleged bankrupts to the objecting creditor.
It was given to the creditor on March 27, 2916, at the latter’s request, and
purported to state the financial condition of the alleged bankrupts as it ap-
peared on their books on January 1, 1916. The referee finds that there was
no borrowing on the strength of the statement until October 2, 1916, and that
the statement was a correct abstract of the respondents’ books; and these
findings are not disputed. .

The objecting creditor, in support of the contention that the statement was
intentionally false, relies principally upon two matters. The first of these is
the omission altogether from it of a note for $3,000, made by the alleged bank-
rupts and secured by a mortgage on their real estate in Stoughton. The re-
spondents owned real estate in Stoughton and mortgaged it for $3,000 to the
Stoughton Trust Company. They did not include this mortgage indebtedness
in their statement. Neither did they include the value of the real estate,
which appears to have been more than the amount of the mortgage. They
apparently supposed that the statement covered only their commercial business,
and that the Stoughton real estate was outside of it. If the real estate had
been shown as an asset, and the mortgage indebtedness as a liability, the result
would have been an increase in the net worth of the respondents.

The other item relied upon by the objecting creditor is the “Accounts Re-
ceivable,” which are given in the statement as $58,425.06. That the respond-
ents had on their books accounts receivable of that amount is not disputed.
At the date of the statement, however, $27,000 of these accounts had been as-
signed to the Commercial Investment Trust, which had advanced 80 per cent.
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of the face value thereof. Further adjustments were to he made between the
respondents and the Commercial Investment Trust in respect to the other
20 per cent. The respondents included as assets in their ““Accounts Receiv-
able” the $27.000 of accounts so assigned; on the other side they included in
their liabilities as debts the sums received on the assigned accounts.

The objecting creditor contends that the accounts in question, having been
absolutely assigned, were no longer the property of the respondents, and
could not properly be included as assets; that the sums received upon said
accounts were payments of the accounts pro tanto, and were not loans to the
respondents; that the statement was therefore false; and that, as the re-
spondents knew all the facts, they are fixed with knowledge of the falsity.
The facts as found by the referee hardly support this view of the transactions
between the respondents and the Commercial Investment Trust; but the case
does not, I think, turn upon a close and exact analysis of these transactions.

A false statement of the character here in question (Bankruptecy Act, §
14b (3) [Comp. St. 1916, § 9598]), in order to be a bar to a discharge, must
have been made with knowledge that it was false, and with the actual intent
to obtain property or credit by means of a false statement. The learned
referee has found, in substance, that the respondents did not intend the state-
ment to be false, did not believe that it was false, and had no purpose dis-
honestly to obtain credit. I am asked to disregard his findings, and to hold
that he was plainly wrong in his views. I am not prepared to do so. There
is no persuasive evidence of dishonesty. It seems to me that the learned
referee, who saw the respondents and heard them testify, and was in a much
better position than I am to decide correctly whether there was a dishonest
purpose or intent, was probably right in his conclusions on this point.

The objecting creditor urges that, if the assignment of almost half of the
accounts receivable had been disclosed to it, credit would not have been
extended; that there was a duty on the part of the respondents, when called
upon for a statement of financial condition, to state the fact of the assign-
ments; and that the statement, not disclosing such fact, was therefore know-
ingly and intentionally false. The short answer is that, if the objecting credi-
* tor considered that point material, it ought to have inquired about it. The
statement shows on its face what it is. It ought not to be extended by impli-
cation to include recitals which it does not contain, and which were never
made by the alleged bankrupts.

The other objections relied on are based upon alleged false statements made
by the respondents in the schedules and on their examinations. Both in the
original schedules, and on the examinations before the receivers, each re-
spondent stated under oath that all his policies of lifé insurance were pay-
able to his wife. The facts were that on the life of each respondent was a
$20,000 policy payable to the firm. After the examination the schedule was
amended to show these facts. Various policies of life insurance owned by
the respondents had been assigned to their wives on January 2, 1917. The
explanation offered by the respondents for their failure to refer to the $20,000
policies in their schedules and in their examinations was that each of the
respondents supposed that his $20,000 policy had been assigned to his wife
at the time when his other policies were so assigned. The learned referee ac-
cepted the explanation offered, and does not find any intentional concealment
or misstatement in respect to these two policies. It cannot be said that in
this conclusion he was clearly in error. The other specifications of objection
based on the policies of insurance are waived by the objecting creditor.

No sufficient reason appearing for disregarding any of the learned referee’s
findings, his report stands confirmed.

Offer in composition approved.

John R. Lazenby and Julius Nelson, both of Boston, Mass., for
appellant.

Before DODGE and BINGHAM, Circuit Judges, and HALE, Dis-
trict Judge.
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PER CURIAM. Objections specified by the appellant to an accept-
ed composition were referred to the referee, who reported that he
found none of them sustained; whereupon the court, after due hearing,
confirmed the composition. The appellant has insisted here, not upon
all the objections originally specified, but upon one ground of objec-
tion only, viz., that the bankrupts had been guilty of obtaining money
on credit upon a materially false statement in writing, made by them
to said appellant for the purpose of obtaining credit from it. Bank-
ruptcy Act, §§ 12d (2), 14b (3) (Comp. St. 1916, §§ 9596, 9598).

The evidence before the referee, his report thereon, and a memoran-
dum of the District Judge’s reasons for agreeing with the referee are
before us. That on March 27, 1916, the appellant received from the
bankrupts a signed statement in writing purporting to be “a copy of
our financial statement taken from inventory January 1, 1916,” is un-
disputed; also that the appellant, relying thereon, thereafter loaned the
bankrupts $20,000 in all, on various dates from October 2 to December
18, 1916, both inclusive.

A consideration of the evidence before the referee and the District
Judge has left us unable to say that they were clearly in error in finding
it insufficient to prove said statement materially false and made for
the purpose of obtaining credit thereby. We accept the reasoning and
conclusions of the District Judge thereon.

The order of the District Court, confirming the composition, is
therefore affirmed, and the appellees recover their costs of appeal.

©

CLARK v. UNITED STATES.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. September 4, 1917.)
No. 2931.

1. WITNESSES &=220—PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATIONS—PRELIMINARY QUES-
TIONS.
Though the letter be privileged, error cannot be predicated on the
overruling of objection on that ground to the preliminary question to
defendant whether the signature to the letter shown him was his.

2. Post OFFICE €=49—USE oF MAILS—FRAUDULENT SCHEME—LVIDENCE.

The indictment for using the mails to promote a fraudulent scheme,
charging it to be to solicit from physicians the collection of accounts on
percentage, and then to convert all the collections, admission in evi-
dence of defendant’s advertisement to sell a half interest in a business
paying miore than a certain amount per month, if tending to show, as
it may, that he had made representations in the advertisement which he
could make good only by appropriating collections in accordance with
the scheme charged, is not reversible error.

3. CRIMINAL Law &=901—MoTioN TO DisMiss—WAIVER.
Defendant’s motion, at the conclusion of the prosecution’s evidence, to
dismiss, was waived by introduction of evidence on his behalf, and by his
failure to move for an instructed verdict at the close of the evidence.

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Dlgests'& Indexes
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4, CRMINAYL LAw @&1023(13)—APPEAL—REVIEW—DENIAL OF NEwW TRIAL.
The Circuit Court of Appeals cannot review denial of defendant’s mo-
tion for new trial. <

5. CrRIMINAL Law ©&=1054(1)—APPEAL—REVIEW—EXCEPTIONS.
Rulings in admitting and refusing to strike evidence cannot be review-
ed; exceptions not having been taken thereto.

In Error to the District Court of the Unitad States for the Southern
Division of the Southern District of California; Oscar A. Trippet,
Judge.

Marion McMillan Clark, indicted as M. M. Clark, was convicted,
ang brings error. Affirmed.

Oliver J. Marston and Walter A. Ham, both of Los Angeles, Cal,
for plaintiff in error.

Albert Schoonover, U. S. Atty., and Gordon Lawson, Asst. U. S.
Atty., both of Los Angeles, Cal.

Before GILBERT and HUNT, Circuit Judges, and DIETRICH,
District Judge.

GILBERT, Circuit Judge. The plaintiff in error was convicted upon
an indictment which charged him, under section 215 of the federal
Penal Code (Comp. St. 1916, § 10385) with the offense of using the
United States mails to promote a scheme to defraud. He, together with
two others, had entered into a copartnership known as the Physicians’
Protective Association, for the purpose of soliciting from and collect-
ing for physicians, surgeons, and dentists outstanding accounts on a
percentage basis, and the indictment charged that the scheme was
fraudulent in that, disregarding such agreement with the physicians,
surgeons, and dentists to collect upon commission, the purpose and in-
tention of the defendants was to appropriate and convert to their own
use all or any part of such collections as they desired.

[1] The plaintiff in error assigns as error that the court below over-
ruled his objection to the question which was asked him:

“I hand y(;u here a letter, and ask you to look at the signature of that
letter and say whether or not it is your signature.”

The objection was that the letter was a privileged communication
between attorney and client. If the assignment were directed to the
admission of a letter which was a privileged communication between
attorney and client, a question would be presented for our determina-
tion. But, as it is, nothing is brought before us except the bare fact
that the plaintiff in error was asked whether he had signed a cerain let-
ter. That question was but preliminary, and no error can be predicat-
ed upon the ruling of the court in permitting it to be answered.

[2] It is assigned that the court erred in overruling the objection of
the plaintiff in error to the admission in evidence of a certain exhibit,
to which objection was made that it was irrelevant, incompetent, and
immaterial. That exhibit was an advertisement published by the plain-

&=»For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER {n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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tiff in error on August 27, 1914, while he was carrying on the business
of the Physicians’ Protective Association. So far as it is material to
the case, it contained the following: .

“For Sale.—One-half interest in an exclusive business now paying more

than $250 per month. Will pay buyer $75 per month, and divide profits above
that amount.”

It is contended that the advertisement tended to show that the
plaintiff in error had committed an offense other than that with which he
was charged in the indictment. There is nothing in the terms of the ad-
vertisement itself to show the commission of an offense. It may have
tended to show, and probably it was introduced for that purpose, that
the plaintiff in error had made representations in his advertisement
which he could make good only by appropriating collections, in accord-
ance with the scheme charged in the indictment. If so, its admission
was not reversible error.

[3] Error is assigned to the denial of the motion of plaintiff in error
to dismiss at the conclusion of the plaintiff’s testimony. To this it is
sufficient to say that the motion was waived by the introduction of evi-
dence on behalf of the plaintiff in error, and his failure to move for an
instructed verdict at the close of the evidence.

[4] The assignment that the court erred in overruling the motion of
plaintiff in error for a new trial presents no question that this court can
review. That proposition is so well settled as to make the citation of
authorities unnecessary.

[5] In the brief of the plaintiff in error, other alleged errors in the
-admission of evidence, and the refusal of the court to strike evidence
from the record, are discussed; but no exceptions were taken to the
rulings of the court below, and we cannot consider them.

The judgment is affirmed. '
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PLAZUELA SUGAR CO. v. PASTORIZA et al.
(two cases).

(Circuit Court of Appeals, First Circuit. August 25, 1917.)
Nos. 1262, 1263.

1. CoURTS &=405(1)—CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS—DECISIONS APPEALABLE—
ScoPE oF REMEDY.

Where plaintiffs’ complaint, seeking a judgment enjoining the opera-
tion of a railroad constructed upon their lands by defendant and an or-
der directing removal, was dismissed, in the district court, but the Su-
preme Court of Porto Rico, on appeal, reversed the district court’s judg-
ment, and entered judgment in accordance with the prayers of the
complaint, an appeal to the Circuit Court of Appeals for the First Cir-
cuit is an appropriate procedure to review the judgment of the Supreme
Court of Porto Rico, and a writ of error to the judgment must be dis-
missed. .

2. RAILROADS &»65—RIGHT OF WAY—RIGHT TO.

Where defendant entered on plaintiffs’ land and constructed a rail-
road, without obtaining any grant of a right of way or paying any con-
sideration, and in reliance solely on plaintitfs’ alleged oral permission
and their acquiescence, defendant did not establish any right to continue
the operation, but at most should be treated as a licensee under a li-
cense revocable at pleasure, and on plaintiffs’ revocation of the license
the railroad may be directed removed.

3. CourTs €&=406(1)—SUPREME COURT OF TERRITORY—REVIEW—DETERMINA -
TION OF LOWER COURT.

In reviewing a judgment of the Supreme Court of Porto Rico, in an
action where the local law governs, the Circuit Court of Appeals must
uphold the decision of the lower court, unless convinced that clear error
was committed.

4, ESTOPPEL &>93(4)—EQUITABLE ESTOPPEL—HoOW RAISED.

Though plaintiffs gave defendant an oral license to construct a rail-
road on their lands, and allowed the construction without objection, mak-
ing no objection to the operation of such road until after it had been con-
tinued for over five years, plaintiffs’ acquiescence did not, the railroad
not being used as a common carrier, but solely for defendant’s benefit,
ripen into an equitable estoppel, precluding plaintiffs from thereafter
requiring the removal of the road.

Appeal from and in Error to the Supreme Court of Porto Rico.

Action by José Maria Torres Pastoriza and others against the
Plazuela Sugar Company, begun in the district court for Porto Rico,
where the complaint was dismissed. On appeal to the Supreme Court
for Porto Rico, there was a judgment for plaintiffs, and defendant
appeals and brings error. Judgment appealed from affirmed, and writ
of error dismissed.

Joseph B. Jacobs, of Boston, Mass. (Cay. Coll Cuchi, of San Juan,
Porto Rico, and Jacobs & Jacobs, of Boston, Mass., on the brief), for
appellant and plaintiff in error.

Otto Schoenrich, of New York City (Curtis, Mallet-Prevost & Colt,
of New York City, on the brief), for appellees and defendants in
error.

Before DODGE and BINGHAM, Circuit Judges, and BROWN,
District Judge.

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER {n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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DODGE, Circuit Judge. Both these proceedings seek the reversal of
a judgment rendered by the Porto Rican Supreme Court July 28, 1916.
The judgment was rendered in a case originally brought by the appel-
lees and defendants in error here, hereinafter called plaintiffs, in the
district court of Arecibo, against the appellant and plaintiff in error,
hereinafter called defendant.

There is no dispute that the defendant, a corporation operating a
sugar mill in Arecibo, had in 1907 or 1908 built a private railroad,
which crossed lands owned by the plaintiffs, and had since operated
said railroad by running trains over it, which carried sugar cane to said
factory across the plaintiffs’ lands. Alleging that they had never “ex-
ecuted any deed of servitude on behalf of the defendant corporation,”
and had repeatedly requested the defendant to discontinue running
said trains and remove said tracks from their lands, the plaintiffs’ com-
plaint asked the court of first instance to declare that “no servitude ex-
isted on behalf of any estates of the defendant,” to enjoin further op-
eration of the railroad upon their lands and to order removal of the
tracks therefrom.

[1] From the dismissal of their complaint by said district court,
the plaintiffs appealed to the Supreme Court, which reversed the judg-
ment below and entered judgment in accordance with the prayers of
the complaint, which is the judgment now before us for review. We
see no reason to doubt that it is properly here under the appeal. The
assignments of error relied on are the same in both proceedings.

[2,3] The defendant showed no written grant from the plaintiffs of
any right"whatever to use their land, nor anything in writing evidencing
their consent, either to the original building of the railroad within
their premises or to its subsequent maintenance there. The defendant
relied solely on alleged oral consent by the plaintiffs to the building of
the railroad and their subsequent acquiescence without objection in its
operation. It did not appear that the plaintiffs ever requested the build-
ing of said railroad or were in any way benefited thereby. The oral
consent relied on was given upon a request by the defendant for per-
mission to lay its rails over the premises. No payment or other recom-
pense, either for permission to lay the rails or to maintain them, was
ever offered to or received by the plaintiffs, so far as shown. The Su-
preme Court held that there had been no consideration sufficient to
give the defendant the rights which it asserted.

Upon the evidence, we find no reason for differing from the conclu-
sions adopted by the Supreme Court. The plaintiffs, in our opinion,
sufficiently established their right to the relief sought. It could not
justly be said that the defendant had ever acquired rights against the
plaintiffs beyond those of a licensee under a license revokable at their
pleasure. The question was, of course, to be determined according to
the law of Porto Rico; and, so far as that law is involved, we must
uphold the decision of the court below, unless convinced that clear er-
ror was committed by it. Cardona v. Quinones, 240 U. S. 83, 88, 36
Sup. Ct. 346, 60 L. Ed. 538. Such conviction is wholly wanting in the.
present case, :
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[4] That the plaintiffs became equitably estopped to revoke the
license given when the railroad was built by their acquiescence in the
defendant’s subsequent use of their land, under the circumstances
shown, we are entirely unable to believe. No public right or conven-
ience is involved. We cannot hold that the plaintiffs have forfeited any
rights belonging to them as owners of their land, merely because they
have been accommodating enough to let the defendant use it as above,
without pay, for its own benefit, during the six or seven years preced-
ing their institution of this suit.

In No. 1262, the judgment appealed trom is affirmed, and the appel-
lees recover their costs of appeal.

In No. 1263, the writ of error is dismissed, without costs.

KANSAS CITY, C. & S. RY. CO. v. SHOEMAKER. *
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. September 3, 1917)
No. 4922,

1. TRIAL &=260(8)—INSTRUCTIONS—REQUESTS COVERED BY INSTRUCTIONS
GIVEN.

In a railway employé's action for injuries sustained in a collision at a
highway crossing between a railway motorcar and an automobile, the
court charged that if the operator of the motorcar saw or by the exercise
of ordinary care and prudence might have seen and anticipated the
approach of the motorcar, and avoided the collision, he was negligent,
that the jury must judge whether he saw or might have seen the auto-
mobile in time to stop and avoid the accident, and that it was incumbent
on him merely to take such observation as would apprise him of the
situation that there was or was likely to be impending danger, to such
an extent that it would become his duty to exercise ordinary care to
avoid it, and that, if he did not exercise such care, he was negligent.
Held, that this did not cover defendant’s requested instruction that the
operator was under no obligation to stop because he saw or might have
seen the automobile approaching, and that he had a right to assume that
the automobile driver would stop, and not attempt to cross the track.

2. MASTER AND SERVANT &==137(3), 293(19)—INJURIES TO EMPLOYE—OPERA-
TION OF RAILROADS—INSTRUCTION.

The requested charge stated a correct rule of law and should bave

been given.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Western
District of Missouri; Arba S. Van Valkenburgh, Judge.

Action by Harvey H. Shoemaker against the Kansas City, Clinton &
Springfield Railway Company. Judgment for plaintiff, and defendant
brings error. Reversed, and new trial ordered.

John H. Lucas, of Kansas City, Mo. (William C. Lucas, of Kansas
City, Mo., on the brief), for plaintiff in error.

H. M. Langworthy, of Kansas City, Mo. (J. C. Hargus, O. H. Dean,
and W. D. McLeod, all of Kansas City, Mo., on the brief), for de-
fendant in error.

&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
*Rehearing denied December 19, 1917,
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Before SANBORN and CARLAND, Circuit Judges, and BOOTH,
District Judge.

CARLAND, Circuit Judge. This is an action by Shoemaker against
the railway company to recover damages for a personal injury received
by him while riding upon a motorcar of the company, which was being
driven by another employé of the company by the name of Green. It
is conceded that the action arises under the act of Congress relating to
the liability of common carriers by railroads to their employés in certain
cases (35 Stat. 65) and the amendments thereto (36 Stat. 201). Comp.
St. 1916, §§ 8657-8665.

The injury to Shoemaker was caused by a collision between the
motorcar, as it is called in the evidence, with an automobile at a pub-
lic highway crossing. The negligence alleged in the petition is that of
Green, the employé of the railway company in charge of the motorcar,
saw or by the exercise of ordinary care could have seen that the auto-
mobile was approaching the crossing, and that said motorcar was liable
to strike said automobile ; that notwithstanding this fact Green continu-
ed to operate the motorcar at a high, dangerous, and reckless rate of
speed, and failed to exercise ordinary care to reduce the speed of said
motorcar, or stop the same, so as to prevent striking said automobile.
There was a verdict against the railway company, and it has brought
the case here assigning error.

[1] At the close of the evidence counsel for the railway company
requested the court to charge the jury as follows:

“The operator of the handcar was under no obligations to stop his car be-
cause he saw, or might have seen, the automobile approaching the crossing.
He had a right to presume that the driver of the automobile would stop, and
not attempt to cross the railroad track; and the mere fact, if it be a fact,

that the operator of the car saw the automobile approaching the track is not
sufficient to warrant a recovery in this case.”

The court refused to give this instruction, for the reason that it was
covered by the general charge, to which ruling counsel for the railway
company excepted. After the court had charged the jury, the follow-

ing remarks passed between court and cotnsel in the presence of the
jury:

“The defendant further excepts to the failure of the court to charge the
jury that no duty devolved upon the defendant, or its employés, to stop, or
attempt to stop, the car until such time as there was peril, and that, under
the evidence, there was no peril in the case until the witness Reeding, with
his automobile, attempted to cross the tracks.

“The Court: The court thought it had made that clear, but will state that,
in going along there, you must judge whether the employé, Green, at the
time saw, aor by the exercise of ordinary diligence might have seen, the ap-
proaching automobile, in such time as, with the instrumentalities at his hand,
to have stopped and.avoided the accident.

“Mr. Lucas: I think your hénor did not get the point. The point of the
objection is that the charge is misleading, in that the jury may assume, from
the charge, that Green, the witness, was required to take observation of the
fact that the automobile was approaching the track., He was under no duty
to stop his car, or attempt to stop his car, until such time as the automobile
was in such close proximity to the track that he saw, or could have seen,
that, if he didn’t stop it, there would be a collision.
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“The Court: The court intended the jury to understand that it was in-
cumbent upon the defendant merely to take such observation as would ap-
prise him of the situation, that there was. or was likely to be, impending
danger there, to such an extent that it would become his duty to exercise or-
dinary care and caution to avoid it, and that, if you find that, at any point,
that was true, and that the defendant, through its employé, with the means
at hand, did not exercise all that care and caution that an ordinarily careful
and prudent man would to avoid the accident, them, of course, that would
be pegligence on his part; otherwise, if he did do all he could do under the
circumstances.”

The language used by the court was in line with the general instruc-
tion previously given by the court, which was to the effect that if
Green saw or by the exercise of ordinary care and prudence might have
seen and anticipated the approach of the motorcar, and with the means
and instrumentalities at his command, might have avoided the colli-
sion, then he was guilty of negligence. In other words, whether Green
was negligent or not was made to depend upon whether he by the exer-
cise of ordinary care might have seen and anticipated the approach of
the car. The element that Green had a right to presume that the driver
of the automobile would stop, and not attempt to cross the railroad
track, which is contained in the requested instruction, was entirely omit-
ted from the general charge.

[2] The charge requested stated a correct rule of law applicable to
the evidence, and should have been given. A majority of the court are
also of the opinion that the motion for a directed verdict in favor of
the railway company should have been given, but all are agreed that,
if the case was one for the jury, then the refusal to charge as above re-
quested, was error. .

Judgment reversed, and a new trial ordered.

PFEIL v. JAMISON.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Third Circuit. October 11, 1917.)
No. 2238.

APPEAL AND ERROR &=1106(4)—DETERMINATION—REVERSAL. .

Where an action for damages for false imprisonment was heard on the
pleadings, and the questions involving police powers of a large municipali-
ty in times of widespread disorder could be far more intelligently disposed
of when the evidence had been heard and was before the appellate court,
the judgment will be reversed, and the case remanded for disposition on
the evidence.

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania. _

Action by Melvin Pfeil, a citizen and resident of the state of Ohio,
against Samuel C. Jamison, a citizen and resident of the state of
Pennsylvania. There was a judgment for defendant, and plaintiff
brings error. Reversed and remanded, with directions.

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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George J. Shaffer, of Pittshurgh, Pa., for plaintiff in error.
Charles H. Kline and C. A. Waldschmidt, both of Pittsburgh, Pa.,
for defendant in error.

Before BUFFINGTON, McPHERSON, and WOOLLEY, Circuit
Judges.

PER CURIAM. This was an action for damages for false im-
prisonment. ‘The case was heard in the court below on the pleadings
alone, and a judgment was entered thereon in favor of the defendant.
The questions involved concern the police powers of a large munici-
pality in times of widespread disorder. Without, at present, ex-
pressing any opinion whatever on the important and far-reaching ques-
tions discussed by counsel, we are of opinion the case could be far
more intelligently and wisely disposed of by this court when the evi-
dence has been heard and is before us,

Without, therefore, indicating any view upon the subject, and solely
with a view of having the light of the proofs to hereafter aid us, we
reverse this judgment, and remand the cause to the court below for
the further procedure indicated; the costs in this court to await the
further order of this court on thé final disposition of the cause.

VAN CHOATE v. GENERAL ELECTRIC CO.
(District Court, D. Massachusetts. March 13, 1917.)
‘No. 7.

1. Courts €=363—FEDERAL COURTS—SURVIVAL OF ACTIONS—LAW GOVERN-
ING.

There being no federal statute defining what causes of action survive, a
cause of action arising under the common law or under the statute of a
state is governed by the lex loci, and causes of action arising under the
laws of the United States by the principles of the common law.

2. ABATEMENT AND REVIVAL &=57—SUBVIVAL OF ACTIONS—ACTIONS FOR
PENALTIES.

Under Rev. St. § 4919 (Comp. St. 1916, § 9464), providing that dam-
ages for the infringement of any patent may be recovered by action on
the case, and that the court may enter judgment for any sum above the
amount found by the verdict as the actual. damages, according to the cir-
cumstances of the case, not exceeding three times the amount of the ver-
dict, the additional compensation given by the statute has no relation to
the infringer’s profits, but is based solely on the patentee’s damages, and
is therefore in the nature of a penalty, and the claim does not survive;
causes of actions for penalties not surviving at common law.

3. ABATEMENT AND REVIVAL @=57—SURVIVAL OF ACTIONS—STATUTORY AC-
TIONS.

A claim for actual damages for the infringement of a patent, under Rev.
St. § 4919 (Comp. St. 1916, § 9464), does not survive the death of the
patentee.

At Law. Action by one Van Choate against the General Electric
Company. On motion by Georgiana C. Van Choate, administratrix,
for leave to appear and prosecute the action. Motion disallowed.

&> For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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S. A. Fuller, W. E. Bowden, Linville H. Wardwell, and Nason &
Proctor, all of Boston, Mass., for plaintiff.
Robert T. Herrick, for defendant.

MORTON, District Judge. This is an action of tort to recover
damages for infringement of the plaintiff’s patent, “together with such
additional amount, not exceeding in the whole three times the amount
of such actual damage, as to this honorable court may seem meet and
just under the circumstances.” It is brought under Rev. St. § 4919
(Comp. St. 1916, § 9464), and is an “action on the case” within that
statute.

Several motions were made to amend the declaration. One of them
was heard and disallowed by Judge Lowell on February 26, 1907. No
action appears to have been taken on the others. The case stands on
the original declaration, filed on July 22, 1903, and on the original an-
swer, filed December 26, 1907, which begins with a plea of not guilty.
On March 29, 1910, the plaintiff died. Georgiana C. Van Choate, rep-
resenting herself to be his administratrix, has filed a suggestion of his
death, and has moved for leave to appear and prosecute the action.
The motion is resisted, upon the ground that the cause of action did
not survive, and that the action abated on the death of the plaintiff.

[1] There is no United States statute defining what causes of action
survive. Rev. St. § 955 (Comp. St. 1916, § 1592), provides only that,
“in case the cause of action survives by law,” the representative of the
deceased party may come in. What those causes are is left to be de-
termined by state statutes when those are applicable, and by common
law when they are not.

Where the cause of action arises under the commaqn law or under
the statute of a state, its survivorship is governed by the lex loci. Mar-
tinv. B. & O.R. R, 151 U. 8. 673, 691, 14 Sup. Ct. 533, 38 L. Ed. 311;
B. & O. R. R. Co. v. Joy, 173 U. S. 226, 19 Sup. Ct. 387, 43 L.. Ed. 677.
In causes of action which arise solely under the laws of the United
States, survivorship is determined according to the principles of the
common law. Schreiber v. Sharpless, 110 U. S. 76, 3 Sup. Ct. 423, 28
L. Ed. 65. At common law, actions ex delicto did not survive, except
in a few instances, in which the injured party had the right to waive
the tort and sue in assumpsit. Patton v. Brady, Ex’x, 184 U. S. 608,
614, 22 Sup. Ct. 493, 46 L. Ed. 713; Phillips v. Homf{ray, 24 Ch. D. 439;
U. S. v. Daniels, 6 How. 11, 12 I.. Ed. 323. Actions for mere injuries
not resulting in profit to the wrongdoer did not survive either his death
or that of the injured party. Henshaw v. Miller, 17 How. 212, 219,
222, 15 L. Ed. 222. Penal actions, for obvious reasons, come within
the class which are abated by death. Schreiber v. Sharpless, supra.

[2] The additional compensation mentioned by the statute has no
relation to profits made by the infringer, but is based solely on dam-
ages sustained by the patentee. It may largely exceed any gains which
the infringer actually made from his wrongdoing. It is therefore in the
nature of a penalty, and the claim for it does not survive. F. Speidel
Co. v. Barstow Co. (D. C. R. 1) 232 Fed. 618.

[3] But the plaintiff claims, not only the additional (or penal) com-
pensation referred to, but also actual damages; and the two are evi-
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dently separable. If the action for such damages survives, the admin-

istratrix ought to be allowed to come in and prosecute, and the motion

before me ought to be allowed. I rule that the claim for damages does

not survive, and that no cause of action which survives the plaintiff’s

death is stated in the declaration. Cases supra. I therefore disallow

the motion of the administratrix for leave to appear and prosecute.
Motion disallowed.

'

INTERCONTINENTAL RUBBER CO. v. BOSTON & M. R. R.
(District Court, D. Massachusetts. February 26, 1917.)
No. 744.

1. RATLROADS €&=206—POWER OF DIRECTORS—PROCEEDINGS FOR RECEIVERSHIP..
The board of directors of a railroad company, with the approval of a
majority of the stockholders, has power to initiate proceedings looking to-
a receivership, by procuring the filing of a bill by a bona fide creditor, the
allegations of which are admitted for the company, and there is no impro-
priety in such proceeding, where the directors act in good faith, solely for:
the interests of the company, and in view of its duty to the public as
a common carrier.
2, RAILROADS ¢&=205—“INSOLVENCY ’—RECEIVERS,

By “insolvency” of a railroad company is meant inability to meet its-
obligations as they mature in the ordinary course of business, and at the
same time to carry on its business in a proper way, and perform its
public duties.

[Ed. Note.—For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and
Second Series, Insolvency.]

In Equity. Suit by the Intercontinental Rubber Company against
the Boston & Maine Railroad. On application for appointment of
permanent receiver. Granted.

Boyd B. Jones, of Boston, Mass., for plaintiff.
George L. Mayberry, of Boston, Mass., for defendant.

MORTON, District Judge. At the conclusion of the hearing I
orally stated my findings of fact substantially as follows:

“There are but two issues which have been heard here. They have been
very clearly outlined. The first is whether the receivership was brought
about by fraud on the part of the board of directors as at present constituted.
That issue was not raised by the interests represented by Mr. French; their
contention being, as I understand it, less as to the facts than' as to the law.
It was raised by the minority interests, represented by Mr. Crooker, who have
been allowed to present all relevant evidence upon that question which they
desired to offer.

“It seems to me that the long hearing which we have been through has
served one useful purpose. It must have satisfied everybody who followed the
case that there is not the slightest foundation for the charges of fraud made:
against the present board of directors. It must be clear to everybody who
has followed the evidence that the present board of directors has acted with.
integrity and ability, for the best interests of the Boston & Maine Railroad as
they saw them. There is no necessity for further comment on the evidence
on this point. That disposes of the first of the questions raised by the inter-
ests represented by Mr. Crooker.

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes-
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“It follows that the answer admitting the allegations of the bill was not,
as those petitioners to intervene allege, a fraudulent answer, made in bad
faith, and not adequately representing or speaking for the interests of the cor-
poration itself, but that it was an answer filed in good faith for the defend-
ant corporation by its officers honestly acting for it. As such, if the officers
acted within their authority, a question which I shall take up later, it is the
act of the respondent corporation, and constitutes a sufficient and binding ad-
mission of the allegations in the bill of complaint. Those being established, it
would follow that a receiver ought to be appointed, if the allegations in the
bill are sufficient. They plainly are. Indeed, no question that they are not
sufficient, when taken in connection with the answer, has been raised. The
receivership ought, therefore, to be continued, and a receiver ought to be
appointed for all purposes prayed for in the bill, if the respondent’s officers
and directors had power and authority to do what they did. The parties
represented by Mr. French deny that the officers and directors had such
power and authority, and desire to submit briefs. So I will not decide that
question of law at present.

“I decide now that there is no evidence warranting any finding of fraud,
or bad faith, or any imputation of that sort, against the present board of
directors, and that their acts, so far as they had the power and authority,
are binding upon the Boston & Maine Railroad.

[2] “As to the other question which has‘been heard before me, viz. whether
the respondent is insolvent, the finding which I have just made, that the
answer is valid, establishes the allegations of insolvency in the bill, along
with its other allegations. However, as the petitioner Green was allowed to
present and did present a great deal of evidence upon this point, I may say
that I think it clear that the property of the Boston & Maine Railroad, at a
fair valuation, largely exceeds its debts. Indeed, no contention to the con-
trary is made. Speaking in the bankruptcy sense, the road is plainly not in-
solvent. But we are not dealing with insolvency here in that sense. What
we mean by ‘“insolvency” in this proceeding is the road’s inability to meet
its obligations as they mature in the ordinary course of business, and at the
same time to carry on its business in a proper way and perform its public
duties. This involves an examination of its salable assets (meaning those
which could be sold without impairing its ability to carry on its business) and
its borrowing power. The salable assets were by no means sufficient to pro-
vide for its maturing indebtedness. That could have been done only by bor-
rowing.

“The evidence discloses differences of opinion about the respondent’s bor-
rowing capacity. As to whether the notes could have been again extended
by a united effort, I think there is fair ground for difference of opinion. We
have, however, the unanimous, deliberate judgment of the board of directors,
concurred in by such financial men as they consulted, that it was not possible
for the road to renew the notes in any satisfactory way, and that, if it did
renew them, it would be simply temporizing with a situation which needed
permanent relief. Upon that question I think that the honest judgment of
the men in charge of the property is entitled to greater weight than the con-
trary opinion, expressed by persons not charged with any responsibility to
make their forecast good. I think—and I find—that the allegations of in-
solvency in the bill are established, not only by the admission in the answer,
but by the decided weight of the evidence.

“I will hold the case upon this question of law, whether the directors had
the right and authority to do what they did in bringing about the receiver-
ship, which, as I understand it, is the question on which Mr. French desires
to be heard. Upon that question the effect of the ratification by the stock-
holders and any other significant facts will be considered.”

Those findings disposed of the disputed questions of fact. In con-
nection with the law questions raised by the petitioners Streeter and
Lawrence, certain other facts as to which there was little or no dis-
pute should be stated.
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For a period of at least two years preceding the filing of this bill
it had been generally recognized that the financial structure of the
Boston & Maine was unsound, and its financial position somewhat pre-
carious. A radical reorganization was believed to be necessary by
most of the persons in interest. FEfforts had been made to obtain
legislation for that purpose in the northern New England states and
in Massachusetts. During this period the corporation was carrying
a large floating debt, evidenced by outstanding notes of comparatively
short terms. From time to time various issues of these notes fell due
and were extended by the holders at the request of the respondent.
Payments on account of the principal were made from the sale or
exchange of securities owned by the respondent, transactions which
showed a substantial loss to it. An important consideration in ob-
taining from the note holders the necessary extensions of their notes
had been the fact that the management of the Boston & Maine was
actively engaged in the effort to reorganize it. Under date of Febru-
ary 11, 1916, the stockholders were informed, in substance, that if
the reorganization plans failed @ receivership would probably be nec-
essary. In the early summer of 1916 it became certain that the legis-
Jation necessary to a reorganization could not be obtained in the im-
mediate future. There had been some difficulty before that in get-
ting extensions on the notes becoming due, and it had been impossible
for the management to be certain, much in advance of the dates when
the notes actually became payable, whether enough of them would be
extended to enable the company to continue.

In order to be ready for emergencies, a bill of complaint, praying
for the appointment of receivers, had been prepared by counsel for
the company in conference with Hon. Marcus P. Knowlton, the chair-
man of the federal trustées, and had lain in the files of the company.
In August, 1916, this bill was taken from the files, the figures in it
were brought up to date, and it was in other ways perfected and
made ready for filing in court. The Intercontinental Rubber Company
was requested to become complainant in the bill and to file it. It did
so, upon the understanding that it would not be put to substantial ex-
pense by reason thereof. The request to the complainant was made
with the knowledge and assent of the respondent’s counsel, but no
vote authorizing it was ever passed by the board of directorsy The
directors believed that a receivership was unavoidable, and those of
them who were familiar with legal matters supposed that it would
be brought about by a friendly suit filed in this court by a creditor re-
siding outside of Massachusetts. The course taken was similar to
that frequently, if not generally, adopted in receivership proceedings.
It accords with the “silent practice of the court” (Illinois Central R.
R. Co. v. Turrill, 110 U. S. 304, 4 Sup. Ct. 5, 28 L. Ed. 154), and
was approved in the Metropolitan Railway Receivership Case, 208
U. S. 90, at page 110, 28 Sup. Ct. 219, 52 L. Ed. 403. It is objected
to by the parties represented by Mr. French, but I see nothing to crit-
icize in it. The directors of the respondent company unanimously
voted that an answer be filed, admitting the allegations in the bill. The
Rubber Company is a bona fide creditor of the respondent, as stated
in the bill, upon notes held by it since 1913, which were not acquired
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with any view to their use in proceedings of this character. Upon
Ehis bill and answer a temporary receiver was appointed on August
9, 1916.

Under date of September 5th a stockholders’ meeting was called
to see what action the stockholders of the respondent would take with
reference to the bill of complaint and the proceedings of the board
of directors regarding it, and their action in filing the answer above
referred to. The call for the meeting was broad enough to bring
the conduct of the directors in reference to the receivership up for ac-
tion by way either of disaffirmance or ratification. The meeting was
held on September 19, 1916. By a vote of 325,000 shares to 8,000,
the action of the directors was fully ratified. No sufficient reason
has been shown why the stock owned by the Boston Holding Com-
pany (i. e., that controlled by the federal trustees, amounting to 225,-
000 shares) should not be considered on this vote. But, even if it be
disregarded, more than 10 times as many shares voted to ratify the
action of the directors as voted against such ratification.

[1] From the foregoing statement it is clear that the receivership
proceedings were in reality brought about by the respondent itself.
Its representatives, in doing so, acted after careful consideration, in
entire good faith, and in the belief that a receivership was the best,
if not the only, course open to the respondent in the circumstances
in which it was placed; and their action was approved by the stock-
holders. The minority stockholders do not contend that they are
being treated differently from the other stockholders. No disadvan-
tages are being imposed on them which are not also imposed on the
majority. No advantages are being received by the majority stock-
holders which are not equally shared by the minority stockholders.
There is no suggestion that the owners of the majority stock are
profiting in any way at the expense of the minority.

It is said by the objecting minority that one purpose which the di-
rectors had in mind in bringing about a receivership was to accomplish
a reorganization of the company; that most of the directors have ex-
pressed approval of the principle of a certain plan of reorganization;
that this plan is grossly unfair to the common stockholders of the re-
spondent; and that a receivership is asked for as a means of co-
ercing them into acceptance of it. There is no dispute that the direc-
tors regard a reorganization of the company as essential, nor that the
majority of them are in accord with the outlines of a plan for such
reorganization, nor that, after the hope of legislation was abandoned,
a receivership was sought in part for the purpose of making it easier
to accomplish a reorganization. That there was any intent on the part
of the directors, or of the majority stockholders, to coerce the minori-
ty into such a reorganization through a receivership, is not established.
Judge Knowlton, who is strongly opposed to the proposed plan of re-
organization and has publicly stated his dissent therefrom, advised re-
ceivership and voted for it as a director.

The proposed plan of reorganization is in no sense fraudulent;
under it the objecting stockholders are treated exactly like all other
common stockholders. They object to it, not because of inequality or



126 245 FEDERAL REPORTER

discrimination in the treatment accorded them, but because in their
judgment the respondent can go on without a reorganization, and
because they fear an unfair reorganization. It is not to be over-
looked that under a receivership the affairs of a corporation are, to
a considerable extent, under the control of the court; and it is at
least probable that the power of the court could be so exercised as
to prevent an oppressive and unjust reorganization, if that were
attempted. The management of a corporation rests with the own-
ers of the majority of the stock. So long as they act honestly, they
are entitled to carry out their judgment on business questions which
arise, and in business difficulties to take such course as they deem best.
The case presents to my mind nothing but an acute difference of opin-
ion upon a matter of business policy and action between the directors
and the owners of an overwhelming majority of the stock on one side
and a comparatively small, but contentious, group of minority stock-
holders on the other, who appear to have resorted to charges of “fraud”
or of “breach of duty” in an effort to obscure the exact nature of their
real complaint. -

The majority of the stockholders were not obliged, as a matter of
law, to wait until the corporation was actually in default in the pay-
ment of its notes, and its property had perhaps been attached on mesne
process for large amounts, nor to make efforts to secure further ex-
tensions which they believed it unwise, and perhaps unfair to note-
holders, to ask for, before applying for a receiver. They had the
right, if not the duty, to consider, not merely the present emergency,
but the future conduct of the company’s business, and its performance
in a proper way of its duties to the public as a common carrier—a
point to which the minority interests pay insufficient attention, as it
- seems to me. Whether the directors alone had power, without ex-
press authority from the stockholders, to initiate proceedings looking
to the appointment of receivers and to the transfer of the corpora-
tion’s property from its own hands to those of a receiver, it is not
necessary to determine, because what the directors did in that respect
was fully and completely ratified by the stockholders.

It is still true that, even if the directors and the majority of the
stockholders acted in good faith and, as they believed, for the best
interests of the corporation, the court is not absolutely bound to ap-
point a receiver as prayed for. It might, in the exercise of its dis-
cretionary power, refuse to do so, if confident that there was no real
necessity for such action, and that the application was improvidently
and unwisely made. The facts above stated sufficiently indicate that
this is not such a case. Ubpon the facts as they appear, a receiver for
the purposes of the bill ought to be appointed. The complainant
may present a decree on due notice to other parties.
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INTERCONTINENTAL RUBBER CO. v. BOSTON & M. R. R.
(District Court, D. Massachusetts. April 17, 1917.)
No. 744.

RECEIVERS &=90—TEMPORARY RECEIVERS—PAYMENTS FOR PRESERVATION OF
STAaTUS QUO.

It is the duty of a temporary receiver of a railroad company to preserve
the property in statu quo as nearly as practicable, and where the defend-
ant had recognized its obligation under the lease of a leased line to pay in-
terest on notes of the lessor, and the failure to pay maturing interest
would raise a serious question of the right of the lessor to forfeit the
lease for such nonpayment, the receiver may properly be instructed to
advance the money to the lessor to make such payment, reserving the
right to a permanent receiver to disaffirm the lease, and to all parties in
:'ulllterest to litigate any question arising out of it in the further progress of
the case.

In Equity. Suit by the Intercontinental Rubber Company against the
Boston & Maine Railroad. On receiver’s petition for instructions.
Instructions given.

Boyd B. Jones, of Boston, Mass., for plaintiff.
George L. Mayberry, of Boston, Mass., for defendant.

MORTON, District Judge. The temporary receiver petitions for
instructions whether he shall pay interest on certain notes issued by the
Connecticut River Railroad Company. At the hearing before me
counsel appeared and were heard for the Connecticut River Railroad
Company, for the commonwealth of Massachusetts, for the complain-
ant, and for the respondent; and Mr. French, counsel for old and
large stockholding interests in the Boston & Maine Railroad, was asked
by the court to present his views as an amicus curiz, and did so.

The facts are substantially as stated in the receiver’s petition. The
notes in question, amounting to $2,000,000, were issued by the Connecti-
cut River Railroad Company, bearing date of July 1, 1914, payable in
one year, to the order of the maker. They were indorsed by it and
turned over to the Boston & Maine Railroad, by which they were nego-
tiated. They have been extended from time to time.

The circumstances which led to the issue of the notes were as fol-
lows: The Boston & Maine Railroad holds the property of the Con-
necticut River Railroad Company under a long-term lease, under
which it had the right to make improvements and additions, which
were to be paid for by the lessor. The Boston & Maine Railroad made
improvements, for which it paid about $500,000, and as to the legality
and propriety of which no question is now made. It also constructed
an extension of the lessor’s railroad from Dole, N. H., to Brattleboro,
or rather to the Vermont line, near Brattleboro, at a cost of about
$1,500,000. By the terms of the lease the lessee was to be paid for
such expenditures, assuming them to be proper, by the issue of “stock

“or bonds” by the lessor. .When the lessee called upon the lessor for
the repayment of the expenditures referred to, both of them agreed
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that it was an inopportune time for the lessor to issue stocks or bonds.
They both agreed, therefore, to the issue of short-term notes, which
resulted in the indebtedness now before the court. The Boston &
Maine Railroad is not a party to these notes, which are an obligation of
the Connecticut River Railroad Company alone. :

Under the lease the lessee agrees to pay the interest on stock or
bonds issued by the lessor in repayment of expenditures by the lessee;
and there is a right of immediate forfeiture and re-entry reserved to
the lessor for the lessee’s failure to make such payments. As to cer-
tain other indebtedness of the lessor, arising during the continuance
of the lease, and as to the payment of which the lessee is under cer-
-tain obligations, there is no right of immediate forfeiture for the les-
see’s failure.

It is contended by the Connecticut River Railroad Company that
the notes in question are covered by the word “bonds” in the lease,
and that, if the interest on them be not paid, the Connecticut River
Railroad Company will have the right to terminate its lease. On the
other side, it is contended by the commonwealth, as a large creditor of
the Boston & Maine Railroad, and by Mr. French, that railroad bonds
stand on a very different footing, under our law, from notes for a
term of one year or less, and that when the lessor and lessee agreed
to an issue of notes, instead of stock or bonds, they must have under-
stood that no right of forfeiture for nonpayment of interest would ex-
ist in favor of the lessor under the lease. This is also the view of the
respondent.

Mr. French goes much farther, and suggests that the expenditure of
$1,500,000 for the Brattleboro extension was unauthorized by law, and
was illegal; that the present notes, having been issued for the purpose
of obtaining funds to make an illegal payment, are invalid; and that
the receiver ought to be instructed to pay neither interest nor princi-
pal on them.

The suggestion seems premature. The petitioner for instructions
is only a temporary receiver. As such it is his duty to keep the prop-
erty along in substantially the same condition as he finds it. To some
extent this may require new work in carrying out policies previously
entered upon; but, generally speaking, his proper function is to pre-
serve things in statu quo as nearly as practicable. Prior to the re-
ceivership the Boston & Maine Railroad had been paying interest on
the indebtedness represented by these notes and treating it as a valid
obligation. The temporary receiver has been paying, without prejudice
to anybody’s rights, and without in any way binding the respondent,
sums equal to the rentals under the various leases, and to interest or
dividends where payments thereof were included as rent under leases.

While the contention that these notes are not “bonds,” and that there
is no right of forfeiture for failure to pay interest on them, has much
to support it, it cannot be said that there are not weighty arguments
the other way. It is obviously undesirable to pass on the validity of the
notes without having the holders of them in court, so as to be heard
and be bound by the decision, if adverse to them. The temporary re-
ceiver ought not to take any step which might result in changing the
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situation of the respondent in such a vital matter as the cancellation
of this lease. As between paying a sum equivalent to rent, which
might perhaps be avoided, and refusing to pay it and thereby perhaps
forfeiting the lease, the former is, in my opinion, the alternative which
should be taken by him.

Without passing on the validity of the notes in question or decid-
ing whether nonpayment of the interest here in question would give
the lessor an immediate right of forfeiture and re-entry, and without
prejudice to the rights of any party to raise again all questions pre-
sented by this petition for instructions, the receiver will be instructed
to tender to the Connecticut River Railroad Company a sum equal to
the interest on the notes in question. Said sum is to be paid and re-
ceived under an express agreement. that such action by the temporary
-receiver is not an affirmance or adoption of the lease, and is not to
alter or affect any rights either of the respondent, the receiver, or the
Connecticut River Railroad Company under or growing out of the
lease in question.

In re GEORGALAS BROS.
s (District Court, N. D. Ohio, E. D. September 11, 1917.)
No. 6325.

1. LANDLORD AND TENANT &=T9(2)—ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE—RIGHTS OF As-
SIGNEE.

Even though an assignment or transfer of a lease by a partnership to
one of its members was not a breach of the covenant therein against as-
signment without the lessor’s consent and gave the lessor no right to avoid
the lease, the assignee nevertheless took the lease subject to such cove-
nant.

2. LANDLORD AND TENANT &==T76(2)—ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE—BREACH OF COVE-
NANTS.

An adjudication in bankruptcy against a partnership operates as a
transfer to the trustee by operation of law of a lease held by one of the
partners, within a covenant in the lease authorizing the lessor to avoid
the lease and retake possession if the lessee should become bankrupt, or
if the lease should pass by transfer, operation of law, or otherwise from
the lessee to any other party without the lessor’s written consent, even
though the partnership alone, and not the members of the firm, was ad-
judged a bankrupt.

8. LANDLORD AND TENANT &=104—RIGHT TO AVOID LEASE—TRANSFER BY
OPERATION OF Law,

A lease may be so framed that a transfer by operation of law will
avoid it, at the lessor’s option.

4, LANDLORD AND TENANT &=112(1)—TRANSFER OF LEASE—WAIVER OF FOR-
FEITURE.

Where the receiver in bankruptcy of a partnership was in the posses-
sion of leased premises from the date of the filing of the petition until
possession was taken by the trustee, and the lessor did not assume any
position inconsistent with his right to avoid the lease, or do any act
which could be construed as waiving such right, but notified the partner-
ship and the members thereof of his election to avoid the lease, and ap-
peared and filed an answer claiming that the lease had been forfeited, and
asked for an order surrendering the premises to him, he did not waive his
right to avoid the lease under a provision therein authorizing him to avoid
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. it in case of a transfer by operation of law or otherwise, as he could
not avail himself of the right accorded him by the lease to retake pos-
session while the premises were in the possession of the receiver.

In Bankruptcy. In the matter of Georgalas Bros., a partnership,
bankrupt. On petition for review of an order of the referee. Revers-
ed, with instructions.

McKain & Ohl, of Youngstown, Ohio, for trustee.
Wilson & Wilson, of Youngstown, Ohio, for petitioner.

WESTENHAVER, District Judge. The controversy here relates
to a lease which the trustee claims the right to sell, and which the lessor,
the H. L. McElroy Company, claims is void, and the premises covered
thereby should be surrendered to it: The lease is dated April 28, 1915,
- and is for a term of 10 years, commencing May 15, 1915, and the lessor,:
the H. L. McElroy Company, thereby leases to one Gust Georgalas
certain premises, which were afterwards used by the bankrupt partner-
ship in which to conduct a restaurant business.” This lease contains the
following provision:

“It is mutually covenanted and agreed by and between the parties hereto
that if the rent at any time shall be in arrears and unpaid for the space of
thirty (30) days, or if there shall be any breach of any of the covenantg and
agreements herein contained on the part of the lessee, or if the lessee shall be
adjudged bankrupt; or shall make an assignment for the benefit of his credi-
tors, or if this lease shall pass by transfer, operation of law, or otherwise from
said lessee to any other party without the written consent of the lessor, or if
said premises or any part thereof shall be underlet contrary to the terms here-
of, the lessor may, without notice to the lessee or other occupant of the prem-
ises, and without demand for rent due, avoid this lease and enter into posses-
sion of the premises and remove all persons and property therefrom and
bring its action for the recovery of rent due at the rate aforesaid up to the time
of such entry, or it may bring such action without avoiding this lease, at its
election, and no waiver by the lessor of its rights to avoid this lease by reason
of any breach of any covenant upon the part of the lessee shall constitute a
waiver of its right to avoid the lease on account of any other or further
breaches of any such covenants or agreements. Every demand for rent, made
after it falls due, shall have the same effect in law as if made at the time it
falls due, any law of the land or rule in equity to the contrary notwith-
standing.”

Gust Georgalas, the lessee, assigned this lease April 20, 1917, to Geor-
galas Bros., a partnership consisting of Gust, Theodore, and James
Georgalas. The lessor did not consent in writing to this assignment,
but undoubtedly accepted the assignees as tenants, and waived a breach
of the covenants above quoted.

Later, May 26, 1917, Georgalas Bros., by Gust Georgalas, assigned
this lease to Theodore Georgalas. The lessor consented to this trans-
fer in writing the same date, indorsed on the lease. Some question is
made as to whether this assignment is sufficient, on the facts disclosed
in the record, to transfer title from the partnership to the individual
partner, thereby making the unexpired term of the lease an asset of
the individual partner, rather than of the partnership. I shall assume
that the transfer is valid.

At the time of this transfer the lessor took a chattel mortgage on the
personal property of the partnership to secure 12 promissory notes,
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each for $333.33, payable monthly thereafter. These notes and the
chattel mortgage securing the same were for the rent thereafter to be-
come due. On June 1, 1917, the partnership, by Theodore Georgalas,
filed a voluntary petition in bankruptcy. On the same date an order
was made appointing a receiver, who took possession of all the property
of the partnership, including the personal property covered by the
chattel mortgage and the leased premises.

Owing to a delay in giving notice to the partners, who did not join
in the petition in bankruptcy, an adjudication in bankruptcy was de-
"layed; but on July 2, 1917, the partnership, consisting of Gust, James,
and Theodore Georgalas, was duly adjudged bankrupt as a partnership.
The individual members of the partnership were not expressly adjudged
to be bankrupts.

Later, on July 27, 1917, the trustee in bankruptcy filed a petition to
sell the unexpired term of the lease. The lessor appeared, and claims
that the lease is forfeited by virtue of the provisions of the lease above
quoted, and asks that the trustee be ordered to surrender the same to it.
An order was made by the referee, denying the lessor the relief asked,
and directing the trustee to sell the unexpired term. It is to this order
that the lessor has filed the petition for a review.

The referee, in his opinion, holds that the covenant against assign-
ing or subletting is not broken, because the lessor has both waived and
consented thereto, and that the partnership only was adjudged a bank-
rupt, that Theodore Georgalas, as an individual, was not adjudged a
bankrupt, and therefore the covenant against bankruptcy is not broken.

[1] If it be true that the partnership had assigned or transferred
the lease to Theodore Georgalas without breaking any covenant, or giv-
ing the lessor any right to avoid the lease, nevertheless Theodore took
the lease subject to these covenants. The question, then, is whether
the lease has passed “by operation of law or otherwise from said lessee
to any other person without the written consent of the lessor.”

[2] It is not asserted that the lessor had consented, in writing or
otherwise, to the transfer of this lease by operation of law to the trus-
tee. 'The only right of the trustee to sell the lease is by virtue of the
transfer thereof by operation of law to him. It is inconsistent to as-
sert title in the trustee by operation of law, and yet to say that the title
still remains in Theodore, and that the covenapt is not broken. An ad-
judication in bankruptcy against a partnership, it is settled law in this
circuit, operates to transfer by law to the trustee all the property and
assets of the individual members of the partnership. Ft. Pitt Coal &
Coke Co. v. Diser, 239 Fed. 443, 152 C. C. A. 321, 38 Amer. Bankr.
R. 566. It is by virtue of this legal effect of an adjudication of the
partnership to be bankrupt that the trustee acquirés a right or title
to this lease. It is equally effective to operate as a transfer by opera-
tion of law of the lease, so as to bring about a violation of this cove-
nant.

[3] It is also settled law that a lease may be so framed that a trans-
fer by operation of law will avoid the same at the option of the lessor.
Gazlay v. Williams, 210 U. S. 41, 28 Sup..Ct. 687, 52 L. Ed. 950; In
re Frazin, 183 Fed. 28, 105 C. C. A. 320, 33 L. R. A. (N. S.) 745 (2
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C. C. A). 'The covenants above quoted, when properly interpreted
and understood, bring the facts within its terms, and the lessor’s right
to avoid the same is well established, and is sustained by the authori-
ties above cited.

[4] In oral argument, counsel for the trustee relied on the position
that the lessor had not done that which was necessary to avoid this lease
according to the covenants above quoted. The lessor notified the part-
nership and the individual members thereof of his election to avoid the
lease. It appeared and filed an answer, claiming that the lease had been
forfeited, and asked for an order surrendering the premises. A re--
ceiver was in charge of these premises from June 1, 1917, until posses-
sion was taken by the trustee. There is no evidence to show that the
lessor, after the appointment of the receiver, assumed any position in-
consistent with its present claim of its right to avoid this lease, or that
it did any act which could be construed as waiving its right so to do.
Manifestly, with a receiver in possession, the lessor could not avail
itself of the right accorded by the provisions above quoted to enter
into possession of the premises and remove all persons and property
therefrom. It could do no more than bring its rights in due time to
the notice of the bankruptey court. This it has done. In re Frazin, 183
Fed. 28, 105 C. C. A. 320, 33 L. R. A. (N. S.) 745 (2 C. C. A\) is suffi-
cient authority for the proposition that no waiver arises on these facts
against the lessor.

The judgment and order of the referee will be reversed, with instruc-
tions to proceed further in conformity to the conclusions herein set
forth. An exception may be noted to this ruling,

BROOKLYN HEIGHTS R. CO. v. STRAUS et al.
(District Court, E. D. New York. August 23, 1917)

1. JUDGMENT &=563(2)—RES JUDICATA—QUASHING WRIT.

Judgment quashing a writ of certiorari to review an order as supported
only by allegations constituting conclusions, instead of by the necessary
allegations of fact, is npot res judicata in suit for relief against the
order as illegal.

2, CARRIERS €&==2—ORDERS OF PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION—JUDICIAL RE-
VIEW.

Public Service Commission Law New York (Consol, Laws, c. 48) is not
unconstitutional because not expressly providing for appeal from orders
of the commission, the method of review by certiorari under Code Civ.
Proc. N. Y., § 2120 et seq., being applicable, and any abuse of discretion in
refusing the writ being subject of appeal, and a suit to set aside an order
being available. ’

3. CARRIERS &=2—PENALTIES,

Public Service Commission Law New York, § 56, providing a penalty of
$5,000 a day for violation of an order of the commission, does not make
.the statute unconstitutional on the theory that such an amount may com-
pel obedience even to a confiscatory order; section 24 providing for re-
mission of the penalty during pendency of a suit in good faith to set
aside an order.
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4, STATUTES &=64(2)—PARTIAL INVALIDITY.
The subject of penalties in Public Service Commission Law New York,
being a separable feature, if unconstitutional, would not make the whole
act unconstitutional.

5. CARRIERS &=21(1)—OBRDERS OF COMAIISSIONERS—DISOBEDIENCE.

Public Service Commission Law New York, § 56, making guilty of a
misdemeanor an officer or agent of a company who procures, aids, or
abets it in its failure to obey an order of the commission. contemplates a
personal and individual act, and not a mere failure of the company, un-
less shown to be due to his neglect or fault.

6. CoNsTITUTIONAL Law ¢=318—DUE PROCESS OF Law.
An order of the Public Service Commission that street car service must
be increased, after hearing on proofs, with opportunity to street car com-
pany to appear, is not a taking of property without due process of law.

In Equity. Four suits, one by the Brooklyn Heights Railroad Com-
pany, one by the Brooklyn, Queens County & Suburban Railroad
Company, one by the Coney Island & Brooklyn Railroad Company,
and the other by the Nassau Electric Railroad Company, all against
Oscar S. Straus and others, the Public Service Commission of the
State of New York for the First District, and others. Injunction
pendente lite denied.

George D. Yeomans, of Brooklyn, N. Y. (I. R. Qeland and Charles
A. Collin, both of New York City, and D. A, Marsh, of Brooklyn, N.
Y., of counsel), for complainants.

William L. Ransom, of New York City (William L. Ransom, God-
frey Goldmark, Jacob H. Goetz, and H. M. Chamberlain, all of New
York City, of counsel), for Public Service Commission and in person.

Merton E. Lewis, Atty. Gen., by M. 8. Schector, Deputy Atty. Gen.,
for Attorney General of State of New York and for Governor.

Before WARD, Circuit Judge, and VEEDER and AUGUSTUS
N. HAND, District Judges.

PER CURIAM. These four cases, being alike, will be disposed of
in one opinion. The bills filed ask that an order of the Public Service
Commission of the state of New York requiring the complainants,
street railroad corporations, to operate additional cars in the city of
New York within certain dates, be adjudged to be illegal and void;
that the Public Service Commission Law itself be adjudged to be un-
constitutional, and that the commissioners, defendants, be enjoined
pendente lite from enforcing the order by actions for collection of
penalties or by criminal proceedings against the companies’ officers.
The motion for the preliminary injunction is the subject now to be
disposed of as required by section 266 of the Judicial Code (Act March
3, 1911, c. 231, 36 Stat. 1162 [Comp. St. 1916, § 1243]).

[1,2] Before bill filed Judge Ordway in the state court quashed
writs of certiorari which had been granted ex parte to review the or-
der in question, and the companies took no appeal from that judg-
ment. The defendants contend that it constitutes res adjudicata in
these causes. But the judgment was not upon the merits. The duty
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lay upon the companies to allege upon oath facts sufficient to satisfy
the court, at least prima facie, that the order complained of was ille-
gal, instead of doing which the judge found that they confined them-
selves to allegations which were mere conclusions. Such a judgment,
although acquiesced in by the companies, no more binds them upon the
merits than does the dismissal of an action at law for want of suffi-
cient proof to go to the jury or an order granting or denying a pre-
liminary injunction in a suit in equity. The companies could still ap-
ply for another writ upon a fuller statement of sufficient facts upon
oath or they could go into the state courts or come into this court for
relief if they could prove that the order violated the Constitution of
the United States. Louisville & Nashville Railroad Co. v. Garrett, 231
U. S. 298, 310, 34 Sup. Ct. 48, 58 L. Ed. 229.

The Public Service Law itself is said to be unconstitutional on two
grounds: .

First. Because it does not expressly provide for an appeal from
the orders of the commission. But the state of New York has provid-
ed a method of review which does apply to these orders by certiorari
{Code of Civil Procedure, § 2120 et seq.). It is true that the granting
of the writ is discretionary but the discretion must not be abused and
is the subject of appeal. People v. Peck, 73 App. Div. 89, 76 N. Y.
Supp. 328; People ex rel. Joline v. Willcox, 129 App. Div. 267,
113 N. Y. Supp. 861. Besides this, the companies had the same right
to file a bill in the state courts like the bill filed in this court, to set aside
the order as unconstitutional. Wadley Southern Railway Co. v. Geor-
gia, 235 U. S. 651, 660, 35 Sup. Ct. 214, 59 L. Ed. 405. For these rea-
sons we think the companies had quite sufficient means of judicial re-
view., :

[3,4] Second. Because section 56 of the law provides for a pen-
alty of not more than $5,000 a day for every day a violation of the
order continues. It is said that this might run up to such an enormous
sum as to compel obedience even to a confiscatory order. Section 24,
however, corrects this apprehended mischief by providing that, if
the defendant in an action to collect such penalties prove that it was
“actually and in good faith prosecuting a suit, action or proceeding in
the courts to set aside such order, the court shall remit the penalties
or forfeitures incurred during the pendency of such suit, action or pro-
ceeding.” Furthermore the companies would not be held subject to
penalties until after the order complained of had been held to be valid.
Of course, they would be required to proceed seasonably to test its
validity, and if they delayed to do so in bad faith they would be sub-
ject to penalties. Wadley Southern Railway Co. v. Georgia, 235 U. S.
666 et seq. 35 Sup. Ct. 214, 59 L. Ed. 405. Finally, the subject of
penalties, being a separable feature, would not make the whole act un-
constitutional 1f itself unconstitutional. ILouisville & Nashville Rail-
road Co. v. Garrett, 231 U. S. 311, 34 Sup. Ct. 48, 58 L. Ed. 229.

[6] Section 56 makes any officer or agent of the company who pro-
cures, aids or abets it in its failure to obey guilty of a misdemeanor.
This provision plainly contemplates a personal and individual act of
the officer or agent, and not the mere failure of the company itself, as
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in this case, to provide cars, unless such failure was shown to be due
to the neglect or fault of the officer or agent.

[8] As to the last objection which the complainants make, it may be
admitted that an order of the commission made without consideration
or without any evidence at all or without a hearing, requiring the com-
pany to increase its equipment, might amount to a taking of its prop-
erty without due process of law. But the parties have submitted to
us the record before the commission which resulted in the order com-
plained of. We have examined it, not for the purpose of seeing
whether we agree with the conclusion reached, but to determine
whether that conclusion was the result of a fair hearing upon proofs
with a full opportunity to the companies to offer proofs, and we think
it was. If the complainants thought, as they now contend, that other
and different evidence should have been considered by the commission,
it lay upon them to offer it at the hearing.

The prayer for an injunction pendente lite is denied.

In re WIBACK et al.
(District Court, D, Massachusetts. August 13, 1917.)
No. 18311.

BANKRUPTCY @©==414(3)—PROCEEDINGS FOR DISCHARGE—WEIGHT AND SUFFI-
CIENCY OF EVIDENCE.

When bankrupts first became embarrassed financially, an attachment
was placed on their goods by a friendly creditor, under which business
went on as usual, and a common-law assignment was made to such
creditor, which, however, was never completed. Afterwards a hostile
attachment was placed on the store. About this time witnesses noticed
a great depletion in the stock, and a storage cellar was broken into.
Though the bankrupts knew of this, and were active around the store,
they made no complaint to the police, and took no steps to see whether
goods had been stolen, or who had committed the break. The books of
the firm showed a shortage in cash or merchandise of from $4,300 to
$6,600. Held, that the facts showed that the bankrupts removed and
concealed property belonging to the ecstate, justifying the denial of
their applications for discharge.

In Bankruptcy. In the matter of Felix Wiback and others, bank-
rupts. On applications for a discharge. Applications refused.

Taylor & Taylor, of Worcester, Mass., for bankrupts.
Simon G. Friedman, of Worcester, Mass., for creditors.

MORTON, District Judge. The ground of objection to discharge,
now principally relied upon, is that the bankrupts knowingly and in-
tentionally concealed and removed assets belonging to the estate.

The bankrupts carried on a retail grocery and provision store, and
in connection with it a bottling establishment and a Steamship ticket
agency. It was a business of substantial size, the gross income hav-
ing apparently been upwards of $60,000 a year, the greater part of
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which came from the groceries and provisions. Benecath the shop
was a cellar, which was used for storage purposes and for the bottling
business. Access to it was through the store; there were doors lead-
ing into it from other parts of the building, but they were permanently
fastened.

The bankrupts’ serious financial difficulties appear to have begun on
May 3d, when an attachment was placed on the goods in the store,
followed a few days later by another attachment in favor of Lundborg,
who was a friendly creditor. Under his attachment, the prior one
having been discharged, the bankrupts’ bookkeeper, Honkenen, was
appointed keeper, and business went on much as usual. Considerabie
amounts of money were received by the bookkeeper from cash sales
and from payments on outstanding accounts receivable. Substantial
sums were handed to Wiback for the purpose of paying running ex-
penses and buying new stock. A common-law assignment was made
by the bankrupts to Lundborg; but it was not completed according
to the requirements of Massachusetts law, and nothing was done un-
der it. On May 15th another attachment was placed on the store, and
the bookkeeper was superseded as keeper by one Stockwell, who con-
tinued to act until the receiver in bankruptcy took possession on
May 27th. .

At the time when the attachments were first placed upon the store,
it seems clear that there was a large and complete stock of goods in
it and the cellar. Estimates as to the amount of stock vary; Wiback
testifies that it was worth over $2,000; the objecting creditor, on in-
complete data, figures the amount as over $4,300; Honkenen’s esti-
mate is rather indefinite, but falls between the two.

The operation of the store was continued under all the attachments,
until bankruptcy proceedings were instituted; and goods were pur-
chased and sold in the ordinary course of business. After Stockwell
became keeper, team deliveries were suspended, and the purchases were
more restricted.

The accounts from March 1st to May 16th are produced. They are
apparently accurate, and appear substantially to balance. They show
no depletion of stock. According to them, the stock should have in-
creased in value in that interval about $2,800. The receiver in bank-
ruptcy found only $500 or $600 worth of goods in the store and cellar.
On the figures of the objecting creditor; about $6,600 in goods or cash
is unactounted for. Accepting Wiback’s estimate of the stock on hand
on March 1st ($2,000), and the expert bookkeeper’s statement of the
merchandise account after that date, the accuracy of which has not
been seriously questioned, about $4,300 worth of goods disappeared.

There is testimony from several witnesses that a great depletion of
stock was noticed during the last two weeks in May; i. e., after the
common-law assignment to Lundberg had failed, and a hostile attach-
ment had been placed on the store, and it had become evident to the
applicants that they must go through bankruptcy. Honkenen testifies
that on May 1st the store had its full usual stock, and that “there was
quite a remarkable depreciation” of it between May 16th and the
bankruptcy on May 25th.
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While the attachments were in force, Wiback said that the bank-
rupts expected Lundberg to buy the property, and that they were going
to continue the business. After May 16th the storage cellar was bro-
ken into. That goods were taken is not explicitly stated in the evi-
dence; but, of course, they were. The doors were not broken down
for exercise or amusement. This phase of the case is left somewhat
indefinite on account of Stockwell’s death before testifying. When the
attachments were made, and for some time after that, the cellar con-
tained a substantial amount of stock; there was little or nothing in it
when the receiver took possession. The break was called to the atten-
tion of the bankrupts; but, according to their own testimony, neither
one of them made any complaint to the police about it, or took any
steps to see whether goods had been stolen, or made any inquiries or
investigations to determine who had committed the break.

There can be no doubt that, between the first attachment and the
bankruptcy, a large amount, either of goods or of money received from
the sale of goods, disappeared and is unaccounted for. ‘The bankrupts
were active around the store all this time. If they were honest, they
would naturally be the first to notice such an occurrence and to call
attention to it. They never did so. They testify, in effect, that they
do not know what became of the goods, if any were taken; but they
make no suggestion as to how the loss occurred. In my opinion, the
bankrupts knew that the stock was disappearing and kept silent about
it. Their conduct with reference to the break in the cellar strongly
suggests collusion therein. Why did they display no interest in such
an occurrence? Why did they not have the matter brought to the
attention of the police? Why did they not endeavor to ascertain wheth-
er anything had been stolen? Their counsel suggests, because the store
was under attachment and the keeper was responsible; but the bank-
rupts gave no such reason, and I do not regard the explanation as
adequate, if they had offered it. -

There is, it seems to me, but one reasonable explanation of the plain
facts and of the bankrupts’ conduct, viz. that the stock or its pro-
ceeds was being taken by them, or with their knowledge and approval.

The learned referee’s findings on the fifth specification are set aside.
I find that the bankrupts did remove and conceal property belonging
to their estate.

Applications for discharge refused.

THE PAMPA.
(District Court, B. D, New York. August 29, 1917.)

ADMIRALTY €&=5—JURISDICTION—PUBLIC VESSEL oF FOREIGN POWER.

A vessel regularly enrolled as a ship of the Argentine navy, and fiying
the naval ensign of that republic, whose officers and crew were otlicers
and enlisted men of such navy, was not subject to a libel for damages
for a collision, though at the time of the collision carrying a cargo of
general merchandise belonging to private persons, especially where the
cargo was carried for the benefit of the government, and as an incident
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to the vessel’'s voyage to this country to obtain coal and munitions for
the use of that government.

In Admiralty. Libel by John B. Breymann and another, doing busi-
ness as George H. Breymann & Bros., owners of the scow B. B. No.
19, against the Argentine steamship Pampa and her engines, boilers,
tackle, etc. On order to show cause why the vessel should not be re-
leased from custody. Decree issued, releasing the vessel.

The Argentine naval transport Pampa was in collision with mud scow B.
B. No. 19 on August 11, 1917, off Scotland Lightship. A libel has been filed
in this court against the Pampa in rem, and the vessel has been attached
by the marshal of this court, pursuant to the prayer of the libel. On August
27, 1917, upon motion of Messrs. Pavey, Wells & Gadrich, appearing specially
for the motion, an order to show cause was granted, directing the libelants
to show cause why the libel should not be dismissed for want of jurisdiction.

The Pampa is a vessel regularly enrolled as a ship of the Argentine navy,
and flies the naval ensign of the Argentine Republic. Her officers all hold
commissions from the Argentine government as officers of the navy. Her crew
are enlisted men of the Argentine navy. At the time of the collision she
was carrying a cargo of general merchandise belonging to private persons.
The orders issued to the commander of the Pampa were as follows:

“Department of the Navy, Secretary’s Office,

“Buenos Aires, July 14, 1917.
“o the Commander of the Transport Pampa:

“The captain Ismael F. Galindez, Secretary General of the Department of
the Navy, advises you that by order of the Secretary of the Navy you are-to
leave with the ship under your command on the 15th of July, going to
New York, U. S. A., port of destination for your cargo, about which you will
receive instructions from the Director General of the Administration De-
partment. * * * From ports of call you will get in communication with
the Chief of the Argentine Naval Commission in the United States, whose
cable address is ‘Navalarg, Washington, announcing the date of your arrival.
In arriving at New York (U. S. A)) you will request orders from said Chief,
advising him that you are bringing a cargo, and you will receive from him
orders as to the cargo you are to bring on your return trip. The cargo you
are to bring on your return voyage will be about 4,500 tons of coal. To in-
crease the transporting capacity of your ship, you will discharge all the water
not needed for your return voyage. In the United States you will fill your
bupkers, and on your return voyage you must call at Porto Rico to replenish
coal, etc., etec. * * * There is special interest that the transports should
make these voyages in the shortest time possible, and we recommend you to
hasten the operations at port to comply with that purpose. * * * It is
absolutely prohibited to take passengers on board, or persons not a part of
the crew, without express orders of this Department. We enclose herewith
copies of reports of former commanders, and also an abstract of an executive
order of the Government of the United States as fo the defensive maritime
areas around its coast. * * * In the outward voyage and also in the
homeward voyage you will hoist the national ensign of war.

“[Signed] I. F. Galindez.”

After the arrival of the Pampa at New York, her commander received the
following telegram:

«Commander Transport Pampa, Cr Henry Kessel, 25 Pearl St., New York,
N. Y.: .

“By order ministerio de Marina you will take on Pampa naval material
from Kessel in New York and four thousand tons of coal and artillery ma-
terial from Bethlehem in Philadelphia commander Campos Urquiza president
Argentine Naval Commission.”

The coal and war material which the Pampa was to take on her return
voyage had all been contracted for prior to the time when the cargo of general
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merchandise was placed on board the vessel at Buenos Aires. The vessel
was entered at the custom house, New York City, in the usual manner for
merchant vessels, and the cargo discharged at New York. During the dis-
churge, and while the commander of the Pampa was under orders to take on
board the war material above mentioned, the vessel was attached by the mar-
shal. The ship’s manifest shows that there were about 65 shipments made at
the port of loading, and that there were about one-half that number of con-
signees for the cargo at the port of New York. J. F. Whitney & Co., agents
for the carzo at New York, have collected in the neighborhoed of RG0,000
freight on the cargo, which is ultimately to be turned over to the Argentine
naval commission at Washington.
The foregoing facts are stipulated by counsel.

Pavey, Wells & Gadrich, of New York City (F. D. Gadrich and T.
Catesby Jones, both of New York City, of counsel), for the motion.

Kirlin, Woolsey & Hickox and R. S. Erskine, all of New York City,
opposed. :

VEEDER, District Judge (after stating the facts as above). Upon
the facts stipulated the uniform course of authority requires the re-
lease of this vessel. The Parlement Belge, 5 P. D. 197; The Constitu-
tion, 4 P. D. 39; The Exchange, 7 Cranch, 116, 3 L. Ed. 287; Work-
man v. New York City, 179 U. S. 552, 566-570, 21 Sup. Ct. 212, 45
L. Ed. 314; Tucker v. Alexandroff, 183 U. S. 424, 440-446, 22 Sup.
Ct. 195, 46 L. Ed. 264. 1 adopt as a statement of the controlling
principle what was said by the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Fourth
Circuit in the recent case of The Attualita, 238 Fed. 909, 911, 152
C. C. A. 43, 45:

“Tror actions of the public armed ships of a sovereign, and of those, whether
armed or not, which are in the actual possession, custody, and control of the
nation itself. and are operated by it, the nation would be morally responsible,

although without her consent not answerable legally in her own or other
courts.”

Moreover, it appears that, although this vessel was carrying a general
cargo, the cargo was carried for the benefit of the Argentine Republic,
and as an incident to her voyage to this country to obtain coal and muni-
tions for the use of the Argentine Republic. .

A decree will issue, releasing the vessel from arrest.

In re GOTTLIEB & CO.
(District Court, D. New Jersey. September 17, 1917.)

1. BANKRUPTCY €&212—O0BJECTIONS TO JURISDICTION—WAIVER.

The receiver in bankruptcy filed a petition, alleging that the bankrupt
"had transferred all outstanding book accounts then in existence, and
those that might thereafter be created, to a creditor for debts due and to
become due, aud that the assignment was a preference. The referee made
an order restraining the creditor from collecting the accounts, and re-
quiring him to show cause why he should not turn over moneys already
collected. The creditor and receiver then agreed that the creditor should
collect the accounts without delay, that the proceeds should be de-
posited in the name of the receiver, pending determination as to who was
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entitled thereto, and that the order should be modified to permit such col-
lection. The agreement stated that the creditor did not waive his right
to object to the jurisdiction of the referee in determining the disposition
of the book accounts. The creditor then filed an affidavit in response to the
previous order to show cause, in which he claimed to be an assignee for a
valuable consideration, and in possession, and insisted that the bank-
ruptey court had no jurisdiction to decide in a summary manner to whom
the accounts belonged. Thereafter an order of the referee permitting
the receiver, who had been appointed a trustee, to amend the petition, was
sustained by the District Court. The preamble of such order recited
that testimony was taken before the referee on the rule to show cause;
but there was no formal order of the referee overruling the creditor’s ob-
jection, though it appeared from his petition for review that such objec-
tion was overruled. Held, that the atfirmance of the order by the District
Court, as it did not deal with the question of adverse claimance, did not
necessarily involve consideration of that question, and hence did not
preclude the creditor from subsequently urging his objections to the ju-
isdiction. .

2. BANKRUPTCY €¢&=212—JURISDICTION-—OBJIECTIONS.

Where a creditor did not answer to the merits a petition of the referee
seeking a recovery of book accounts assigned by the bankrupt until after
his objection to the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court to summarily de-
termine the ownership of the accounts was overruled, the answer to the
merits did not waive the objections to the jurisdiction.

8. BANKRUPTCY €&=>114(1)—RECEIVER.

After adjudication, the receiver, before the appointment of a trustee,
in addition to his duty to preserve property actually in his possession, is
a proper person to carry out any orders that the court might make, under
Bankruptey Act July 1, 1898, ¢. 541, § 2, subd. 15, 30 Stat. 545 (Comp. St.
1916, § 9586), for the enforcement of the provisions of the act and it is
the receiver’s duty, as well as his privilege, to bring to the court’s atten-
tion any matters which suggest the advisability of making an order.

4. BANKRUPTCY ¢=212—JURISDICTION—SUMMARY PROCEEDINGS.

Under Bankruptey Act July 1, 1898, § 23 (Comp. St. 1916, § 9607), de-
claring that the United States courts shall have jurisdiction of all con-
troversies at law and in equity between trustees and adverse claimants, a
referee in bankruptcy does not have summary jurisdiction to determine
a creditor’s right to collections already made under an assignment of
book accounts by the bankrupt; the court of bankruptcy not having ju-
risdiction of the res. .

5. ACCOUNT, ACTION ON &=>18—B00R ACCOUNTS—NATURE OF.

&

Book accounts are but evidence of money due, and are choses In ac-
tion, as distinguished from choses in possession.

ACCOUNT, ACTION ON @=17T—NATURE OF ACTION.

An action on book accounts is a recognized remedy to recover moneys
due for goods sold and delivered; and the books of account, properly
approved, are prima facie evidence of a right to recover.

7. BANRKRUPTCY &=212—CoURTS—JURISDICTION.

A bankrupt corporation passed a resolution providing that book ac-
counts due and to become-due should be assigned to a stockholder, who
agreed to make advances to the bankrupt to enable it to carry on its busi-
ness. The accounts were to be collected by the bankrupt and the pro-
ceeds paid over to the stockholder; the stockholder receiving duplicate
statements of accounts. Held that, as the resolution contemplated that
the accounts were to be collected by the bankrupt, the books of account re-
maining in the possession of the bankrupt, the trustee of the bankrupt,
who obtained possession of the account books, had such possession of
the res that the bankruptcy court might in a summary proceeding de-
termine the rights of the parties to uncollected accounts.
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8. BANKRUPTCY €—=160—PREFERENCES—EVIDENCE.

In a proceeding to set aside an assignment of book accounts by a
bankrupt on the ground that it effected a preference, evidence held to
show that the bankrupt was insolvent at the time the assignment was
made.

9. BANKRUPTCY ¢&=166(3)—PREFERENCES—EVIDENCE.

In a proceeding to set aside an assignment of book accounts on the
ground that it effected a preference, evidence held to show that the
assignee, a stockholder of the bankrupt corporation, who in considera-
tion of the assignment agreed to make advances to the bankrupt, knew
of its insolvency.

10. BANEKRUPTCY €=>165(1)—PREFERENCES—KNOWLEDGE.

. Where a stockholder in a bankrupt corporation, who was already a
creditor, agreed to make further advances in consideration of an assign-
ment to him of book accounts, the assignment will be treated as a prefer-
ence, the value of the accounts assigned exceeding the amount of the
advances and effecting a preferential payment on the debts already due
the stockholder.

In Bankruptcy. In the matter of the bankruptcy of Gottlieb &
Co. On review of referee’s order adjudging that the bankrupt’s
transfer of book accounts to Adolph M. Rosenberg was void. Order
of referee affirmed.

Philip J. Schotland, of Newark, N. J. (Edwin G. Adams, of New-
ark, N. J., of counsel), for Adolph M. Rosenberg.

Kessler & Kessler, of Newark, N. J. (Samuel 1. Kessler, of New-
ark, N. J., of counsel), for trustee.

RELLSTARB, District Judge. This is a review of a referee’s or-
der dated November 10, 1916, which, so far as necessary to be stated,
adjudged that a transfer of book accounts, made by Gottlieb & Co.
(a New Jersey corporation, hereinafter called the bankrupt) to Adolph
M. Rosenberg, on December 7, 1915, was fraudulent, constituted a
preference, and was void against the trustee. It also commanded him
to deliver to the trustee “all moneys in his possession or under his con-
trol which were collected from the said book accounts and which
moneys were deposited in the National State Bank according to an
agreement heretofore made between the trustee and the said Adolph
M. Rosenberg,” and that he refrain from making any further col-
lections on said accounts.

The bankrupt was a manufacturer of hats, and was twice in bank-
ruptcy, each time on involuntary petition. In the first proceeding
there was no adjudication, but in July, 1915, it composed with its
creditors, giving them notes for the full amount of their claims, pay-
able in instaliments. Rosenberg was a stockholder, under dngulSC,
of the bankrupt, from its organization, and a creditor of it in a large
amount when said composition was effected. The present bankruptcy
proceedings were begun February 2, 1916, on which date a receiver
was appointed by this court. On February 4th, upon filing the com-
pany’s written waiver of service of the petition and process and con-
sent to an immediate adjudication, the company was adjudicated a
bankrupt and the cause was referred. On February 8, 1916, the re-
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ceiver filed a petition with the referee, alleging, inter alia, in substance,
that on December 7, 1915, the bankrupt had transferred all out-
standing book accounts then in existence and those that might there-
after be created to Rosenberg for debts due and to become due to
him; that he believed said assignment was made as a preference, and
for the purpose of hindering, defrauding, and delaying creditors. On
the same day the referee made an order restraining Rosenberg from
collecting said accounts, and requiring him to show cause why he
should not turn over the moneys collected on said accounts to the
receiver or the trustee, when appointed. On February 11th Rosen-
berg entered into an agreement with the receiver (the agreement re-
ferred to in the referee’s order) whereby it was declared to be in the
‘interest of the estate and Rosenberg that the accounts be collected
without delay, and that an order be made modifying the restraint, so
as to permit Rosenberg to collect the accounts upon certain condi-
tions, among which were that the collections should be deposited in said
National Bank of Newark in the name of the receiver, later to be
changed to the trustee to be elected, and Rosenberg, and that the
account should be held intact until it should be finally determined who
was entitled thereto.

The referee made an order carrying out said agreement and Rosen-
berg collected some of the accounts, and deposited the money thus ob-
tained in the bank. It is this deposit, amounting to the sum of $2,-
719.04, that the order under review directs Rosenberg to deliver to
the trustee. In this agreement it was expressly stated that Rosenberg
did “not waive his right to object to the jurisdiction of the referee
in determining the disposition of the book accounts.” On March 1,
1916, Rosenberg filed an affidavit in response to this rule to show
cause, in which he claimed to be an assignee of said accounts for a
valuable consideration, and in possession thereof, and insisted that the
bankruptcy court had no jurisdiction to decide in a summary manner
to whom said accounts belonged, and objected to its doing so.

On April 7th the referee made an order permitting the trustee (the
receiver in the meantime having been appointed trustee) to amend the
petition (presumably the one made by him as receiver), which order was
subsequently sustained by Judge Haight of this court on a review in-
stituted by Rosenberg. In the preamble of this order it is recited
that testimony was taken before the referee on the rule to show cause,
and from Rosenberg’s petition asking for said review it would appear
that the referee had ruled adversely to Rosenberg’s objection to the
court’s jurisdiction. No formal order by the referee overruling said
objection, or one by Judge Haight affirming the referee’s order of
April 7th appears of record; but counsel are agreed that the order of
April 7th was affirmed.

On May 17, 1916, after the review had been disposed of, Rosenberg
filed his answer to said petition and rule to show cause, in substance
setting up that by a resolution passed on December 7, 1915, the bank-

-rupt had assigned to him all its outstanding accounts then in exist-
ance and those that would be created in the future, in consideration
of his supplying raw materials to the bankrupt to enable it to con-
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duct its business, and as security therefor, and that in reliance on
said agreement he had supplied materials which inured to the bank-
rupt’s benefit; that the agreement was not made as a preference, or
for the purpose of hindering, defrauding, and delaying creditors, but
to benefit creditors, by enabling the bankrupt to conduct its business
and to earn profit; that he held the accounts that he might be reim-
bursed for the materials he had supplied after the assignment; that
the accounts assigned to him and collected prior to the bankruptcy
proceedings did not equal the amount of the indebtedness of the bank-
rupt for materials supplied by him in reliance upon the assignment;
and that there is still due him for materials supplied, a sum in excess
of the amount of the assigned accounts in dispute. This answer con-
tained no objection to the jurisdiction of the court.

After summarizing the testimony taken on the issues thus made up,
the referee certified his findings of fact to be:

“That Gottlieb & Co. was insolvent on the 7th day of December, 1915.
That Adolph M. Rosenberg was familiar with and knew the financial condi-
tion of Gottlieb & Co. at all times, and particularly on the 7th day of De-
cember, 1915, and knew on that day that Gottlieb & Co. was insolvent. That
there were creditors of Gottlieb & Co. existing at the time of the passing of
the resolution whose claims amounted to about $59,000. That Adolph M.
Rosenberg procured the transfer of the book accounts in question to him-
self with full knowledge of all these facts. That Adolph M. Rosenberg
knew that the transfer of these book accounts would prefer him to the
amount thereof over and above the other creditors of Gottlieb & Co. That

the bankrupt intended by this transfer to create a preference in favor of
Adolph M. Rosenberg.”

He also certified his conclusion of law as follows:

“That the transfer of the book accounts by Gottlieb & Co. was a fraudu-
lent transfer, and was made with the intent and purpose to hinder, delay,
and defraud the creditors of the bankrupt, and was received by Adolph M.
Rosenberg with full knowledge of the insolvency of the bankrupt and such
transfer effected a preference in favor of Adolph M. Rosenberg, and is void
as against the trustee, and that the question presented on this review is
whether the transfer was fraudulent, and was given with the intention to
hinder, delay, and defraud the creditors of the bankrupt, and was received
by Adolph M. Rosenberg with full knowledge of the insolvency of the bank-
rupt, and did create a preference in favor of Adolph M. Rosenberg, and
should be declared void as against the trustee, and whether the book ac-
counts or their proceeds should be turned over to the trustee.”

Under an arrangement between Rosenberg and the bankrupt, con-
temporaneous with the composition effected in the first bankruptcy
proceedings, he was to loan his credit to the company to enable it to
secure the raw materials needed to continue its business. The first
installment of the composition notes fell due December 1, 1916. Be-
fore this, some time in November of that year, Rosenberg became
apprehensive about the credit he was extending to the bankrupt, and
a conference with the other stockholders was had, at which the finan-
cial condition of the bankrupt was considered. One of the results
was an offer to pay to the creditors, on December 1st, 1214 per cent.
of their claims, instead of 25 per cent., as agreed in the composition.
This was accepted by nearly all the creditors, and paid by the bankrupt
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on the date named. Another result was the passage by the company’s
directors on December 7, 1915, of the following resolution:

“Whereas, owing to the fact that the company has entered into an agree-
ment with all of its ereditors whereby it has secured an extension of credit on
its past indebtedness, the company has been unable to secure credit on new
purchases to any great extent; and

“Whereas, Adolph M. Rosenberg is willing to supply all the raw material
that the company needs in the manufacture of its products, provided he is
secured against loss:

“Now, therefore, be it, and it is hereby, resolved that in consideration of the
said Adolph M. Rosenberg supplying to the company the raw material that it
requires in conducting its business, the company to secure him against loss
for all moneys that he has heretofore guaranteed the payment of, for the bene-
fit of the company, and against loss for any material he shall hereafter supply
to the company, hereby sells, transfers, and assigns all outstanding accounts
which the company now has, and all accounts which will in the future be
created, as soon as they are created, to the said Adolph M. Rosenberg; and
the financial officers are hereby authorized and directed, as soon as they re-
ceive any money, or its equivalent, in payment of any account, to draw the
company’s check for the amount so received to the order of Adolph M.
Rosenberg. As soon as the amount recelved has been deposited and properly
credited to the account of the company, and the said Adolph M. Rosenberg to
turn over to the financial officers, out of the moneys so received by him, the
amount necessary for payroll each week, and at the end of each month, he
is to reimburse himself for the amount of material he has supplied to the
company, and the balance, if any, he is to return to the treasury of the com-
pany, to be used by the company in its business, in the regular manner.
For his services in this connection, Mr. Rosenberg is to receive the sum of
ten dollars per week. .

“Be it further resolved that, as soon as any goods are billed, a duplicate
bill should be sent to Mr. Rosenberg, and that the secretary shall, under the
seal of the corporation, deliver to Mr. Rosenberg a certitied copy of these
resolutions, setting forth the contract which the company has made in these
resolutions with Mr. Rosenberg, and Mr. Rosenberg, if he accepts same,
shall signify it by a writing to that effect on the minute book of the corpora-
tion. The contract embodied in these resolutions may be terminated by the
company at any time, upon paying Mr. Rosenberg in full for any and all
indebtedness the company owes him, and upon securing the release of his
liability for any indebtedness that he may have guaranteed for the company.
This arrangement may be terminated by Mr. Rosenberg upon 30 days’ notice
to the company of his desire to terminate it.,”

There was no formal assignment of any of the book accounts. From
that time, however, the bills for goods sold were made in duplicate;
one being sent to the purchaser, as theretofore, and the other to Rosen-
berg. These purchasers, however, were not notified of any assignment
of their debts until a few days before the present bankruptcy proceed-
ings were instituted. In the meantime the bankrupt collected the ac-
counts, as theretofore, turning over some of the collections to Rosen-
berg to reimburse him for cash advanced and merchandise bought by
him for the bankrupt’s use. The bankrupt’s books of account contained
no reference to the alleged assignment, and they passed into the hands
of the receiver without any indication therein that the open accounts
appearing were not the property of the bankrupt. Subsequently the
receiver, learning of the passage of said resolution, and that Rosen-
berg had collected some of the accounts, and was endeavoring to col-
lect the remainder, filed the petition and obtained the rule to show
cause of February 8, 1916.
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[1] As to the referee’s jurisdiction. On behalf of the trustee, it
is contended that this question was disposed of on review of the reif-
eree’s order of April 7th. This, however, is not the case. Rosenberg’s
objection to the referee’s jurisdiction, reserved in the agreement of
February 11th and distinctly interposed in his said affidavit of March
1st, was undoubtedly overruled by the referee when or before he made
the order of April 7th; and while such jurisdictional challenge may
have been pressed upon this court when reviewing said order, yet that
order did not deal with the question of adverse claimance, and its
affirmance did not necessarily involve a consideration of that question.
Rosenberg having at the outset unequivocally objected to the referee’s
jurisdiction, and never having expressly waived it, and the order now
under review being the first made by the referee determining the
ownership of said accounts, the jurisdictional question is still alive, un-
less Rosenberg’s failure to renew such objection in his answer of May
7th, which went to the merits of the controversy, estops him from
raising it now.

[2] In Re Komit Mfg. Co. (D. C) 192 Fed. 392, 395, 27 Am.
Bankr. Rep. 244, 258, the writer said:

“It is elementary law that neither at law nor in equity can a challenge
to the jurisdiction be jolned with a defense to the merits. When this is

done, the court will disregard the objection to the jurisdiction, and put the
defendant to his defense.”

That proposition has the support of Jones v. Andrews, 10 Wall
(77 U. 8.) 327, 19 L. Ed. 935; but, as in the case of Re Kornit Mfg.
Co. respondents were held not to be adverse claimants, that statement
was obiter. In the present case the answer to the merits was not in-
terposed until after the objection to the jurisdiction was overruled.
In such circumstances pleading to the merits is not a waiver of the
objections. Harkness v. Hyde, 98 U. S. 476, 25 L. Ed. 237; In re
Indiana Transportation Co., Petitioner, 244 U. S. 456, 37 Sup. Ct. 717,
61 L. Ed. 1253; Foster Milburn Co. v. Chinn, 202 Fed. 175, 122 C.
C. A. 577.

[3,4] The receiver’s standing to challenge Rosenberg’s right to
such book accounts was denied before the referee and is questioned
here. At the time the receiver’s said petition was filed an adjudication
had been entered. The proceedings had therefore entered upon the
second stage. They were no longer primarily concerned with the sta-
tus of a person and whether he had committed an act of bankruptcy,
but with the administration of a bankrupt’s property. Adjudication
having taken place, the receiver was no longer merely a custodian of
property which might be ordered returned to the alleged bankrupt,
but of property which was then in the course of administration. In
addition to the duties devolving upon him as a preserver of property
actually in his possession, he would be a proper person, pending‘the
appointment of a trustee, to carry out any orders that the court might
make for the enforcement of the provisions of the Bankruptcy Act
under section 2, subd. 15. It would be his duty, as well as his privi-
lege, to bring to the court’s attention any matters which suggested the
advisability of making such order.

245 F.—10



146 245 FEDERAL REPORTER

His petition of February 8th was in line with his duty. It called
for no other than summary action. -The referee’s order to show
cause, with ad interim restraint of the same date, was within his power,
and in the absence of objection to his jurisdiction, and upon a proper
showing, he would have been justified in making an order that the
respondent turn over all the collections he had made on such book
accounts, whether received before or after the institution of said bank-
ruptcy proceedings. However, Rosenberg’s objection called for a pre-
liminary inquiry whether he was an adverse claimant within the mean-
ing of section 23, and, if so, whether the res involved in that contro-
versy was in the possession or control of the bankruptcy court. While
the referee’s rule covered collections made before the bankruptcy pro-
ceedings were begun, his order does not direct the return of such col-
lections. As to those, Rosenberg’s possession prevented them from
becoming a part of the res which passed into custodia legis with the
filing of the petition in bankruptcy. In the absence of consent or
waiver, these collections could not be recovered by summary action,
the only kind exercised in the proceedings under review. In re Rath-
man, 183 Fed. 913, 106 C. C. A. 253; 25 Am. Bankr. Rep. 246, and
cases cited. The referee properly excluded such collections from the
present order.

[5-1] As to the uncollected accounts. Whether the referee had
summary jurisdiction to determine the right to the uncollected ac-
counts depends upon whether they had become a part of the res, and
that is to be determined as of February 2, 1916, the date when the
pending bankruptcy proceedings were begun. These accounts appear-
ed on the bankrupt’s books of account as a part of its assets. Rosen-
berg had no possession of, or control over these accounts, other than
could be derived from the resolution of December 7th, and his custody
of one of the duplicate bills issued after said accounts were created.

Book accounts are but evidence of moneys due. They are choses
in action, as distinguished from choses in possession. Bills are but
copies of such accounts. An action on book account is one of the recog-
nized remedies in New Jersey to recover the moneys due for goods
sold and delivered, and books of account, properly proven, are prima

- facie evidence of the right to so recover. See 1 N. J. Dig. Ann., pp.
71, 72. 'The bankrupt’s resolution of December 7th did not put Rosen-
berg in possession of any accounts. If valid, they gave him but the
right to the moneys due or to become due on said accounts. This is
so as to the accounts in existence at that time; a fortiori, as to those
yet to be created. '

It is to be noted that, while this resolution purports to assign the
bankrupt’s accounts, existing and to be created, to secure Rosenberg
against loss for all past guaranties and future supplies of materials,
yet it contemplated that they were to be collected by the bankrupt.
Rosenberg was to be furnished with a duplicate bill of all sales made,

- but he was not authorized to make any collections. . By this resolution,
if valid, said accounts, though charged with a lien in favor of Rosen-
berg, continued in the possession of the bankrupt, and from the filing of
the creditors’ involuntary petition were in custodia legis, and on ad-
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judication were subject to the summary jurisdiction of the bankruptcy
court. The physical possession by the receiver of the books of account
gave him at least constructive possession of the unpaid accounts therein
recorded. He thereby obtained all the indicia of possession that usual-
ly accompany the transfer of property of that character from the bank-
rupt to the trustee.

The possession by Rosenberg of duplicate bills of such accounts
before the institution of bankruptcy proceedings did not oust the
bankrupt of its possession of, or control over, said accounts; and the
institution of such proceedings gave him no greater rights in that re-
spect. In such circumstances, whatever rights Rosenberg had in
these accounts, followed them into the bankruptéy court, where, after
adjudication, in case of dispute, such rights are to be litigated and de-
termined. O’Dell v. Boyden (C. C. A. 6) 150 Fed. 731, 80 C. C. A.
397, 10 Ann. Cas. 239; 17 Am. Bankr. Rep. 756.

[8] The referee having jurisdiction to summarily determine the
right to said uncollected accounts, what of his finding that those cover-
ed by said agreement of February 11, 1916, belong to the estate, and
that the money collected thereon should be delivered to the trustee?
There having been no adjudication in the first bankruptcy proceedings,
there is no legal presumption that Gottlieb & Co. was insolvent, within
the meaning of the bankruptcy law, at the time such proceedings were
brought to an end. As noted, the composition called for payment of
the entire indebtedness. That at that time the company was unable to
meet its obligations as they matured will be presumed from said com-
position; but the composition does not prove that the aggregate of the
company’s property would not, at a fair valuation, be sufficient to pay
its debts. That at the institution of the present bankruptcy proceedings,
less than seven months after such composition, the company was hope-
lessly insolvent, is undoubted; but was it so on December 7th, when
said resolution was passed? The testimony directly bearing on the
fair value of the company’s property as of that or an earlier date, while
meager, yet, when taken in connection with the bankrupt’s then financial
difficulties and its hopeless insolvent condition very shortly thereafter,
without any evidence of an intervening cause to account for the latter
condition, tends to a mental pronouncement that it was insolvent on
that date. The referee so found, and his finding has my concurrerce.

[9] Did Rosenberg then know it? He bore a very close relation-
ship to the bankrupt. He was a stockholder from the beginning, and
at all times familiar with the company’s business. This placed him in
a different class from ordinary creditors. At the time of such compo-
sition the bankrupt was indebted to him in a large amount for merchan-
dise sold to it and for his accommodation indorsements of its'commer-
cial paper. His opportunities to ascertain the exact financial condition
of the bankrupt during its entire business career were unhampered, and
the very largeness of his interest as a creditor would be likely to impel
him, as it did, to become conversant with the company’s financial needs
on and after its resumption of business following the composition.
The first payment of the bankrupt’s old debts, under the composition,
would be due in six months. In the meantime, while relieved of the
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pressure of such payment, it would be in need of capital (money or
credit) to carry on its business, out of the profits of which it expected
to meet the terms of such composition. With knowledge of this, Rosen-
berg undertook to finance such business. This he did by furnishing
to it from time to time the raw materials on his own credit and advanc-
ing cash to pay for labor as required.

Seemingly there never was a time after the company resumed busi-
ness that Rosenberg would not have had reasonable cause to believe
that an assignment or pledge to him of the company’s book accounts
would give him a larger percentage of its assets than other creditors.
" In November, because of the company’s failure to pay for the advanc-
es made by him in October, Rosenberg became considerably concerned
about the company’s finances. Conferences and negotiations then took
place, which resulted in the passage of the resolution of December
7th. If at no time before such conference Rosenberg was apprised of
the financial condition of the company, he learned it then. The referee
found he had knowledge of the company’s insolvency at the time said
resolution was passed, and I fully agree with him in that conclusion.

[10] Does such knowledge disentitle him to the moneys realized
from the book accounts in question? They were intended to secure
him, not merely for antecedent debts, but also for advances afterwards
to be made, and because of this fact Greey v. Dockendorff, 231 U. S.
513, 34 Sup. Ct. 166, 58 L.. Ed. 339, 31 Am. Bankr. Rep. 407, is relied
upon to sustain the contention that said security was valid and that the
referee’s order should be reversed. The present case, however, is rad-
ically different, because, first, in the Dockendorff Case the assignee of
the book accounts did not know that the debtor was insolvent; and,
second, though advances were made by Rosenberg in cash and goods
after the passage of the resolution, the aggregate of the collections paid
to Rosenberg from the bankrupt’s book accounts and the value of mer-
chandise returned to him or to others for his benefit, between the
date of the passage of the resolution and the institution of the bank-
ruptcy proceedings, exceeded the aggregate of the cash and merchan-
dise furnished by him during said period.

National City Bank v. Hotchkiss, 231 U. S. 50, 34 Sup. Ct. 20, 58
* L. Ed. 115, 31 Am. Bankr. Rep. 291, distinguished in the Dockendorff
Case, is more in point on the question of knowledge of insolvency.
The fact that under such security Rosenberg received more than the
advances made takes it without the Dockendorff Case, and bars his
right to the accounts now under consideration.

The order under review is affirmed.
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ALBERT et al. v. BASCOM et al.
(District Court, W. D. Texas, Austin Division. June 14, 1917.)
No. 279.

1. CourRts ¢=268—FEDERAL COURTS—JURISDICTION.

The federal District Court is without jurisdiction solely on the ground of
diversity of citizenship where neither plaintiffs nor defendants are citi-
zens or residents of the forum.

2. COURTS ¢&=269—FEDERAL COURTS—J URISDICTION.

A suit to establish a lien upom or clalm to property brought under
Judicial Code, § 57 (Act March 8, 1911, ¢. 231, 36 Stat. 1102 {Comp. St.
1916, § 1039]), providing that, when in any suit commenced in any District
Court to enforce any legal or equitable lien upon or claim to, or to re-
move any incumbrance on the title to real or personal property within the
district, one or more of the defendants shall not be ap inhabitant of or
found within the district, or shall not voluntarily appear, it shall be
lawful for the court to make an order directing such absent defendant or
defendants to appear, ete., which shall be served on such defendant or de-
fendants if practicable wherever found, or where personal service is not
practicable, such order shall be published, may be maintained in the
federal District Court for the state where the property is situated, though
neither plaintiff nor defendant is a resident thereof.

3. LIENS &»3—AGREEMENT—EFFECT.

b.

=

One tenant in common died, devising her interest to plaintiffs, and
nominated another of the tenants in common as trustee to hold the prop-
erty during the minority of plaintiffs. Without ever having accounted,
the trustee died. Plaintiffs then executed partition deeds, the trusiee hav-
ing devised his interest to the other original cotenants. The parties en-
tered into an agreement that the execution of the partition deeds should
not waive any right or claim plaintiffs might have against the estate of
the deceased trustee, or waive any rights they might have to subject any
of the property conveyed to their claim, but that all rights should be pre-
served as though the deeds had not been executed. Held, that the agree-
ment merely preserved the rights that plaintiffs already had, and did not
establish in their favor any lien on the lands of the deceased trustee.

JUDGMENT &=>17())—I’ERSONAL JUDGMENT—PROCESS TO SUSTAIN.

The federal District Court is without power to enforce a personal judg-
ment upon citation of publication.

EQUITY ¢&==363—Di1sMIsSAL oF BILL—PLEADING.

On motion to dismiss a bill for want of jurisdiction, only the averments
therein can be considered.

TENANCY IN CoMMON ¢&=18—LIENS—ADJUSTMENT.

Where one tenant in common was trustee for others, the cestuis que
trust cannot, by analogy to the equitable liens enforced in partition, estab-
lish a lien on the share of the trustee in the common property; even in
partition proceedings a specific lien on particular property is denied, and
only those Hens arising out of the relationship of the parties to the land
can be enforced.

EXECUTORS AND ADMINISTRATORS &=133—LIENS—ENFORCEMENT.

Under Vernon’s Sayles’ Ann. Civ. St. Tex. 1914, § 3235, the estate of a
decedent vests in his devisees subject to payment of his debts, while credi-
tors’ claims constitute a lien on all of the property of the estate; and this
lien, which is general, can be enforced by means of adminlstration.

A& CoURTS &=269—FEDERAL COURTS—JURISDICTION—LIEN.

One tenant in common who was trustee of the interest of plaintiffs in
the common property and who died without having accounted devised his
interest to defendants. Neither plaintiffs nor defendants were residents

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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of the state in which was located the common property. Held that, as
a creditor of a decedent hds no lien for his debt on any particular property
of the deceased, plaintiffs could not, under Judicial Code, § 57, maintain in
the federal District Court for the state wherein was located the property
a suit to enforce an alleged lien as ereditors of deceased trustee.

9. COURTS ¢&=269—FEDERAL JURISDICTION—NATURE OF SUIT.

A suit by creditor against heirs holding the lands of decedent debtor to
subject lands to payment of claims is one in personam, and not in rem,
and hence, where the heirs or devisees of the decedent debtor were not
residents of the state in which was located the land, and plaintiffs were
also nonresidents, such suit could not be maintained in the federal Dis-
trict Court for the state under Judicial Code, § 57, on the theory that it
was one in rem to establish a lien.

10. CoURTS @==269—FEDERAL COURTS-—JURISDICTION. '
Under Judicial Code, § 57, authorizing a suit against nonresident de-
fendants to enforce a lien on land, the lien must be a pre-existing one, and
not one caused by the institution of the suit itself.

In Equity. Bill by Mary C. Albert and others against Alpheus W.
Bascom and others. On motion to dismiss. Motion granted.

V. L. Brooks, of Austin, Tex., for plaintiffs.
Fiset, McClendon & Shelley, of Austin, Tex., for defendants.

WEST, District Judge. The defendants, limiting their appearance
solely to contesting jurisdiction, move to dismiss the bill upon grounds
specified :

. L That none of the defendants are residents or citizens of the state
of Texas, but are residents and citizens of the state of Kentucky.

IT. That the action is not to enforce any legal or equitable lien up-
on or claim to real or personal property within the Western district
of Texas.

Concerning objections I and II: .

[1,2] Jurisdiction may obtain, though none of the defendants are
residents and citizens of the state of Texas. Diversity of citizenship
alone would not suffice where neither plaintiffs nor defendants were
residents or citizens of the state of the forum. In re Wisner, 203 U.
S. 449, 27 Sup. Ct. 150, 51 I.. Ed. 264; Foulk v. Gray (C. C.) 120 Fed.
156. But plaintiffs are asserting a lien upon certain real property sit-
uated within this judicial district, thus seeking to bring the action with-
in the provisions of section 57 of the Judicial Code, formerly section 8
of Act March 3, 1875, c. 137, 18 Stat. 472. Neither plaintiffs nor de-
fendants are residents or citizens of the state of Texas. The plaintiffs
are residents and citizens of the states of Maryland and Idaho, the de-
fendants of the state of Kentucky; the situs of the rem being within
this Western Judicial District of the state of Texas.

A suit to establish a lien upon or claim to property under section 57
of the Judicial Code may be maintained in the district of the state
where the property is situated, though neither plaintiff nor defendant
is a resident thereof. Kentucky Coal L. Co. v. Mineral Devel. Co.,
219 Fed. 45; Gillespie v. Pocahontas C. & C. Co. (C. C.) 162 Fed. 742;
Goodman v. Niblack, 102 U. S. 556, 26 L. Ed. 229. So far as objec-

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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tions I and II are concerned, jurisdiction depends on whether or not the
action is one to establish a lien upon the land in question.

Allegations of Plaintiffs’ Original Bill.

[3] The plaintiffs, styling themselves creditors, file suit December
8, 1910, against the two Bascoms individually and as joint executors
of the estate of S. Clarke Bascom, who died October 17, 1909. Plain-
tiffs’ rights originate by the terms of the will of their mother in 1883.
The estate consisted of lands situate in the states of Kentucky and Tex-
as, held in common prior to the death of testatrix, one-fourth each to
(1) Mary C. Albert, plaintiffs’ mother, (2) S. Clarke Bascom, (3) Al-
pheus W. Bascom, (4) John R. Bascom, brothers of testatrix, residents
of Kentucky. By the terms of the will the one-fourth share or inter-
est in the common estate passed to plaintiffs, then minors, to be held
in trust by S. Clarke Bascom until plaintiff Fannie Pleasants reached
the age of 21. The trustee was given full power to lease, sell, and
convey, to invest and reinvest, holding proceeds subject to the trust.
The plaintiff Fannie reached the age of 21 in 1898. No report or ac-
counting of any character is alleged to have been made by the trustee,
S. Clarke Bascom, up to the date of his death in October, 1909. His
will was probated in the Bath county court, Ky., December, 1909. By
its terms all his interest in the common property passed to his broth-
ers, Alpheus and John R., who were named his executors, subject, as
alleged by plaintiffs, “to whatever claim they might have against
same.”

Plaintiffs allege that:

“Upon careful inquiry they are advised, and so charge, that the value of
the personal property belonging to the estate of 8. Clarke Bascom is fnade-

quate to satisfy their claim, and that there is no personal property of said
estate within the jurisdiction of this court belonging to.said estate.”

Three tracts are described as being in the state of Texas, and al-
leged to be a part of the original common holding in proportions as
hereinbefore set out. The undivided one-fourth part theretofore owned
and held by S. Clarke Bascom was by his will devised to the said Al-
pheus W. and John R. Bascom. The one-fourth part of these three
tracts of land were conveyed by plaintiffs and defendants by deeds
called partition deeds to the defendants Alpheus W. and John R. Bas-
com, and contemporaneous therewith, on November 23, 1909, plaintiffs
and defendants entered into an agreement in writing (Plaintiffs’ Ex-
hibit No. 3), plaintiffs alleging:

“That the legal and equitable effect of sald agreement is to give the claim-
ants herein a lien against the interests of the devisees of the late S. Clarke

Bascom in the aforesaid tracts, * * * with the right to enforce the sale
thereof for the purpose of satisfying their claim.”

A careful inspection of Plaintiffs’ Exhibit No. 3, being the agree-
ment referred to, does not bear out their claim that a lien was there-
by fixed upon the interest in the tracts conveyed with the right to en-
force same by sale. The agreement in effect merely negatives any in-
tention on part of the plaintiffs by the execution of the said partition
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deeds to waive any rights or claims against the estate of S. Clarke
Bascom as follows: :
“And do not waive any rights that they have, if any, to subject any of the
property conveyed by the above-mentioned partition deeds; * * * that
whatever rights they have or ever had to require payment and collection of

any such trust funds or property are as well preserved since the execution of
said partition deeds as they were before.”

No claim of damage or dereliction is alleged against Alpheus W.
and John R. Bascom as individual defendants, nor any claim of dam-
age or dereliction against them as executors of the estate of S. Clarke
Bascom, other than as being the successors as heirs, devisees, and exec-
utors holding right, title, and possession of the tracts of land upon
which lien is asserted as general creditors. The prayer is that S.
Clarke Bascom’s interest in the Texas lands be seized by a receiver
of this court, whose appointment is also prayed for,.-and same sold
to pay plaintiffs’ claim and those of other creditors who may unite with
them. Service by publication on the defendants named is prayed
for. The court is without power to enforce a personal judgment up-
on citation by publication. The action is based upon the assertion
of a right to enforce a lien on specific property within the district.
All material allegations of the bill bearing upon the question have been
carefully stated and considered.

[4] A vital question is whether or not the action is in rem. 'The bill
does not definitely assert any right of lien upon the S. Clarke Bascom
interest in the Texas lands, except through the terms of the agreement
between parties plaintiff and defendant known as Plaintiffs’ Exhibit
No. 3. This instrument, as already noted, wholly fails to fix or de-
clare any lien upon any specific property, leaving the parties to such
rights as they were in law entitled independent of the agreement. If
plaintiffs are relying upon some statutory or implied legal or equitable
lien, the bill fails to make any affirmative allegation or prayer to that
effect. Only such may be considered.

Plaintiffs’ claim of jurisdiction as being an action in rem for the en-
forcement of a contract lien upon specific property with. prayer for
foreclosure could at this state very properly be denied, since the agree-
ment exhibited wholly fails in the legal effect claimed by plaintiffs. It
does appear, however, from the bill that, independent of obligations im-
posed on S. Clarke Bascom, deceased, as trustee, the relation of coten-
ancy as to the lands sought to be subject to lien has existed between
plaintiffs and defendants and their privies since 1883. It also appears
that the bill is brought by plaintiffs as general creditors of the estate
of S. Clarke Bascom, and the question arises whether, as cotenant
creditor or general creditor, plaintiffs are by law given a specific lien
upon specific property.

(5] Plaintiffs are not seeking recovery of S. Clarke Bascom’s estate
because of any default of obligation on his part as cotenant. In the
casting of accounts sought no claim of indebtedness or damage to them
is alleged against him as cotenant. Without pleading to support such a
claim, even though pressed in argument, it must be disregarded as an
element affecting the jurisdiction of the court. The gist of complain-
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ants’ bill is for recovery against their trustee for failure to account
for moneys received by him from sales, leases, rentals, incomes, etc.,
all arising out of the trust relation; the assertion of a lien as existing
against certain lands of his estate in Texas; for possession, appoint-
ment of receiver, and foreclosure.

[6] In partition, which is not sought here, the law is that equities
which may be adjusted and enforced in a suit for partition are such
only as arise out of the relation of the parties to the common prop-
erty; ordinary instances of the equitable lien thus arising are where
one tenant in common has discharged incumbrances, paid taxes, pur-
chased claims, and paid part of*purchase price. Freeman, Cotenancy
and Partition, §§ 506 and 512; Niday v. Cochran, 42 Tex. Civ. App.
292,93 8. W. 1027. In Hume v. Howard (Tex. Civ. App.) 43 S. W.
202, Justice Key holds that even a contract by tenants in common to
pay a cotenant their share of expense of procuring their share in an
estate does not create a lien on the property awarded. Being a disburse-
ment for account of the common good to the common property, it
would occupy a higher plane than the claim of a general creditor who
1s proceeding independently against specific property, as in this case.

Even in partition proceedings the specific lien on particular prop-
erty is denied. The question is settled by the Supreme Court of this
state in Kalteyer v. Wipff, 92 Tex. 673, 52 S. W. 63, which holds that
a tenant in common has no lien upon the share of his cotenant for
rents received by the latter without his share, in such sense as to en-
title him to maintain a simple action for debt and foreclosure there-
for. The present action is not one of cotenant seeking recovery or
relief against cotenant as such, but one of cestuis que trustent, as cred-
itors against the decedent trustee’s heirs and executors, for ‘debt and
accounting.

(7, 8] What character of lien does the law give plalntlffs general
creditors, upon specific property of decedent debtor’s estate?, On
the death of S. Clarke Bascom his estate vested in his devisees
subject to the payment of his debts. Vernon’s Sayles’ Ann. Texas
Statutes, vol. 2, § 3235. Plaintiffs’ claims against decedent Bascom
constitute a lien upon all of the property of his estate subject to the
payment of debts, and this lien may be enforced by the creditors by
means of administration. A general lien in favor of all creditors up-
on all of the estate exists, although no general creditor has a lien for
his debt on a particular piece of property. Moore v. Moore, 89 Tex.
33, 33 S. W. 217. 'The general charge or lien of creditors against a
decedent’s estate in favor of creditors should be enforced by adminis-
tration. Sometimes this result is accomplished through a suit for par-
tition having the heirs and creditors before the court. Freeman on Par-
tition, §§ 506-512; Kalteyer v. Wipff, 92 Tex. 673, 52 S. W. 63. The
suit at bar is neither an “administration” nor one for partition, but that
of general creditors seeking to enforce a specific lien for their debt on
a particular piece of property, which lien, as such, the court in Moore
v. Moore declares does not exist.

[9] Is the action in rem or in personam? Suits by creditors against
heirs holding lands of a decedent debtor to subject the lands to payment
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of claims are frequent. One of the early leading cases is Webster v.
Willis, 56 Tex. 472. 'The action is identical in some respects to the
one under consideration. Willis, creditor, in an action for debt, hold-
ing a note of Sanderson, decedent, sues unknown heirs and asserts the
general lien as existing on a particular tract of land, prays for seizure,
foreclosure of lien, etc. Service was had by publication. The court
says:

“This proceeding is not based upon any specific lien upon the land which
was decreed to be sold; the cause of action * * * rested upon a supposed
cause of action in personam against the heirs of Mrs. Sanderson”’—citing
State v. Lewellyn, 25 Tex, 797; Yancy v. l%atte, 48 Tex. 59.

The court declares on page 476 that:

“A charge or lien upon the property in the hands of an heir seems to be
general and in favor of all creditors alike, but not giving a specified lien to
any particular creditor and on any specified property.”

In reversing and remanding a decree of the lower court awarding

foreclosing of creditor’s lien on particular property, the court on page
477 says:
_“The law contemplates a personal judgment. The judgment in this case
does not conform to this view of the statute; it is framed upon the theory that
the proceeding is wholly in rem, and the decree in effect is a condemnation of
the land as upon proceedings to foreclose a mortgage or other specific lien.”

Referring to the effect of this decision and approving same, Justice
Brown, in Moore v. Moore, 89 Tex. 33, 33 S. W. 218, says:

“Under our decisions it is held that, when property is distributed among
the heirs and a debt against the ancestor remains unpaid, the creditor may
sue the heir and recover a personal judgment against him for the debt, to the
amount of the value of the property received by the heirs from the estate, but
that a judgment cannot be entered foreclosing a lien upon that property.”

Approving Webster v. Willis and State v. Lewellyn, Chief Justice
Willie, in a suit where a general creditor obtained judgment subjecting
property of decedent debtor in possession of heirs to foreclosure of
general statutory lien (Mayes v. Jones, 62 Tex. 365), reversing the
judgment, says: .

“We think that the court also erred in foreclosing a lien upon the Wilson
county land and in decreeing its sale in satisfaction of the judgment. Our
statute does not give any creditor a lien upon any specific piece of property of
the deceased debtor by reason of its descent to his heirs, The entire creditors .
of the deceased have the right to subject such property to the payment of
their debts; and to that end they, or any one of them, may sue the heirs for
the debt, and obtain judgment to the extent of the property received by the
heirs from their deceased ancestor. The suit is in personam, and the heir
may show in defense that he has received no assets by descent, and prevent
any recovery whatever agalnst himself, or limit the recovery to the amount
so received. The judgment when recovered is conclusive of the fact that the-
heir has received assets to the amount for which it is rendered, and an ex-
ecution issues upon it as in case of any other judgment in personam.”

The effect of these decisions conclusively show that the plaintiffs’
right of action as general creditors having claims against property of
a decedent debtor invoking the general statutory lien is one in perso-
nam, and not in rem. This court cannot entertain jurisdiction under
the provisions of section 57 of the Judicial Code unless the suit is one
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in rem, because, as before stated, independent of the provisions of the
Code, no personal judgment could be rendered by this court upon serv-
ice by publication; none of the defendants being residents or citizens
of Texas.

[10] The lien must have existed anterior to the suit. Circuit Jus-
tice Lowell in Dormitzer v. Illinois Bridge Co. (C. C. Mass. 1881) 6
Fed. 218, defining the character of lien or claim to property referred to
in the then recent act of March, 1875, now section 57 of the Judicial
Code, in a case of attachment of property of an absent defendant, on
demurrer to jurisdiction, sustaining same, says:

“A recent statute gives these courts jurisdiction to enforce a lien upon or
claim to, or remove an incumbrance or lien or cloud upon the title to, real or
personal property within the district, though the defendants, or some of them,
may not be either inhabitants thereof or found therein, first giving notice to
the absent defendants. St. 1875, e. 137, par. 8; 18 St. 472. But this means a
lien or title existing anterior to the suit, and not one caused by the institu-
tion of the suit itself.”

This early interpretation of the meaning of the act has been sus-
tained and approved in the following cases: Morris v. Graham (C.
C.) 51 Fed. 56; Jones v. Gould (C. C.) 141 Fed. 700; Shainwald v.
Lewis (D. C.) 5 Fed. 510; Jones v. Gould, 149 Fed. 154, 80 C. C. A.
1; W. U. Teleg. Co. v. L. & N. Ry. (D. C.) 201 Fed. 944; Bucyrus
Co. v. McArthur (D. C.) 219 Fed. 268; Wabash R. Co. v. West Side
Belt Co. (D. C.) 235 Fed. 647; Scott v. Neely, 140 U. S. 113, 11 Sup.
Ct. 712, 35 L. Ed. 358; Cates v. Allen, 149 U. S. 451, 13 Sup. Ct.
977, 37 L. Ed. 804.

The action is not one to enforce a specific lien upon specific prop-
erty existing prior to the suit as contemplated by the statute.

For the reasons stated, it appears that defendants’ grounds of ob-
jection to the jurisdiction are well taken. Their motion to dismiss
plaintiffs’ bill should be sustained; and it is so ordered.

KBATING v. PENNSYLVANIA CO,
(District Court, N. D. Ohio, E. D. September 11, 1917)
No. 9526.

1. REMoVAL OF CAUSES €=12—Ri1GHT T0 REMOVE—ACTIONS BETWEEN CITI-
ZENS.
An action between citizens of different states cannot be removed to
the federal court, under Judicial Code (Act March 3, 1911, c. 231) § 28.
36 Stat. 1094 (Comp. St. 1916, § 1010), unless the court to which removal
is sought would have had jurisdiction, under section 51 (section 1033), had
the action been instituted therein.
2. REMOVAL OF CAUSES €&=106-—JURISDICTION—W AIVER,
Where an action between citizens of different states Is removed to a
federal court, which would not have had jurisdiction under Judicial Code,
§ 51, the objection to the court’s want of jurisdiction is waived, when-
ever the party objecting to removal appears for any purpose, except to
object to the jurisdiction over his person.

.@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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3. CoURTS ¢&=90(4)—PRECEDENTS—JUDICIAL CODE.

While those sections of the Judiciary Act of 1887 (Act March 3, 1887,
c. 373, 24 Stat. 552), as amended in 1888 (Act Aug. 13, 1888, c. 866, L5
Stat., 433), relating to the jurisdiction of federal courts, removal of
causes and venue have been to some extent changed in phraseology, the
act having been divided into numerous sections by the Judicial Code, the
scope of the act was not changed, and decisions under the Judiciary Act
have the same effect as if decided under the Judicial Code.

4. REMOVAL oF CAUSES &>102—RIGHT oF REMOVAL—JURISDICTION OF FED-
ERAL COURT—“INHABITANT.”

Judicial Code, § 24 (Comp. St. 1916, § 991), declares that District
Courts shall have original jurisdiction of suits between citizens of different
states, and between citizens of a state and foreign states, citizens, or sub-
jects. Section 28 declares any suits of which the District Courts are
given jurisdiction by the Code may be removed by the defendant or
defendants therein, being nonresidents of the state where instituted. Sec-
tion 51 declares that no civil suit shall be brought in any District Court
against any person by any original process or proceeding in any other
district than that whereof he is an inhabitant, but where the jurisdic-
tion is founded only on diversity of citizenship suit may be brought in
the district of the residence of either plaintiff or defendant. An alien
sued defendant, a foreign corporation, in the courts of a state other
than that of its domicile. On petition of defendant the cause was re-
moved to the federal District Court. Held that, as plaintif was an
alien, he was not an inhabitant of the state in which suit was instituted,
for the word “inhabitant,” as used in section 51, is synonymous with
“citizen” or “resident,” and in its application to corporations refers to
the state in which they were chartered, and hence the motion to remand
must be denied, though the District Court cannot, in an action between
citizens of different states, entertain jurisdiction under petition to remove,
where suit could not originally have been brought therein, for suit in
this case might have been brought in District Court to which the action
was removed ; the restrictions not applying because of plaintiff’s alienage.

[Ed. Note.—For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and
Second Series, Inhabitant.]

At Law. Action by Patrick J. Keating against the Pennsylvania
Company, begun in the state court and removed to federal court. On
motion to remand. Motion denied.

S. V. McMahon, F. W. Zimmerman, and C. W. Dille, all of Cleve-
land, Ohio, for plaintiff.
Squire, Sanders & Dempsey, of Cleveland, Ohio, for defendant.

WESTENHAVER, District Judge. The plaintiff is an alien sub-
ject of the king of Great Britain, and the defendant is a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the state of Pennsylvania,
and having its principal office in that state. The defendant is, there-
fore, a citizen and resident of the state of Pennsylvania. This action
was brought in the court of common pleas of Cuyahoga county, Ohie,
and on application of the defendant, made in due time, was removed to
this court. The plaintiff now appears specially, and moves to remand
on the ground that, on the facts above stated, this action could not origi-
nally have been brought in this court, and cannot, therefore, be remov-
ed here.

The question of law thus raised is one respecting which much differ-
_ence of opinion exists in the several United States District Courts.

@&=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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In this forum it has been held, on exactly similar facts, that the action
was not removable, and granted a motion to remand. Ivanoff v. Me-
chanical Rubber Co. (D. C.) 232 Fed. 173.

In other districts decisions have been rendered, holding on these
facts that actions cannot be removed to this court. Mahopoulus v.
Chicago, etc., Ry. Co. (C. C.) 167 Fed. 165, by District Judge Pollock;
Odhner v. Northern Pacific Ry. Co. (C. C.) 188 Fed. 507, by Circuit
Judge Coxe, holding the District Court; Sagara v. Chicago, etc., Ry.
Co. (C. C.) 189 Fed. 220. by District Judge Lewis. In Louisville & N.
R. Co. v. Western Union Tele. Co. (D. C.) 218 Fed. 91, Cochran, Dis-
trict Judge, expresses the opinion that the reasoning of these cases is
sound, if Ex parte Wisner, 203 U. S. 449, 27 Sup. Ct. 150, 51 L. Ed.
264, on which they were based, is still the law. But he denied the order
to remand, because, in his opinion, Ex parte ‘Wisner was decided wrong
in the first place, and its authority has since been so far impaired that
it is not to be regarded as controlling.

In other districts decisions have been rendered, holding on the same
state of facts that such actions are removable. Barlow v. Chicago
& N. W. Ry. Co. (C. C) 164 Fed. 765, by District Judge Reed; also
see same case on rehearing by District Judge Reed (C. C.) 172 Fed.
513; Bagenas v. Southern Pac. Co. (C. C.) 180 Fed. 8387, by Van
Fleet, District Judge; Rones v. Katalla Co. (C. C.) 182 Fed. 946, by
Donworth, District Judge; Decker v. Southern Ry. Co. (C. C.) 189 Fed.
225, by Grubb, District Judge; Smellie v. Southern Pac. Co. (D. C.)
197 Fed. 641, by Van Fleet, District Judge.

The conflict between these ‘decisions is irreconcilable. The several
judges, rendering the opinions, have answered the same question in two
different ways. The reasons supporting the holding that such an action
is not removable are best stated in Sagara v. Chicago, etc., Ry. Co.,
supra. The reasons holding that such an action is removable are best
stated in Barlow v. Chicago, etc., Ry. Co., supra, and in Decker v.
Southern Ry. Co., supra. Counsel are referred to those cases for a
more extended statement of the reasons supporting the different sides
of the controversy. After mature reflection, I have reached the con-
clusion that this action is removable, and my holding will be in accord
with the second group of cases above cited, which in my opinion is
based on better reasoning.

[1,2] This conflict of opinion is due to the different views entertain-
ed touching the force and effect of Ex parte Wisner, 203 U. S. 449,
27 Sup. Ct. 150, 51 L. Ed. 264. Prior to that decision, the accepted
opinion was that the venue section of the Judicial Code (scction 51)
did not limit or restrict the right of removal conferred by section 2§,
but that any action of which a federal court might take jurisdiction
under section 24 of the Judicial Code, or under the Judiciary Act of
1887, as amended in 1888, might be removed to the federal courts,
even though under the venue section or provisions it might not original-
ly have been brought in the federal court of that district against time-
ly objection of the defendant. Dillon on Removal of Causesy 96;
Moon on Removal of Causes, § 65. See, also, Judge Cochran’s state-
ment of the prior holdings in 218 Fed. 95. In other words, the venue
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provisions of the Judiciary Act of 18387, as amended in 1888, prescrib-
ing the district within which a suit might be brought, were not regard-
ed as conferring or withholding jurisdiction, but as conferring on the
defendant a privilege respecting only the particular United States court
in which he might be required to answer. This limitation was regard-
ed like similar limitations in state Codes, applicable to the county with-
in which a defendant might be served or required to answer.

Under the Judiciary Act of 1837-88, prior to Ex parte Wisner,
supra, as under the state Codes, the view entertained and followed was
that an appearance, or any act of a defendant thus sued in the wrong
forum, other than to appear specially to claim the exemption accorded
him, would waive his right to object; but the jurisdiction of the court
itself over the subject-matter and cause of action was ample and beyond
question. In this apparent state of the law Ex parte Wisner, supra,
was decided. This state of the law was developed, it is true, prior to
the Judiciary Act of 1837-83. Many decisions had been rendered prior
thereto, holding that the act of 1887-88 had as one of its important
purposes the limiting of the jurisdiction of the United States cotirts,
but the exact point presented in Ex parte Wisner had not been previ-
ously considered by the United States Supreme Court.

This case holds, in brief, that the limitation of the venue provisions
of the act of 1887-88, respecting the particular court within which an
action must be brought, is jurisdictional in the same sense as the pro-
visions defining the subject-matter of the jurisdiction of the United
States courts, and that, therefore, if the action could not, in the first in-
stance, have been brought in the federal court of the particular district
to which it was removed, it could not be removed to that court. Mr.
Chief Justice Fuller, delivering the opinion, also says that consent of
parties could not waive this defect in jurisdiction. The facts were that
Wisner, a citizen of Michigan, sued in a state court of Missouri a citi-
zen of Louisiana, and the defendant, by timely application, removed the
action to the United States court for the Eastern district of Missouri.
The plaintiff thereupon, appearing specially for the purpose, moved to
remand, which motion was overruled. An application was thereupon
made to the United States Supreme Court for a writ of mandamus to
compel the lower court to remand the case, and it was adjudged, as
already stated, that the action was not removable, and that it should be
remanded.

In the later case of In re Moore, 209 U. S. 490, 28 Sup. Ct. 585, 52
L. Ed. 904, 14 Ann. Cas. 1164, the same facts were present, except
that, after removal from the state court to the United States court, the
plaintiff had appeared and filed an amended petition before making his
motion to remand. It was held that he had, by this action, waived his
privilege of objecting to the further exercise of jurisdiction by the
United States court. Ex parte Wisner, in which the opinion had been
expressed that the limitations of the venue provisions were jurisdiction-
al in the strict sense and could not be waived, was overruled to this ex-
tent. .

Several cases had been previously decided, holding that a party might
waive the objection that the suit was brought in the wrong district,
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and several cases in conformity to In re Moore have since been decided.
See Central Trust Company v. McGeorge, 151 U. S. 129, 132, 14 Sup.
Ct. 286, 38 L. Ed. 98; Interior Construction Co. v. Gibney, 160 U. S.
217, 219, 16 Sup. Ct. 272, 40 L. Ed. 401; Western Loan Co. v. Butte
Co., 210 U. S. 368, 28 Sup. Ct. 720, 52 L. Ed. 1101; Kreigh v. West-
. inghouse & Co., 214 U. S. 249, 29 Sup. Ct. 619, 53 L. Ed. 984. This
is now undoubtedly the settled law.

As a result, however, of Ex parte Wisner and In re Moore, and nu-
merous decisions of subordinate United States courts, following and
applying the same, it seems to be settled law that an action brought in
a state court may not be removed to a United States court, unless it
could, in the first instance, have been brought in that court, despite the
timely objection of a nonconsenting party, even though, by failure to
object after removal, the right so to do is waived, and the United
States court may, as a result of such waiver, acquire ample jurisdiction
to proceed to final judgment.

[3] In a casein which an alien is a plaintiff or defendant, a different
question of law is involved, which is not. settled or controlled by the
same rules. The Judicial Code does not differ from the Judiciary
Act of 1887, as amended in 1888, in the provisions pertinent to a deter-
mination of this question. Some changes have been made in the phrase-
ology, and the three sections of the Judiciary Act have been divided into
numerous sections in the Judicial Code. For practical purposes, how-
ever, it does not seem to me that any change of law was intended, and
cases decided under the act of 1887-83 have the same weight as au-
thority as those decided under the Judicial Code. I shall therefore
make use only of the sections of the Judicial Code.

[4] Section 24 of the Judicial Code, so far as pertinent to this ques-
tion, provides, in substance, that District Courts shall have original
jurisdiction of all suits (1) between citizens of different states; (2)
between citizens of a state and foreign states, citizens, or subjects. The
first, therefore, deals with controversies to which citizens of different
states of the United States are parties. The second deals with contro-
versies to which citizens of the several states of the United States and
citizens or subjects of foreign states, or, in other words, aliens, are
parties. Section 28, so far as pertinent to this question, provides, in
substance, that any suits of which the District Courts of the United
States are given jurisdiction by this title, may be removed by the de-
fendant or defendants therein being nonresidents of the state. The
words “this title” relate to the title of the act known as the Judicial
Code. Section 51 provides in part as follows:

“No civil suit shall be brought in any District Court against any person
by any original process or proceeding in any other district than that whereof
be is an inhabitant; but wh